Public Document Pack

INFRASTRUCTURE AND
PUBLIC WORKS
COMMITTEE

Agenda and Reports

for the meeting on
Tuesday, 17 June 2025

at 7.00 pm
in the Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall

© 2025 City of Adelaide. All Rights Resenas

Our Adelaide.
Bold.

Aspirational.
Innovative.




Item

INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
Meeting Agenda, Tuesday, 17 June 2025, at 7.00 pm

Members — The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith
Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Martin (Chair)
Councillors Abrahimzadeh, Couros, Davis, Giles, Dr Siebentritt and Snape

Agenda
Pages

Acknowledgement of Country

At the opening of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee meeting, the Chair
will state:

‘Council acknowledges that we are meeting on traditional Country of the Kaurna
people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and present. We
recognise and respect their cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land.
We acknowledge that they are of continuing importance to the Kaurna people living
today.

And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First
Nations who are present today.’

Apologies and Leave of Absence
Apology:

The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith
Confirmation of Minutes - 20 May 2025

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee
held on 20 May 2025, be taken as read and be confirmed as an accurate record of
proceedings.

View public 20 May 2025 Minutes.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

Deputations

Workshops

Nil

Reports for Recommendation to Council

71 School Travel Safety Review 3-370
7.2 Capital Works Monthly Project Update - May 2025 371 - 386
Reports for Noting

Nil

Closure


https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g1166/Printed%20minutes%2020th-May-2025%2017.30%20Infrastructure%20and%20Public%20Works%20Committee.pdf?T=1

Agenda Item 7.1

School Travel Safety Review Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Infrastructure and Public
Works Committee

Strategic Alignment - Our Places
Program Contact:
Mark Goudge, Associate Director
Infrastructure

Public Approving Officer:
Mike Philippou, A/Director, City
Infrastructure

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide the outcomes of the investigation and summary findings from the School
Travel Safety Review for schools within the City of Adelaide and detail next steps to progress the Review
recommendations including infrastructure improvements.

At its meeting on 31 January 2023, Council resolved that the Administration investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of primary and
secondary, public and private school children entering and leaving schools at the beginning and end of the school
day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised “kiss and drop zones” at all schools in the City of
Adelaide.

Following the trial study of school drop off / pick up safety at St Aloysius College, which was reported to Council in
March 2024, the Administration engaged consultant Tonkin to undertake a School Travel Safety Review for the
remaining 11 schools within the City of Adelaide.

The review focused on the streets immediately adjacent to each school and issues on these streets related to
driver and pedestrian behaviours.

It is recommended that school zone speed limits be implemented around each school in consultation with
Department for Infrastructure and Transport (DIT).

RECOMMENDATION

The following recommendation will be presented to Council on 24 June 2025 for consideration

THAT THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL
THAT COUNCIL

1. Receives the eleven (11) School Travel Safety Review reports prepared by Tonkin contained within
Attachments A to K to Item 7.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Works
Committee held on 17 June 2025.

2. Notes that Administration will develop concept plans for the implementation of infrastructure improvements
within the vicinity of each school that align with the recommendations of the reports and safer streets and
speed outcomes and will undertake further consultation with each school and other relevant Stakeholders.

3. Notes the delivery of the infrastructure improvements will be subject to funding approvals as part of future
Business Plan and Budget processes

4, Approves as a priority measure the implementation of school zone speed limits and / or speed limit
changes around each school in consultation with the Department for Infrastructure and Transport.

5. Notes that Administration will consult with the schools to investigate additional opportunities to increase
student walking and cycling levels.

6. Notes that the Administration will provide further updates to Council for review and consideration.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 3



IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS

City of Adelaide Strategic Alignment — Our Places

2024-2028 Community assets are adaptable and responsibly maintained.
Strategic Plan Create safe, inclusive and healthy places for our community.
Policy Not as a result of this report.

Consultation undertaken with each of the subject schools in preparing the documents that

eI are the subject of this report.

Resource Not as a result of this report.

Risk / Legal / As set out in South Australia’s Road Safety Strategy to 2031 Council, as a Road Authority,
Legislative has a shared responsibility for road safety outcomes and to seek Safe System outcomes.
Opportunities Improve safety for students around schools during school drop off and pick up times.

24/25 Budget

Allocation Not as a result of this report.

$150,000 is currently allocated within the Draft 2025/26 Business Plan and Budget,
currently out for consultation to progress (in part) the priority measure as per
recommendation 4 of this report and the preparation of an implementation plan with
prioritisation and costings for the infrastructure improvements around each of the schools.

The detailed design and implementation of each school travel safety review is currently

Proposed 25/26 unfunded.

Budget Allocation

The required funding is subject to, and needs to be considered in the context of, the
prioritisation of projects, initiatives and service enhancements for the development of the
Draft 2025/26 budget, and future budgets including the parameters of the LTFP to ensure
long-term financial sustainability.

Life of Project,
Service, Initiative The implementation of recommendations from the review is expected to occur over a 10-
or (Expectancy of) | year period subject to future Business Plan and Budget processes.

Asset

24/25 Budget
Reconsideration Not as a result of this report.
(if applicable)

Ongoing Costs
(eg maintenance Not as a result of this report.
cost)

Other Funding

Sources Funding grants applications will be progressed to assist in the implementation of projects.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 4



DISCUSSION

Background

1.

At its meeting on 31 January 2023, Council resolved:
‘That Council:

Asks the Administration to investigate and to report to the appropriate Council Committee by the end of the
2023 school year the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of primary
and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning and end of
the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and drop zones” at all
schools in the City of Adelaide.’

In 2023 the Administration engaged an external consultant (InfraPlan) to undertake a trial study of school
drop off/pick up safety at St Aloysius College. St Aloysius College was made a priority due to the crash on
Angas Street in June 2023 and ongoing safety concerns.

The review focused on the streets immediately adjacent to the school and issues on these streets with
informal crossing and dangerous driving behaviours, with the report received by Council in March 2024.

School Travel Safety Review

4.

Following the completion of the St Aloysius Travel Safety Review, the Administration engaged an external
consultant (Tonkin) to undertake a safety review for the remaining 11 schools within the City of Adelaide
area, being:

4.1. Adelaide Botanic High School

4.2. Adelaide High School

4.3. Christian Brothers College Junior Campus
4.4. Christian Brothers College

4.5. Gilles Street Primary School

4.6. North Adelaide Primary School

4.7. Pulteney Grammar School

4.8. St Dominic's Priory School

4.9. St Mary's College

4.10. Sturt Street Community School

4.11. University Senior College.

Key themes across the School Safety Travel Review include:

5.1. The proportion of students that travel to school by car was high across all schools (greater than 80
percent for some schools) with low proportions of students walking and riding to school.

5.2.  Some schools, such as North Adelaide Primary School have a walkable catchment, and the high
levels of driving reflect parental concern about road safety.

5.3. Public Transport is generally the alternative mode of transport (other than driving) with some variation
depending on location of school and age of students.

5.4. Concerns with driver behaviour, and speeds and compliance with road rules.

5.5. Availability of safe road crossing points for pedestrians and waiting times at existing signalised
crossings.

5.6. Availability and design of parking spaces for pick up and drop off.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 5



Adelaide Botanic High School (ABHS) Travel Safety Review

6. The Adelaide Botanic High School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within
Attachment A.

7. Key findings from the review include:

71.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

Adelaide Botanic High School is in the Adelaide Park Lands — Frome Park / Nellie Raminyemmerin
Park (Park 11) on the eastern side of Frome Road south of Victoria Drive with 1,390 students enrolled
in Term 2 - 2024.

18 per cent of the students lived in Adelaide and North Adelaide with 11 per cent in the adjacent
suburbs to the Ring Road within a distance that they can walk or bicycle to the school. Over 70 per
cent of the students lived in suburbs beyond a short walking or cycling distance.

From the student travel survey, on a fine, dry 25-degree day:

7.3.1. the car mode share was 26 per cent in the AM period and 22 per cent in the PM
period.

7.3.2. Public Transport mode share was 61 per cent in the AM period and 65 per cent in
the PM period.

7.3.3. The bicycle mode share was about 8 per cent and the walk mode share was 4 to 5
per cent.

On a wet weather day in the same week, the cycling mode share dropped by five per cent
and public transport by nine per cent in the AM period whereas the car mode share
increased by 13 per cent.

8. Key recommendations

8.1.

8.2.

For Council:

8.1.1. Most of the student travel safety issues will be addressed with the finalisation of the Frome
Road bikeway with the following infrastructure improvements:

8.1.2. Southbound bus stop 1A will be relocated north of Victoria Drive so that the queues of students
in the afternoon can be organised to stand in the open area north of the northern side of the
school.

8.1.3. The left turn slip lane from Victoria Drive for northbound traffic into Frome Road will be removed
to remove this pedestrian safety risk at this intersection.

8.1.4. Required modifications to bicycle lanes in Frome Road as per ongoing monitoring and review.
For the School:

8.2.1. The high school to complete the landscaping project on the northern side of the school to
include a sealed footpath from Frome Road at Victoria Drive for a safer walk route to the
student entrance on the northern side of the school.

8.2.2. Maintain the clearance of debris, fallen tree branches and leaves from the footpath in front of
the entire school building, especially during the autumn and winter months when wet leaves are
a trip hazard for pedestrians and cyclists.

8.2.3. Develop ongoing travel demand management education and training with regular activities and
promotions to encourage more students to walk, cycle and use public transport modes instead
of the private vehicle.

8.2.4. Consider promoting safe travel to school with the preparation of a School Travel Access Guide
that includes the school building entry locations, bus route and timetable information, other
public transport information, safe walking and cycling routes and tips for safe cycling.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 6



9. A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Adelaide Botanic High School
including school zone speed limits has been prepared by the Administration (Link 1).

Adelaide High School Travel Safety Review
10. The Adelaide High School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within Attachment B.
11.  Key findings from the review include:

11.1. Adelaide High School is located within the Adelaide Park Lands - Ellis Park / Tampawardli (Park 24) on
the western side of West Terrace south of Glover Avenue with 1,554 students enrolled in Term 2 2024.

11.2. 7.8 per cent of the students lived in the City of Adelaide and 86.4 per cent of the students lived in the
inner suburbs mostly within the enrolment area and remaining students lived in the outer suburban
areas.

11.3. From the student travel survey:

11.3.1. Travel by train was the highest transport mode for all students at about 46 per
cent in the AM period and 53 per cent in the PM period

11.3.2. 10 to 12 per cent students travelled by bus

11.3.3. Cycling to school was up to five per cent for Years 7 to 9 and about two per cent
for Years 10 to 12.

11.3.4. Walking to school was under four per cent of the students in the AM period and about five
per cent in the PM period for all year groups.

11.4. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements are:
11.4.1. Pedestrian Safety at West Terrace/Glover Avenue and Currie Street
11.4.2. Double Parking on Glover Avenue
11.4.3. pedestrian storage/queuing at the bus stop encroaches onto the shared use path

11.4.4. pedestrians crossing Glover Avenue to travel to/from the school without using the
signalised crossing at West Terrace

11.4.5. Vehicles exiting from Ellis Park / Tampawardli (Park 24) to West Terrace
traversing across four traffic lanes to travel to Waymouth Street or perform a U-
turn manoeuvre.

11.4.6. The school bus stop located adjacent to the main entrance to the school on West
Terrace is unsealed resulting in an obstructed shared use path.

11.4.7. Faded and absent line marking in some locations along the shared use path on
West Terrace.

12. Key Recommendations
12.1. For Council:

12.1.1. Provide improvements to the West Terrace / Glover Avenue / Currie Street intersection
including, review of signal operations to increase pedestrian crossing times and upgrades to
provide additional pedestrian storage areas, corralling measures such as fencing.

12.1.2. Provide improved access and storage areas at bus stops adjacent to the school, including
considering stop relocation.

12.1.3. Implement measures to direct pedestrians to cross at the signalised
crossing at West Terrace.

12.1.4. Re-line mark the existing shared use path adjacent to the school to improve delineation and
definition for vehicle, cyclist and pedestrian movements.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 7


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_1.pdf

12.1.5. Review movements out from Park 24 to West Terrace for potential improvements to address
traversing across four traffic lanes to travel to Waymouth or perform a U-turn manoeuvre

12.1.6. Review kiss and drop facilities adjacent to Glover Avenue and measures to improve
compliance and reduce double parking (e.g. compliance strategy).

12.2. The recommendations also include a suggestion by the AHS staff for a new public road to be
constructed through Ellis Park / Tampawardli (Park 24) and a pedestrian bridge over West Terrace.
These measures are not being considered for implementation at this time due to the impact to the
Park Lands.

13.  Adraft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Adelaide High School has been
prepared by the Administration (Link 2).

Christian Brothers College Junior Campus School Travel Safety Review

14.  The Christian Brothers College Junior Campus Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within
Attachment C.

15.  Key findings from the review include:

15.1. Christian Brothers College (CBC) Junior Campus is a private school located in Wakefield Street
between Hutt Street and East Terrace with classes from Reception to Year 6 with an enrolment of 266
students.

15.2. The CBC Junior Campus does not have an enrolment restriction area and students live in a wide
range of locations in Greater Adelaide. However, most students reside in inner east or north-west
Adelaide suburbs.

15.3. From the student travel survey:

15.3.1. The primary travel mode is private vehicle, with 93 per cent of children being driven to and
from school attending Reception to Year 3 and 82 per cent in the older students in Years 4 -
6.

15.3.2. 14 per cent of the students in Years 4 to 6 travelled by bus in the AM period and 13 per cent
in the PM period with five per cent by bus for Reception to Year 3.

15.3.3. Less than two per cent of the students travelled by train or tram and less than two percent
travelled by bicycle and walking.

15.4. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around Christian Brothers College Junior Campus are:
15.4.1. Limited options to cross Wakefield Street with one signalised crossing at Hutt Street.

15.4.2. Several near misses have been observed at the koala crossing in East Terrace with drivers
not stopping.

15.4.3. Heavy vehicles short-cut from Wakefield Street to Bartels Road using East Terrace.

15.4.4. Vehicles are travelling at speeds on Wakefield Street not typically associated with school
zones.

15.4.5. A high demand for pick-up activities with the no-parking requirements on Wakefield Street
and the eastern side of East Terrace between 3 pm and 4 pm was disobeyed by over 20
vehicles during the 30-minute period of pick-up time.

15.4.6. Hazards associated with cyclists and parking and reversing out of the parking spaces.
16. Key Recommendations
16.1. For Council:

16.1.1. Re-investigate the installation of a signalised pedestrian actuated crossing (PAC) adjacent to
the school.

16.1.2. Install a pedestrian refuge in Wakefield Street between Hutt Street and East Terrace.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 8


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_2.pdf

17.

16.2.

16.1.3. Change parking controls on Wakefield Street and East Terrace to improve supply of pick up
and drop off spaces.

16.1.4. Changes to speed limits around the school.

16.1.5. Implement measures to restrict heavy vehicle activity along East Terrace adjacent to the
school.

16.1.6. Install additional signage to identify the school area for vehicles approaching the school
zones.

For the School:

16.2.1. Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted
on the school website in a location that is easy to find, in addition to the school newsletter.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Christian Brothers Junior
Campus School has been prepared by the Administration (Link 3).

Christian Brothers College School Travel Safety Review

18.
19.

20.

The Christian Brothers College Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within Attachment D.

Key findings from the review include:

19.1.

19.2.

19.3.

19.4.

Christian Brothers College Senior Campus is a private school located in Wakefield Street between
Frome Street and Daly Street that has classes from Years 7 to 12 with an enrolment of 686 students.

Christian Brothers College does not have an enrolment restriction area and students live in a wide
range of locations in Greater Adelaide. However, most students reside in inner east or north-west
Adelaide suburbs.

From the student travel survey:

19.3.1. car mode share is 55 per cent in the AM period and 45 per cent in the PM period

19.3.2. public transport mode share is 43 per cent in the AM period and 53 per cent in the PM period
19.3.3. bicycle and walking mode share is less than three per cent.

Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around Christian Brothers College are:

19.4.1. safety for pedestrian movements by parents and students in Wakefield Street opposite the
student entrance.

19.4.2.  U-turn manoeuvres on Wakefield Street
19.4.3. lack of pedestrian friendly infrastructure on Ifould Street.

19.4.4. vehicle speed limits on Wakefield Street.

Key Recommendations

20.1.

For Council:

20.1.1. Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Wakefield
Street opposite the student entrance such as a PAC.

20.1.2. Fillin the gap in the Wakefield Street central median to stop U-turn manoeuvres.

20.1.3. Rearrange the car spaces in Wakefield Street with parallel parking to provide a formal 2-
minute Kiss and Drop zone near the student entrance.

20.1.4. New infrastructure on Ifould Street to change the priority of the street to a pedestrian friendly
arrangement.

20.1.5. Consider changing the posted speed in Wakefield Street between Frome Street and East
Terrace from 50 km/h to a slower speed limit.

20.2. For the School:

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 9


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_3.pdf

21.

20.2.1. Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted
on the school website in location that is easy to find, in addition to the school newsletter.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Christian Brothers College has
been prepared by the Administration (Link 4).

Gilles Street Primary School Travel Safety Review

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

The Gilles Street Primary School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within
Attachment E.

Key findings from the review include:

23.1. Gilles Street Primary School is a public school located on Gilles Street between King Wiliam Street
and Pulteney Street that does not have an enrolment zone and has 301 students.

23.2. Over 64 per cent of the students live in the City of Adelaide and 31 per cent of the students live in the
inner suburbs of metropolitan Adelaide. The remaining students live in the outer suburbs.

23.3. From the student travel survey:
23.3.1.  About 33 per cent walk to school and over seven per cent cycle to school.
23.3.2. About 17 per cent of the students travel via public transport.

23.3.3. The remaining 43 per cent of students are driven to school by car with similar percentages
between the AM arrival and PM departure periods.

23.4. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around Gilles Street Primary School are:
23.4.1. Pedestrian wait times at the signalised crossing on Gilles Street.
23.4.2. Lack of compliance with the 25 km/hr speed limit during school peak hours.
23.4.3. Vehicles parking over the bus bay in front of the school in Gilles Street.

Key Recommendations

24.1. For Council:
24.1.1. Install flashing lights with the existing school zone signs in Gilles Street.

24.1.2. Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing in Gilles Street at Pulteney Street and
improve the pedestrian green light waiting time during school peak hours.

24.2. For the School:

24.2.1. Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted
on the school website in a location that is easy to find, in addition to the school newsletter.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Gilles Street Primary School
(combined with Pulteney Grammar) has been prepared by the Administration (Link 5).

In the draft concept plan Gilles Street has been combined with Pulteney Grammar due to the proximity of the
two schools.

North Adelaide Primary School Travel Safety Review

27.

28.

The North Adelaide Primary School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within
Attachment F.

Key findings from the review include:

28.1. North Adelaide Primary School is a public school located in North Adelaide on Tynte Street between
O’Connell Street and Margaret Street, with an additional frontage to Gover Street.

28.2. The school comprises Reception to Year 6 with an enrolment of 286 students with a maximum 330
student capacity.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 10


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_4.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_5.pdf

28.3. The school enrolment area is zoned and includes all of the suburb of North Adelaide, parts of
Ovingham, Fitzroy and Thorngate and Medindie, with over 44 per cent of the students living in North
Adelaide, with 15 per cent in the adjacent suburbs to the Ring Road or in the city area of Adelaide.

28.4. From the student travel survey:
28.4.1. Over 70 per cent of students travel by car
28.4.2. Walk mode share is about 20 per cent
28.4.3. Travel by public transport is about 3.5 per cent
28.4.4. The number of students who travelled by bicycle or scooter was very low.
28.5. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around North Adelaide Primary School are:

28.5.1. Car parking was limited during the 15-minute peak periods around both AM and PM peak
times due to high occupancy.

28.5.2. Difficultly utilising angled carparking in Tynte Street for pick up and drop off.
28.5.3. Drivers observed making mid-block U-turn movements in Gover Street.
28.5.4. Vehicle speeds and failure to give way at the Gover Street emu crossing.
28.5.5. Security issues with the bicycle storage area.
29. Key Recommendations
29.1. For Council:

29.1.1. Convert the emu school crossing (red “CHILDREN CROSSING” flags displayed on red and
white posts) to a koala crossing (red and white posts and two yellow alternating flashing
lights) in Gover Street.

29.1.2. Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Tynte Street
opposite the student entrance immediately east of the former fire station entrance.

29.1.3. Implement changes to the timed angle parking within the vicinity of the school to improve
availability of kerbside space for pick up and drop of.

29.1.4. Install additional signage and promotion of the school area for traffic approaching the school
zones at the O’Connell Street and Lefevre Terrace end of Gover Street and Tynte Street.

29.2. For the School:

29.2.1. Organise for more staff to be available in the AM peak during the busiest period for student
arrivals and in the PM departure period at the Tynte Street and Gover Street entrances.

29.2.2. A consolidated promotional travel access guide for students and parents that would be
promoted on the school website in a location that is easy to find, in addition to the school
newsletter.

29.2.3. Note the security issues raised with the bicycle storage area and consider if improvements
are required.

30. The report includes recommendations that are not being considered, which are:

30.1. Reconfiguration of the footpath and kerb in front of the former fire station entrance that is immediately
west of the student entrance in Tynte Street to enable parking. This measure is not being considered
as this is an existing vehicle crossing to a private property that must be maintained clear of parked
vehicles.

30.2. Staff parking measures with the provision of permits for areas on Gover Street. This measure is not
being considered as this is not considered a safety measure and CoA issues parking permits in
accordance with council policies.

31. A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around North Adelaide Primary School
has been prepared by the Administration (Link 6).

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 11


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_6.pdf

Pulteney Grammar School Travel Safety Review

32.
33.

34.

35.

36.

The Pulteney Grammar School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within Attachment G.
Key findings from the review include:

33.1. Pulteney Grammar School is a private school located on South Terrace between King William Street
and Pulteney Street.

33.2. The school has 876 students that accommodates students from Reception to Year 12 as well as an
Early Learning Centre.

33.3. The school does not have an enrolment zone and about 10 per cent of students live in the City of
Adelaide, with 83 per cent of the students living in the inner metropolitan suburbs.

33.4. From the student travel survey:

33.4.1. Inthe AM period, 81 per cent of students travelled to school by car with 74 per cent in the
PM period.

33.4.2. Public transport usage was 12 per cent in the AM period and 20 per cent in the PM period.
33.4.3. The walk and cycling modes were about 6-7 percent in the AM and PM periods.
33.5. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around North Adelaide Primary School are:

33.5.1. Delays for pedestrians to wait to cross at the PAC signalised crossing in Gilles Street. (as
was reported by Gilles Street Primary School)

33.5.2. Vehicle speeds in South Terrace in the school zone area.

33.5.3. Lack of availability of kerbside space for Kiss and Drop activity close to the school due to
longer term parking controls and spaces being occupied.

Key Recommendations
34.1. For Council:

34.1.1. Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing and improve the pedestrian green light
waiting time during school peak hours.

The report includes recommendations that are not being considered, which are:
35.1. Installation of red-light cameras along South Terrace around the school zone area.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Pulteney Grammar School
(combined with Gilles Street Primary School) has been prepared by the Administration (Link 5).

St Dominic's Priory School Travel Safety Review

37.
38.

The St Dominic’s Priory School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within Attachment H.
Key findings from the review include:

38.1. St Dominic’s Priory College is a private school located in North Adelaide on Molesworth Street
between Mills Terrace and Hill Street. The school also has accesses at Barnard Street and Hill Street.

38.2. The school has 1,226 students from Reception to Year 12.

38.3. The St Dominic’s Priory College does not have an enrolment area, and most students reside in inner
Adelaide suburbs with clusters of students in Port Adelaide and Elizabeth that have special bus
services to the school.

38.4. From the student travel survey:
38.4.1. The car mode share is 81 per cent in the AM period and 79 per cent in the PM period

38.4.2. Public transport is used by 15 per cent of the students in the AM period and over 20 per cent
the PM period

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 12


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_5.pdf

39.

40.

41.

42.

38.4.3. The bicycle mode share is less than three per cent and walk mode share is less than two per
cent.

38.5. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around the school are:

38.5.1. Double parking was continuous over a 20-minute period on Barnard Street. This exceeded
125m in length, reaching to the Mills Terrace intersection.

38.5.2. Angled carparking in Molesworth Street is difficult to navigate for school drop off / pick up.

38.5.3. Large crossing distances across Molesworth Street at the Hill Street intersection resulting in
issues with pedestrian / vehicle conflicts.

38.5.4. Pedestrian behaviour crossing Molesworth Street and Barnard Street.

38.5.5. Staff parking on the nearby local streets (mostly Molesworth Street) with the time limit
restrictions and limited spaces result in staff leaving classrooms to shift vehicles.

Key Recommendations
39.1. For Council:
39.1.1. Ban the right turn movements from Molesworth Street into Hill Street during peak periods.

39.1.2. Rearrange the car spaces in Molesworth Street with parallel parking to provide a formal 2-
minute Kiss and Drop zone near the entrance to the student entrance.

39.1.3. Extend the existing Kiss and Drop area in Barnard Street for the junior school.

39.1.4. Provide a central median within the Molesworth Street corridor between Hill Street and
Barnard Street. This could also be explored along Barnard Street.

39.1.5. Investigate the inclusion of further pedestrian crossings mid-block of Molesworth Street and
Barnard Street. This could be integrated with a central median treatment.

39.1.6. Install additional signage to promote the school area for traffic approaching the school zones
at the Hill Street and Mills Terrace ends of Molesworth Street and Barnard Street.

39.2. For the School:

39.2.1. Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted
on the school website in a location that is easy to find, in addition to the school newsletter.

The consultant’s report includes recommendations that are not being considered, which are:

40.1. Provision of permits for staff in the local streets, mostly focused on the 4P sections on Molesworth
Street. This measure is not being considered as this is not considered a safety measure and CoA
issues parking permits in accordance with council policies.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around St Dominic's Priory School has
been prepared by the Administration (Link 7).

Administration has submitted an application seeking Australian Government funding under the Safer Local
Roads and Infrastructure - Tranche 2C for some of the works identified in the draft concept plan (Link 8). The
outcome of the grant application has not yet been advised.

St Mary's College School Travel Safety Review

43.
44.

The St Mary’s College Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within Attachment .
Key findings from the review include:

44 1. St Mary’s College is a Reception to Year 12 Catholic girls’ school located on the block between
Franklin Street, West Terrace, Grote Street and Gray Street in the Adelaide CBD.

44.2. The College accepts students from all suburbs and has 686 students

44.3. From the student travel survey:

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 13


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_7.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_8.pdf

44.3.1. The students in Reception to Year 3 are mostly driven to school with five per cent walking
home.

44.3.2. Over 82 per cent of students in Years 4 to 6 were driven to school with over 91 per cent of
students picked up by car.

44.3.3. About 40 per cent of students in Years 10 to 12 used the car mode to travel home with this
year group having the highest usage of public transport at 58 per cent.

44.3.4. The highest usage of public transport was for students in Years 7 to 9 at 36 per cent.
44.3.5. Cycling to the school was very low for all year groups.
44 4. lIssues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around the school are:

44.4.1. Reports of vehicles driving through red lights at the Franklin Street and Grote Street
signalised Pedestrian Actuated Crossings (PAC).

44.4.2. Queuing of vehicles in Franklin Street creating local traffic congestion.
44 .4.3. Parents and children not watching the traffic as they enter the roadway in Franklin Street.

44 .4 4. Drivers not complying with parking controls, either parking or stopping where they should not
be, or parking for longer than the posted time limits.

44.4.5. Long pedestrian waiting times at the crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street.
45. Key Recommendations
45.1. For Council:

45.1.1. Implement school zones and corresponding the 25 km/hr speed limit conditions in Franklin
Street.

45.1.2. Install overhead mast arm at the PAC in Grote Street.

45.1.3. Install measures such as a solid white line in Franklin Street to ban U-turn movements in
Franklin Street.

45.1.4. Install built-out islands or extension at the signalised crossing in Grote Street to prevent
vehicles from travelling on cycle lane and road shoulder to bypass traffic queues from West
Terrace.

45.1.5. Convert the no stopping parking control at the indented bay west of the PAC in Grote Street
to a Kiss and Drop area.

45.1.6. Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing in Grote Street and Franklin Street to
reduce pedestrian waiting time.

46. The report includes recommendations that are not being considered, which are:
46.1. Install red light cameras at the signalised crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street.

47. A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around St Mary's College School has
been prepared by the Administration (Link 9).

48. CoA has submitted an application seeking Australian Government funding under the Safer Local Roads and
Infrastructure - Tranche 2C for some of the works identified in the draft concept plan (Link 10). The outcome
of the grant application has not yet been advised.

Sturt Street Community School Travel Safety Review

49. The Sturt Street Community School Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within
Attachment J.

50. Key findings from the review include:

50.1. Sturt Street Community School is located on Sturt Street between West Terrace and Whitmore Square
and has 191 students.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 14


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_9.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_10.pdf

51.

52.

53.

50.2. The school does not have an enrolment zone and includes all suburbs in metropolitan Adelaide,
however over 55 per cent of the students live in the City of Adelaide.

50.3. From the student travel survey:
50.3.1. 68 and 61 per cent using the car mode in the AM and PM periods respectively.

50.3.2. Four per cent of students travel to school by public transport in the AM period and seven per
cent from school in the PM.

50.3.3. The walk mode share is 22 and 26 per cent in the AM and PM periods respectively.
50.3.4. Travel to school by bicycle and scooters is six per cent.
50.4. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around the school are:
50.4.1. Vehicle speeds around the school.
50.4.2. Lack of patrolling and enforcement by police.
50.4.3. The need to review the waiting area at the intersection of West Terrace and Sturt Street.
50.4.4. Lack of a formal Kiss and Drop zone in Sturt Street near the school entrance.
Key Recommendations
51.1. For Council:
51.1.1. Implement a formal Kiss and Drop area near the school entrance in Sturt Street.

51.1.2. Implement a 25 km/hr school zone in Sturt Street with Council discussions and approval
from DIT.

51.1.3. Review and improve the traffic signal phasing and infrastructure at the intersection of West
Terrace and Sturt Street to address conflict between pedestrians and vehicles.

51.2. For the school:

51.2.1. Request increased police enforcement for speeding in Sturt Street and to prevent and
address the anti-social and homeless activity in the area.

The report includes recommendations that are not being considered, which are:
52.1. Install red light cameras at the signalised crossing on Sturt Street.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around Sturt Street Community
School has been prepared by the Administration (Link 11).

University Senior College School Travel Safety Review

54.
55.

The University Senior College Draft School Travel Safety Review Report is contained within Attachment K.
Key findings from the review include:

55.1. The University Senior College comprises years 10 to 12 and is located in two campuses, one on
Kintore Avenue near Victoria Drive, and the other on North Terrace at Gawler Place.

55.2. The school has 471 students with the majority living outside the City of Adelaide area.
55.3. From the student travel survey:

55.3.1. The majority of students use public transport to travel to and from the school with 75 per cent
in the AM arrival period and 90 per cent in the PM departure period.

55.3.2. Travel by car is 23.5 per cent in the AM arrival period and 8.3 per cent in the PM.
55.3.3. Travel to school by bicycle and scooters is 1.5 per cent.
55.4. Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements around the school are:

55.4.1. Safety for walking along footpaths in the city streets with trip hazards, in particular along
Kintore Avenue.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 15


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_11.pdf

56.

57.

55.4.2. Risks for incidents between pedestrians and vehicles entering and exiting the U-Park in
Gawler Place at the entrance of the Gawler Place campus.

55.4.3. Traffic entering the University of Adelaide at Gates 11, 12 and 13 often do not give way to
pedestrians and are travelling too fast.

55.4.4. The U-Park parking facility in Gawler Place attracts anti-social behaviour in the stairwells and
on the street.

Key Recommendations
56.1. For Council:
56.1.1. Review the condition of footpaths along Kintore Avenue.
56.1.2. Install warning signs at the entrance and exit of the U-Park in Gawler Place.

56.1.3. Council to follow up on security issues reportedly associated with the Gawler Place U-Park
entrance and stairwells.

56.1.4. Prepare a promotional brochure about public transport and safe cycling routes to Adelaide
CBD.

A draft concept plan identifying potential infrastructure improvements around University Senior College has
been prepared by the Administration (Link 12).

School Zone Speed Limit

58. The City of Adelaide requires DIT approval for the installation of school zones that do not meet the
requirements of the Department’s Code of Technical Requirements and the Speed Limit Guideline of South
Australia (the Guideline).

59. DIT approval is required for the proposed new and altered school zones as the Guideline does not permit
school zones on roads which function as a major traffic route, or are multi-laned, or are near a signalised
intersection, or are near a pedestrian actuated crossing, and requires school zones to be as kept as short as
practicable.

60. DIT are currently rolling out new 40km/h time-based school speed limits across South Australia in a phased
approach, with the first phase starting from mid-2025 which are specifically targeted for schools on busy
roads which may not meet the DIT criteria for a ‘25 km/h when children present’ school zone Link 13.

61. The Administration has requested further details on proposed locations for the DIT 40 km/h school speed
limits project.

62. The 40 km/h school zone speed limits are not currently included in the Speed Limit Guideline of South
Australia and require DIT approval prior to installation.

Next Steps

63. The City of Adelaide Draft 2025/26 Business Plan and Budget includes $150,000 allocated for the School
Safety Implementation Project.

64. The following next steps are proposed for the implementation of the recommendations of the School Travel

Safety Reports:

64.1. A consultant has been engaged to undertake a Safe System Assessment for the draft concept plans
to identify any improvements or additional measures.

64.2. Consult directly with each school on the infrastructure improvements identified in the draft concept
plans.

64.3. Prepare an implementation plan with prioritisation and costings for the infrastructure improvements
around each of the schools.

64.4. As a priority measure, implement school zone speed limits around each school in consultation with
DIT.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 16


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_12.pdf
https://www.dit.sa.gov.au/infrastructure/road_projects/road_safety_program/40-kmh-school-speed-limits

64.5. Progress Infrastructure improvements and implementation as funding becomes available.

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Link 1 - Draft concept plan — Adelaide Botanic High School Infrastructure Improvements

Link 2 - Draft concept plan — Adelaide High School Infrastructure Improvements

Link 3 - Draft concept plan — Christian Brothers College Junior Campus

Link 4 - Draft concept plan — Christian Brothers College Senior Campus

Link 5 - Draft concept plan — Gilles Street Primary School and Pulteney Grammar School

Link 6 - Draft concept plan — North Adelaide Primary School

Link 7 - Draft concept plan — St Dominics School

Link 8 - Draft concept plan — St Dominics School with Grant Application Scope Clouded

Link 9 - Draft concept plan — St Mary’s School

Link 10 - Draft concept plan — St Mary’s School with Grant Application Scope Clouded

Link 11 - Draft concept plan — Sturt Street Community School

Link 12 - Draft concept plan - University Senior College Infrastructure Improvements

Link 13 - DIT 40 km/h school speed limits project information

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A — Adelaide Botanic High School Travel Safety Report

Attachment B - Adelaide High School Travel Safety Report

Attachment C - Christian Brothers College Junior Campus School Travel Safety Report
Attachment D - Christian Brothers College Senior Campus School Travel Safety Report
Attachment E - Gilles Street Primary School Travel Safety Report

Attachment F - North Adelaide Primary School Travel Safety Report

Attachment G - Pulteney Grammar School Travel Safety Report

Attachment H - St Dominics School Travel Safety Report

Attachment | - St Mary’s School Travel Safety Report

Attachment J - Sturt Street Community School Travel Safety Report

Attachment K - University Senior College School Travel Safety Report

L |
- END OF REPORT -

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda - Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 17


https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_1.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_2.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_3.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_4.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_5.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_6.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_7.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_8.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_9.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_10.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_11.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/IPW_17_June_2025_SchoolSafety_Link_12.pdf
https://www.dit.sa.gov.au/infrastructure/road_projects/road_safety_program/40-kmh-school-speed-limits

Attachment A

Adelaide Botanic High School
School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491

8 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkin

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 18



Document History and Status

Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date

A Draft Report John Devney | James Arnold | James Arnold | 8 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 19



Contents

Project: Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] 5 YT o T 3 T ]
(] Lo X T oV o X = 0 ii
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 S oW Ta 1T oL ol I =171 B B T=T o =1 o T P 6
2.4 LI L85 50T oY 00T 8
3 Issues and OpPortuNitiesS . iciiciciiiiiriiiiie i i s s s s i s e ra s s s rsr s r s rnananrnannnnnann 18
3.1 1 =1 =] pTe] Lo L=t gl T = ol U =1~} o 1= P 18
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T V2= o[ o I PN 18
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrtUNITIES ......civiiieii e 20
4 Travel Safety Options and ASSeSSMENt .....cuveverimrrimrrnmrasier s s s s n s an s nn s nnmsnnnnss 21
4.1 Student Travel Safety OpPlioNS ...oviiiii i e 21
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety INitiatives ......cooviiieiii e 23
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost ESHIMAtes .....ccoviiiiiiiii s 24
L 2= =T 4T o T o= 25

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 20



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for Adelaide Botanic High School..........ccccieieimrerenarrarerananannns 5
Table 2.2 Local Streets at Adelaide Botanic High School ........ciciiirririrarerersrnrnsn s s ssnnns 8
Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at Adelaide Botanic High School.........ccccvsieimimimrererarrarasasansnnas 9
Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at Adelaide Botanic High School.........cccivsieimieimrerererrrassranannns 9
Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide Botanic High SChoOl.......cccivrrririrsrsrsrsrsnsnssssssssmesssasasasasasasasasannnns 11
Table 2.6 Public Transport Services at Adelaide Botanic High School.........cciirimimimieieieienerrsrararanasansnns 14
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for North Adelaide Primary School .......cccuveimievararararararassnssssnnnns 21

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at North Adelaide Primary School .... 24

Figures

Figure 1.1 Adelaide Botanic High School Location ......ccuveveimmamasasarasasasasassssrsssnsssssssssssasssasasasasasassssssssssnsnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Student and Public Access to the Adelaide Botanic High SchooOl..........ccocveieimieiererararsssssssnsnsnns 2
Figure 2.1 School Enrolment Area for Adelaide Botanic High School..........ciererrimimimisieieierrrrarsrarssassnsnnns 4
Figure 2.2 Adelaide Botanic High School Student Residence Location Analysis ...cccveieseienasesararasarasasansnsnns 5
Figure 2.3 Adelaide Botanic High School Student Transport Mode Shares on 28 May 2024.........c.csererumemee 6
Figure 2.4 Adelaide Botanic High School Student Transport Mode Shares on 30 May 2024.........c.csererumeneen 7
Figure 2.5 Pedestrian Crossings leading to Adelaide Botanic High School ............cccoiiimnnsrsnsnsnsnsnnnn. 9
Figure 2.6 Crashes on School Days at Adelaide Botanic High SchooOl..........c.cciiiiiiiiiirrsrsrsrsrssa 10
Figure 2.7 On-street Parking Controls at Adelaide Botanic High School............ccciieiiiirrsnsrsranansnnn. 11
Figure 2.8 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas at Adelaide Botanic High School...........c.cviiiiiinne 12
Figure 2.9 On-street Parking Restrictions in Frome Road at Adelaide Botanic High School...........c.crieiee 12
Figure 2.10 Bus Stops at Adelaide Botanic High School .........cccciieiiiiiirsri s 13
Figure 2.11 Cycling Network to Adelaide Botanic High School.........cciiiiiiiirsriisr e 15
Figure 2.12 Secure Bicycle Storage Facitliy at Adelaide Botanic High School........c.ciciimimrererararrarsnsnnns 16
Figure 2.13 Walkable Access Catchment to Adelaide Botanic High School.........cccciciiiiiininrsninnrnee. 17
Figure 3.1 Walk Access to the Northern Student Entrance during the AM Arrival Period ......c.cicvirrenanannn 19
Figure 3.2 Unsafe Pedestrian and Cyclist Movements along Frome Road during the AM Arrival Period ... 19
Figure 3.3 Unsafe Pedestrian and Cyclist Movements in the PM Departure Period........cccocvirrnrrnnnnnnns 20
Figure 3.4 Parking along Frome Road north of Victoria Drive in the PM Departure Period........ccrirerurnnnns 20
Figure 4.1 Redesign of the Victoria Drive/Frome Road Intersection.......c.cicivriririsisisisiermmernsnrasassssssssnnnns 22
Figure 4.2 Recommended Initatives at Adelaide Botanic High School..........cccciiiiiiiiiirrsrsrsrs e 23
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B -— NSW School Travel Access Guide

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 21



Executive Summary

Overview

Adelaide Botanic High School is located in the Adelaide Park Lands on the eastern side of Frome Road
south of Victoria Drive. The high school comprises Years 7 to 12. The recent expansion for a new
southern wing was completed in June 2024 and is fully operational for Term 3 2024 in July 2024. The
high school had 1,390 students enrolled in Term 2 2024.

Key Findings

The high school has a zoned enrolment area that is the same for Adelaide High School. It includes the
City of Adelaide and suburbs to the inner west and inner north, such as Mile End, Bowden, Prospect and
Walkerville. 18 per cent of the students live in Adelaide and North Adelaide with 11 per cent in the
adjacent suburbs to the Ring Road within a distance that they can walk or bicycle to the school. Over 70
per cent of the students live in suburbs beyond a short walking or cycling distance. Only 5 per cent live
in outer suburbs that are outside of the enrolment area.

From the student travel survey, the car mode share was 26 per cent in the AM period and 22 per cent in
the PM period on a typical fine weather day in May 2024. The PM departure period had four per cent
more students using public transport than in the AM period. This result is likely because parents drop of
their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel
home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure period. The bicycle
mode share was about 8 per cent and the walk mode share was 4 to 5 per cent.

On a wet weather day in the same week, the cycling mode share dropped by five per cent and public
transport by nine per cent in the AM period whereas the car mode share increased by 13 per cent.

Key Recommendations

Most of the student travel safety issues will be addressed with the completion of the Frome Road
bikeway with the following infrastructure improvements:

e Southbound bus stop 1A will be relocated north of Victoria Drive so that the queues of students in the
afternoon can be organised to stand in the open area north of the northern side of the school.

e The left turn slip lane from Victoria Drive for northbound traffic into Frome Road will be removed to
remove this pedestrian safety risk at this intersection as shown in Figure 4.1.

e The bicycle lanes in Frome Road will be redesigned and rebuilt to be separated from the footpaths on
both sides of Frome Road south of Victoria Drive and as a two-way cycleway on the westside of Frome
Road north of Victoria Drive. This will provide a safer location for the north-south cycling route with
the hazards with pedestrians sharing the path.

Other recommendations for the high school to consider are:

e The high school to complete the landscaping project on the northern side of the school to include a
sealed footpath from Frome Road at Victoria Drive for a safer walk route to the student entrance on
the northern side of the school.

e Maintain the clearance of debris, fallen tree branches and leaves from the footpath in front of the
entire school building, especially during the autumn and winter months when wet leaves are a trip
hazard for pedestrians and cyclists.

e Develop ongoing travel demand management education and training with regular activities and
promotions to encourage more students to walk, cycle and use public transport modes instead of the
private vehicle.

e Consider promoting safe travel to school with the preparation of a School Travel Access Guide that
includes the school building entry locations, bus route and timetable information, other public
transport information, safe walking and cycling routes and tips for safe cycling.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 22



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 23



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the
beginning and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called
“kiss and drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
e Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss and
Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:

- Existing pick up and drop off areas.

- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 1

Page 24



1.3 School Location

Adelaide Botanic High School is located on Frome Road south of the intersection at Victoria Drive within
the Adelaide Park Lands and west of the Adelaide Botanic Garden within the City Riverbank zone. The
school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

Figure 1.1 Adelaide Botanic High School Location

The existing entrances to Adelaide Botanic High School are shown in Figure 1.2. From Term 3 2024,
students will have an alternative entrance on the south side of the school to enter the new wing.

Footpath and existing bicycle path at the front = The entrance for students is on the eastern and
public entrance to the high school northern side of the school

Figure 1.2 Student and Public Access to the Adelaide Botanic High School

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 2

Page 25



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

Adelaide Botanic High School that comprises years 7 to 12 opened in January 2019 is unique with a CBD
location in a Park Lands setting, multi-level modern architecture and fosters a culture to support
sustainable transport modes.

Adelaide Botanic High School was expanded with a new southern wing to the school that can
accommodate growth for an additional 700 students. The new facilities are designed in an integrated
vertical building that can accommodate up to 1,950 students. The school expansion was completed in
June 2024 and is fully operational for Term 3 2024 in July 2024.

The school building opens at 8:25 am on school days. The bell times are:

e Start of classes at 9:25 am on Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays and Fridays
e Start of classes at 10:15 am on Wednesdays only

e End of classes at 4:00 pm Monday to Friday, except public holidays

A 9.25 am start time (10.15 am on Wednesday) for students was chosen because the traffic on the road
network is less busy and it provides the greatest capacity on public transport. Bike paths are also less
congested at these times. The late start is supported by research regarding adolescent sleep and
learning patterns as well as providing a unique staff collaboration and planning opportunity each
morning. For staff, the school day starts at 8.25 am when they meet to plan and prepare the lessons for
the students. Students finish their school day at 4.00 pm which allows them to travel home during the
less busy traffic period before PM commuter peak hour after 5:00 pm.

The school office hours are:
e Monday to Tuesday 8.30 am to 4.30 pm

e Wednesday 10.00 am to 4.30 pm
e Thursday to Friday 8.30 am to 4.30 pm

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 was for 1,390 students with a distribution by year as follows:

e 307 students in Year 7

e 224 students in Year 8

e 220 students in Year 9

e 236 students in Year 10

e 214 students in Year 11

e 189 students in Year 12

Enrolment for Term 3 2023 with 1,151 students.

Students typically reside from areas within the enrolment catchment area that is shown in Figure 2.1.
These areas include the City of Prospect, City of Adelaide, City of Charles Sturt, and City of Norwood

Payneham St Peters. However, some students travelled outside of the enrolment area such as City of
Onkaparinga and District Council of Mount Barker.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 3

Page 26



>
, &
&
re) O
o, &
“p &
il © 4 5

Sir Donald Brad

i 14 ) o B

Figure 2.1 School Enrolment Area for Adelaide Botanic High School

The Adelaide Botanic High School catchment boundary area includes all the City of Adelaide and parts of
the City of Prospect, Town of Walkerville, City of Norwood Payneham & St Peters Council, City of Unley,
City of West Torrens Council and City of Charles Sturt. A breakdown of the distribution of student
residence per neighbouring area is shown in Table 2.1.

The number of students in Term 2 2024 by residence location and year is provided in Table 2.1 and is
shown in the histogram in Figure 2.2. 18 per cent of the students live in Adelaide and North Adelaide
with 11 per cent in the adjacent suburbs to the Ring Road within a distance that they can walk or bicycle
to the school. Over 70 per cent of the students live in suburbs beyond a short walking or cycling
distance. Only 5 per cent live in outer suburbs that are outside of the enrolment area.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 4

Page 27



Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for Adelaide Botanic High School

Location Year7 Year$8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 LG
(Percentage)
Adelaide 49 32 30 18 21 23 173 (12.4%)
North
[
Adelaide 14 15 12 10 15 11 77 (5.5%)
Neighbouring
2 1 2 2 1 2 14 10.5%
v 9 8 6 6 9 8 6 (10.5%)
Inner Council
202 148 139 169 148 117 923 (66.4%)
Suburbs
Outer
Council 13 11 13 13 11 10 71 (5.1%)
Suburbs
Total 307 224 220 236 214 189 1,390
1,000
923
900
800
» 700
1S
[b]
g 600
1)
S 500
@
e
E 400
=z
300
200 173 146
100 77 A
: ]
Adelaide North Adelaide Neighbouring Suburbs Inner Council Suburbs Outer Council Suburbs
Residence Location
Figure 2.2 Adelaide Botanic High School Student Residence Location Analysis
240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 5

Page 28



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the Adelaide Botanic High School was reviewed through
site observations and a student travel mode survey on a typical school day. The student travel mode
survey form is included in Appendix A.

The student travel mode survey was conducted by the teachers during the first morning class on
Tuesday 28 May 2024 and Thursday 30 May 2024. The findings from the surveys were used to confirm
the existing transport mode shares for:

e Car (as driver)

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)

e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus, Train or Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period on Tuesday
28 May are shown in Figure 2.3. The weather was fine and dry with a high temperature of 25 C. A total
of 274 students completed the online survey organised by the school, which is about 20 per cent of the

total enrolment. This provides an adequate sample of the students for the transport mode share
analysis.

The car mode share was 26 per cent in the AM period and 22 per cent in the PM period. The PM
departure period had four per cent more students using public transport than in the AM period, which
correlates directly to the change in vehicle usage between both periods. This result is likely because
parents drop of their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the
students travel home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure
period. The bicycle mode share was about 8 per cent and the walk mode share was 4 to 5 per cent.

Bike and Walk, 4.4% Bike and Walk, 5.1%
Scooter, 8.4% Scooter, 8.0%

Car, 26.3%

Public Transport,

60.9% Public Transport,

64.6%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.3 Adelaide Botanic High School Student Transport Mode Shares on 28 May 2024

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 6

Page 29



The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period on
Thursday 30 May are shown in Figure 2.4. The weather was wet and rainy in the AM period with a high
temperature of 18 C. This survey shows that the travel to school is affected by the weather with a
comparison between a fine dry weather day and a rainy cooler day in the same week. A total of 395
students completed the online survey organised by the school, which is about 28 per cent of the total
enrolment. This provides an adequate sample of the students for the transport mode share analysis.

The car mode share in the AM period was 40 per cent which about 13 per cent higher than the Tuesday
due to the rainy weather. The PM departure period had 13 per cent more students using public transport
than in the AM period, which correlates directly to the change in vehicle usage between both periods. As
a results of the wet weather day, the public transport mode share in the AM period reduced by nine per
cent. The bicycle mode share was five per cent less than the Tuesday at three per cent, whereas the
walk mode share at six per cent was slightly higher than on the fine weather day.

Bike and

K Bike and Scooter,
Scooter, 3.0 Valk; 5-6%

2.8%

Walk,
6.1%

Car, 26.3%
Car, 39.5%

Public Transport,

51.9% Public Transport,

64.8%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.4 Adelaide Botanic High School Student Transport Mode Shares on 30 May 2024

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 7

Page 30



2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section. The facility is designed to support and
encourage sustainable and healthy commuting by students and staff. Secure fenced and roofed storage
for bicycles, scooters and other modes of non-vehicular transport is required for students and staff, in
locations safe and convenient to users.

2.4.1 Road Network

Vehicular access to the to the underground level of the school is from the eastern side of Frome Road
about 80 m south of the signalised intersection at Victoria Drive. Traffic only has left-in and left-out only
from Frome Road with a space for unloading vehicles, such as delivery trucks to unload south of the
existing main entrance, and for staff and students in cars, bicycles and scooters to use the ramp to the
underground car parks and bicycle storage facilities.

Frome Road

Frome Road is a two-way four lane sub-arterial road aligned in a north to south direction and is under
the care and control of the City of Adelaide. The road has a 12.3 m carriageway set within a 24 m road
reserve. A 1.5 m wide off-road shared path exists on the eastern side and a 1.2 m wide on road bike
lane on the western side of the road. Sealed bitumen footpaths are on both sides of Frome Road that
range from 1.8 to 2.2 m in width. The traffic volumes in Frome Road at Victoria Drive is about 15,500
vehicles per day. It has a posted speed limit of 50 km/h. The kerbside usage, bicycle lanes and traffic
lanes in Frome Road north of Victoria Drive next to Botanic Park is shown in Figure 3.1

Victoria Drive

The T-junction at Frome Road and Victoria Drive is a signalised traffic intersection that is located
immediately northwest of the school as shown in Figure 3.4. The University of Adelaide campus is on
the southwest corner and Park Lands on the northwest corner.

Plane Tree Drive in Botanic Park

Plane Tree Drive provides access to the north-eastern side of the school with a one-way loop road
through Botanic Park with entry from Hackney Road as shown in Figure 3.5. The section of Plane Tree
Drive closest to Frome Road is used for informal Kiss and Drop activity on school days where the
students have a short walk from the school through Botanic Park.

Street access adjacent to the school and leading to the school are provided in Table 2.2
Table 2.2 Local Streets at Adelaide Botanic High School
Road Classification Relevance to the School ‘

Frome Road Local street Front entrance

Victoria Drive Local street 50 m opposite school entrance

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 8

Page 31



The attributes of the local road network at Adelaide Botanic High School are summarised in Table 2.3. In
areas where no data was provided, the field was labelled as not applicable (n/a). Generally, the posted
speed limit was obeyed by drivers in the area.

Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at Adelaide Botanic High School
Road Number Daily Traffic Posted Speed Average 85t percentile
of Lanes Volumes (km/h) Speed Speed
Frome Road 4 6,820 50 42.6 49.8
Victoria Drive | 2 n/a 50 n/a n/a

Frome Road and Victoria Drive are not subject to 25km/h school zone during AM and PM peak times.
Signalised crossing points are provided to pedestrians at the nearby intersection of Victoria Drive and
Frome Road.

Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at Adelaide Botanic High School
Road 25 km/h School Zone in Street Type of Crossing in Street ‘
Frome Road No Signalised Intersection at Victoria Drive

PAC south of the school

Victoria Drive No Signalised Intersection

The signalised intersections in Frome Road that provide the safe pedestrian crossings to the high school
are shown in Figure 2.5.

&

Looking west from Frome Road at Victoria Drive Looking south to the PAC in Frome Road south of
where students cross Frome Road to walk to bus the school at the access road to the Wilson’s car
stop 1A to and from the northbound bus services. park that is used by staff and some Year 12

students.
Figure 2.5 Pedestrian Crossings leading to Adelaide Botanic High School
240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 9

Page 32



2.4.2 Crash Analysis

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 (five-year period) has been sourced from DataSA.
During this time there has been the following crashes within direct vicinity of the school:

e Frome Road: 2 property damage crashes

e Victoria Drive: 1 property damage crash

The crash statistics from 2018 to 2022 are shown by location in Figure 2.6.

& or
Crashes 2018-2022 1@
(\e
A Q°
1: PDO S ’%
®2M %3 (D
© 3:3l %
)
« anria/O
< r
= Plane
= 2 0
3 RIvER Tofrens War Memoria\®
2
N de\a"de
\C
O~ SRR,
' Rt s 3(9 :00\
sC
e °*
O
<)
=
.};
2 (&)
m
8 North Terrace 4 8 5
Figure 2.6 Crashes on School Days at Adelaide Botanic High School

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 33

10



2.4.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The types of carparking provided in the streets surrounding the school are provided in Table 2.5. The
on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.7.

Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide Botanic High School
Road Type of Parking ‘
Frome Road (North of Victoria Drive) Angled Timed, Parallel Timed
Frome Road (South of Victoria Drive) Bus zone, No Stopping at all times
Victoria Drive Motorcycle All Times, Angled Timed

~ NO STOPPING AT AL

@ws

ATALLTIMES
Y.

DA

|3 HR AREA TICKET, ANY,DA
| BAMIGPM I

MOTORCYCLE AT ALL.

NO STOPPING AT
N

&

arking Control Points [E] Bus & Motorcycle © Permit @ Unrestricted
® Area Parking El Disabled ® No Parking © Residential ¢ Visitor
®  Area Ticket e loading ® No Stopping = Taxi A Work Zone
i ¢ Bicycle e Mail Van e Pparking @ Ticket
Figure 2.7 On-street Parking Controls at Adelaide Botanic High School

On-street parking on both sides of Frome Road north of Victoria Drive is used for Kiss and Drop activity
on school days as well as for visitors to the university, the Park Lands and Botanic Park is shown in
Figure 2.8.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 11

Page 34



: S > e Ao S T e e R o %]
Looking south in Frome Road at Kiss and Drop Motorcycle parking is located immediately south
parking spaces north of Victoria Drive of the on-street car parking in Frome Road north

of Victoria Drive

Figure 2.8 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas at Adelaide Botanic High School

The on-street parking along Frome Road north of Victoria Drive has passenger loading zones from 8:30
am to 10 am and 3:30 pm to 4:30 pm on school days as shown in Figure 2.9.

Existing parking controls in Frome Road north of Looking south on the east side of Frome Road at
Victoria Drive vary by time of day and day of the timed car parking spaces north of Victoria Drive
week.

Figure 2.9 On-street Parking Restrictions in Frome Road at Adelaide Botanic High School

Wilson Parking offer affordable and secure parking at Lot Fourteen Car Park, located with access from
Frome Road. It has 24/7 access, the car park offers Hourly, Early Bird, Night and Weekend parking and
discount online parking options. Parking customers can pay as you go with a Wilson Parking Card, or get
unlimited 24/7 access when you subscribe to Monthly Parking. The “pay as you go” Wilson Parking Card
avoids the need for drivers to avoid the queue as they simply swipe in and out of the car park, with one
monthly invoice based on the actual usage with no additional fees.

Parents who do not work in the CBD are unlikely to regularly drive into the CBD to drop off or pick up
their child. Most students are capable of travelling on their own and use public transport.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 12

Page 35



2.4.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the focus of the bus, tram and train network with the walkable access from Adelaide
Botanic High School at:

e bus stops in Frome Road, King William Road, North Terrace and Grenfell Street,

e the Botanic Gardens tram stop in North Terrace that is a 400 m via the walk route between the
buildings in Lot Fourteen or along the eastern side of Frome Road, and

e Adelaide railway station which is a 1.2 km walk west of Frome Road via Victoria Drive or using the
98A/98C Free City Connector bus.

The bus stops that are located at or in the immediate vicinity of Adelaide Botanic High School in Frome
Road and Victoria Drive are shown in Figure 2.10

S
\Q
o-‘\'b
&
wet p
3 3
& ®
S »
o
o
5>
oS
g
2\0°
ae\e .
@ 2N P s
o oot Joune
1 Vietoria Dr 2 SO
W © - X\
2 2\ WS
O $ o
..C" 1 Victoria Dr
K\
1A Frome Rd
Mawson
5
. x0f\2
\}\C'ﬁ0 1A Frome Rd
-
3
Benham 2
2
(o
Figure 2.10 Bus Stops at Adelaide Botanic High School
240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 13

Page 36



The bus and tram routes and timetabled services that students can walk to within 400 m of the school
are provided in Table 2.6. Routes 271 and 273 are part of the high frequency Go Zone in Frome Road.

Table 2.6 Public Transport Services at Adelaide Botanic High School
Road Closest Bus or Walk Distance to Routes Relevant Services
Tram Stop Closest Stop (m) on School Days
Frome Stop 1A Frome 20 m 271 and 273 to 9:17 am, 9:28 am,
Road Road - East side Adelaide CBD via 9:34 am, 9:42 am,
Frome Road, 9:49 am, 10:04 am
Grenfell Street and 4:01 pm, 4:18 pm,
Currie Street 4:31 pm, 4:45 pm
Stop 1A Frome 40 m with crossing | 271 and 273 to Tea 9:17 am, 9:31 am,
Road - West side | Frome Road Tree Plaza or 9:41 am, 9:53 am,
Paradise via 10:10 am
Melbourne Street 4:09 pm, 4:24 pm,
and North East Road | 4:37 pm
Victoria Stop 1 Victoria 50 m with crossing | 98A Connector Bus 9:15 am, 9:45 am
Drive Drive - North of Frome Road (free) to North 4:15 pm, 4:45 pm
side Adelaide and from
Adelaide railway
station
Stop 1 Victoria 50 m with crossing | 98C Connector Bus 9:28 am, 9:58 am
Drive - South of Frome Road (free) from North 3:58 pm, 4:28 pm
side Adelaide to Adelaide
railway station
North Botanic Gardens 400 m south Botanic Gardens to Every 10 minutes
Terrace tram stop through Lot Entertainment from 7:00 am to

Fourteen walkway

Centre tram line

7:00 pm

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 37

14



2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.11. Frome Road has an on-road bicycle lane
on the western side and an off-road 1.5 m wide bike lane on the eastern side. Sealed shared paths exist
throughout the Adelaide Park Lands. Two shared bicycle paths are parallel to the River Torrens and one
path is along the Adelaide Botanic Gardens. The Frome Street Bikeway is about 600 m south of the
school.

Bikedirect
Adelaide CBD

BROMPTON ; S . ; N
, GILBERTONN
o\ < 3

-y |
North Adelaide

Primary School

: ' N
A\ : Y, o D " 3 : i
ELAIDIi.STATION .’/@& | g ageiagd
2

iBARTON e ; ‘Adelaide Botanic b
1 9 \ ) v e E.gh'sz:hool‘%
FHesArToN A o o
B e RESTIVAECENTRE B

2 3 = e q | L\ Pr .
< VAIDERADEFAIDE g ColboAR iy =4 - primary
o AL DERAIDE :Lgu.sv INIVERSITY A oo e - M School A
e 1 9% - NORWOOD.

|

o-PIRIE. ST R BARTECSIRG)

| x o' .
Y I AR

Bike Network wun Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body
Main Road - Bik
A0 Boad - Bika Lane @  Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing ~ Land Use
Main Road ‘ ducational Land
2 ) Bike Shop (2024) ® Rail/Tram Stop - Egucsiong L
= i/ 5
SnReny oed < Ble Lang %  Police Station ———=—Distance to GPO Belstl Conmest
e Secondary Road 0 Public Hospital O G Green Space
—=—=— Off Road Sealed Path : Built-Up Residential
®  Traffic Light Maijor Creek

Figure 2.11 Cycling Network to Adelaide Botanic High School

In the immediate vicinity of the school, the bicycle path along the eastern side of Frome Road is located
between the footpath and the verge area of Frome Road. This creates a safety hazard during the AM
school peak period between 8:30 am and 9:30 am and to 10:15 am on Wednesdays) when students
and staff are arriving at the school and after 4 pm when they are leaving the school. In order to
mitigate the risks, the school has staff monitor the situation with a safety instruction for all students on
bicycles to walk their bicycle in the area immediate in front of the school building.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 15

Page 38



The secure bicycle storage area in the basement of the school has over 250 spaces available for staff
and students. The new facilities are shown in Figure 2.12. Students enter the basement level from a
ramp with access from Frome Road. They must use their student card to access the secure parking area
that is validated only for students with bicycles. In addition to the storage area, a bicycle repair room is
located adjacent to the lock-up that is used for regular courses about how to repair and maintain your
bicycle as part of the school program to support a culture for sustainable transport.

Students can only enter the secure bicycle Secure bicycle storage in the basement level of
storage area with their validated access card. the high school is provided for over 250 bicycles.

Figure 2.12 Secure Bicycle Storage Facitliy at Adelaide Botanic High School
2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops in Frome Road, Victoria Drive and the CBD,
tram stops in North Terrace and train services at Adelaide Railway Station. The footpath network along
Frome Road, Victoria Drive and through the Park Lands in Botanic Park needs to be well maintained and
kept clear of fallen trees and debris by the City of Adelaide.

The high school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD, through Botanic Park
and from Victoria Drive. Two signalised intersections with pedestrian crossings are at the intersection of
Frome Road and Victoria Drive and with the PAC across Frome Road which is 130 m south of Victoria
Drive.

Pedestrian access routes to the high school are via:

e Sealed footpaths exist along on both sides of Frome Road.
e Footpaths through the path network in Botanic Park and from Plane Tree Drive.

e Along both sides of Victoria Drive to the west along the northern side of the university campuses and
to Adelaide Railway Station via a signalised pedestrian crossing in King William Road.

e An alternative pedestrian route through Lot Fourteen to the Wilson car park and to North Terrace.
However, students are discouraged to use this route through the construction zone in Lot Fourteen
until the public domain works are completed, possibly by 2026.

The 1 km, 1.5 km and 2 km walkable access catchment areas to Adelaide Botanic High School that were
calculated using the footpath network are shown in Figure 2.13.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 16

Page 39



-~ ]
S £y & \
’ L 5
R MEDINDIE gs & v lseRToN )
Els & o g\ O u,
3 & ~
gtiw«"? \ - 55 e
1 577, NG
'(’a A, 2y
\\ GILBERTON
=
o
L) 2
gsﬂliﬁ &£
@
7 4,5-
WOV &
WES
e PR
prtihE?
3
o
=
= £
=
£ &
1 g &
i o
- e
= N\ &
3 (2 N
HE HACKNEY P,
S z e
J"L‘I% % £ £
202 z ¢ % &
ThE 2 N RS S
5 2 A &/
Zud E % —
7 z N\ %
o)

\]
L
\O
2
N
s
5,
X
5
AN
Tvou HoLEVAINA

- o &
i"‘é H
LS |'u
&y
”4'1,4 |
= 2 |
=] KENT TOWN % ‘,\
=
38 &
iz & &
3% 2 5
e JDLEY STREET 3 g \
i3 i 5 |
3
kY - / ‘

TREET: ol = = %
R T
ﬁﬁcuwnlz STREE (= {curriE STREE :

3

o ARTELS ROAD. Q\%\
EAST.TERRACE: B 2/

B (= EAST TERRACE
E
WATHOUTHSTREFT =] FLINDERS
FLINDERS STREET. STREET
=E] .
FRAMKLIN STREET E L KEFIELDATERRACE.
~ 2 [7AKEFIELD STREET: WAL
- B wader ‘L'D_smsﬂ'i ﬁj" = = sTREET
1= ) eroTESTREET E e 2
ROTE STREET 5 GROTES] =
= @ = = I%; W % ANGAS STREET g
3 ~ 63, 2 D
A ~' 2 = g
STREET El % canmncron STREET 3
é SeUSES @5 CARRINGTON STREET =) z
3 E 3
7] = WRIGHT STREET m
r - % STREET E
Legend g B s
o i
J— 5 Suburbs = 1km Walking 4§ GILLES STREET
\¥ & Bus Stops Catchment ) 5 o
' ; 1.5km Walkin
+ © scheol Crossings 9 T
B i Catchment
¢ .—— Railways km Walki
£ m Walking
&
§'é * School Entrance Catchment
§ ) . ) B
= QQerI‘alde Botanic Pedestrian i 3
19 ~ Crossings 25 a
:% E
z S

195 390 |z 780Meters

ELl

avod A2
=l

=]

Figure 2.13 Walkable Access Catchment to Adelaide Botanic High School

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 40




3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting and tour of the high school was held with Andrea West on Tuesday 28 May 2024. The
following issues regarding student travel were discussed:

e The school expansion that was completed in June 2024 will be fully operational for Term 3 2024 at the
end of July.

e The Frome Bikeway project is under construction by the City of Adelaide and will be completed by the
end of November 2024. This project will address several safety issues for students such as:

- The relocation of the bus stop north of Victoria Drive to provide a safer queuing area for students
waiting for the southbound buses in the afternoon.

- Close off the slip lane for the left turning traffic from Victoria Drive to Frome Road north to provide a
safer pedestrian crossing at this intersection.

- Separate the bicycle lane from the footpath to provide segregation between the pedestrians,
students and cyclists in Frome Road.

e A total of 306 bicycles spaces are provided in the secure basement level that will cater for the growth
in the bicycle demand from students and staff. For the ultimate school capacity of 1,950 students and
169 FTE staff, the bicycle demand is estimated to be for 230 spaces which can be catered by the
bicycle racks.

e The school has plans to upgrade the landscaping on the north side of the building, including the walk
access to the northern student entrance from Frome Road.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the Adelaide Botanic High School
were observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on typical school
days in Term 2 2024 during May 2024. The site visits were conducted on Tuesday 28 May 2024 for the
AM peak and the PM peak periods. The weather was fine and 18 C.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during AM arrival period
from 8:30 am to 9:30 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the hour before
the school start time, with the peak activity of arrivals between 9:05 am and 9:20 am.

Other findings from the AM observations are:

e Most of the drop off activity for students occurred on from the eastern side of Frome Road with the
busiest period between 9:00 am and 9:30 am with no safety issues or traffic delays.

¢ A low level of drop off activity was observed in Plane Tree Drive with less than 20 vehicles.

e The busiest time for students crossing at the Frome Road / Victoria Drive signalised intersection was
from 9:15 am to 9:20 am.

The existing condition of the footpath for walk access to the northern student entrance is shown in
Figure 3.1.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 18

Page 41



2 7 w5 =

s e SRR SR T e R NG ;
The pedestrian desire line to the northern student Looking west along the unpaved walk
entrance to the school is an unpaved path. route to the northern student entrance.

L

Figure 3.1 Walk Access to the Northern Student Entrance during the AM Arrival Period

The most significant safety hazard is the risk of conflicts between pedestrians including students from
the buses and cyclists along the eastern side of Frome Road as shown in Figure 3.2

= S 5 -

Students alighting from a bus need to watch for Looking south along the footpath and

cyclists on the bicycle lane heading to Adelaide bicycle lane on the eastern side of Frome
CBD to cross to the school entrance. Road at Victoria Drive.
Figure 3.2 Unsafe Pedestrian and Cyclist Movements along Frome Road during the AM Arrival Period

3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during PM departure
period from 4:00 pm to 4:30 pm. The PM period departure profile was relatively distributed over the
hour before the school start time, with the peak activity of departures from 4:05 pm to 4:15 pm. The
key findings from the observations are shown in Figure 3.3.

Other findings from the PM observations are:

e The peak period for departure activity was between 4:10 pm to 4:20 pm with most students crossing
at the Frome Road / Victoria Drive signalised intersection with 50 to 70 students crossing per signal
phase.

e Pick-up activity occurred on both sides of From Road with minor traffic delays and no safety issues.

e Students riding bicycles along Frome Road on the east side in the northbound direction creates safety
hazards for pedestrians.

e Students used the Frome Road bus stop at the front entrance to the school.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 19

Page 42



A student exits the basement cycling across the A large group of students wait to board the

forecourt and footpath in Frome Road that is southbound bus to the City block the footpath
against the school safety policy. in front of the main entrance to the school.
Figure 3.3 Unsafe Pedestrian and Cyclist Movements in the PM Departure Period

Parents were observed in cars waiting for students along both sides of Frome Road shown in Figure 3.4.

Parents in cars waiting for students in Frome The parked cars on both sides of Frome Road

Road north of Victoria Drive. created some vehicle queues for a short period.
Figure 3.4 Parking along Frome Road north of Victoria Drive in the PM Departure Period

3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Issues for pedestrians accessing the high school are mostly for the City of Adelaide to address and are:

e The footpath along the eastern side of Frome Road south of the Victoria Drive intersection is flooded
during heavy rain periods requiring pedestrians to walk around via the grassed area in Botanic Park.
This footpath is planned to be upgraded to a bus zone by the City of Adelaide.

e During the autumn and winter months, fallen leaves that are wet from the rain are a hazard for
pedestrians on the footpaths on both side of Frome Road, in particular in front of the school and on
the paths leading to the school These paths need to be kept clear of debris, including fallen branches,
by the City of Adelaide to avoid any trip and fall risks for students, staff and the general public.

e Students walking from the south to the school must cross the path of the access driveway to the
basement bicycle storage facility that cyclists use. They walk around to the northern entrance of the
school as they are not permitted to use the existing main entrance in Frome Road.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 20

Page 43



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students were developed under three categories, namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.

e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.

e Safety promotions to increase awareness of the school with warning signage or information.

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1

Type of Option

Description

School Travel Safety Options for North Adelaide Primary School

Issue Addressed

Infrastructure Relocate the southbound bus stop 1A | To remove the queuing of students in the
Treatments to be relocated north of Victoria Drive | PM departure period from blocking the
footpath and bicycle lane on the eastern
side of Frome Road in front of the main
entrance to the school.
The location of the bus stop north of
Victoria Drive will align closer to the
signal and pedestrian crossing that is
immediately south and closer to the
north student entrance.
Remove the left turn slip lane at The slip lane is a pedestrian safety
Victoria Drive and Frome Road as hazard as they must wait for the free
shown in Figure 4.1. flowing traffic to stop.
Build a separate the footpath and The pedestrians and cyclists who are City
bicycle lane along Frome Road as per | commuters, attending or working at
the Frome Bikeway plans from the businesses at Lot Fourteen or at the
City of Adelaide. university block the access for the
students to the school entrances.
Landscape the northern side of the Students who enter and exit the northern
school to include a sealed footpath. entrance to the school currently are
walking from Frome Road at Victoria
Road through a gravel path with slippery
leaves during the wet weather.
Operational Manage the distribution of students to | In Term 2 2024, most students were

Efficiencies

enter and exit the school between
north and south sides of the high
school with Term 3 2024 with the full
opening of the school expansion.
Students will not use the Frome Road
main entrance.

entering the school from the northern
entrance via Frome Road or from the
east through the Park Lands and from
the walkways in Lot Fourteen. This
created a large queue of students at the
northern entrance in the morning that is
considered difficult to manage.

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 21

Page 44




Type of Option Description

Safety Promote safe travel to school with the
Promotions preparation of a School Travel Access
Guide that includes the school
building entry locations, bus route
and timetable information, other
public transport information, safe
walking and cycling routes and tips
for safe cycling.

Issue Addressed

The travel mode share for non-car
transport can be increased with more
promotional information that provides all
of the transport options to the school.

p— = 8. | = EXSTING REI SEPARATED =17 e o~ 7 i o —
D r.\mscmoagntuuto-‘
- ., - ‘ | M { .
- ‘k‘ J
13 27 et 7
7 10 / o
= g 3
‘.P -
. ». ;“:—
SO0 TYHaA_ ™S . )
A
B
\ ~ w
y ——)

-

REFER SHEEY 1053 Sros.o
FOR EXETING TRAFFC
UCHT POLE AND PUSH
BSUTTONS RELOCATION AND
REMOVAL DETALS

~
g

gj ~UI: ‘.

R g e = osg A~

| RETANED

N\

W1 TO BE RETAINED

NI (I )
EXETING UGHTING 5
OUTREACH AND ‘
TRAFFICLICHT TO BE |

EXSTING LICHT POLE ~
TO BE RETAINED

EXIETING TRAFFIC
LICHT AND PEDES TRIA
3 PUSHBUTTON TO 8¢

. \ -
| \ . \ RELOCATED
| \ \
[ : - E XS TING BUS STOP
l . " W2\ N \ \

-~

Figure 4.1 Redesign of the Victoria Drive/Frome Road Intersection

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 45

22



4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives are shown on Figure 4.2. They include:

e Southbound bus stop 1A will be relocated north of Victoria Drive so that the queues of students in the
afternoon can be organised to stand in the open area north of the northern side of the school.

e The left turn slip lane from Victoria Drive for northbound traffic into Frome Road will be removed to
remove this pedestrian safety risk at this intersection as shown in Figure 4.1.

e The bicycle lanes in Frome Road will be redesigned and rebuilt to be separated from the footpaths on
both sides of Frome Road south of Victoria Drive and as a two-way cycleway on the westside of Frome
Road north of Victoria Drive. This will provide a safer location for the north-south cycling route with
the hazards with pedestrians sharing the path.

e The high school to complete the landscaping project on the northern side of the school to include a
sealed footpath from Frome Road at Victoria Drive for a safer walk route to the student entrance on
the northern side of the school.

o T

’
% o

O Existing Traffic Signal
New Footpath @ Relboats BisStop Wi Actuated

., »1 +Crossing

Remove left turn slip lane
[——1 On-street Timed Parking

[ Reposition bicycle lane and footpath
L-' AT SN TEEES 2 \M A

Figure 4.2 Recommended Initatives at Adelaide Botanic High School

Other initiatives proposed to improve the safety and access and support the higher use of public
transport and active transport modes to the high school are:

e Maintain the clearance of debris, fallen tree branches and leaves from the footpath in front of the
entire school building, especially during the autumn and winter months when wet leaves are a trip
hazard for pedestrians and cyclists.

e Develop ongoing travel demand management education and training with regular activities and
promotions to encourage more students to walk, cycle and use public transport modes instead of the
private vehicle.

e Opportunities to adjust the bus arrival times or add additional bus services 10 minutes before the AM
school start time and 10 minutes after the 4 pm departure time exist if the growth in the bus demand
supports the need for extra services. The timetables that more conveniently suit the student arrival

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 23

Page 46



times in the AM period and to minimise the waiting times and queuing for bus services after the 4 pm

departure time would attract higher bus patronage. Some of the timetables on the existing bus routes
in Frome Road arriving before 9:25 am (10:15 am on Wednesdays) and after 4 pm are proposed to be
reviewed by South Australia Public Transport Authority (SAPTA) bus planners.

e Consider promoting safe travel to school with the preparation of a School Travel Access Guide that
includes the school building entry locations, bus route and timetable information, other public
transport information, safe walking and cycling routes and tips for safe cycling. An example of the
type of information provided a Travel Access Guide for a high school in Sydney is included in
Appendix B.

4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.2. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

. T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

. I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at North Adelaide Primary School
Option Description Indicative Comments
ID Cost Estimate
T1 Southbound bus stop 1A will be In the Frome Part of the Frome Bikeway
relocated north of Victoria Drive. Bikeway project | project that will be completed

by November 2024.

T2 Remove the left turn slip lane from In the Frome Part of the Frome Bikeway
Victoria Drive for northbound traffic | Bikeway project | project that will be completed
into Frome Road. by November 2024.

T3 Rebuild the bicycle lanes in Frome In the Frome Part of the Frome Bikeway
Road. Bikeway project | project that will be completed

by November 2024.

T4 Complete the landscaping project on | Not a cost for This is a project for the
the northern side of the school to the City of Department for Education to
include a sealed footpath from Adelaide complete on the school
Frome Road at Victoria Drive for a grounds.

safer walk route to the student
entrance on the northern side of the

school.
I1 Consider promoting safe travel to Internal cost to | This is an initiative for the
school with the preparation of a the school school to consider.

School Travel Access Guide

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 24

Page 47



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads, Sydney,
2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October 2023,
Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code of
Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3 Drop
off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024
Adelaide Botanic High School, Traffic Impact Assessment Report, Stantec, September 2022
Adelaide Bicycle Extension in Frome Road to the River Torrens, 2024

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 25

Page 48



\

9

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF
ADELAIDE
School Travel Survey for Students
School: Adelaide Botanic High School

Tonkin on behalf of the Cily of Adelaide is conducting a sunvey fo determine the main modes of travel for studernts to
understand the fravel behaviour to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student sunvey durning the
first period class.

Questions for the Teacher

Date [day/monthiyear):
Weather |Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
students are absent today in your class?

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group

Please ask the students with & "hands-up" sunvey in the classroom.
AM Period Travel

How did you travel to school this moming? (IF yow fravelled by more than one mode, please answer with the longest
part of your journey - e.g. "car” for “car and scooder”,)

Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period
Car (as driver)
iCar |as passenger with drop-off)
‘Walk for the entire trip
Bus

MNumber of Students

Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-hike
Scooter

PM Period Travel
Howwill you travel from school thiz afterroon ? {If yow will trave! by more than one mode, please answer with the
fongest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scoofer”.)
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Mumber of Students
Car (as driver)
Car (as passenger with pick-up)
‘Walk for the entire trip
Bu=
Train

Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)
Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter

Public Transpaort (bus, tram of train)

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 49



Appendix B — NSW School Travel Access Guide

| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

" o

o ; 5 u’

Marsden High School

Travel Access Guide

Introduction

Effective: January 2023

Kiss and drop expectations

= For parents/carers who drive their child/ren to

Our school community of parents/carers, staff and

students live within a reasonable walk, cycle or bus
trip of the school. This Travel Access Guide provides
suggested safe and accessible options for travelling

school, the kiss and drop zone is located along
Rhodes Street starting from Hermitage Road.

= This space is a ‘No Parking' zone, meaning that

to and from school.

Active ways to get to school

Walking to and from school

Walking is a fun way to keep active and

Stay alert and watch out for any potential
hazards, including cars reversing out of
driveways, bikes and other pedestrians.

Remember to STOP, LOOK, LISTEN and
THINK every time you cross the road

you may stop for up to a maximum of 2 minutes
and move no more than 3 metres from the
vehicle.

Message from our principals

= Marsden High School supports sustainable and
environmentally friendly transport practices.

= We strongly encourage our school community
to walk or ride to school either independently or
with parental supervision.

School bell times

Ride your bike
Y Start Times End Times
= 278 bike racks are available for everyone 900 am 200 pm
= All bicycle riders are required by law
to wear a correctly fitted Australian
standards approved helmet and is highly
recommended when riding a scooter.
*  Children under the age of 16 are allowed
to cycle on the footpath, keeping them
safer and more protected from road
traffic
For more information contact:
School Infrastructure NSW
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det.nsw.edu.au
Phone: 1300 482 651
www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.gov.au GOVERNMENT
e®®oe °
L4 a

240706 Adelaide Botanic High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 50



| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

KISS AND DROP ACCESS

Meadowbank Public
school entrance - main

Meadowbank Public
school entrance - cycling

MEADOWBANK
SCHOOLS

Marsden High school
entrance - main

Marsden High school
entrance - cycling

Bus zone

Q0 ° 06 <

e Train line
Safe crossing zone

Safety tips for drivers using the Kiss and Drop zone

= Always drop off or pick up your child from the designated zone and follow the school's
procedures.

= Drivers should remain in their vehicles at all times in the Kiss and Drop zone.

»  Make sure children use the Safety Door (the rear footpath side door) to get in and out of the car.

= Always park legally.

=  U-turns and three-point turns are banned at all times in Bhodes Street in front of the school.

Safety tips for students

= Always get in and out of the vehicle through the Safety Door, the rear footpath-side door.
»  Stay buckled up until the vehicle has stopped in the Kiss and Drop area.

» Make sure your school bag and other items are in a safe position, such as on the floor.

» Be ready to get out of the vehicle with your belongings when the car has stopped and you
have unbuckled your seatbelt

School
Drop-off
Plek-up
ZOME

®|

Kids and Traffic Safety
Door sticker
RTA45091021K

For more information contact:

School Infrastructure NSW

Email: schoolinfrastructure@det.nsw.edu.au
Phone: 1300 482 651
www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.gov.au

Page 51



| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Walking Route

WALK ROUTE TO MEADOWBANK TRAIN STATION AND BUS STOPS ON BOWDEN STREET AND VICTORIA ROAD [,

g
»
“i

Meadowbank
Schools

TAFE NSW -
Meadowbank

Legend
-€9~ Walking Route

@ Train Station
() Bus Stop

§ Trafiic Signals
|| safe Crossing Point

For more information contact:

School Infrastructure NSW v

Email: schoolinfrastructure@det.nsw.edu.au UL

Phone: 1300 482 651 Nsw

www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.gov.au GOVERNMENT
Page 52 e®®e



| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Where do you ride?

Footpath/shared pathfcycleway:

3

& Chilkdren urdar 16 can ridae on a

Toatpath

= Aouils suparvising childran under 18 can also rds

on tha footpath

= Wiaach out for pedestrians, othar riders ard
animals.

3 steps to follow

when riding a bike:

Clip, check, chime.
Clip your helmet

Wi ST Bl ey vl & ikt
whi ricing wor bike,

ek your hraes

N

Fake syre your Drakosy
e Wk,

Crime your ball

“u

o

IF pizu i arctbar rickar ae
b, cras o Bl

Crossing the road:
= B aitra caredul

» Walk your boycle when you crass at a padestrian

* Be caretul of cars antaning and axitng drivewsays.

crossing.

Give a metre:

Give peadestrians 1 metre of space
when riding past.

Things to remember

g Ahays sk your parenis
Pea NSO b rida.
.-J Loose clothing and Remis can get
b Cawgng in pour wheals Secure any
loose itemss, ke backpack straps

n

X v

Shoes with @ good traad on tha
sodas will halp you grip the pedals
and profect your fest. MMake suna
WO [3es are thad.

v

L

et

Always remember to
watch out for hazards

Wet e
Big paddles
St grabes
Grdeskl OF fOCKS
Licthia kids
Anrmals

Charges in the rosd’
foot path/opclevay
aurfaces

For more Information contact
SChaod Infrastructure MW

Emnail: schoolinfrastructursfidat neweduau

Pheara: 1500 432 E51
L= Tl T T T BT -0 < e e S TE

Page 53



Attachment B

Adelaide High School
School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491

12 June 2024
Ref: 240706

tonking

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 54



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report James Arnold John Devney | John Devney | 12 June 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 55



Contents

Project: Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP ii
N 5] o Y o T 5 iv
(] Lo XT=T= T Vo1 = o 0 iv
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 S oW Ta 1T oL ol I =171 B B T=T o =1 o T P 5
2.4 LI L85 50T oY 00T 7
3 Issues and OpPortuNitiesS . iciiciciiiiiriiiiie i i s s s s i s e ra s s s rsr s r s rnananrnannnnnann 15
3.1 1 =1 =] pTe] Lo L=t gl T = ol U =1~} o 1= P 15
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T V2= o[ o I PN 18
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrtUNITIES ......civiiieii e 22
4 Travel Safety Options and ASSeSSMENt .....cuveverimrrimrrnmrasier s s s s n s an s nn s nnmsnnnnss 23
4.1 Student Travel Safety OpPlioNS ...oviiiii i e 23
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety INitiatives ......cooviiieiii e 25
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost ESHIMAtes .....ccoviiiiiiiii s 28
L 2= =T 4T o T o= 29

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 56



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024 ........ccccermvannes 6
Table 2.2 Local Streets at Adelaide High SChOOl ......c.ciiiirimimisieiererererrersssersssrsssssssssssssssasasasasasasasasansnssnnnns 7
Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at Adelaide High SchoOl .....c.cicrerireriririminnmisieiersrrasasasesanasannns 7
Table 2.4 School Zones and Pedestrian Crossings at Adelaide High School .........cccvsieieimimrerererrarananansnnas 7
Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide High SChoOl ........cciriiimimieierererererreserersrsrsrsssssssssssssssssasasasasasasasanssnnnns 9
Table 2.6 Public Transport Services at Adelaide High SchoOl......c.ciciererirrrsrsrimnmsmsmmmssrssarasasasanasannns 10
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for Adelaide High SChoOOI ........c.coiiiiiiiircrinrer e 23
Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Adelaide High School ................... 28
Figures

Figure 1.1 Adelaide High School LOCAtioN ...ciciererrarsrsmsssssssesasasasasasasanssssassssssssnsssssssssasasasasasasasssassnsssnsnsnsnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Entrance to Adelaide High SChooOl ......c.ciiiiiimisimiemeierasasaramasarsansnsnsssssssssssssssasasasasasasasasassssssssnnnnns 2
Figure 2.1 Adelaide High School Class Timetable......ccciuusreieiaiararararerararrarsnsnssnssssssssssasssasasasasassssssssssssnsnnns 3
Figure 2.2 School Enrolment Area for Adelaide High SChool ........cicieririrrrrsrsmmmsmsnsssssesssasasasasasasasasasasannnnns 4
Figure 2.3 Adelaide High School Student Residence Location AnalysSis ......cervriririsnsnsneiememmnamanasssasnsnnnnnnns 5
Figure 2.4 Adelaide High School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024 .........cccveimrmmemerarrrassasnnnnns 6
Figure 2.5 Crashes on School Days at Adelaide High SChoOOl ....ciciciiiririririrnrnriiiiiir s s s nnns 8
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for Adelaide High School..........ccciciiiinininsrannnnnnnnn. 9
Figure 2.7 Kiss and Drop Areas in GIOVEr AVENUE .....iuueieieieiemamamasasasssssassssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssasssssssssssnsnns 10
Figure 2.8 Public Transport Services to Adelaide High School .........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiir s 11
.Figure 2.9 School Bus Stop in West TEIrracCe iciciuiuriririssssnmasasasnsasasassssssnssssnssssssssssssssasasasasssssassssssssssssnnns 11
Figure 2.10 Cycling Network to Adelaide High SChOOl........c..cciiiieieiirninrri s s a e 12
Figure 2.11 Bicycle Racks at Adelaide High ScChoOl .....c.ceieieieierarererermerersrsrsrsmsnsssssssasasasasasasasasssssssssssnnnns 13
Figure 2.12 Walkable Access Catchment to Adelaide High SChoOI .......c.cicririmimininieieiererarasrrasasassssnannns 14
Figure 3.1 Adelaide High School Transport Information ........cccuirririrriirsrms e 15
Figure 3.2 Pinch Points adjacent to the AHS School Entrance........cccicririrrirririniiirssrsssss s 16
Figure 3.3 Signalised Intersection of West Terrace and Glover AVENUE .......cicivririsisissssmsssasasssssssassssnnnns 16
Figure 3.4 No U Turn Facility in West Terrace at Waymouth Street (looking east) .......cccicviriririririninnnns 17
Figure 3.5 Delays for Service Road Egress (Right Turn Waymouth Street) .........cccvimimiiinnsnsnsrsnsnnnnnn, 17
Figure 3.6 Evidence of Double Parking in GIOVEr AVENUE ......cccierererrersasasssssssssssssssmssssssssssasssasasasnsnsssnsnnnns 18
Figure 3.7 Inconsistent Line marking at the School Access and Shared Use Path.........cccocviiiririnininnnnnnn 19
Figure 3.8 School Bus Stop LoCation ........cicieirrereimrreimrseis s ns s s s s sasassssasansnsasanansnss 20
Figure 3.9 Inadequate Storage Area for Students on the Footpaths in the PM Period..........cccveieirerannnnans 21
Figure 3.10 Inadequate Crossing Phase Times at West Terrace/Glover Avenue/Currie Street.............. 21
Figure 4.1 Example of a “"Floating” Bus StOP.....c.cuierimirirrmimirrimerrsis s sassasasassasassssasasansans 25
Figure 4.2 Use Main Entrance of Adelaide High School for School Special Buses ........c.ccicrmimirareinrarannnnans 26
Figure 4.3 Recommended Location for Line marking at the Access Entrance from West Terrace............. 26
Figure 4.4 Recommended Improvement areas for Pedestrian Waiting Area.........cccocvmimrmnmnenrrnassnnnnnns 27
Figure 4.5 Pedestrian Footbridge at Mawson Lakes Primary School ........ciciviiiimimisisisisnesessnrssssassnnnnnnns 27
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B — AHS Student Travel Information Flyer

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 57



Executive Summary

Overview

Adelaide High School (AHS) is a State Government public school that is located on the western side of
West Terrace south of Glover Avenue. The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 was for 1,554 students.

The AHS catchment boundary area includes all the City of Adelaide and parts of the City of Prospect,
Town of Walkerville, City of Norwood Payneham & St Peters Council, City of Unley, City of West Torrens
Council and City of Charles Sturt. AHS shares an enrolment zone with Adelaide Botanic High School
which allows parents within the zone to nominate their preferred city high school. Where demand from
families living in the shared area exceeds places available, applications will be ranked and if necessary,
students may be shared between the two high schools.

Key Findings

In Term 2 2024, 144 students lived in the City of Adelaide which was 7.8 per cent of the students in the
six years. 1,602 students or 86.4 per cent of the students lived in the inner suburbs mostly within the
enrolment area. 109 students lived in the outer suburban Councils that are not in the enrolment area.

From the student transport mode surveys, the PM departure period had nine per cent more students
using public transport than in the AM period, and 11 per cent fewer using private vehicles. This result is
likely because parents drop of their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute
trip, but the students travel home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school
departure period. Travel via bike, scooter and walking remained fairly similar within both peak periods.

Key insights from the student transport survey results are:

e Six per cent more students were driven to school in Years 7 to 9 than in Years 10 to 12.

e Travel by train was the highest transport mode for all students at about 46 per cent in the AM period
and 53 per cent in the PM period. Nine per cent more students in Years 10 to 12 travelled by train
than Years 7 to 9 in the AM period and six per cent more students in Years 10 to 12 travelled by train
than Years 7 to 9 in the PM period.

e About 10 to 12 per cent students travelled by bus with little difference between year groups.
e Cycling to school was up to five per cent for Years 7 to 9 and about two per cent for Years 10 to 12.

e Walking to school was under four per cent of the students in the AM period and about five per cent in
the PM period for all year groups.

Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements at AHS are summarised as follows:
Glover Avenue

Double Parking on Glover Avenue

The existing kiss and drop area present inadequate capacity issues and increased likelihood factors of
rear end crashes. During site observations, this behaviour was not enforced. One must not forget the
importance of movement on Glover Avenue and high function it provides for east-west connectivity
from/to the CBD.

Shared use path obstruction in Glover Avenue

Minor Issues of pedestrian storage/queuing at the bus stop encroaches onto the Shared use path,
potentially presenting issues for cyclist and pedestrian conflict.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 58



Uncontrolled Pedestrian Movements crossing Glover Avenue

Minor instances of pedestrians crossing Glover Avenue to travel to/from the school without using the
signalised crossing at West Terrace. This involves crossing over a significant distance with more than
four lanes of traffic and exposure to vehicle speeds over 50 km/h.

Service Road with Egress onto West Terrace

Vehicles traversing across four lanes of West Terrace, to travel to Waymouth or perform a U-turn
manoeuvre, presents increased likelihood factors for right angle crashes.

West Terrace

Shared Use Path Obstruction/School Bus Stop in West Terrace

The school bus stop located adjacent to the main entrance to the school is unsealed resulting in an
obstructed shared use path along West Terrace.

Missing or Faded Line marking at the access roads on West Terrace

Observations indicated faded and absent line marking in some locations along the shared use path on
West Terrace.

Pedestrian Safety at West Terrace/Glover Avenue and Currie Street

Movements for vehicles were prioritised over the safe movement for students who choose to walk &
cycle from the school during the PM peak periods. Due to the school’s location and the overall volume of
student enrolments at AHS, results in a high concentration of students fixed to a north/northeast travel
pattern. This results in extreme road safety concerns for pedestrians wishing to store and cross at the
intersection of West Terrace/Glover Avenue and Currie Street, which acts as the main issue for the
school.

With regards to a DIT policy for installing a pedestrian scramble crossing, the maximum allowable
crossing distance is 35 m, and for this intersection would require significant geometric alterations which
is 55 m at this West Terrace intersection which will likely reduce the number of vehicle lanes on West
Terrace, Glover Avenue and Currie Street respectively. Unless the future cross section for West Terrace
was to change significantly, this type of crossing is not recommended.

Key Recommendations
The key recommendation to improve school travel safety are summarised as follows:

Glover Avenue

e Create a separate storage area between the bus stop and the shared use path that is known as the
floating bus stop. This will provide separation between cyclists on the shared use path, pedestrians
and the students waiting to be collected at Stop X1.

e Implement corralling measures such as landscaped medians (e.g West Terrace) or physical
obstructions on Glover Avenue from West Terrace to the Karen Rolton Oval access.

Service Road

a) Consider Keep Clear adjacent to the service road to accommodate for safe unobstructed movements
to the right turn lane onto Waymouth Street. This would reduce the right-angle crash likelihood
factors, however, not eliminate them.

b) Consider restricting movements to left in/left out movements only through physical infrastructure.
This may cause inadvertent impacts by restricting the southbound desire lines resulting in the service
road no longer being an attractive kiss and drop area for parents. By restricting movements to Left
in/Left out, additional pressure may also be placed on Glover Avenue for kiss and drop, which
already has demonstrated issues during peak periods.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 59



c) As suggested by the AHS staff, a new public road could be built to assist with a one-way
(westbound) configuration for the service road. This option would need to be tested for feasibility due
to the associated benefits/cost of constructing a public road, changing existing road cross sections,
and addressing the likely impacts at the intersection of Sir Donald Bradman Drive. Liaison would also
need to be sought with the relevant stakeholders to consider this (Adelaide Comets, Parklands
Authority etc.)

West Terrace

a) The existing bus stop appears to be limited in terms of sealing due to the proximity of the high-
pressure gas main. However, this should be explored further to ensure that a DDA compliant bus pad
could be feasible for students at this location. Similar to the Glover Avenue opportunity, a floating
bus stop could also be considered.

b) The bus stop could be relocated further north to the formal Stop X1 on West Terrace, which is
considered within an acceptable walking distance from the school (less than 150 m).

c) The stop for the school special bus could be relocated to use the entrance slip road on the school
grounds in front of the main entrance.

West Terrace School Access

e Re-line mark the existing shared use path adjacent to the school to ensure adequate delineation and
definition in accordance with DIT Pavement Marking Manual. Give Way holding line to be placed at the
entry to the school access road to supplement the existing Give Way sign, reducing vehicle/cyclist and
pedestrian confusion.

West Terrace/Glover Avenue/Currie Street

a) Additional storage areas can be accommodated for on the southeast and southwest corner of the
intersection to avoid pedestrian spillage onto the vehicle carriageway. Corralling measures, such as
bollards or fencing, could be introduced on the southeastern intersection leg to replicate what were
done on the southwestern leg. This recommendation should not be considered in isolation, as
queuing and delays to pedestrian movements would still need to be managed.

b. New phase time arrangement is to be explored during PM school peak periods to increase pedestrian
green time for all intersection legs. This will need to be managed with DIT’'s Network Management
Services (NMS) to ensure they are aware of the vehicle impacts. This recommendation would still not
solve the capacity issues for pedestrian storage as per recommendation above.

c. A recommendation for a pedestrian bridge could be considered suitable if a. and b. do not yield the
intended improvements for pedestrian safety. A bridge spanning Glover Avenue would be suggested
due to the lack of space on the eastern side of West Terrace. This would assist in diluting pedestrians
away from the West Terrace intersection and provide uninterrupted North-South movements across
from/to the school.

Glover Avenue

e Implementing an effective enforcement strategy or reconsidering the placement of kiss and drop
facilities adjacent to Glover Avenue should be considered to prevent double parking.

West Terrace Intersection

e Based on the lack of meaningful options for improving amenities for pedestrians at this intersection it
is recommended that a movement strategy is developed. This should be performed by undertaking
origin destination surveys of students to determine formal desire lines. Based on the outcomes of this
strategy, a ‘green wave’ approach could be then accommodated during the peak periods which
supports uninterrupted movements for students and pedestrians. The green wave occurs when a
series of traffic lights, that is usually three or more, are coordinated to allow continuous traffic flow
over several intersections in one main direction.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report iii

Page 60



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report iv

Page 61



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the

2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of

primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning

and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
¢ Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss and
Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:

Existing pick up and drop off areas.

Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed school
zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 1

Page 62



g

1.3 School Location

Adelaide High School is located on the southwest corner of West Terrace and Glover Avenue within the
Adelaide Park Lands. The school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

r §UE

waymouthi Street. .

Figure 1.1 Adelaide High School Location

North Adelaide Primary School has the main student entrance on Tynte Street and a rear access from
Gover Street as shown in Figure 1.2.

Main student entrance is provided with access Vehicles and pedestrians can enter the side
from West Terrace. entrance with access from West Terrace.
Figure 1.2 Entrance to Adelaide High School
240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 2

Page 63



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

Adelaide High School (AHS) is a State Government public school that comprises Years 7 to 12. The
school office hours are consistently from 8 am to 4 pm. Bell times are staged on most days for Years 7
to 10 with an earlier start and finish, and Years 11 to 12 students have a later start and finish). Bell
times are the same for all years on Wednesday’s due to professional learning placeholders for AHS staff.

Bell times are based on the timetable times that vary by day of the week as shown in Figure 2.1.

Lesson 1 (7-10)

8:30 - 9:20 AM
n2

9:20 - 10:35AM

Recess

10:35 - 11:05AM

12:25PM 75 80 80
n4 o
1:00PM 11:55-1:10PM 1 - MG MG
1:10-1:50PM
1:50-2:40PM 5 5 6
50 80 80
: 6 7 2:55-4:40PM ) 2 1
3:40PM 50 50 Professional 50 50
Leader's Learning

3:45-5:00PM

Figure 2.1

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday
8:30-9:20 AM

9:20 - 10:10AM

10:10 - 10:40AM

10:40 - 11:55AM 6

Collaboration

Adelaide High School Class Timetable

Lesson times for students in Years 11-12 are structured based on ensuring that students can check their
parking arrangements if they have travelled to school by car.

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 is for 1,554 students with a distribution by year as follows:

311 students in Year 7
294 students in Year 8
326 students in Year 9
298 students in Year 10
325 students in Year 11
301 students in Year 12

As shown in Figure 2.2, Adelaide High School shares an enrolment zone with Adelaide Botanic High
School which allows parents within the zone to nominate their preferred city high school. Where demand
from families living in the shared area exceeds places available, applications will be ranked and if
necessary, students may be shared between the two high schools.

From 2024, the shared zone will include previously zoned suburbs or parts of Glandore, Hilton, Kurralta
Park. Marleston, Mile End, Richmond, Torrensville, Black Forest and Clarence Park.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 3

Page 64



d

pY WNQUAID

magill Rd

The P.f!!de

Kensington Rd

py usnasod

Fe@
Greenhlll Rd

CCBURNSIDE

Q,
'@o .
00¢
o

\ Croas Rd Cross Rd. . s 4
= " < A \
N

Figure 2.2 School Enrolment Area for Adelaide High School

The Adelaide High School catchment boundary area includes all the City of Adelaide and parts of the
City of Prospect, Town of Walkerville, City of Norwood Payneham & St Peters Council, City of Unley, City

of West Torrens Council and City of Charles Sturt. The number of households by sub areas of each
suburb is shown in Figure 2.3.

In Term 2 2024, 144 students lived in the City of Adelaide which was 7.8 per cent of the students in the
six years. 1,602 students or 86.4 per cent of the students lived in the inner suburbs mostly within the
enrolment area. 109 students lived in the outer suburban Councils that are not in the enrolment area.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 65



W Adelaide North Adelaide Inner Suburbs Outer Suburbs
300 286
277 277
266
256

250 240
2
[
@
s
& 200
kS
&
=}
£ 150
=}
4

100

50

23
15 e 2 219 B g 0 16
3
, W [] ] = ] ]
Year7 Year 8 Year9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12
Year
Figure 2.3 Adelaide High School Student Residence Location Analysis

2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the Adelaide High School was reviewed through site
observations and a student travel mode survey on a typical school day. A copy of the student travel
mode survey form is included in Appendix A.

The student travel survey was conducted during the first morning class across a 5-day period from
Monday 3 June 3 to Friday 7 June 2024. The findings from the surveys were used to confirm the existing
transport mode shares for:

e Car (as driver)

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)

e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus, Train or Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

An average of 901 students were surveyed each day ranging from 773 students on Friday 7 June to
1,121 students on Tuesday 4 June with the highest participation of the five days.

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.4. The PM departure period had nine per cent more students using public transport than in
the AM period, and 11 per cent fewer using private vehicles. This result is likely because parents drop of
their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel
home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure period. Travel via
bike, scooter and walking remained fairly similar within both peak periods.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 5

Page 66



g

. Walk, .
Bike and Scooter, 3.6% Bike and Scooter

3.1%

3.4%
Walk
4.8%
Car
20.8%

Public
Transport
70.9%

Public
Transport,
61.3%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.4 Adelaide High School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024

A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the AM arrivals and PM departures from the
survey conducted in June 2024 is provided in Table 2.1. Key insights from the survey results are:

e Six per cent more students were driven to school in Years 7 to 9 than in Years 10 to 12.

e Travel by train was the highest transport mode for all students at about 46 per cent in the AM period
and 53 per cent in the PM period. Nine per cent more students in Years 10 to 12 travelled by train
than Years 7 to 9 in the AM period and six per cent more students in Years 10 to 12 travelled by train
than Years 7 to 9 in the PM period.

e About 10 to 12 per cent students travelled by bus with little difference between year groups.
e Cycling to school was up to five per cent for Years 7 to 9 and about two per cent for Years 10 to 12.

e Walking to school was under four per cent of the students in the AM period and about five per cent in
the PM period for all year groups.

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024

Transport Mode AM AM AM PM PM PM
Arrivals Arrivals Arrivals Departures Departures Departures
7to09 10 to 12 Total 7t09 10 to 12 Total

Car 34.8% 28.6% 32.0% 21.5% 20.0% 20.8%
Train 42.0% 50.8% 45.9% 50.3% 56.5% 53.0%
Bus 10.4% 11.3% 10.8% 12.2% 12.2% 12.2%
Tram 5.4% 3.7% 4.6% 6.5% 4.6% 5.7%
Bike and Scooter 3.8% 2.3% 3.1% 4.5% 2.0% 3.4%
Walk 3.8% 3.4% 3.6% 5.0% 4.6% 4.8%

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 6

Page 67



2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network

The streets in the local road network at AHS are provided in Table 2.2. The main access to the school
fronts West Terrace, with localised minor entry/exit points at the rear of the school. These minor
entry/exit points predominantly provide access to the car parks and sports facilities that runs adjacent
with the AHS service road and Adelaide Parklands (Ellis Park/Park 24 — Adelaide Parklands Authority).

Table 2.2 Local Streets at Adelaide High School
Road Classification Relevance to School
West Terrace Metropolitan Front Entrance
Glover Avenue District 50 m from front entrance
Currie Street Regional 50 m opposite school entrance
Waymouth Street Neighbourhood 50 m opposite school entrance
Ellis Park Service Road Not applicable ?n(ien:n:l?lég::‘:gsits;hom CITETIES, ROTIEES

The attributes of the local road network at Adelaide High School are provided in Table 2.3. West Terrace
with a posted speed limit of 60 km/h is the busiest road in Adelaide CBD with over 52,100 per day.

Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at Adelaide High School
Road Number of Lanes Daily Traffic Volumes Posted Speed (km/h)
West Terrace 8 52,100 60
Glover Avenue 4 22,300 60
Currie Street 4 20,700 50
Waymouth Street 2 6,000 50

The surrounding road network does not include a 25 km/h school zone during AM and PM peak times. A
signalised pedestrian crossing is part of the traffic signal phases at the West Terrace/Currie
Street/Glover Avenue intersection.

Table 2.4 School Zones and Pedestrian Crossings at Adelaide High School
Road 25 km/h School Zone in Street Type of Crossing in Street
West Terrace No Signalised crossing at Glover

Avenue and Currie Street

Glover Avenue No Signalised crossing at West
Terrace and Currie Street

Currie Street No Signalised crossing at West
Terrace and Glover Avenue

Waymouth Street No N/A

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 7

Page 68



2.4.2 Crash Analysis

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 were sourced from DataSA with the crash locations

close to the school shown in Figure 2.5. During the five-year period, the following crashes occurred
close to the school:

e West Terrace: 9 property damage crashes and 1 minor injury crash

e Intersection with Glover Avenue and Currie Street: 1 property damage crash and 2 minor injury
crashes

e Glover Avenue: 1 property damage crash and 2 minor injury crashes

Crashes 2018-2022 »% @
1: PDO i
' %— s Do
O 2: Ml
© 3:sl Rose St
Hindley St N
2 ()
o
<
L ';E* 2
=3 Philj
S ) .y
= o) lip St
® 3 § M
- ~
lo =
7 o
€ Ave =
@ ® -
ver "
Ave &7 — Currie St 8
Q @
3 z
O B .
‘*’ ‘ 8  QueensCt
Adelaide w
. ~
High School
@®
-
R
Waymouth St
@
@ o
o ~
= w
[+}] —
=
2.
Figure 2.5 Crashes on School Days at Adelaide High School
240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 8

Page 69



2.4.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

On-street parking is available in areas surrounding the school on Glover Avenue and private roads
(south and at the front entrance). The primary parking arrangements are summarised in Table 2.5. The
on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.6.

Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide High School

Road Type of Parking

West Terrace No Stopping All Times

Glover Avenue No Parking on Monday to Friday from 8 am to 9 am and 2:30 pm to 4 pm

Currie Street No Stopping at all times

Waymouth Street Parallel Timed for 30 minutes and 2-hour parking

ERaET R
Parking Control Points
@ Area Parking S

NO STOPPING MONDAY.TO

- FRIDAY;7AM-10AM MONDAY NO STOPPING AT ALL:
OVeR-ay O FRIDAY 3PH 720 TIMES
© Area Ticket &
ah Bicycle .NO PARKING MONDAY.TO
FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY TO C_U“MESI__—N'D—S—TM
FRIDAY, 2:30PM-4PH s
E Bus T!MESS
G, .
SNO STOPPING AT ALL
El Disabled U
® Loading PSR )
S NO STOPPING AT ALL'
" NO STOPPING AT ALL
® Mail Van Sy 6 =
Adelaide Hi
# Motorcycle 1 9 | NO STOPPING AT ALL 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
" | TIMES FRIDAY,8AM-6PM SATURDAY
® No Parking | ® SAM-NOONY
« I
& No Stopping ‘
® Parking %
® Permit |
. . BUS MONDAY.TO FRIDAY,
® Residential o3 30P
s = NO STOPPING MONDAY TO
= Taxi | FRIDAY 7:30AM-9AM MONDAY
| iy @’TO FRIDAY 4PM-6PM
Ticket l 3
©  Unrestricted |
Visit % NO STOPPING AT ALL
@ isitor TIMES
30 MIN PARKING AT ALL « < NO STOPPING AT ALL
btk TIMES °
A Work Zone | ° [
|
| ‘ Aarhiog ke 30 MIK PARKING MONDAY TO
K]
{ | 2 HR PARKING MONDAY. TO FRIDAY AR5 a0PM
} NO STOPPING AT ALL FRIDAY. 9AM-5:30PM EATURDAY.SAENGON
{ ¢ TIMES SATURDAY, 9AM-NOON
IR PARKING MONDAYLTO - N STOPPING'AT AL RN STOPPING AT ALL l
e TIMES . | TIME:
2'HR PARKING MONDAY TO FRIDAGEAIGPY s i
@ NO STOPPING AT-ALL’ 4 B 1 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM § ﬂRAPN;K‘Ng MONDAY TO TIMES. ~ @Ng STOPPING AT ALL NO PARKING MONDAY;TO -~ SATURDAY BAM-6PM
NSO e ] RIDAYIBAMGPM & T TIMES "~ FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY.TO e L)
- B QRI0AY 2:30m4pM NO STOPPING MONDAY TO
'NO PARKING MONDAY.TO. ‘Brl:‘RESDXSAELED AT ALL ::g:: :?::2::; MONDAY TO,
FRIDAY SPM-9PM
NO STOPPING AT/ALL
N TIVES
® LOADING MONDAY,TO FRIDAY.
BAM4PM
( \ 1 HR PARKING MONDAY TO | \SNO STOPPING AT ALL'
£ NO STOPPING AT ALL OTHER SATURDAYEARLGEM u
TIMES @
RESIDENTIAL AT ALL
TIMES
0 25 50 m NO STOPPING MONDAY-TO,
FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY TO
[ I D
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for Adelaide High School

The school promotes Kiss and Drop areas in the parking bays on Glover Avenue and the service road
south of the school as shown in Figure 2.7. No parking restrictions are in operation in these areas from
8-9am and 2:30-4pm on Monday to Friday. The total capacity for vehicles in these areas is 25 carparks.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 9

Page 70



Kiss and Drop area in Glover Avenue looking west

Park Lands shared use path next to the Kiss and
from West Terrace

Drop aera along Glover Avenue looking west

Figure 2.7 Kiss and Drop Areas in Glover Avenue

2.4.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the focus of the bus, tram and train network with the walkable access from Adelaide
High School at the locations provided in Table 2.6. This can also be viewed in Figure 2.8.

Table 2.6 Public Transport Services at Adelaide High School

Road Bus Routes

Closest Bus or Tram Walk Distance to Closest
Stops Bus or Tram Stop (m)

West Terrace | 610, 611 PM services Stop School Adelaide 20 m

from AHS West Terrace to = High West Terrace south

Adelaide railway station of Glover Avenue

and King William Street
Glover 163, 616, H20, H22, H30, | Stop X1 Glover Avenue - | 50 m
Avenue H32, H33, J1, J2, N30 South side
Currie Street 163, 167, 168, 616, H20, | Stop Y2 Currie Street - 100 m

H22, H30, H32, H33, ]1, South side

J2, M44, N30

Routes 610 and 611 are school special services that depart from the West Terrace bus stop in the PM

departure period to Adelaide railway station and Victoria Square via West Terrace, North Terrace and
King William Street as shown in this map.

,fb
&
4
»
py well
W Slo0W!

Rupde

Grenfel

i\
15 uayd

%
2

© Adelaide

'4 ¥ . Grote St

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 71

10




A,

o
2
% g
(o) a S
Ry ¥ ®
0 Q..o *
X North Terrace €' Narth \C/e L
Royal Adelaide Hospi(allef’z North Tce @ b City West
@ Elton Mayo Building  Yungondi Building
‘.3 Y1 North Tce 29
Y2 North Tce = Hawke BUIldNG g 1ara Hanrahan
2 2 Sir George > Building
() . . S
e Kingston Building 5
2 Dorrit Black Buildil 2
> = sadil SiaFurlerta =
2 Kaurna Building ]
" Rose St °
B1 West Tce Law Building E |
Hindley St @
Hindley St 2 @
z LAl =)
f,y, < Jeffrey Smart Building =
@ B L2 S X1 Morphett St
7~ ©_Philip St Philip St
X1 WestTeey Philip St
® o PhilipSt
n o
© =
GIOVer ;'
'%‘KGI?EFI Ave 3 @3 @
1 [+] @ 2 C1 Currie St
Yer Ave ® Currie SB1 Currie S!_D Curr®‘ 82 Cuge tm
o (2] YECurrie St N
= Y2 Currie St 2 = =3 -
0 ‘=’ . -
T QueensCt 2 -~
173
= 2
H q = )
Adelaide () 2 %
o« _{:delaide High West Tce 2
High 3
8 th St Waymouth St L3
m
School Waymoy o 2 g 5 &
2 8 & 2 e )
_\_—s————' = < = = & %)
4 = QL ° o =
o > - 17
=
®
«©
4
-
® n
] st Franklin St
lin
=3 Frank X »
8 b

Figure 2.8 Public Transport Services to Adelaide High School

The school bus stop in West Terrace is shown next to the Park Lands shared used path in .Figure 2.9.

Ny o

School bus stop in West Terrace looking north The school bus stop in West Terrace looking south
is next to the Park Lands shared use path. has no hard stand on the verge for students to wait.

.Figure 2.9 School Bus Stop in West Terrace

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

11

Page 72



2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.10. West Terrace has an on-road bicycle
lanes and off-road bike lanes are provided on the northern and southern sides of the school.

Bikedirect

Adelaide CBD

Legend
Bike Network wnnnnn - Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body
—= = Main Road - Bike L;

AN Road - bike Lane e Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing ~ Land Use

Main Road i Educational Land
Bike Shop (2024) ® RailTram Stop -

- S dary Road - Bike L. Retail / C ial

econcary Roa ke Lane *  Police Station ————Distance to GPO etalfommercia
= Secondary Road Green Space

v Public Hospital 50m Contour P
—==— (Off Road Sealed Path . . Built-Up Residential
@®  Traffic Light Major Creek

Figure 2.10 Cycling Network to Adelaide High School

Bicycle storage is provided 20 m south of the school entrance with 11 spaces allocated for students as
shown in Figure 2.11. Secure bike storage is also provided within the school premises.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 12

Page 73



S R

[t v ™ S DA W

Bicycle racks outside at Adelaide High School Outdoor bicycle parking next to the Park Lands
shared use path

Figure 2.11 Bicycle Racks at Adelaide High School
2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops in Grover Avenue and Currie Street.

The high school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD. A signalised
intersections with pedestrian crossings 100 m from the main school entrance is provided as shown in
Figure 3.24. Pedestrian access routes to the high school are via sealed footpaths along on both sides of
Currie Street and West Terrace.

An 800m catchment area to Adelaide High School is shown in Figure 2.12. Students who walk their
entire trip to school are likely walking from Adelaide city centre or the Mile End train station.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 13

Page 74



X
3|5 R
ols S e s
dER S LT
sIs Crg e
(4 oy BROMPTON -‘»,,,@%,,
=1 A
£ N & “/ & owen
22 ¥ (o "&Q-«'
35 s,
TE Y
Eo Tw,
=5 )
H W5
Z.= 4,
G S
[ =
&
4
3
5
=
z
H
)
<)
2

IRV

Nt
1)

z
3
2
5
= s
gORD ERRTU
o pARTONROD 3 L
wessd weshto s & v, STREET
z
)
THEBARTON
(3 o
TERRACE
GEGRGE STREET
SEQRGE STy
Az 3
=S E
& EE :
TORRENSVILLE AR £
= L 3
s N o s
z i 2 =
T - 2 2
1% CARLTON o 2
g
3 PARADE o
b !
% | TIENLEY BEACH ROAD Her?kzvmncu roaD. LI S =0 y Euunm.s %
-,..-ﬁ.....-‘ ) ] = i 1 5 sTReET 2
o
anzur:u’s‘r‘uzéﬁ Bl
< N i
3 o GRENFELL STREET Lif
- a 3
5 = : E STREET,
o > o PIRIE
3 &) MILEEND % z -
> w -4 =
5 2 " H =)
E z § A FLINDERS STREE
& Z 2
F}
gg KING STREET E
% o 2
L) U STREET @
pUSTREEL RECONCILIATION= WRKEFIELD SIEEET 3
= SjER k CWAKEFIELD STREET 4
mSE—1 62
- — i
ANGAS(STREET ]
g % -’ =
z
=5 - E‘ CARRINGTON streer. A8,
o | WRIGHTSTREET L5
g -] ‘\tﬁ |
= S ='s | )
% = = EET
) smwsmsn E‘) ﬁ HALIFAX STRI
e ———— | & = 10
ip O wnin
e 32 cwesSTREETY
\ GILBERT. STREET b a = E
& -
4 2 2
z > 5
i 2 G e o SR
2 MILE END \3 e 2 o
g SOUTH i3 & R 3 a o,
5 LONDON ROAD \B B 1t 0 =)
R » 5 2 | < .
\ 2 T2 ;=5
KnGsTON WANCHESTER STREET | z |2 0 o :
AVENUE \ Re 13 g
£ o
El

! ANNIAY
¥31Q10H

oy monn ror0 B3 L ——

GREENHILL ROADY

s
r
(0]

Q
[¢])
=
Q

.
=S 5
— = Suburbs : & = _ ]
8 Buss o Lkm Walking N ] g 5 3
us Stops Catchment | § wanvie o 8 3
o w
| ,© School Crossings 1.5km Walking : | = 5\
- Railways EstEhoent \ ;é ‘g HUGHEE STREET |
£
* SChOOI Entrance ékrtn}:Nalkmg PAusoNSSYREET __-‘ o é—-
. 9 atchm E AVENUE =
QS‘D Adelaide High o ent g o o
5 edestria |
R o Crossi ian ,\{5‘2 ALBERT STREET & nﬁu‘sma
Smgs“ ‘\"::"'“‘L STREET
3 ARTHUR STREET AA

245 4 o/ W
] 9 : ﬁl/{vsru\%&g( ?ters
3 el

W
alkable Access Catchment to Adelaide High School

STy
Ol

~ HYDE PARK

& GoopwooD

(¢)
&

VICTORIA STREET
-%

EgAMP
NORTH e =

0
L

1P

1 z a

137415 AQUYH
13331s ¥4I

(UEETIELAER

Figure 2.12

240706 Adelaide H Schoo Schoo avel Safety Review - D atRepot
g | Vi Yy v

Page 75

14



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions
A meeting was held with the school Principal on Monday 27 May 2024 from 2:15 pm to 3:45 pm.

e In response to the Year 7 transition in 2022, the school with the Department for Education prepared a
transport information flyer to promote and encourage more sustainable transport to the school and to
reduce the traffic congestion during the school peak times. The brochure that is published on the
school website for parents and students provides information about the school transport options. The
full brochure is included in Appendix B. The brochure includes a map with the locations for cars, bus,
train and tram stops and walk and cycling routes as shown in Figure 3.1.

Figure 3.1 Adelaide High School Transport Information
Some of the challenges and concerns from the school administration are:

e Based on discussions with AHS staff, their current enrolment numbers are expected to increase to the
school capacity for 1,850 students. The school has limited provision for any expansion of buildings
with the existing land because it is in the Adelaide Park Lands.

e The public infrastructure surrounding the school was seen by AHS staff as inadequate to cater for the
volume of students that egress in the PM peak periods. The predominant egress method for students
was the main entrance facing West terrace which observed multiple pinch points for the high
concentrations of students egressing at the same time (>500 students). This is shown in Figure 3.2.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 15

Page 76



Main
Entrance

Figure 3.2 Pinch Points adjacent to the AHS School Entrance

Significant safety concerns were mentioned about students crossing at the signalised intersection of
West Terrace/ Glover Avenue and Currie Street. Based on the volumes of students seeking to travel
north-east of the school, the existing crossing is inadequate to accommodate for students during
storage and when crossing. Often, students are forced to wait on the footpath for several minutes to
cross one leg of the intersection. This has resulted in an obstructed shared use path on West
Terrace/Glover Avenue which is used by recreational and commuter cyclists as shown in Figure 3.3.
Teachers are also nominated to stand on all crossing legs of the intersection to ensure students are
crossing during the pedestrian cycle times. Teachers want an overpass which they perceive would
address the issues.

-

pa S Bans

Figure 3.3 Signalised Intersection of West Terrace and Glover Avenue
240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 16

Page 77



e Concerns were raised by the school the Waymouth Street/West Terrace Intersection due to the
frequency of vehicles performing U-Turns and Right Turns into the school entrance unsafely.
Subsequently a No U-Turn sign was implemented to prevent this occurring at the intersection. This
was considered by the school as successful in managing peak time school safety at this location.

Figure 3.4 No U Turn Facility in West Terrace at Waymouth Street (looking east)

e Bicycle lockers have been provided by the school within the site to accommodate for student storage.
The existing Council bicycle racks on West Terrace have often resulted in theft occurring (Refer 2.10).

e The service road adjacent to the school was raised by the school as an issue due to the presence of
gueuing vehicles wishing to egress onto West Terrace. Vehicles were noted by AHS staff as waiting
over the raised wombat crossing and obstructing pedestrians. They noted that the main delays
responsible for the queuing was the desire to cross four lanes of West Terrace to travel into the right
turn lane onto Waymouth Street (to perform a right turn/U-turn).

L £ =

Figure 3.5 Delays for Service Road Egress (Right Turn Waymouth Street)

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 17

Page 78



\\\ ?

e Glover Avenue kiss and drop area was raised by AHS staff for illegal parking behaviour. Concerns
raised by the school illustrated the prevalence of cars double parking adjacent to the indented kiss
and drop area to pick up students.

e AHS staff also raised that the shared use path running adjacent to the school has some inconsistency
associated with line marking and signs where traversing across the access points adjacent to the
school entrance.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the Adelaide High School were
observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on typical school days in
2024. Three site visits were undertaken between Monday 27 May 2024 and Wednesday 12 June 2024.
These visits occurred at both AM and PM peak school times.

3.2.1 AM and PM peak periods

These observations were made at both the AM and PM peak periods. Based on the concerns raised by
the school the predominant issues occurred during the PM peak periods. General observations made at
both AM and PM peak periods were as follows:

Glover Avenue

Parking Issues

Kiss and Drop is challenging due to the availability for the indented kiss and drop bay to accommodate
for only approximately 12 vehicles at a time. There was evidence of double parking occurring. As
vehicles double parked in the leftmost westbound lane, there was an increased likelihood of rear end
crashes. This area also precedes the bus stop located further west of the kiss and drop area, and the
parking overflow of this area results in illegal parking adjacent to the bus stop.

With exception to the Karen Rolton oval access located in the right turn lane, the above behaviour is
likely occurring due to the inability to perform a U-turn manoeuvre during peak periods on Glover
Avenue. Parents/Guardians would need to detour 2 km if they were unable to pick up students on
Glover Avenue. The evidence of double parking in Glover Avenue is shown in Figure 3.6.

Double
Parking

Figure 3.6 Evidence of Double Parking in Glover Avenue

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 18

Page 79



Shared Path Obstruction

The shared use path located on the south side of Glover Avenue was obstructed by students waiting for
the bus at Stop X1 (south side of Glover Avenue). This observation did not cause any immediate road
safety issues and adequate site distance is afforded to cyclists travelling east-west.

Uncontrolled Pedestrian Movements

Students were observed crossing Glover Avenue between the Karen Rolton and the intersection of West
Terrace. This is a significant crossing distance to traverse across, and without proper corralling
measures, could result in a pedestrian/vehicle conflict.

Service Road

Parking Issues

During both Kiss and Drop periods, the Service Road did not observe significant issues. There were
minor instances (1 vehicle) of a vehicle illegally parking within the circulation roadway of the internal
roundabout during the PM peak period.

West Terrace Intersection

As discussed with the AHS staff, vehicles were observed traversing from the service road across several
lanes of traffic on West Terrace to perform at U-Turn at the intersection of Waymouth Street, however
there was sufficient gaps in traffic to perform this manoeuvre at the time of observation.

West Terrace
Shared Use Path

The shared use path that extends adjacent to the school is a challenge to utilise for cyclists during peak
periods in ensuring it is unobstructed when student bell times occur. Students were observed in the AM
peaks sometimes congregating on the shared use path, causing some concerns for commuter cyclists.
This is predominantly based on the eastern side of the school being the main entry/egress point for
school students.

Line marking

The shared use path also found some issues with inconsistent line marking with the Give Way sign as
shown in Figure 3.7, The holding line on the entry point for the vehicle give way sign is absent. The
give way sign may not provide enough notice to vehicles, increasing the likelihood of vehicles conflicting
with cyclists/pedestrians who, under the current configuration have right of way. Shared use path line
marking also appeared faded in some locations along the path and lacked delineation in some areas.

sy

Figure 3.7 Inconsistent Line marking at the School Access and Shared Use Path

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 19

Page 80



School Bus Stop

A school bus service also operates directly adjacent to the school main entrance, collecting students
during the PM peak times and travelling to King William Street via North Terrace to Adelaide Railway
Station. Students waiting for the bus congregate on the verge adjacent to the bus stop which is not a
formal bus pad/sealed storage area. During site observations, students were found waiting on the
shared use path to avoid waiting on soft/wet grass on the kerb. The presence of the high-pressure gas
line on this side of West Terrace appears to be the main challenge for ensuring a formal bus pad can be
provided at this location, however based on the proximity of the formal bus stop (Stop X1) 140m north
of this one, the merit of having a bus stop at this location should be questioned.

/y/‘ ’lA'—;-'

Figure 3.8 School Bus Stop Location
Intersection of Currie Street/West Terrace/Glover Avenue

The observations undertaken during the PM peak periods on both Monday (staggered bell times) and
Wednesday (same bell times) raised some critical issues at the intersection of West Terrace/Glover
Avenue and Currie Street. Travel patterns indicate students are travelling north/northeast of the school
to utilise nearby public transport and the Adelaide Train station. 8 teachers are responsible for the
safety of children, stationed at all intersection legs (Figure 19)

Insufficient Storage Area for Students on the Footpath

The magnitude of students that store and cross at this intersection was significant (>500 students)
often storing at the southwestern leg of the intersection at the conclusion of the school bell. This area is
inadequate to cater for this many students at once, with only 50m2 of the footpath able to
accommodate for students before they fully obstruct the shared use path and spill into the road
carriageway. Fortunately fencing is provided on approaches to the intersection for pedestrian protection,
however AHS staff nominated to patrol the legs of these intersections are often left with little room and
protection from vehicles. This inadequate storage area also applies to the southeastern side of the
intersection with similar issues occurring as the southwestern leg as above. E-scooters, bicycle racks
contributed to the lack of room to store pedestrians in this location, with students observed spilling onto
the road carriageway where vehicles would turn left from Currie Street onto West Terrace.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 20

Page 81



Figure 3.9 Inadequate Storage Area for Students on the Footpaths in the PM Period
Pedestrian Crossing Times

Pedestrian crossing times were also considered inadequate to cater for the number of students wishing
to cross during PM peak times as shown in Figure 3.10. Cycle times for pedestrians catered for many
students to cross over the 30m and 35m crossing distances for the western and southern crossing leg
respectively, however AHS staff prevented a significant number of students to cross when the “Flashing
Do Not Walk” phase interval occurred. This was predominantly a safety measure taken to ensure
students were still not crossing at the “"Do not Walk” phase. Overall, the operation of this intersection
results in a poor Level of Service (LOS) for students with continuous queuing/delays during the PM peak
periods. This behaviour occurred on both the south and west crossing leg during the PM peak periods,
however was not as critical in the mornings legs where student arrival times are typically more
staggered.

Figure 3.10 Inadequate Crossing Phase Times at West Terrace/Glover Avenue/Currie Street

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 21

Page 82



3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Issues for pedestrian and vehicular movements surrounding the school are discussed as follows:
3.3.1 Glover Avenue

Double Parking on Glover Avenue

The existing kiss and drop area present inadequate capacity issues and increased likelihood factors of
rear end crashes. During site observations, this behaviour was not enforced. One must not forget the
importance of movement on Glover Avenue and high function it provides for east-west connectivity
from/to the CBD.

Shared use path obstruction in Glover Avenue

Minor Issues of pedestrian storage/queuing at the bus stop encroaches onto the Shared use path,
potentially presenting issues for cyclist and pedestrian conflict.

Uncontrolled Pedestrian Movements crossing Glover Avenue

Minor instances of pedestrians crossing Glover Avenue to travel to/from the school without using the
signalised crossing at West Terrace. This involves crossing over a significant distance with more than
four lanes of traffic and exposure to vehicle speeds over 50 km/h.

3.3.2 Service Road

Egress onto West Terrace

Vehicles traversing across four lanes of West Terrace, to travel to Waymouth or perform a U-turn
manoeuvre, presents increased likelihood factors for right angle crashes.

3.3.3 West Terrace
Shared Use Path Obstruction/School Bus Stop in West Terrace

The school bus stop located adjacent to the main entrance to the school is unsealed resulting in an
obstructed shared use path along West Terrace.

Missing or Faded Line marking at the access roads on West Terrace

Observations indicated faded and absent line marking in some locations along the shared use path on
West Terrace.

3.3.4 Intersection of West Terrace/Glover Avenue and Currie Street

Pedestrian Safety

Movements for vehicles were prioritised over the safe movement for students who choose to walk &
cycle from the school during the PM peak periods. Due to the school’s location and the overall volume of
student enrolments at AHS, results in a high concentration of students fixed to a north/northeast travel
pattern. This results in extreme road safety concerns for pedestrians wishing to store and cross at the
intersection of West Terrace/Glover Avenue and Currie Street, which acts as the main issue for the
school.

With regards to a DIT policy for installing a pedestrian scramble crossing, the maximum allowable
crossing distance is 35 m, and for this intersection would require significant geometric alterations which
is 55 m at this West Terrace intersection which will likely reduce the number of vehicle lanes on West
Terrace, Glover Avenue and Currie Street respectively. Unless the future cross section for West Terrace
was to change significantly, this type of crossing is not recommended.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 22

Page 83



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students were developed under two categories, namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to devices, signs/line marking, signals or
pedestrian crossings.

e Operational efficiencies requiring Council’s team to consider operationally to improve issues.

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for Adelaide High School

Type of Option

Infrastructure
Treatments

Description

Glover Avenue - Create a separated storage
area between the bus stop and the shared use
path - floating bus stop

Issue Addressed

Conflict between waiting
students and moving
pedestrians and cyclists.

Glover Avenue - Implement corralling
measures such as landscaped medians (e.g West
Terrace) or physical obstructions on Glover
Avenue from West Terrace to the Karen Rolton
Oval access

Uncontrolled crossing
movements

Service Road
a) Keep Left
b) Left In/Left Out
c) One Way Road

Unsafe egress onto West
Terrace

West Terrace

a) Consider a DDA compliant bus pad / floating
bus stop for students at West Terrace
adjacent to the school bus stop. As per
Glover Avenue opportunity, a floating bus
stop could also be considered to
accommodate for a dedicated bus stop,
shared use path and storage area.

b) Relocate the school bus stop to be further
north to the formal Stop X1 on West Terrace.

c) Provide a bus stop in front of the school
entrance on the school grounds.

Obstruction of the bus stop
and shared use path during
peak periods

West Terrace

a) Re-line mark the existing shared use path
adjacent to the school to ensure adequate
delineation and definition in accordance with
DIT Pavement Marking Manual.
And

b) Give Way holding line to be placed at the
entry to the school access road to
supplement the existing Give Way sign,
reducing vehicle/cyclist and pedestrian
confusion.

Faded line marking and
confusion at school access
between vehicles and cyclists.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 84

23



Type of Option

Description

West Terrace/Glover Avenue/Currie Street

a)

b)

<)

Provide additional storage areas on the
southeast and southwest corner of the
intersection to avoid pedestrian crowding and
risks onto the vehicle carriageway. Corralling
measures (such as bollards or fencing) need
to be introduced on the southeastern
intersection leg to replicate what were done
on the southwestern leg. This
recommendation should not be considered in
isolation, as queuing and delays to
pedestrian movements would still need to be
managed.

Review the traffic signal phasing time
arrangement is to be explored during PM
school peak periods to increase pedestrian
green time for all intersection legs. This will
need to be managed with DIT’s Network
Management Services (NMS) to ensure that
acceptable impacts to vehicle traffic is
managed. This recommendation would still
not solve the capacity issues for pedestrian
storage.

Consider the planning for a pedestrian bridge
if Options a. and b. do not yield the intended
improvements for pedestrian safety. A bridge
spanning Glover Avenue would be suggested
due to the lack of space on the eastern side
of West Terrace. This would assist in diluting
pedestrians away from the West Terrace
intersection and provide uninterrupted
movements across from/to the school.

Issue Addressed

Pedestrian safety and delays
at the intersection of West
Terrace/Currie Street/Glover
Avenue.

Operational
Efficiencies

Glover Avenue

Implement an effective enforcement strategy or
reconsidering the placement of kiss and drop
facilities adjacent to Glover Avenue should be
considered.

Double Parking on Glover
Avenue

Adelaide High School
Develop a movement and green wave strategy

Continued commitment to
safe movement and efficiency
surrounding the school

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 85

24



4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives
The recommended school travel safety initiatives are explained with more detail as follows:
4.2.1 Infrastructure Treatments

Glover Avenue

o Create a separate storage area between the bus stop and the shared use path that is known as the
floating bus stop as shown in Figure 4.1. This will provide separation between cyclists on the shared
use path, pedestrians and the students waiting to be collected at Stop X1.

Figure 4.1 Example of a “Floating” Bus Stop

e Implement corralling measures such as landscaped medians (e.g West Terrace) or physical
obstructions on Glover Avenue from West Terrace to the Karen Rolton Oval access.

Service Road

d) Consider Keep Clear adjacent to the service road to accommodate for safe unobstructed movements
to the right turn lane onto Waymouth Street. This would reduce the right-angle crash likelihood
factors, however, not eliminate them.

e) Consider restricting movements to left in/left out movements only through physical infrastructure.
This may cause inadvertent impacts by restricting the southbound desire lines resulting in the service
road no longer being an attractive kiss and drop area for parents. By restricting movements to Left
in/Left out, additional pressure may also be placed on Glover Avenue for kiss and drop, which
already has demonstrated issues during peak periods.

f) As suggested by the AHS staff, a new public road could be built to assist with a one-way
(westbound) configuration for the service road. This option would need to be tested for feasibility due
to the associated benefits/cost of constructing a public road, changing existing road cross sections,
and addressing the likely impacts at the intersection of Sir Donald Bradman Drive. Liaison would also
need to be sought with the relevant stakeholders to consider this (Adelaide Comets, Parklands
Authority etc.)

West Terrace

d) The existing bus stop appears to be limited in terms of sealing due to the proximity of the high-
pressure gas main. However, this should be explored further to ensure that a DDA compliant bus pad
could be feasible for students at this location. Similar to the Glover Avenue opportunity, a floating
bus stop could also be considered.

e) The bus stop could be relocated further north to the formal Stop X1 on West Terrace, which is
considered within an acceptable walking distance from the school (less than 150 m).

f) The stop for the school special bus could be relocated to use the entrance slip road on the school
grounds in front of the main entrance.

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 25

Page 86



The access road to the AHS main entrance is proposed as a bus waiting area for Routes 610 and 611 as
shown in Figure 4.2.

Proposed location for the school special bus Proposed location for school special buses in front
services for boarding students in the PM period of the main entrance to Adelaide High School
Figure 4.2 Use Main Entrance of Adelaide High School for School Special Buses

West Terrace School Access

e Re-line mark the existing shared use path adjacent to the school to ensure adequate delineation and
definition in accordance with DIT Pavement Marking Manual. Give Way holding line to be placed at
the entry to the school access road to supplement the existing Give Way sign, reducing
vehicle/cyclist and pedestrian confusion. This location for the line marking is shown in Figure 4.3

{AS> ’ ST ]

Figure 4.3 Recommended Location for Line marking at the Access Entrance from West Terrace

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 26

Page 87



West Terrace/Glover Avenue/Currie Street

a) Additional storage areas can be accommodated for on the southeast and southwest corner of the
intersection to avoid pedestrian spillage onto the vehicle carriageway as shown in Figure 4.4.
Corralling measures, such as bollards or fencing, could be introduced on the southeastern
intersection leg to replicate what were done on the southwestern leg. This recommendation should
not be considered in isolation, as queuing and delays to pedestrian movements would still need to be
managed.

Figure 4.4 Recommended Improvement areas for Pedestrian Waiting Area

b.

New phase time arrangement is to be explored during PM school peak periods to increase pedestrian
green time for all intersection legs. This will need to be managed with DIT’s Network Management
Services (NMS) to ensure they are aware of the vehicle impacts. This recommendation would still not
solve the capacity issues for pedestrian storage as per recommendation above.

. A recommendation for a pedestrian bridge could be considered suitable if a. and b. do not yield the

intended improvements for pedestrian safety. A bridge spanning Glover Avenue would be suggested
due to the lack of space on the eastern side of West Terrace. This would assist in diluting pedestrians
away from the West Terrace intersection and provide uninterrupted North-South movements across
from/to the school.

Figure 4.5 Pedestrian Footbridge at Mawson Lakes Primary School

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 27

Page 88



4.2.2 Operational Efficiencies

Glover Avenue

¢ Implementing an effective enforcement strategy or reconsidering the placement of kiss and drop
facilities adjacent to Glover Avenue should be considered to prevent double parking.

West Terrace Intersection

e Based on the lack of meaningful options for improving amenities for pedestrians at this intersection it
is recommended that a movement strategy is developed. This should be performed by undertaking
origin destination surveys of students to determine formal desire lines. Based on the outcomes of this
strategy, a ‘green wave’ approach could be then accommodated during the peak periods which
supports uninterrupted movements for students and pedestrians. The green wave occurs when a
series of traffic lights, that is usually three or more, are coordinated to allow continuous traffic flow
over several intersections in one main direction.

4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.2. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

e T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost estimates.
e S for Signal timing changes at an intersection.
e P for Parking control with new signage or pavement markings for on-street parking or a school zone.

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Adelaide High School

Option Description Indicative Comments

ID Cost Estimate

T1 Glover Avenue - Floating Bus Stop $50,000 DIT and SAPTA to be
consulted about the location
of the school bus stop

T2 Glover Avenue - Landscaped $25,000 DIT to be consulted
Median/Fencing

T3a Service Road - Keep Clear Markings $5,000 Council to be consulted

T3b Service Road - Left in Left Out $25,000

T3c Service Road — One Way Arrangement | >$500,000

T4a West Terrace - DDA Bus Stop $25,000 DIT and SAPTA to be

T4b West Terrace - Relocate Bus Stop <$5,000 consulted about the location

of the school bus stop;
Council to implement the
preferred solution

T4c West Terrace - Allow School Special
bus to use the access road in front of
the main entrance of the school

T5 West Terrace - Share use path Line $2,500 Council to implement
marking
T6a Intersection - Improve storage areas $100,000 DIT to be consulted
S6b Intersection - Pedestrian Green Time $20,000
T6¢C Intersection — Footbridge $2million
240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 28

Page 89



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads, Sydney,
2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October 2023,
Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code of
Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3 Drop
off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 29

Page 90



\
\
\
\\ ?
~—

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

F
IDE
School Travel Survey for Students
Sehool: Adelaide High School

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a suney fo determine the main modes of travel for students o
urderstand the travel behaviour fo the school. Please assist us by undentaking a short student sunvey duning the
first period class.
Questions for the Teacher

Date (day/month/year):

Weather |Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
students are absent today inyour class?

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group
Please ask the students with a ‘hands-up' suney in the classroom.
AM Period Travel
How did you travel to schoo! this moming? (If youw travelled by movre than one mode, please answer with the longest

part of your journey - 8.g. "car” for “car and scooter”. )
Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period
Car {as driver)
Car (as passenger with drop-off)
‘Wialk fior the entire trip
Bus

How ma

Number of Students

Train

Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

PM Period Travel
Howwill yow travel from schood this afternoon ? {If yow wall travel by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for “car and scooter”)
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Number of Students

Car (as driver)
Car (as passenger with pick-up)
‘Wialk for the entire trip
Bus

Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)

Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter
Public Transpaort [bus, tram or train)

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 91



School travel:
Adelaide High School

There are lots of ways to get your child
to and from Adelaide High Schoaol.

With the arrival of Year 7 students in 2022, we are keen
to alleviate traffic comgestion around the school

Evary family must make decisions about transport USII‘Ig blt}'l:l&! OF scooters

that best suit their individual circumstances, but we Bikes can also be stored safely on the
encourage independence where it is appropriate. school campus during the day.
Trawelling by foot, bike, bus, or train develops your The Park Lands hawve shared-use paths for cyclists

child's confidence, organisation, and self-reliance skills.  and pedestrians which connect through to

i cuburban streets that have low speed limits.
Below are some options you may like to

consider, along with safety guidelines which Students must awoid riding on main roads during
hawe been developed by the school in peak time. They must also use separated bike
consultation with the State Government pathways whenever they are provided.

Catching the bus
(1]} L] (1]}

Adelaide High School is serviced by several

. buszses, including some designated school services

walkmg to and from school that are for students only, along with the teachers,
‘Walking has a range of health benefits and we are parents and carers who are accompanying them.
fortunate to be located close to the Adelaide Park )

Wizit the Adelaide Metro's iravel to school page for

Lands, meaning students can enjoy open raseres. - ! - - -
nformation on timetables, fares, and safety.

f you are driving, we encourage you to drop your child

off a short walk away from school where possible. The school bus zones are supervised by staff

pefore and after school. Students must cross
All major intersections around the school any roads at the pedestrian crossings points
hiawve pedestrian activated crossings, which located at traffic light intersections.

students must use to emsure their safe
) 4 & map showing bus stops around the school

Scooters and skateboards are also welcome - they 5 also attached to this message.

can be stored securely on campus during the day.
%, Government of Sauth Australia
Deparimeni for Education

240706 Adelaide High School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 92



I

]

0O
—
Catching the tram or train

Students catching the train to Adelaide High
School can come and go via the Mile End train
station (a 600m walk across the Park Lands) or
the Adelaide Train Station on North Terrace.

If your child 1s using the Adelaide Train
station, they can catch a free connector tram
or the City Loop bus if they don't want to
walk between the station and school

Students must cross all roads at pedestrian crossings.

Train and bus service details are also available
on the Adelaide Metrg website.

oo

Driving to school and drop off zones

Student drop off and pick in Adelaide High
School’'s main driveway is not allowed unless
your child has a recognised mobility issue.

Instead, families in cars can use two drop off zones.
One is on Glover Avenue and the other is accessible via
the central school road. These zones are supervised.

The expectation is that cars stop in the
zones for less than 30 seconds.

Parents and carers are asked to ensure their child

is ready for collection before entering the drop

off zones after school, and to park in the furthest space
possible to assist with traffic flow.

In the morning. students need to exit cars to the nearest
footpath, rather than walking across the zones.

Please be aware that you cannot park in the drop
off zones. This means they are not suitable spaces
for early arrivals to sit and wait for school pick up.

If you do arnwve early for school pick up, you will
need 1o wait in surrounding streets as stationary
cars block traffic and pedestrian flow.

Page 93




Attachment C

Christian Brothers College - Junior Campus

School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491
12 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkin

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 94



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report Eli Alabaster John Devney | John Devney | 12 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 95




Contents

Project: Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft
Report

Client: City of Adelaide

Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMMIAIY turueerumresmre e s sws s s sws s s ns s s s s s s n s g s wma s w A nE R s w A AR n R A nnm R nnmannn i
L@ L7 YT PP i
(G V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
(G VA S =Tolo T oY g1 o T F= 1 o o 1= P i
N 5 5 Y o T 5 T ifi
(] Lo X =T= T Vo1 = o 10 S iii
I 13 1o T 1T ot o' Y 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P TP 1
1.2 S U Ta AV U s Yo FY =T o T B Y oo o1 P 1
1.3 1S ol o Yo} I 1o o= | o o TS 2
2 EXisting Conditions iciiiiciiciiiiminrsamse s i s sms s sns s e srassa s s s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnnnsansans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 B0 o 7= =1 o] o = PP 3
2.2 Student ENrolmEnt ANal Y SiS ..ottt e 3
2.3 Student Travel Demand .. .o.cieieiii it aa 5
2.4 L= L0 1= o0 oY o] 7
3 Issues and OpPortUNitiesS. .iciciiiiiiiiri i st rs s s s s s s s s saasaasrasaansnnasannnsnnsnannans 14
3.1 1S o=1 (=] o] Lo L=t gl T T ol U =1 o 1= P 14
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T V2= o[ o I PN 14
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OPPOrTUNITIES .....uiiieie i e aananas 16
4 Travel Safety Options and AssesSMmMeENnt .....cccciiciiiiiiimia i i s s s s s s s sssnsansnassansannas 17
4.1 Student Travel Safety OPLiONS ..ot e e e e e nnananas 17
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives .....cooiiiiiii e 19
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost ESHIMAtes ..o s 22
L 2= =T 4T o T o= 23

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 96



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares by Year Group in June 2024.......c.ccvermremsmrasssrasssssssssssssssssnssnnns 6
Table 2.2 Local Streets at the CBC JUNIiOFr CamPUS . .uieruriarsmrarsmramssmassssasssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssnssnsns 7
Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Junior Campus ....cccrierermressmressssassssasssssssssssssssssnssnnns 7
Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Junior Campus ....cccrerermresssrssssassssasssssssasssssssssnssnnns 7
Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide High SChoOl ........cciriiimimieierererererreserersrsrsrsssssssssssssssssasasasasasasasanssnnnns 9
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for the CBC JUunior CampPuUsS...ccccvereriarsssarsssassssassssassssasssssssssassnnnss 17
Table 4.2 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Wakefield Street.........c.cociiiiimiiiriininnannns 20
Table 4.3 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at the CBC Junior Campus .........ceeuees 22
Figures

Figure 1.1 Christian Brothers College Junior Campus LOCation ..ciierrrerarrsrsrsrsrsnsssssasasasasasasasasasasssassssnnnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Entrances to the CBC JUNIOr CAMPUS 1uiuiurururussnsasssasasasasasasassssnsnsnsssnsnsssssssssssssasssasssassssssssnsnsnsnsns 2
Figure 2.1 CBC Junior Campus Student Residence Location AnalySiS.....cicrermrururimisinsssasasasssararasasnsssnsnsnnnnns 4
Figure 2.2 CBC Junior Campus Student Residence Area ANalySiS ...cicrarerrrrarsmsnsnsnsssssasasasasasasassssssssnsssnsnnns 4
Figure 2.3 CBC Junior Campus R to Year 3 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024.........c.ccerrumennee 5
Figure 2.4 CBC Junior Campus Years 4-6 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024 .........c.coerererennnnn 6
Figure 2.5 Koala Pedestrian Crossing and 25 km/h School Zone in East Terrace........cocummmiermnrransansnnnnns 8
Figure 2.6 Crashes from 2018 to 2022 near the CBC JUNior CampPuUS....cicrerrrirsrssnsmsmsmsmsmssssasasasssssssasssssnsnns 8
Figure 2.7 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for the CBC Junior CampusS.....cccverarararasasssassasssnnnns 9
Figure 2.8 Timed Parking Spaces at the CBC JuNior CampPuUS....cccureressssnssssssssssssssmssssssssasasssasasasasasnsnsnsnns 10
Figure 2.9 CBC Junior Campus Parking Brochure Map....c.ccesesasssasararasasasansssssssssssssssssssasasasasasasasassssssssssnnns 10
Figure 2.10 Public Transport Services to the CBC JuNior CamPpus ...c.ieveiserereissraramsssasssssssassssasassssasassnsans 11
Figure 2.11 Cycling Network to the CBC Junior CaAmpPUS ......cccurrereisassssssssassmsssasassssasassssasassssassssssasassnsass 12
Figure 2.12 Walkable Access Catchment to the CBC JUNior CamPuUs ..cicrererersrsmsssssssssasasasasasasasassssssssssnnns 13
Figure 3.1 AM Peak Conditions at the CBC JUNior CaAmPUS ...cccvererararararassssrsrsssssnsssssssssasasasasasasasassssssssssnnns 15
Figure 3.2 PM Peak Conditions at the CBC JuNIiOr CampPus ..iuieierererererssssssssssssssssssmssssssssssssssasasassasnsssnsnns 15
Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at the CBC JUNIOr CampPuUs ...cicrrerererarrsrssnsssmsmssssssasasasssssasssssasssasnsnns 19
Figure 4.2 Alternative School Precinct Warning SigNage .....cccvvererrrmsarrsrssssssssmsmsmssssssasasssasasassasssnsnnnns 21
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B — CBC Junior Campus Parking Information
Appendix C - School Travel Access Guide in NSW

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 97



Executive Summary

Overview

The Christian Brothers College (CBC) Junior Campus is a private school located in Wakefield Street
between Hutt Street and East Terrace. The college has classes from Reception to Year 6 with an
enrolment of 266 students in Term 2 2024 with 118 students in Reception to Year 3 and 148 students in
Years 4 to 6.

Key Findings

The CBC Junior Campus does not have an enrolment restriction area and students live in wide range of
locations in Greater Adelaide. However, most students reside in inner east or north-west Adelaide
suburbs.

The student travel surveys that were conducted in June 2024 showed the following:

e The AM and PM periods are not significantly between different travel modes indicating that students
travel to and from school using the same transport modes.

e The primary travel mode is private vehicle, with 93 per cent of children being driven to and from
school attending Reception to Year 3 and only five per cent by bus. This car mode share decreases to
over 82 per cent in the older students in Years 4-6. The parents of the younger students mostly
dropped off and picked up their children by private vehicle.

e Over 82 per cent of students in Years 4 to 6 were driven to school. 14 per cent of the students in
Years 4 to 6 travelled by bus in the AM period and 13 per cent in the PM period.

e Less than two per cent of the students travelled by train or tram.

e The bicycle and walking mode share is less than two per cent which indicates a very low interest in
travelling by active transport modes.

From the discussions with the school and the site observations, the following student travel safety
issues were identified:
e Travel across Wakefield Street is limited to the signalised crossing at the Hutt Street

e Several near misses have been observed at the koala crossing in East Terrace with drivers not
stopping.

e Heavy vehicles short-cut from Wakefield Street to Bartels Road using East Terrace.

Vehicles are travelling at speeds on Wakefield Street not typically associated with school zones.

e The no-parking requirements on Wakefield Street and the eastern side of East Terrace between 3 pm
and 4 pm was disobeyed by over 20 vehicles during the 30-minute period of pick-up time.

- If the parking controls were followed by drivers in East Terrace, the parking supply would not be
sufficient for overall pick up activities.

¢ A dedicated Kiss and Drop (15-minute zone) in Wakefield Street with parallel (not angle) parking.

e The bicycle lanes in Wakefield Street are a hazard for motorist’s parking and reversing out.
Key Recommendations

Infrastructure Treatments

e Reinvestigate the inclusion of a signalised pedestrian crossing (PAC) east of Wakefield Street in East
Terrace immediately south of the Glover (East) Playspace. It is not proposed in front of the school
entrance to avoid the impact of the removal of car parking.

e Install a pedestrian refuge in Wakefield Street between Hutt Street and East Terrace.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 1

Page 98



Operational Efficiencies

e Change the parking controls on Wakefield Street at the main school entrance to allow for 15-minute
Kiss and Drop activities during critical peak school periods.

e Change the parking controls in East Terrace (eastern side) to allow for 15-minute kiss and drop
activities during critical peak school periods.

e Consider changing the posted speed in Wakefield Street between Frome Street and East Terrace from
50 km/h to a slower speed limit, such as 40 km/h. This would extend to Frome Street to provide a
continuous environment across the Senior and Junior campuses.

e Enforce stricter rules on providing heavy vehicles permit based activity along East Terrace. This could
be implemented during peak periods to avoid conflicts with pedestrians.

Safety Promotions

e Install additional signage to promote the school area for traffic approaching the school zones at East
Terrace and Wakefield Street.

e Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted on the
school website in location that is easy to find, in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 99



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

w

Page 100



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
e Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss and
Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:

- Existing pick up and drop off areas.

- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 1

Page 101



1.3 School Location

The Christian Brothers College (CBC) Junior Campus is located in Wakefield Street west of East Terrace
and south of Nil Street. The school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

m
()
(2}
—
oy
s
=
()
1 O
(0]

Figure 1.1 Christian Brothers College Junior Campus Location

The CBD Junior Campus has the main student entrance on Wakefield Street and a rear access in Nil
Street as shown in Figure 1.2.

Main student entrance on Wakefield Street west Rear entrance to the school in Nil Street west of

of East Terrace East Terrace
Figure 1.2 Entrances to the CBC Junior Campus
240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 2

Page 102



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

The Christian Brothers College (CBC) Junior Campus comprises years R to 6. The school building opens
at 8:25 am on school days. The bell times are:

e AM Bell time of 8:48 am for the start of classes at 9:05 am

e PM Bell time of 3:15 pm for all students

The school office hours are:

e Monday to Friday from 8.20 am to 4.00 pm

e Qut of School Care school is open at 7:15 am and ends at 6:00 pm

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 is for 266 students with a distribution by year as follows:
e 19 students in Year R
e 33 students in Year 1
e 29 students in Year 2
e 37 students in Year 3
e 40 students in Year 4
e 51 students in Year 5
e 57 students in Year 6

By year group, 118 students are in Reception to Year 3 and 148 students are in Years 4 to 6.

The current enrolment is 280 students with a maximum capacity for 310 students. The annual
enrolment ranges from 280 to 310 students.

The CBC Junior Campus does not have an enrolment boundary. Students can live anywhere in Greater
Adelaide. The number of students by sub areas of suburbs in Adelaide is shown in Figure 2.1.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 103



80

70

60

50

40

30

Number of Students

20

10 13
1
D ||
Adelaide North Inner
Adelaide East

Figure 2.1

76

2

[ |
Inner Inner Inner
North North North
East West

Inner

South

Area

g

18
E

Inner Inner Quter Quter Outer
South  West East North North
West East

CBC Junior Campus Student Residence Location Analysis

Outer
South

The student residence data was used to determine the distribution of the total student population in
sub-areas of suburbs in metropolitan Adelaide with the results shown in Figure 2.2. 78 per cent of the
students live in the inner suburbs and 17 per cent live in the outer metropolitan suburbs. About five per
cent of the students live in the City of Adelaide.

Adelaide, 13,
4.9% _North Adelaide,

QOuter, 45,
16.9%

Figure 2.2

1,0.4%

Inner, 207, 77.8%

CBC Junior Campus Student Residence Area Analysis

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 104



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the the CBC Junior Campus was reviewed through site
observations and a student travel mode survey on typical school days. The student travel mode survey
form is included in Appendix A.

The student travel mode survey was conducted during the first morning class during the week of
Monday June 3" to Friday June 7t. The findings from the surveys were used to confirm the existing
transport mode shares for:

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)

e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus, Train or Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

A total of 1316 student entries were conducted during the morning session of the school week.

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
for the students in Reception to Year 3 and Years 4 to 6 in Figure 2.3 and Figure 2.4 respectively.

The AM and PM periods are not significantly between different travel modes indicating that students
travel to and from school using the same transport modes. The parents of the younger students mostly
dropped off and picked up their children by private vehicle.

For the students in Reception to Year 3, the primary travel mode is by private vehicle with 93 per cent
of children being driven to and from school and only five per cent by bus. This car mode share
decreases to over 82 per cent in the older students in Years 4-6.

Public Bike and Scooter,
Transport, Walk, 1.8% _ 0.2%
5.7% Public Transport, Walk, 1.2%

5.9%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.3 CBC Junior Campus R to Year 3 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 105



Bike and

i Walk, 0.3%
Bike and Scooter, a Scooter, 1.1

0.8%

g Walk, 0.2%

Public
Transport,
15.8%

Public
Transport,
16.8%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.4 CBC Junior Campus Years 4-6 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024

A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the AM arrivals and PM departures from the
survey conducted in June 2024 is provided in Table 2.1. Key insights from the survey results are:

e The students in Reception to Year 3 were mostly driven to school at 93 per cent with about five per
cent travelling by bus.

e Over 82 per cent of students in Years 4 to 6 were driven to school. 14 per cent of the students in
Years 4 to 6 travelled by bus in the AM period and 13 per cent in the PM period.

e Less than two per cent of the students travelled by train or tram.

e Cycling to school for the boys was very low for all year groups.

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares by Year Group in June 2024
Transport Mode AM AM AM PM PM PM
Arrivals Arrivals Arrivals Departures Departures Departures
Rto 3 4to 6 Total Rto 3 4to 6 Total

Car 92.5% 82.1% 87.3% 92.7% 83.0% 87.8%
Train 0.8% 2.1% 1.5% 1.6% 2.5% 2.0%
Bus 4.7% 14.1% 9.4% 4.3% 12.7% 8.5%
Tram 0.2% 0.6% 0.4% 0.0% 0.6% 0.3%
Bike and Scooter 0.0% 0.8% 0.4% 0.2% 1.1% 0.6%
Walk 1.8% 0.3% 1.0% 1.2% 0.2% 0.7%

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 106



2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network

The streets in the local road network at the CBC Junior Campus are provided in Table 2.2. The front
entrance and rear entrance to the school are provided on Wakefield Street and Nil Street respectively.

Table 2.2 Local Streets at the CBC Junior Campus
Road Classification Relevance to School
Wakefield Street | District Front entrance, informal Kiss and Drop area
East Terrace Local 50 m from school, informal Kiss and Drop area
Nil Street Local Rear entrance, Kiss and Drop area
Hutt Street Regional 100 m from school

The attributes of the local road network at the CBC Junior Campus are summarised in Table 2.3. In
areas where no data was provided, the field was labelled as not applicable (n/a).

Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Junior Campus

Number of Daily Traffic Posted Speed Average 85" Percentile

Lanes Volumes (km/h) Speed Speed
Wakefield Street | 4 15,200 50 n/a n/a
East Terrace 2 21,000 50 n/a n/a
Nil Street 2 n/a 50 n/a n/a
Hutt Street 4 9,887 50 38.1 47.5

The surrounding road network does include a 25km/h school zone during AM and PM peak times on East
Terrace and Nil Street. An emu crossing is provided at East Terrace, which is heavily utilises forikiss and
drop activities and also for excursions across in the parklands. A signalised pedestrian crossing is
provided at the Wakefield Street/Hutt Street intersection.

Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Junior Campus
Road 25 km/h School Zone in Street Type of Crossing in Street ‘
Wakefield Street @ No Signalised at Hutt Street/Wakefield Street
East Terrace Yes Koala crossing
Nil Street Yes N/A
Hutt Street No Signalised at Wakefield Street

The CBD Junior Campus has a koala pedestrian crossing in East Terrace north of Wakefield Street that is
used for students to safety cross to the Glover (East) Playground and to parents with Kiss and Drop
activity in East Terrace. The koala crossing and 25 km/h school zone is shown in Figure 2.5.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 7

Page 107



Koala pedestrian crossing in East Terrace looking Koala crossing and the 25 km/h school zone in
towards Wakefield Street from Nil Street East Terrace looking north
Figure 2.5

2.4.2

Koala Pedestrian Crossing and 25 km/h School Zone in East Terrace
Crash Analysis

The latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 was sourced from DataSA. Over the five-year period, the
crashes that occurred close to the college are:

o Hutt Street / Wakefield Street intersection: 2 minor injury crashes
o Wakefield Street: 2 property damage crashes and 2 minor injury crashes

The location of the crash statistics in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.6.

| >
& 7
1 e g
< ,) 00
S S .
v A >
5 %
° ) a
B ' @Ba“els Rd Bartels Rd
pirie St -/ ' o :
z b :
- f_’_ g
Q > >
el
o
Tucker S\E o %
w
. =2
g o
9‘ (2]
w - 8
s g
Flinders St 2
: ) Crashes 2018-2022
=
‘ @ 1:PDO
| ®2Mm
Ifould St oz
e Nil St ;
@ Terrace Wakefield Rd
g8 A : '
& 7}
eld St e : : :
Y o H :
o % 2 :
E R m
2 % = Albert La
L ? :
=
Figure 2.6

Crashes from 2018 to 2022 near the CBC Junior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

8
Page 108



2.4.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

On-street parking is available in all streets surrounding the school on. The primary parking

arrangements are summarised in Table 2.5. The on-street car parking controls along the streets in the
vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.7.

Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide High School

Road Type of Parking

Wakefield Street @ Angled Timed with 15-minute, 1-hour and 2-hour parking restrictions

East Terrace Parallel Timed with 2-hour parking limits

Nil Street Parallel Timed with 15-minute parking Monday to Friday from 8 am to 6 pm

Hutt Street Parallel Timed with 2-hour paid parking and 3-hour disabled parking

(@ P 'NO STOPPING AT, ALL TIMES. e @ __J_’____',_w'ﬁml”’
(0) ° LINDERS-ST-EAST-

a
o
2 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO, - 2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO )
FRIDAY Ba-690 (10) B A oAy, FRIDAY BAMLGPM SATURDAY 4 STOPPING AT ALL TIMES
@. FRIDAY, BAM-GPM SATURDAY BAM.NOON (6
2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO. SAM-HOON (5) NOON (6))
FRIDAY, BAM-6PM SATURDAY, 1
2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO SAM-NOON (3) 2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY 8AM-69M SATURDAY: FRIDAY BAM-69M (3)
BAM-NOON (6 °

—FLINDERS-SF MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES'
()

(©),

€, ik TIcKET MoNDAY TO

FRIDAY. BAM-6PM (6)

©2 HR TICKET MONDAY TO.

FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY

BAM-NOON (6)

(o]

%Moloac\'cxe AT AL TIMES
(3)

2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY BAM-69M SATURDAYD)
SAM-NOON (13)

2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO.

2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO.
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY.

1 £
(02 HR TICKET MONDAY TO RIS (%)
BAM-NOON (13) FRIDAY, BAM-6PM SATURDAY. I
SAM-NOON (13) H
NO PARKING MONDAY.TO
2 HR,TICKET, MONDAY.TO, | FRIDAY 8AM-541 MONDAY TO)
FRIDAY AM-6PM SATURDAY, | FRIDAY 3PM-4PM (10)
2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO BAM-NOON (13)
FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY o

2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO

@2 H0ON (5) 2 MR TICKET MONDAY.TO ] FRIDAVEASPR )
DAY NG SATURAY, 55 | o STorpInG AT AL TINES
] L] J
o sTORING AT ALL THES 4 |
() ¥
2]
O _PARKING MONDAY.TO. 15 MIN PARKING MONDAY,TO
MAIL VAN AT ALL TIMES
o - ""ENS D‘r S L [FRIDAY 30470 MONOAY,TO | FRIDAY SAM-6PM (2)
0 STOPPI! ALLTIMES ERIDAY, BAM-9AM (3) )|
I nr|
2 HR PARKING '40Nmy.70 (0) ch ™~ 2 ege] @, M PARKING MONDAY TO
@ [] )
FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY FRIDAY 8AM6PM (2)° ]
a0 iy NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES. e
= (0)) | NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES
30 MIN PARKING AT ALL = )
TIMES (4) B = ! | E
NO STOPPING AT ALL TI“IES. Q 3 HR DISAMD AT ALL'a =
() a L
2 MR PARKING MONDAY TO
2 s L NO PARKING MONDAYTO ﬁgﬁ ;‘,f éma ﬁswfy TO NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES FRIDAY SAM-6PM SATURDAY,
30 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO 30 MIN PARKING MONDAY,TO FRIDAY BAM-2AM MONDAY,TO % (0) BAM-NOON (8)
—_ 3 FRIDAY IPM-4PM (4) (!
FRIDAY 8AM-69M SATURDAY_FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY, FRIDAY,3PM-4PM (6) °
NO PARKING AT ALL TIMES

AM-NOON (4)
BA-NOON (4) ® 0 o NO PARKING MONDAY TO

L] NO PARKING MONDAY.TO Hiulirmeettldd FRIDAY 8AM6PM (1)
SATURDAY GAM-6PM (1) Ehesrrnall

% (2)
NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES
() 10 MIN PARKING MONDAY,TO 2 HR PARKING. MONDAY,TO,

SATURDAY SAM-NOON (5)

1 NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES FRIDAY, OAM-5:30PM (2 FRIDAY SAM-6PM SATURDAYED.
ol ; (] @ ® MR(P;RKM? MONDAY.TO MO 9)
—— NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES ~ AT Wm’y = s ey o MM B/ 10 5 FRIDAY, SAM-5: 0P
1'HR PARKING MONDAY TO. (2 o 2 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO rRInAY QAM-S/30PM SATURDAY 9AM-NOON (9).
FRIDAY, BAM-GPM SATURDAY 30 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO | % FRIDAY 9AM-S: 301 ?

PM 4 car, 0

SAM-NOON (2) FRIDAY, BAM-GPM SATURDAY  SATURDAY GAM-NOON (13) St DAY JAM:NOOM (13)
® SAM-NOON (4) i
1 HR TICKET MONDAY TO!

FRIDAY BAM-GP14 SATURDAY

® o
1 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO
FRIDAY 8AM-69M SATURDAY

BAM-NOON (1) HAM-NOON (7) " N . i
(=] © -] [+
NO STOPPING AT ALL razs 1'HR TlCKET:ONDAY TO. Pa rk' ng contro‘ POIntS Bus MOto erIe Permlt UnreStrICted
FRIDAY BAM 6714 SATURDAY 4 3 2 g - e
B = BUS n"fu L TIMES 83 o CT S @ Area Parking © Disabled ® NoParking © Residential © Visitor
e A ) © Area Ticket © Lloading @ No Stopping ® Taxi @ Work Zone
O NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES i 2 % 2
S FAIDAY SAMEoM SATUROAYED) :;ﬂl @ Bicycle @ Mail Van @ Parking o Ticket
BAM-NOON (3) MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES

3) NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES
i TRCHET HONCATIO 1O STOPPING AT ALL TIMES

2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO. :::‘ut‘{)g-;m, f:;” SATURDAY ; .("-‘ NO sroevw(% ]Al ALLTIMES

0 25 m‘wm:m:ﬁsiz;mﬁ.w cl NR YI(KH MDIIDAV '0 = \J’.D STOPPING AT ALL TIMES |

Figure 2.7 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for the CBC Junior Campus
The school facilitates informal Kiss and Drop activity on East Terrace and Nil Street in:

e East Terrace

- No parking between 8 am-9 am and 3 pm-4 pm with 12 spaces
- 2-hour parking between 8 am - 6 pm with 14 spaces

e Nil Street

- 15-minute parking between 8 am-6 pm with 3 spaces
- No parking between 8 am-9 am and 3 pm-4 pm with 4 spaces

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 109



Kiss and Drop activity occurs at the front entrance on Wakefield Street, however this is an informal area
for short-term parking and vehicle movements with the angle parking arrangement. The total capacity
for vehicles in this area is 20 car parks.

CBC Junior School has short term parking available in Wakefield Street and East Terrace that is shown
in Figure 2.8. Short term parking is also on the northside of Nil Street on the northern side of the
college.

2-hour angled parking spaces in Wakefield Street = 2-hour parallel parking spaces in East Terrace

Figure 2.8 Timed Parking Spaces at the CBC Junior Campus

The CBC Junior Campus has prepared a car parking information with the map shown in Figure 2.9. The

t

full brochure that is on the college website is included in Appendix B.

2P

& &
1/4 P 2P 2P
Flinders Street D Flinders Street .
P va P | P P Adela'de
2 — L 2! -j [—( 2
Park Lands
&
| &
& 23SYPARK ﬁ - &
' - 2P 2p - g
i Ifould Street (7]
i 20 £
. r' -
ol ; va P —JW'-]
o Nil Street
&
ol -
o Junior CampL
- J S -
Main Entry
Wakefield Street East Terrace
Figure 2.9 CBC Junior Campus Parking Brochure Map
240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 10

Page 110



2.4.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the focus of the bus, tram and train network with the walkable access from the CBC
Junior Campus at bus stops in Wakefield Street and Hutt Street.

1S JNL

g Flinders St East Terrace
i Flinders St = :
Flinders St 2 i
: -
: 3
(ﬁ ®
\\:
N
T A
‘ E
ifould St ifould St s
g @Fl Hutt St g
=
| | St i
i Ni ? = o
J r )
Campus ©
Wakefield St
@ 11 Wakefield St

| St Wakefield St
R1 Wakefield St

1S WNH

© st

Albert Ln

1S [IPMPIeD

Figure 2.10 Public Transport Services to the CBC Junior Campus

The Adelaide Metro bus services in Wakefield Street and Hutt Street are considered sufficient for the
demand based on the site observations. Less than 30 students are using public transport on a typical
school day.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

11
Page 111



2.4.5

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.11. Wakefield Street has an on-road bicycle
lane on both sides of the road. Sealed shared paths exist throughout the Adelaide Park Lands. The
Frome Street Bikeway is about 500 m west of the school.

Cycling

Bikedirect
Adelaide CBD

iBARTON

(= %)
D,
ﬁnea&m.en >

Adelaide Botanic Pz
High School

—aE T

g 5
:
43
o,

Primary E
School

RANT. kv.

ROSE
PARK

WIS S UTH

STSTe

\‘ t R
i 0 i
. DULWICH
2
mong KESWICK ;, N\ . GLENSIDE;
Legend
Bike Network winon - Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body
M Boad-Okelane Q Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use
Moin Frond " Bike Shop (2024) @  RailTram Stop Il Ecucational Land
Pegnudey Roed - Blo Lane Police Station ————Distance to GPO Rt/ Commpereinl
e Secondary Road Green Space
- o Public Hospital 50m Contour i
—=—=— Off Road Sealed Path Built-Up Residential
®  Traffic Light Major Creek
Figure 2.11 Cycling Network to the CBC Junior Campus
2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops in Wakefield Street and Hutt Street. The
footpath network along Wakefield Street and East Terrace is used by students in both the AM and PM
school periods travelling between the Kiss and Drop areas.

The school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD. The signalised intersection
at Hutt Street and Wakefield Street has pedestrian crossings. Sealed footpaths are along on both sides
of Wakefield Street and Hutt Street.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 12

Page 112



The 1 km, 1.5 km and 2 km walkable access catchment areas to the CBC Junior Campus that were
calculated using the footpath network are shown in Figure 2.12. Students who walk their entire trip to
school are likely walking from the Adelaide CBD, coming from the nearby bus stops or other public
transport modes.

Gvod 301 LNON

VoY 3U0I41.

© " =
S / e, FWELL ROAD
& St S, /
& & S e,
G $ > e ’
& NG Y
& B % % /  EJANDALE
& N %%
< = & %
s, STPETERS “B%. &
7, T e & e
~ }6.5‘ ® Y;e / ~
N\ Sy, & X
\ﬁ ey & é;ﬁ AV
4 e |MAvLANDS
Ty, ST % \chTON
%
o, & 5, STREET
25 & % &
COLLEGE PARN %, A |3
\\ R \ g
2 STEPNEY z
F & \@a/ 2, { 2
Pey & 2 % 14
"N, & Yo%y b =
RRAcE— # % Oy | A
s, )
% N
S
g sodh — - O
/{"'
Z]
z
=}
E
5

|
|
\ I BEULAH ROAD
BEUL/
z O
o § o
8 1 ir 04
z | “2
E] ) %
z O =]
g CALUL \ A | g Rg !
- | P
race 1 \ ;5:3 RO l)xé qomwod® o
% RONDLEIROADS 22 KENTTOWN 5 8 3 H
= o)
‘B &
ey £l 3 = wiLs
gl ELEES: & = < 1z \WILLIAM STREET e
5! A GREMFELUSTREET E [SZ
==
2 e 2 PIRIE STREET, 12
it % 2
& £l | FLINDERS o, I
& 2 FUNDERS STREEY sreet |1 > \*@ e
TREET AL = o WAKEFIED[ROADLLEULY
“ 58 et Bl D 2 FeRAACE RO | GARDENS
S B lwakeeiED STREET Grrery 4 ¢
| By B S e
umsﬂ!iﬂE v - 23 A =0
ﬁg G#0] e eET PUAZA A £ 25 213
g% GROTE ANGAS STREET s : D ) A EA‘%
w O r .
% E GoucEREIRE ' G El é?’\ CARRINGTON STREET 3 ROSE PARK \
% :
oA CARRINGTON STREET = 3 AT AVENVE - |
WRIGHT STREET -2 1 | CRARTAVENVER ) =
wRIGHT 55 N oTmeEt = ™ \
e ;JSHMM 2 € TR
sweer i 2 29w |
) [Fe e 0 B2 e
ﬂmﬁm S B GuLesSTREED e ———
steeet oy § = T il \
GILBERT STREET -~ éd & ULWICHTAVENUE -] |
.
- SOUTH TERRACEL G § ||
5g______—— | 3
o——=f:— | DULwIcH &
5 = @
B! = E\ Y ﬂ 1 z 3 z5 =P
z 3
X g S 1 03z 2% |
(= 8 Gg R |
B 2 m] | T a \
Z
il O ‘ A bl d
- T N e
GREENHI! "9'.\.‘3‘%_ \
— WP GREENHILL ROAD ~ \
1 8 |
= ~ EASTWOOD |§ T
o \E&‘; l)”-’ GLENSIDE STREET
= 1O o
5 5y, 12
2 0,
{a} YOUNG STREET N = .
YouNG STREET 5'} O \”\o‘i 3 g
1 fo) 4 1 =
b i
i 3 PARKSIDE SNg | -
% School Entrance 1km Walking @ == il‘
isti. MAIN AVENUE =
Christian Catchment \@1 E
' eet y 1
[ Brothers College 1.5km Walking pasRsl z o FREWVILLE
i z
| ere - Junior Campus Catchment =) H \Q l
STF - . =
'~ Suburbs 2km Walklng () FREDERICE STREET WILKINSON ROAD EDLNESTRE[' 1 \\E {
=
= Bus Stops Catchment = g:,:;s:; : /A
i Pedestrian ) g
© school Crossings (o) : g \Q£
Rall Crossings 2
—— Railways ] 5
El w § Sa FULLARTON
g ) Bl
0 240 48Q | 960Meters o = N
- R = = 9 EET E
L % | 1 e—A—TT MALVERN B warTLESTH =) 3%
p— HYDE PARK < mom
| ~Mil1swooD | ~ = L]
Figure 2.12

Walkable Access Catchment to the CBC Junior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 113

13



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with the school Principal on Monday 23 May 2024. The issues that affect student
safety for travelling to school are provided as follows:

e The Adelaide Supercars race disrupts the school for 2 weeks every year with the entire school to co-
locate into the Senior Campus at the end of November with the roads east of Hutt Street are closed
for the race set-up and activities. The koala crossing in East Terrace is also removed for the race
period. It would be good if the race could be held during the school holidays, but that is unlikely with
the Tour Down Under in January and it does not suit the national supercars race calendar.

e It was proposed to install a pedestrian island in Wakefield Street, but Council did not implement it.

o Wakefield Street is 50 km/h west of East Terrace and 60 km/h east of East Terrace. A slower speed
would be welcome.

e Parents parking in the angle car parks in Wakefield Street compete with other local businesses and a
medical centre for parking.

e Parents are observed double parking in Wakefield Street, making U-turns and other dangerous
manoeuvres.

e The safest time of the year is immediately after the Supercars race when Wakefield Street is closed
east of East Terrace for the removal of the race event fencing. Wakefield Street is effectively a cul-de-
sac, and parents drop off on the north side and U-turn to return to Hutt Street.

e Heavy vehicles short-cut from Wakefield Street to Bartels Road using East Terrace. Heavy vehicles
and semis should be banned from using East Terrace.

e Several near misses have been observed at the koala crossing in East Terrace with drivers not
stopping.

e Students cross East Terrace to the Park Lands for sports.
e The bicycle lanes in Wakefield Street are a hazard for motorist’s parking and reversing out.

e A dedicated Kiss and Drop (2-minute zone) in Wakefield Street with parallel (not angle) parking was
suggested.

e High visibility and recognition to motorists that Wakefield Street has a junior school on it.

e Advocate to the State Government for a 40 km/h special school zone. This was in the news on Sunday
2 June 2024.

¢ No further school building expansion is planned with the school on a constrained site.

e The school has access to use the Glover Playground east of East Terrace and the ovals in the Park
Lands is used by the school for outdoor activities and sporting events.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the the CBC Junior Campus were
observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on Wednesday 12 June
2024.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during AM arrival period
from 8:00 am to 9:00 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the hour before
the school start time, with the peak activity of arrivals between 8:30 am and 8:40 am. The key findings
from the observations are shown in Figure 3.1.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 14

Page 114



Other findings from the AM observations are:

e Most of the drop off activity for students occurred on from the Wakefield Street with some vehicle
movement also occurring in East Terrace

e A low level of drop off activity was observed in Plane Tree Drive with less than 20 vehicles.

e The koala crossing on East Terrace was used for parents accompanying students across either side of
East Terrace to the school entrance

ouble parking was observed in Wakefield Street in front of the school entrance.

Some instances of d

Parking in Wakefield Street Parking in East Terrace during the AM period
Figure 3.1 AM Peak Conditions at the CBC Junior Campus
3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during PM departure
period from 2:45pm to 3:30 pm. The PM period departure profile was distributed over the 20 minutes
after the school bell, with the peak activity of departures from 3:00 pm to 3:20 pm. The key findings
from the observations are shown in Figure 3.2.

PM period parking in East Terrace with parents Parking in Nil Street with parents
waiting for students to finish school waiting for their children

Figure 3.2 PM Peak Conditions at the CBC Junior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 15

Page 115



Other findings from the PM observations are:

e The Koala Crossing was utilised for over 30 students returning from out of school activities in the
eastern parklands, accompanied by teachers.

e The Koala crossing flashing lights turned on at the school bell time of 3:15 pm

¢ A significant number of students used the Koala crossing on East Terrace after the end of the school
day. A minor proportion of these movements were from parents picking up their children on East
Terrace and the remaining majority were heading to out-of-school events with teachers.

e The no-parking requirements on the eastern side of East Terrace (between 3 pm and 4 pm) was
disobeyed by over 20 vehicles during the 30 minute period of pick-up time.

- If the parking controls were followed by drivers on East Terrace, the parking supply would not be
sufficient for overall pick up activities.

e Pick-up activity occurred on Nil Street within parking control requirements

e Issues were noted with pick up activity on Wakefield Street due to the angled parking arrangement in
front of the school.

3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Issues for students accessing the Junior School are mostly for the City of Adelaide to address and are:

e Travel across Wakefield Street is limited to the signalised crossing at the Hutt Street

e Several near misses have been observed at the koala crossing in East Terrace with drivers not
stopping.

e Heavy vehicles short-cut from Wakefield Street to Bartels Road using East Terrace.
e Vehicles are travelling at speeds on Wakefield Street not typically associated with school zones.

e The no-parking requirements on Wakefield Street and the eastern side of East Terrace between 3 pm
and 4 pm was disobeyed by over 20 vehicles during the 30 minute period of pick-up time.

- If the parking controls were followed by drivers on East Terrace, the parking supply would not be
sufficient for overall pick up activities.

A dedicated Kiss and Drop (15-minute zone) in Wakefield Street with parallel (not angle) parking
e The bicycle lanes in Wakefield Street are a hazard for motorist’s parking and reversing out.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 16

Page 116



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment
4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students at the school were developed under three categories,
namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.
e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.
o Safety promotions to increase awareness of the school with warning signage or information.

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for the CBC Junior Campus
Type of Option Description Issue Addressed
Infrastructure Reinves.tigate th<.a inclusion of.a Travel across Wakefield Street is limited
Treatments pedestrian crossing on Wakefield to the signalised crossing at the Hutt
Street This would likely need to be Street.
implemented east of East Terrace.
Operational Chang_e the parking controls on The existing no-parking requirements on
Efficiencies Wakefield Stre.et (SCh?Ol entrance) to | wakefield Street (between 3-4pm) was
allow for 15-minute kiss and drop disobeyed during the school pick up
activities during critical peak school time.
periods.
Change the parking controls in East The existing no-parking requirements on

Terrace (eastern side) to allow for 15- ' the eastern side of East Terrace between
minute kiss and drop activities during | 3 ym and 4pm was disobeyed by over 20
critical peak school periods. vehicles during the 30-minute period of
pick-up time.

Consider changing the posted speed Vehicles are travelling at speeds on

in Wakefield Street between Frome Wakefield Street not typically associated
Street and East Terrace from 50 km/h | \with school zones.

to a slower speed limit eg. 40 km/h.
This would extend to Frome Street to
provide a continuous environment
across the Senior and Junior

campuses.

Enforce stricten rules. o providin.g. Heavy vehicles short-cut from Wakefield
heavy vehicles permit based activity Street to Bartels Road using East

along East Terrace. This could be Terrace.

implemented during peak periods to
avoid conflicts with pedestrians.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 17

Page 117



Type of Option

Safety
Promotions

Description

Install additional signage to promote
the school area for traffic approaching
the school zones at East Terrace and
Wakefield Street.

Issue Addressed

Several near misses have been observed
at the koala crossing in East Terrace with
drivers not stopping.

Prepare a consolidated travel access
guide for students and parents that
would be promoted on the school
website in location that is easy to
find, in additional to the school
newsletter.

Students and parents may not be aware
of their travel choices for bicycle routes,
facilities at the school or public transport
services.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 118

18



4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives are shown on Figure 4.1. They include:

e Reinvestigate the inclusion of a signalised pedestrian crossing east of Wakefield Street in East Terrace
immediately south of the Glover (East) Playspace. It is not proposed in front of the school entrance to
avoid the impact of the removal of car parking.

o Install a pedestrian refuge in Wakefield Street between Hutt Street and East Terrace.

e Change the parking controls on Wakefield Street (school entrance) and East Terrace (east side) to
allow for 15-minute Kiss and Drop activities during critical peak school periods.

e Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Wakefield Street
opposite the student entrance

e Reduce the speed limit on Wakefield Street from 50 km/h to 40 km/h between Frome Street and East
Terrace.

e Enforce stricter rules on providing heavy vehicles permit based activity along East Terrace. This could
be implemented during peak periods to avoid conflicts with pedestrians.

¢ Install additional signage to promote the school area for traffic approaching the school zones East
Terrace and Wakefield Street.

Y-

.II'. _

|

goella)] 1sel

-

overéEast = |
[ayspace Wakefleld
Road

::l East Terrace

oL
T
=
2}
P
i,
D
‘D
—

e3

Wakeﬁeld Street

.' - ”
Legend

D Change carparking requirements to O Existir?g Koala
O
-

“5oellsl 1S

include 15-minute kiss and drop Crossing

Install new
School Zone
warning sign at
el street entry point

Rearrangement of parking alignment

New pedestrian crossing opportunities

Posted speed reduction

Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at the CBC Junior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 19

Page 119



4.2.1 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Wakefield Street

In order to improve the pedestrian crossing safety to the school entrance in Wakefield Street, several

options are provided for further consideration. These options are provided with the advantages and
disadvantages in Table 4.2. They require further site observations, data collection for pedestrian
volumes crossings during the AM and PM school peak hours and a more detailed assessment.

Table 4.2

Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Wakefield Street

Option ID Description

Advantages

Disadvantages

A Install a PAC east of Significantly improves Costly up to $500,000 to
Wakefield Street in East | safety for pedestrians move and reinstate on street
Terrace immediately crossing Wakefield Street | parking near the main
south of the Glover with one crossing located | entrance to the school. May
(East) Playspace. It is where most pedestrians not be installed due to
not proposed in front of | want to cross. pedestrian demand and
the school entrance to proximity to other crossings.
avoid the impact of the
removal of car parking.

B Install a pedestrian Allows for safe storage Pedestrians are still required
refuge in Wakefield for pedestrians on the to cross two traffic lanes on
Street between Hutt already popular crossing either side of Wakefield
Street and East point. This is less costly Street. Issues with sight
Terrace. than the PAC option. distance from parked cars

Under $50,000. may also obscure pedestrians.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 120

20



4.2.2 Signage to Increase the Awareness of the School for Motorists

An issue for school student travel safety is many motorists in East Terrace and Wakefield Street are not
aware that the CBC Junior Campus is located here when approaching the front entrance. It is proposed
to install larger and more prominent information signage (not regulatory signage) to increase the
awareness of the school. The signs could be installed at either end of East Terrace and Wakefield Street.

Examples of signage at the entry points to a school precinct are shown in Figure 4.2. These information
and advisory advance warning signs are not standard for the DIT guidelines. Council will need to discuss
with DIT about these types of signs that are intended to increase awareness to traffic in Terrace and
Wakefield Street.

\
7

SCHOOL ZONE

AHEAD

Advanced warning sign for a school zone

the street

Figure 4.2 Alternative School Precinct Warning Signage
4.2.3 Information to Promote Safer Student Travel to the School

The school provides limited information to promote safer student travel to school. Examples of the types
of information brochures, known as school Travel Access Guides in NSW, are provided for a primary
school in Appendix C. The Travel Access Guide is prepared with a consistent template for all
government schools in NSW in collaboration with the school principals and a school travel coordinator.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 21

Page 121



4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.3. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

. T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

. P for Parking control with new signage or to pavement markings for the on-street parking or a
school zone.

. I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.
Table 4.3

Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at the CBC Junior Campus

Option Description Indicative Comments

ID Cost Estimate

T1 Investigate a PAC in East Terrace east | Up to $500,000 | Council to prepare evidence
of Wakefield Street south of the to support the warrant for a
Glover (East) Playspace. This is crossing and liaise with DIT
proposed east of the school entrance for the approval to install.
in Wakefield Street to avoid the Council responsible for the
impact on the parking spaces in front design and installation if
of the school. approved.

T2 Install a pedestrian refuge in Up to $20,000 Council responsible for the
Wakefield Street between Hutt Street design and installation if
and East Terrace. approved.

P1 Change the parking controls on Less than The parking controls in front
Wakefield Street (school entrance) $50,000 of the school are under the
and East Terrace (east side) to allow control of Council to design
for 15-minute kiss and drop activities and implement.
during critical peak school periods.

P2 Consider changing the posted speed in | Less than The speed limits are under
Wakefield Street between Frome $1,000 the control of DIT.

Street and East Terrace from 50 km/h
to a slower speed limit eg. 40 km/h.
This would extend to East Terrace to
provide a continuous environment
across the Senior and Junior
campuses.

I1 Install additional signage and Less than The selection of information
promotion of the school area for traffic | $1,000 signage and installation in
approaching the school zones at Wakefield Street and East
Wakefield Street and East Terrace Terrace is under the control

of Council.

12 Prepare a consolidated travel access No cost to This would be prepared and
guide for students and parents that Council promoted by the school
would be promoted on the school administration.
website in location that is easy to find,
in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 122

22



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads, Sydney,
2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October 2023,
Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code of
Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3 Drop
off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 23

Page 123



CITY OF
ADELAIDE

Car (as passenger with drop-off)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike

Scooter

Car (as passenger with pick-up)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike

Scooter

Bicycle, e-bike or scooter
Public Transport (bus, tram or train)

School Travel Survey for Students
School:

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a survey to defermine the main modes of fravel for students

to understand the travel behaviour to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student survey during the

Questions for the Teacher
Date (day/month/year):
Weather [Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.

How many students are absent today in your class?

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group
Please ask the students with @ hands-up ' survey in the classroom.
AM Period Travel

How did you travel to school this marning? (If you travelled by more than one mode, please answer with the longest

part of your journey - e.g. “car” for "car and scoofer”.)
Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period

PM Period Travel

How will you travel from school this afternaon? (If you will travel by more than one mode, please answer with the

longest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scoater”.)
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)
Walking for the entire trip

Christian Brothers College Junior Campus

first period class.

Number of Students

Number of Students

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 124



Appendix B — CBC Junior Campus Parking Information

CHRISTIAN
BROTHERS

== P

Junior Campus
Parking Map

Welcome to
Christian Brothers College
Most car parking around the college are

1-2 hour ticketed bays with extended "
times for weekends. Please note parking Main Entry
avallability varies depending on certain CBC Senior Campus Wakefield Street East Terrace Wakefiel

times of the day with some car parks
unavailable during peak hour periods.
There are also a number of local parking
facilities nearby and a free Park Adelaide
App is available from Adelaide City Council.

Adelaide City Council

Park Adelaide App

Find Car Parks Easily
Free download in the App store

240706 Christian Brothers College - Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 125



Appendix C — School Travel Access Guide in NSW

| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Meadowbank Public School

Travel Access Guide Effective: September 2023

Introduction Kiss and drop expectations

Our school community of parents/carers, staff and * For parents/carers who drive their child/ren to
students live within a reasonable walk or cycle trip school, the kiss and drop rone is located along
of the school. This Travel Access Guide provides Rbodes Street starting from Hermitage Road.

sugges safe and accessible options fo velling ' .
uggested safe and acc ble Sptions for travelling * This space i= a 'No Parking” 2zone, meaning that
10 and from schoo Fn

um of 2 minutes

you may stop for up to a maxi
and move no more than 3 metres from the

Active ways to get to school

vehicle

Walking to and from school S0
Message from our principal
. vialking 15 a fun way o keep actve and
= : ¢ Meadowbank Public School supports sustainable
and environmentally friendly transport practices
[= stct fest '
= - S yras ¢ Students up to B years of age should hold
. taf
: - 3 S the hand of an adult when walking or be
8 .ttt . ! accompanied by an adult when riding
o i DR LOOK. LISTEN and ¢ Students from 8 to 10 years of age shouid be
HINK J he rosd actively supervised by an adult
School bell times
racks are available for everyone Start Times End Times
Ler racks for K-€ ludents S.e0 arr 2:45 pr
The outside school hour times for the primary school
. b ride uir by la >

are: 700 am 45 am and 2245 pm - €00 pm

For more information contact:
School Infrastructure NSW
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det nsw.edu.au

Phone: 1300 482 651 Nsw

www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.govau GOVERNMINT

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 126




| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

LEGEND
=€3= Walking route :
@ Train station \ E‘ ¥

© Busstop ¥
' Traffic signals
= Safe crossing point
. Meadowbank Schools 7 _
== Bridge/underpass . A'Pé > .
Please use the Trip Planner at transportnsw.info/ for additional information about cycling routes to the school.

End of trip facilities

Playground level:
For students attending
Meadowbank Public School

240706 Christian Brothers College — Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 127




| MSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Where do you ride?

Footpath/shared pathfcycleway:

= Chikdren uredar 16 can ride on a
foatpath

= Aoulns suparvising children under 18 can alsa rds
o tha footpath

* Ba caraful of cars antaring and axiting driveways.

= Watch cut for pedestrians, athar riders ard
animals.

Look aut for I-
pecestrians on

chared paths.

3 steps to follow
when riding a bike:
Clip, check, chime.

R yeur helmet

,-J Locee clothing and Rems can ges
h caught in your wheals Seoure any
1 laoae itarms, ke backpack SIraps

n

Wi sl Ble S weldF & Rk

Things to remeambear

ﬂ Alwiys ask yOUr perenis
Pnmission to rida.

Crossing the road:
» Baaira caredul

« Walk your BicyCk whien you Cross at a pedestrian
crossing.

Give a metre:

Give padestrians 1 metre of space
wihan riding past.

et

Always remember to
watch out for hazards

ey riclineg eonr Dl
Crack yrur hraine
ke mre e brskey r 4 D wetimee
e weeking. 8 spposdls
Chime your bell O stomgates
R"I = ith o - u Grauval or rocks
7} Shoes with a good tread on t
3 soies will healp you grip the pedals O Lonesia
and profect your feat. Ma ke suns ﬂ Anirmale
wour laces are thed. & Cheroesin the s
I e s arckaer rickar a0 H" Took path oyt ey
e I, charyss pour Esall. aurfscm
For more infarmation contact
School Infrastructure MW
Ermall: schoalinfrastructunsficdat neseduau
Phana: 1500 433 E51
Wty SCNOolInfrastruCTune s g owais Nsw
L]
U ™
ol .

240706 Christian Brothers College - Junior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 128




Cooching Colege "y

83

Attachment D

ae

ST

L

’
* Puiti vorks
Tuition that wor’
OLARSHIP/ SACE / 1B / UCAT
CNIE] S(\:inder - Year12

- R
(a) & (ENROL)
L@ A

iﬁ [ A

Christian Brothers College - Senior Campus

School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

City of Adelaide

CLC003491
12 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkin P

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 129



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report Eli Alabaster John Devney | John Devney | 12 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 130




Contents

Project: Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft
Report

Client: City of Adelaide

Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L@ L7 YT PP i
(G V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
(G VA S =Tolo T oY g1 o T F= 1 o o 1= P i
N 5 5 Y o T 5 T ifi
(] Lo X =T= T Vo1 = o 10 S iii
I 13 1o T 1T ot o' Y 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P TP 1
1.2 S U Ta AV U s Yo FY =T o T B Y oo o1 P 1
1.3 1S ol o Yo} I 1o o= | o o TS 2
2 EXisting Conditions iciiiiciiciiiiminrsamse s i s sms s sns s e srassa s s s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnnnsansans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 B0 o 7= =1 o] o = PP 3
2.2 Student ENrolmEnt ANal Y SiS ..ottt e 3
2.3 Student Travel Demand .. .o.cieieiii it aa 5
2.4 L= L0 1= o0 oY o] 7
3 Issues and OpPortUNitiesS. .iciciiiiiiiiri i st rs s s s s s s s s saasaasrasaansnnasannnsnnsnannans 17
3.1 1S o=1 (=] o] Lo L=t gl T T ol U =1 o 1= P 17
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T V2= o[ o I PN 17
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OPPOrTUNITIES .....uiiieie i e aananas 19
4 Travel Safety Options and AssesSMmMeENnt .....cccciiciiiiiiimia i i s s s s s s s sssnsansnassansannas 20
4.1 Student Travel Safety OPLiONS ..ot e e e e e nnananas 20
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives .....cooiiiiiii e 22
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost ESHIMAtes ..o s 24
L 2= =T 4T o T o= 26

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 131



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024 ........ccccermvannes 6
Table 2.2 Local Streets at the CBC Senior CaAmMPUS ..icieiermrersmramssmasssmamsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssnssnsns 7
Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Senior CampusS....cccuuerermrersmressssassssasssssssssssssssssnssnnns 7
Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Senior CampusS....cccuuererimrrsnrsssrassssasssssssssssssssssassnnns 8
Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide High SChoOl ........cciriiimimieierererererreserersrsrsrsssssssssssssssssasasasasasasasanssnnnns 9
Table 2.6 Closest Bus, Tram and Train Services to the CBC Senior CampusS ...c.ccrriarrsarsssarsssassssassssassnnass 12
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for the CBC JUNior CaAmpPUS ...cccrrerararsrsrsssssssssssasasasasasassssssssssssnnns 20
Table 4.2 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Wakefield Street.........cccociiiiimiiirieininnannns 23
Table 4.3 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options for CBC Senior Campus.......cccveurarauens 24
Figures

Figure 1.1 Christian Brothers College Senior Campus LOCatioN ....cicverrerarsrsnsrsrsrsnsssssasasasasasasasassssssssssssnsnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Entrances to the CBC SeNior CAmMPUS 1.iuiurirsssssssssssasasasasasasasassssssnsnsssssssssssssssssasasssasassssnsssnsnsnsnsns 2
Figure 2.1 CBC Senior Campus Student Residence Location AnalySiS.....cicrerrimmmsssnsssssasasasasarasasssnsssssssnsnnns 4
Figure 2.2 CBC Senior Campus Student Residence Area ANalySiS...c.cierararrsrsrnrirmsisnsssnesemassmasrasasssasssnsnnnnnns 4
Figure 2.3 CBC Senior Campus Year 7-9 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024 ........c.coererernrnnnnnns 5
Figure 2.4 CBC Senior Campus Year 10-12 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024...........ccrrumumeee 6
Figure 2.5 Crashes from 2018 to 2022 near CBC - Senior Campus .....ccciriiereissmmsismsrsis s 8
Figure 2.6 CBC Senior Campus Parking Brochure Map .....c.cccvierermmmmesnramssssssssssssssmsmsmsmsssmsmssssssssssasssssnsnns 9
Figure 2.7 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas at the CBC Senior Campus......cccvrermrararssassnsnns 10
Figure 2.8 Types of Timed Parking Spaces near the CBC Senior CampPus ..iciiersrsssssssssasasasasasasassssssssssssnnns 10
Figure 2.9 Kiss and Drop Area in Wakefield Street at the CBC Senior Campus .....c.ccrereisreramsssarsmsssasasssnans 11
Figure 2.10 Short Term Parking and Loading Area at the CBC Senior Campus in Ifould Street.............. 11
Figure 2.11 Bus Stops in Wakefield Street at the CBC Senior Campus ...c.cicrririsissssssasasasasasasassssssssssssnnns 12
Figure 2.12 Public Transport Bus Stops close to the CBC Senior Campus .....ccicrevrreramsssassssssasssssssasansans 13
Figure 2.13 Cycling Network to the CBC Senior CampusS ...iuueierererarssssassssssssssssmsssmssssssssasssassssasasnsssnsnns 14
Figure 2.14 Bicycle Storage Area at the CBC Senior Campus in Ifould Street..........cccocvvmririririrarannnnnnnn. 15
Figure 2.15 Walkable Access Catchment to the CBC Senior Campus ..c.cucrererrisnsisnsmssssssssasssasssssssasssssnnnns 16
Figure 3.1 AM Peak Conditions at the CBC Senior CampPuUS ....cciverererrasasasssssssssssssmssssssssssasasssssasssasasnsssnsnns 18
Figure 3.2 PM Peak Conditions at the CBC Senior CampPus ...cccvererererarssasssssssssssssssmssssssssssasssssasssasnsasnsnns 18
Figure 3.3 PM Peak Safety Issues in Gover Street at the CBC Senior Campus.......cccveiermramasmrasasassasssasnnns 19
Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at the CBC JUNIOr CamPUS ..icirererarersrarsrsnsnsssssssasasasasasasasasassssssssssnnns 22
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B - CBC Senior Campus Parking Information
Appendix C — School Travel Access Guide in NSW

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 132



Executive Summary

Overview

The Christian Brothers College Senior Campus is a private school located in Wakefield Street between
Frome Street and Daly Street. The college has classes from Years 7 to 12 with an enrolment of 686
students in Term 2 2024 with 361 students in Years 7 to 9 and 325 students in Years 10 to 12.

Key Findings

The Christian Brothers College does not have an enrolment restriction area and students live in wide
range of locations in Greater Adelaide. However, most students reside in inner east or north-west
Adelaide suburbs.

The student travel surveys that were conducted in May 2024 showed the following:

e The car mode share is 55 per cent in the AM period and 45 per cent in the PM period so that most
students are travelling by car in the AM period.

e The public transport mode share is 43 per cent in the AM period and 53 per cent in the PM period so
that most students are travelling by public transport in the PM period.

e This result is likely because parents drop of their children on the way to work in the CBD for the
morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport when the parent is still
working in the PM school departure period.

e The bicycle and walking mode share is less than three per cent which indicates a very low interest in
travelling by active transport modes.

From the discussions with the school and the site observations, the following student travel safety
issues were identified:

e Rearrange the car spaces in Molesworth Street with a parallel parking to provide a formal 2-minute
Kiss and Drop zone near the student entrance

e Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Wakefield Street
opposite the student entrance

e Fill in the gap in the Wakefield Street central median to reduce U-turn manoeuvres.

e New infrastructure on Ifould Street to change the priority of the street to a pedestrian friendly
arrangement.

e Reducing the speed limit on Wakefield Street from 50 km/h to 40 km/h between Frome Street and
East Terrace.

Key Recommendations

Infrastructure Treatments

e Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Wakefield Street
opposite the student entrance such as a PAC or pedestrian refuge at the midblock location where the
existing gap in the median is located at the main entrance for students to the college.

e Fill in the gap in the Wakefield Street central median to stop U-turn manoeuvres.

e Rearrange the car spaces in Wakefield Street with a parallel parking to provide a formal 2-minute Kiss
and Drop zone near the student entrance.

e New infrastructure on Ifould Street to change the priority of the street to a pedestrian friendly
arrangement.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 133



Operational Efficiencies

e Consider changing the posted speed in Wakefield Street between Frome Street and East Terrace from
50 km/h to a slower speed limit, such as 40 km/h. This would extend to East Terrace to provide a
continuous road environment across the Senior and Junior campuses.

Safety Promotions

e Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted on the
school website in location that is easy to find, in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report ii

Page 134



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report iii

Page 135



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
e Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss and
Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:

- Existing pick up and drop off areas.

- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 1

Page 136



1.3 School Location

The Christian Brothers College (CBC) Senior Campus is located in Wakefield Street east of Frome Street
and west of Daly Street. The school has access from Wakefield Street and Ifould Street from Hutt Street
and Frome Street. The school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

P

14
—

-
™
‘?(_ |

|11

%
(28
—
= b
(4]
4 ®
9~

joons InH

N U
CBE Sefior, Campus)

-—

T WELGHEL Stregt

Figure 1.1 Christian Brothers College Senior Campus Location

The CBC Senior Campus has the main student entrance on Wakefield Street and rear access entry from
Ifould Street as shown in Figure 1.2.

Main student entrance on Wakefield Street Rear entrance to the CBC Senior Campus in
looking east towards Hutt Street Ifould Street looking east from Frome Street

Figure 1.2 Entrances to the CBC Senior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 2

Page 137



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations
the CBC Senior Campus comprises years 7 to 12. The school building opens at 8:00 am on school days.

The bell times are:

¢ AM Bell times 8:37 am for movement to class and 8:42 am to be in the first class with lessons starting
at 9:00 am

e PM Bell time of 3:10 for all students

The school office hours are:

¢ Monday to Friday - 8.00 am to 4.00 pm
Outside of typical classes, other activities include:

e Sports activities continue until 5 pm and until 8 pm on Tuesdays and Wednesdays depending on the
activity

e Language courses are held on Saturdays and Sundays from 8 am to 6 pm.
2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 is for 686 students with Senior Campus capacity for 770 students.
The distribution by year is as follows:

e 113 students in Year 7

e 115 students in Year 8

e 133 students in Year 9

e 114 students in Year 10

e 113 students in Year 11

e 98 students in Year 12

By year group, 361 students are in Years 7 to 9 and 325 students are in Years 10 to 12.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 3

Page 138



The Christian Brothers College does not have an enrolment restriction area and students can live
anywhere in Greater Adelaide. The number of students by sub areas of suburbs are shown in Figure 2.1.

250
ray
200
2]
e
5
< 150
3
=
w
G 132
F o
3
= 100
=]
Z
50
50
£ 34
16
N - O
Adelaide North Inner Inner Inner Inner Inner Inner Inner Outer Quter Outer Outer
Adelaide East North North North South  South West East North North South
East West West East
Year
Figure 2.1 CBC Senior Campus Student Residence Location Analysis

The student residence data was used to determine the distribution of the total student population in
sub-areas of suburbs in metropolitan Adelaide with the results shown in Figure 2.2. 79 per cent of the
students live in the inner suburbs and 18 per cent in the outer metropolitan suburbs. Only three per
cent of the students live in in the City of Adelaide.

Adelaide, North

16,2.3%  Adelaide,

Outer, 124,
18.1%

Inner, 543,
79.2%

3, 0.4%

Figure 2.2 CBC Senior Campus Student Residence Area Analysis

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 4

Page 139



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the the CBC Senior Campus was reviewed through site
observations and a student travel mode survey on a typical school day. The student travel mode survey
form is included in Appendix A. The student travel mode survey was conducted during the first
morning class during the week of Monday June 3™ to Friday June 7. The findings from the surveys
were used to confirm the existing transport mode shares for:

e Car (as driver)

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)

e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus, Train or Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

A total of 1,912 student entries were conducted during the morning session of the school week.

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.3 and Figure 2.4. The PM departure period for both the Years 7-9 and 10-12 has 10 per cent
more students using public transport than in the AM period, and a proportional decrease in the use of
private vehicles. This result is likely because parents drop of their children on the way to work in the
CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport when the parent is
still working in the PM school departure period. The location of nearby public transport options allows for
older students, who are more independent, to travel on these modes.

Bike and Scooter, _ Bike and ;
0.6% | Walk, 1.3% Scooter, 0.6% _ Walk, 2.3%

Public
Transport, Public

40.6% Transport,
50.2%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.3 CBC Senior Campus Year 7-9 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 5

Page 140



0.2%

Public

Transport,

45.1%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.4

Walk, 1.9%
Bike and Scooter, _

Walk, 2.1%
|

Public
Transport,
55.1%

CBC Senior Campus Year 10-12 Students Transport Mode Shares in June 2024

PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the AM arrivals and PM departures from the
survey conducted in June 2024 is provided in Table 2.1. Key insights from the survey results are:

e 10 per cent more students were driven to school in the AM period than in the PM period.

e Travel by bus was the most popular of the three public transport modes at 36 per cent in the AM
period and 44 per cent in the PM period. Travel by train was about six per cent in the AM period and

seven per cent in the PM period.
e Walking to school was about two per cent of the students in the AM and PM periods.

e Cycling to school for the boys was very low for all year groups.

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024
Transport Mode AM AM AM PM PM PM
Arrivals Arrivals Arrivals Departures Departures Departures
7to09 10 to 12 Total 7to9 10 to 12 Total

Car 57.5% 52.8% 55.1% 46.9% 42.9% 44.9%
Train 6.1% 5.1% 5.6% 7.0% 6.5% 6.8%
Bus 33.6% 39.5% 36.5% 40.3% 47.5% 43.9%
Tram 1.0% 0.5% 0.7% 2.9% 1.0% 2.0%
Bike and Scooter 0.6% 0.2% 0.4% 0.6% 0.0% 0.3%
Walk 1.3% 1.9% 1.6% 2.3% 2.1% 2.2%

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 141



2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network

The streets in the local road network at the CBC Senior Campus are provided in Table 2.2. The front
entrance and rear entrance to the school are provided on Wakefield Street and Ifould Street
respectively.

Table 2.2 Local Streets at the CBC Senior Campus
Road Classification Relevance to School
Wakefield Street | District Front entrance of school, informal kiss and drop area
Frome Street District Western boundary of school
Ifould Street Local Rear entrance, Kiss and Drop area
Daly Street Local 50m east of school
Hutt Street Regional 200m east of school entrance
Flinders Street District 150m from rear entrance

The attributes of the local road network at Christian Brothers College Senior Campus are provided in
Table 2.3. Where no data is available, the field was labelled as not applicable (n/a). Wakefield Street
that is a major east-west traffic route through Adelaide CBD has over 13,7000 vehicles/day is a major
safety risk for school Kiss and Drop activity.

Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Senior Campus
Number Daily Traffic Posted Average 85th percentile
of Lanes Volumes Speed Speed Speed (km/h)
(km/h) (km/h)

Wakefield Street | 4 13,700 50 n/a n/a

Frome Street 2 4,242 50 42.7 34.5

Ifould Street 2 n/a 50 n/a n/a

Daly Street 2 n/a 50 n/a n/a

Hutt Street 4 9,887 50 47.5 38.1

Flinders Street 2 9,900 50 n/a n/a

25 km/h school zone exist during AM and PM peak times on Ifould Street and Daly Street. A signalised
pedestrian crossing is provided at the Wakefield Street / Frome Street intersection and Hutt Street /
Wakefield Street intersection. A pedestrian refuge is also provided on Wakefield Street, next the
Cardwell Street. This enables student movement to the bus stop R! Wakefield Street - south side.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 7

Page 142



Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at the CBC Senior Campus

Road 25 km/h School Zone in Street

Type of Crossing in Street
Wakefield Street No Signalised Crossing at Frome Street,
Pedestrian Refuge

Frome Street No Signalised Crossing at Wakefield Street
Ifould Street Yes N/A

Daly Street Yes N/A

Hutt Street No Signalised Crossing at Wakefield Street
Flinders Street No N/A

2.4.2 Crash Analysis

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 were sourced from DataSA with the crash locations
shown in Figure 2.5. Over the five-year period, the following crashes occurred close to the school:

o Hutt Street/Wakefield Street intersection: 2 minor injury crashes

o Daly Street/Ifould Street intersection: 1 property damage crash.

The crash statistics in the vicinity of the senior school are shown in Figure 2.5.
Crashes 2018-2022

1:PDO Tam-O-shanter P!

6\
3 D,
[a AV % @,}
32 @,‘
©3:sl g : 1%
[ -ra X
5 )
i A=
iri je St
Pirie St Pir : g
Ly :J) Or:
o 3 :
% Worsnop Ave
g Tucker Sta
sudholzPl o
pawkins P! ‘_::
S
®
2 T
s g
i Lad
Flinders St Flinders St A
3 | S
S <
(7]
3
o
& Ifould St {fould St o
Nil St
Chri@n
Brothers College
o a A
Wakefield St 8 C .
. (¢)
() Al : n
) s )
3 z 1
= » -
Ald Treasury Ln. 0 2 2

Figure 2.5 Crashes from 2018 to 2022 near CBC - Senior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 143




2.4.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

On-street parking is available in all streets surrounding the college that is mostly 1-2 hour ticketed bays
with extended times on weekends. The CBC administration provides parking information for the Senior
Campus that is available on the college website that shows the local parking facilities. The map from the
CBD Senior Campus parking brochure is shown in Figure 2.6 with the full brochure is included in
Appendix B. The City of Adelaide provides information about Park Adelaide with a mobile phone app for
parents to use to find the available parking spaces.

E,,.L I ST TS =T ﬁ!

Pirie Street Pirie Street

orzrop Avanue
thoiz Pace
,

Tucker Street
T

4

came ) b——eml =
Flinders Street Flinders Street [] Flir
% easyra ﬂ %
| N = e ¢
pa— & o e z
H z

P | : F
= SN | e

var TR

Main Entry

Wakefield Street Wakefield Street To Junior Campus =
W = R e e " (=
t ! i ! Q..
g e s il &
Figure 2.6 CBC Senior Campus Parking Brochure Map

The types of parking arrangements in the streets surrounding the college are summarised in Table 2.5.

Table 2.5 Parking Types at Adelaide High School
Road Type of Parking ‘
Wakefield Street | Angled Timed for 1 hour, 2 hours and 3 hours on the northside; 2 hours on
southside
Frome Street Parallel Timed 2 hours
Ifould Street Parallel Timed 2 hours
Daly Street Parallel Timed 2 hours on both sides
Hutt Street Angled Timed for 30 minutes and 2 hours
Flinders Street Parallel and Angled Timed for 15 minutes and 2 hours
240706 Christian Brothers College - Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 9

Page 144



The car parking and loading zone restrictions on the streets surrounding the CBC Senior Campus are
provided in Figure 2.7. These spaces are used for the informal Kiss and Drop activity.

L J
" 15 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO
o - LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY ' || |FRIDAY 9AM-5:30PM 2 H“ﬁg:sgmim‘ TO,
0 BAM-6PM SATURDAY/ | SATURDAY,SAM-NOON 5, B
2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO | 3:HR DISABLED AT ALL 8AM-NOON = o
f 2 HR TICKET, MONDAY TO FRIDAY 670 ® ® o 2 HR TICKET, MONDAY.TO
15 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO 2 HR TICKET MONDAYTO O STOPPING ATALL FRIDAY, BAM-6PM E v S MIN PARKING MONDAYSTD) FRIDAY 8AM-6PM
FRIDAY BAM-6PM & NO PARKING AT ALL TIMES FRIDAY, 9AM-5:30PM|
FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY san e e s AT TSR0 2 ERIDAY, oAl 30rm R
— aprlgtls i LA OMAYATD e T AP RAUTO R FRIDAY,BAM-GPM D
MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES FRIDAY SAM-6PM s e ONCAv 70| ZPRTICKETMONDAYTO!  MOTORCYGLE AT ALL TIMES,
2 HR TICKET, MONDAY,TO | FRIDAY, 8AM-6PM IDAY, SAM-6PHM @ o
2 HR TICKET MONDAY. TO 11':12)5“"@ ATALL L Eo [DAY, BAM6PM. Y 3 MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM LOADING MONDAY,TO FRIDAY
15 MIN PARKING MONDAY.TO NOSTOPPING AT/ALL JERLOADING ATALDTIMES o O 3] SAM 6PM SATURDAY
SATURDAY, BAM-671M 5 2 HR TICKET MONDAY. TO. i e SAM-NOY 2 HR PARKING MONDAY. TO |
® g LOADING AT ALL TIMES | FRIDAY 8AM-6PM —— I FRIDAY, BAM-6PM SATURDAY.
MAIL VAN AT ALL TIMES, a | { { gBAM-NOON
z — | | | ®, R PARKING MONDAY TO
| | | { FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY
| NO STOPPING  4PM-6PM \ = | NO STOPPING AT "LL SAMCNOON = f
| MONDAY TO FRIDAY. & ‘\
: | 7AM-9AM : - - | =
NO STOPPING MONDAY TO <. | | 114/ LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO 7 i
FRIDAY 7AM-9AM MONDAY. TO NO STOPPING || 4PM-6PM | | BAM-6PM SATURDAY. FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY
L FRIDAY 4PLEPIY MONDAY TO FRIDAY. | SANNODN  GAHIOON
& 7AM-9AM :
2 C i L O STOPPING AT ALL
_ LOADING MONDAY-TO FRIDAY e el ¥ ‘ - TIMES 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY. SAMA4PM SATURDAY 4 i o= ®
JAM-4PM SATURDAY, BAM-NOON : |
SAMNOON °

r | NO STOPPING AT ALL
g LORCYCLE AT ALLTINES o PARKING HONDAY TO TIMES

NO STOPPING AT ALI: =

2 HR PARKING SATURDAY.

FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY 'O srospmg UL

| 7 8AM-NOON MONDAY TO — [ °
- — P] AT,
LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY. 2 A A Ot N STOPPING AT AL FRPAYBAIEEPM | 5 1R PARKING MONDAY.TO = 00 OPPING ATAALL
BAM-SPM | BICYCLE LANE AT ALL . @ TIMES FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY
, TIMES ® ® S MONDAY,TO, FRIDAY, SAM-NOON
*; LOADING MONDAY,TO FRIDAY; 8AM-SPM SATURDAY) | | -

LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY. 36 ® @)

samspul () NO_PARKING MONBAY TO. . NO PARKING MONDAY TO SAM-SPM SATURDAY. SAM-NOON P

DAY FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SAM-NOON LOADING MONDAY.TO FRIDAY
2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO . BAM- =
2 3PM-6PM R |
~ FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY ® 3 | -
¥ z | | 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO.
7 < = | FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY. !
! SAM-NOON
NO STOPPING MONDAY TO' |\ @ = |
FRIDAY, 7AM-9AM e 3 = =
LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY. 4PM-GPM e e 2 HR PARKING SATURDAY
SAM-4PM SATURDAY. 1) AMNOON MONDAY TO
BAM-NOON.

NO STOPPING AT ALL
TIMES

NO STOPPING AT ALL

3 HR TICKET, MONDAY,TOJ T 7
FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAV. MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
o)

2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY BAM-6PM

HR TICKET, MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY BAM-6PM__

TIM ) LOADING MONDAY, TO’FR!DAV A naer sowaro
S 1 9.2 %2 HR DISABI.ED AT ALL FRIDAY, 8AM-6PM SATURDAY. o
= ® @ 2 HR TICKET MONDAY TO AM-6PM BAM-NOON
) FRIDAY BAM-6°M
2 HR TICKET, MONDAY.TO

FRIDAY, 8AM-6PM

Chnstlan Brothers Colleg
AKERLELD-S:

2 HR TICKET MONDAY.TO 2 HR TICKET MONDAY,TO

FRIDAY,BAM-6PM

MOTORCYCLE AT AL TIMES =
No PARKING AT ALLTINESD) @No sroppms AT AL

2 HR TICKET MONDAY TO

| 1 HR PARKING MONDAY TO.
FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY

1 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO
5 FRIDAY BAM-GPM SATURDAY
BAM

¥ L
e, AT TRy B, PROABARGN © B LR PARKING HORDAYTO,
LOADING MONDAY.TO FRIDAY -TIMES FRIDAY SAM.6PM ® s @, iR TICKET MONE?AV 10 NO STOPPING AT ALL 1 HR PARKING MONDAY TO -
.52:—:%3 it @15 1IN PARKING MONDAY,TO (AL ead L SATURDAY SRHANGON
@ © FRIDAY-0AM-5:30PM >
MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES = SATURDAY SAM-NOON
; NO STOPPING AT ALL" | i ] . " p . :
7.\ e w ‘ Parking Control Points [E] Bus & Motorcycle ® Permit @ Unrestricted
&S NO STOPPING AT ALL | B . 9 s s
s TS wes : | ® Area Parking El Disabled ® NoParking ® Residential @ Visitor
FRIDAY 4PM-GPM ¥ £ : i
0 5% £ ooy ® Area Ticket e Loading ® No Stopping = Taxi A Work Zone
BAM-NOON 4 P i ; -
@ : . : # Bicycle e MailVan e Parking ®  Ticket

Figure 2.7

On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas at the CBC Senior Campus

The types of on-street timed parking in Wakefield Street and Daly Street are shown in Figure 2.8

Angle timed parking in Wakefield Street in front
of the CBC Senior Campus main entrance

Parallel Timed parking in Daly Street in the 25
km/h school zone

Figure 2.8 Types of Timed Parking Spaces near the CBC Senior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 145

10



Kiss and Drop activity occurs at the front entrance on Wakefield Street, however this is an informal area
for quick vehicle movements due to the angled parking arrangement. The total capacity for vehicles in
this area is 30 carparks. Kiss and Drop spaces in Wakefield Street are shown in Figure 2.9.

Informal Kiss and Drop area in Wakefield Street Informal Kiss and Drop off area in Wakefield
looking east from Frome Street Street looking west from Daly Street

Figure 2.9 Kiss and Drop Area in Wakefield Street at the CBC Senior Campus

The school has a formal Kiss and Drop are in Ifould Street in the undercover parking section next to the
private bus stop. Approximately 5 cars can be parked in this bay at any time and vehicles are restricted
to 10 minutes of loading. A bus loading zone for special coach tours and sporting events is provided in
Ifould Street as shown in Figure 2.10.

The short term parking is used for Kiss and Drop  Grant’s Coachlines bus waiting in the underpass
activity in Ifould Street west of Daly Street. area in Ifould Street in the bus only zone.

Figure 2.10 Short Term Parking and Loading Area at the CBC Senior Campus in Ifould Street

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 11

Page 146



2.4.4

Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the focus of the bus, tram and train network with the walkable access from the CBD

Senior Campus with convenient walk access to public transport services at:

e Bus stops in Pulteney Street, North Terrace, Grenfell Street and Bartels Road with bus services from
the O-Bahn and the East-West bus routes.

e Tram services on the Glenelg to Adelaide Entertainment Centre tram line with the closest stop at
Victoria Square which is a 10-minute walk to the CBC Senior Campus.

e All trains in the Adelaide network at Adelaide Railway Station in North Terrace which 20-minute walk
to CBC Senior Campus.

The walk distances to the closest bus, tram and train services from the CBC Senior Campus with the
routes are provided in Table 2.6.

Table 2.6

Location

Routes/Lines

Closest Stops/Station

Closest Bus, Tram and Train Services to the CBC Senior Campus

Walk Distance to Closest
Bus or Tram Stop (m)

Wakefield
Street

170, 171, 172,
174, 178, 820,

Stop I1 Wakefield Street -
North side

20 m in front of the school
west of Daly Street

Stop T1 Hutt Street - West side

821, 822 Stop R1 Wakefield Street - 75 m east of Caldwell Street
South side
Hutt Street 147, 98, 99 Stop F1 Hutt Street — East side | 100 m east along Wakefield

Street

Pulteney Street

861, 864, T840

Stops E1, U1l

150 m west along Wakefield
Street

Grenfell Street

0O-Bahn and East-
West routes

Stops H1, H2, S1, I1, R1

200 to 400 m north along
Frome Street or Hutt Street

Victoria Square

Glenelg tram,
North-South
routes

Victoria Square tram stop
Bus stops G2, T1, V1, U2

800 m west along Wakefield
Street

Adelaide
Railway Station

All train lines

North Terrace west of King
William Road

600 m via the CBD streets
and Rundle Mall

The closest bus stops to the CBC Senior Campus are Stop I1 and R1 as shown in Figure 2.11.

Figure 2.11

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Bus Stop I1 on the northside of Wakefield Street
next to CBD Senior Campus west of Daly Street

Bus Stops in Wakefield Street at the CBC Senior Campus

Page 147

Bus Stop R1 on the southside of Wakefield Street
east of Caldwell Street

12




P

The bus stops that are within a 400 to 600 m walk distance to the CBC Senior Campus are shown in
Figure 2.12 .

w

-

1S ueg
1S uoluf

wne
s
00 © Grenfell St »
(R]
H2 Grenfell St Grenfell St 11 Grenfell St
63 GreArensell St =

R1 Grenfell St
T ST Grenfell St %
3 Bl ® Tam-O-shanter P! &
3 o Pl g’ 0&
2 W2PutensySt Bz a 2 ,)&
@ = > 7
A = I g z %
% d g g 3 > (R
5 D2 @Iteney St = o b Bartels Rd
s = 1 Bartels Rd
4 Pirie St pirie St & x @
Pirie St & "~ 3 1 Bartels Rd
3 2 s
% P aion Ave ) 'VS1tHu t St |
e
Sudholz Pl 2 Tuc! (=) ‘_»vz
pawkins P! g 5
2 o
- (2]
» X o
al [
E1 Pulteney St s =
Flinders St Flinders St )
Flinders St = g
- =<
2 : z
- ®
) 2
” (&)
U1 Pultefidy Sto1d St . Nil St
" ) Chrl?n B 0
e
rothers Colleg _
8 Wakefield St
© © WakefieldiSHakeedS)
: )Wk
Wakefield St Wakeﬁuwake‘%S1 - - \Ea Reficld St @
by e S1 Wakefield St g = T1 Halt St z
T1 Wakefield St E 2 » = 2 g Albert La
3 E} Treasury Ln 0 2 @ ~
E 7 Old Tr a - [
2 ~
Figure 2.12 Public Transport Bus Stops close to the CBC Senior Campus
240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 13

Page 148



2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.13. Wakefield Street has an on-road bicycle
lane on both sides of the road. Sealed shared paths exist throughout the Adelaide Park Lands. The
Frome Street Bikeway that is about 100 m west of the school provides a north-south separated route.

Bikedirect
Adelaide CBD

Primary School
| N

shmond KESW‘CK \

Legend

Bike Network mnn Off Road Track ®  Pedestrian Signal Water Body

s e Bowd - Broe L ane: 0 Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use

s Main Road . ) Educational Land
L © Bike Shop (2024) Rail/Tram Stop Bl Ecucational Lan

-= = Secondary Road - Bike Lane Distance to GPO Retail / Commercial

— S dary Road G S
R O Public Hospital 50m Contour R

—==— Off Road Sealed Path : : Built-Up Residential

®  Traffic Light Major Creek

Figure 2.13 Cycling Network to the CBC Senior Campus

The secure bicycle storage area is accessed from Ifould Street with one fixed rack for several bicycles as
shown in Figure 2.14. On Thursday 13 June 2024, only four students were using the facility. The CBC
administration does not consider cycling an important transport mode for the students with the longer
travel distances and the city streets that have busy traffic and insufficient separated bicycle
infrastructure.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 14

Page 149



Bicycles parked on the secure area on Thursday Bicycles in the secure parking area with access
13 June 2024. from Ifould Street

Figure 2.14 Bicycle Storage Area at the CBC Senior Campus in Ifould Street
2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops in Wakefield Street, Hutt Street and Pulteney
Street. The footpath network along Frome Street, Wakefield Street and Hutt Street is thoroughly used
by students in both the AM and PM periods.

The high school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD. Students walking to
the CBC Senior Campus have two signalised intersections with pedestrian crossings at the school and a
pedestrian refuge is provided in the midblock location of Wakefield Street. Pedestrian access routes to
the CBC Senior Campus are via sealed footpaths exist along on both sides of Wakefield Street, Daly
Street and Frome Street.

The 1 km, 1.5 km and 2 km walkable access catchment areas to CBC (Senior Campus) that were
calculated using the footpath network are shown in Figure 2.15. Students who walk their entire trip to
school are likely walking from the Adelaide CBD, coming from the nearby bus stops or the tram line with
the closest stop at Victoria Square or Adelaide railway station.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 15

Page 150



Ning
T
v'\'oi‘/““""\

<) %
%13 )
RS HACKNEY
z23z
z % \"“
P %
3l e 3'2 %,
gl iz z\S T
E|RE] o\z e
SRz
ol 12
—a 1A F
= vi 72
3 e \ Tz
313 z 23
s 2
‘\3 ‘ ﬂ Zi
i
ﬁ \ ") BEULAHROAD 2
2 ES
g ° S
z T |
8 & £ i al
E
10! =z 2
So% 2
22 = 3
33 5 A
" \— H m
Bl 7ie PARADE ) [  THE PARADE
B‘ R -

HINDLEY STREET NORW

1515V
%
avou NOL¥YIINd

%RRIE!STR‘E’E‘I’
o %

1}
A
Bl
2!
=
@
o
El
S
bl
%
==
P
it
EPIALES
!Lc
Z
4
%,

c D
2 7 EASTITERRA X 1 STREET
g L g 2 2, WILLIA
T  quare \WAYMOUTH STREE £AS )
TREET.
~ FRANKLINS
5
b -
3 GROTE STREETEGROTE sTREETg é “""S'"Gm" QL%--E
=) ) ] ar

¢

“
4
El
GOUGER STREET E

]
o}

ESLLLEL
VINOLIIA

% 3
= o
3 E
2 3
™ =z
8
S
WRIGHT STREET o@,\ —
{\’?‘\& ALEXANDRAlNENUE
(5) sTURT STREET db}i’ GRANRTYE.QS =8
U" Yo =0 2
= e CHed g
3 GILBERT STREET °m 1
£ e = T
O wesT ray 2% \ a?
¥ L DULWICHTAVENUE
& ; ——
&/ AN & & .
=} o
@ T i
S 9 |
& =
&

DULWICH
=

INNIAY
FELELRIL
3nNIAY ANVIED

=
W Han0d Simat ¥l

[E

)is =
E \
3
é 5 \ - EASTWOOD ‘E‘
3 2 o l‘ 5 ‘l £
. E 2 3 GLENSIDE
Legend % gg YOUNG STREET " YOUNG STREET o l%
2 z -l 3
= " 2 E 12
EJJ p—— o Lkm Walking B ll=§ : oo \
o
o Bus Stops Catchment |ES STREET é =] e I
School Crossings 1.5km Walking ——————Tw | o ke
|——— Railways Catchment ot “ 5 5 U201 rRewvie
UNLEY 2
% School Entrance 2km Walking " EREDERICK STREET \ z ~ q
i Catch | WiLKINSON ROAD -
/@ Christian ment THUR STREET OA GoxrorD \ Z ouvE STREET ~ g
2 - % [RTERRACE 2 z 1
o Brothers Eallege O r;dES.tl’lan | & ':; FLORENCE STREET
o 0SSl 2
= = o s, D 2
a9 4 ] z
V\(Tg‘A STRE E £l m %
= - ————
S= 2
E FUERARTO!
HYDE PARK | MALVERN % ‘l WATTLE STREET N
L PARK STREET o P s =
,& E?‘ | ER
S

Figure 2.15

Walk
able Access Catchment to the CBC Senior Cam
pus

240706 Christian B
rother: - i
s College - Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Revi
eview - Draft Report

Page 151 16




3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with the school Head of House on Monday 23 May 2024. The issues that affect

student safety for travelling to school are provided as follows:

e The bus stop R1 on the south side of Wakefield Street is very popular with students in the PM period
for the buses heading to Victoria Square to the tram stop, the more frequent bus routes and to

Adelaide railway station. It is a high risk for students who walk midblock across Wakefield Street with
no formal crossing and a wide median.

e The buses at Stop R1 in Wakefield Street east of Daly Street are often full very crowded.

o Wakefield Street is 50 km/h between Frome Street and East Terrace which is the current default
speed in Adelaide CBD. A slower speed would be welcome.

e Implement flashing lights in Wakefield Street to alert motorists about a school zone. Many motorists
are not aware that CBC exists in the street.

e Similar to the Junior Campus, Wakefield Street should have a slower speed limit during school drop-off
and pick-up periods. Say 40 km/h.

e Consider a 25 km/h school zone in Wakefield Street with a flashing lights crossing in front of the
school to encourage students to avoid jay-walking over Wakefield Street.

e The intersection of Ifould Street/Frome Street is a pedestrian hazard with many students crossing
Frome Street midblock and for cyclists using the Frome bikeway.

e The intersection of Wakefield Street/Frome Street is a dangerous corner for cyclists with a blind spot
on the southwest corner and motorists not seeing cyclists when making a left turn from Frome Street
into Wakefield Street to head east.

e Very few students would likely bicycle to school due to the long distances and the busy city streets are
considered dangerous for cycling. The school has some bicycle secure parking in Ifould Street.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the the CBC Junior Campus were
observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on Thursday 13 June
2024.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during the AM arrival
period from 8:00 am to 9:00 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the 60
minutes before the school start time, with the peak activity of arrivals between 8:15 am and 8:30 am.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 17

Page 152



2P parking in Wakefield Street at the main 2P parking on both sides of Daly Street in the
entrance to the college school zone

Figure 3.1 AM Peak Conditions at the CBC Senior Campus
Other findings from the AM observations are:

e Car parking was generally available across the peak hour in Wakefield Street with mostly Kiss and
Drop activities at the front entrance. Vehicles typically stayed for less than two minutes.

Kiss and drop activity did not occur regularly on Daly Street, Ifould Street or Frome Street due to the
continuous use of carparking by vehicles already in the area.

¢ A significant option of students arrived from the north of the site and entered the gates at Ifould
Street. They were travelling from various public transport stops to the north of the school.

e U-turn movements within the gap in the central median on Wakefield Street were common.

e Pedestrians were likely to walk across Ifould Street to enter the school.
3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during PM departure
period from 2:45 pm to 3:30 pm. The PM period departure profile included many vehicles within a 20-
minute period after the school bell. Vehicles occupied most of the carparking spaces in front of the
school in the 15-minute lead up to the school bell, with these vehicles typically moving on quickly.

» ;’%

Parents waiting for the bell time near the Vehicle making a U-turn in median of Wakefield
Wakefield Street school entrance Street to park in front of the school entrance

Figure 3.2 PM Peak Conditions at the CBC Senior Campus

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 18

Page 153



Other findings from the PM observations are:

e Carparking was generally available across the peak hour in Wakefield Street and was the main area
for kiss and drop activities due to its proximity to the front entrance. Vehicles typically stayed for less
than 2 minutes.

e Kiss and drop activity did not occur regularly on Daly Street, Ifould Street or Frome Street due to the
continuous use of carparking by vehicles already in the area.

- Approximately 10 vehicles used the undercover section in Ifould Street to pick up students.
e A significant potion of students exited from the north of the school onto Ifould Street
e Pedestrians were likely to cross at a midblock location in Ifould Street to exit the school.

e The buses at stop R1 are often full and results in very crowded services to the CBD. Most students

boarding at stop R1 with very few boarding the outbound buses at stop I1 on the northside west of
Daly Street.

e U-turn movements within the gap in the central median on Wakefield Street were common.

e Students travelling to the southern side of Wakefield Street often walked across the central median
and did not use the pedestrian refuge in Wakefield Street east of Daly Street.

Pedestrians were observed crossing Wakefield Many students crossed Wakefield Street to the
Street at the midblock west of Daly Street buses at stop R1 east of Caldwell Street
Figure 3.3 PM Peak Safety Issues in Gover Street at the CBC Senior Campus

Some students were observed walking to board buses at Stop R1 in Wakefield Street where a school
supervisor monitoring the boarding activity. A significant number of students walked north along Frome
Street to either catch the bus on either Pulteney Street or further north in Grenfell Street.

3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

The key issues for students and parents access the school are:

e U-turn movements within the gap in the central median on Wakefield Street were common.
Pedestrians were likely to walk across Ifould Street and Wakefield Street in the AM and PM periods.
The buses at stop R1 are often full and results in very packed trips to the city centre.

Angled parking at the school entrance on Wakefield Entrance caused issues with sight distance for
vehicles leaving the carparking area.

Vehicles are travelling at speeds on Wakefield Street not typically associated with school zones.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 19

Page 154



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment
4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students at the school were developed under three categories,
namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.
e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.
o Safety promotions to increase awareness of the school with warning signage or information.

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for the CBC Junior Campus
Type of Option Description Issue Addressed
Infrastructure Fill in the gap within the central U-turn movements within the gap in the
Treatments median in front of the Wakefield central median on Wakefield Street were
Street school entrance. common.
Rearrange the car spaces in Angled parking at the school entrance on
Wakefield Street with a parallel Wakefield Entrance caused issues with

parking to provide a formal 2-minute | sight distance for vehicles leaving the
Kiss and Drop zone near the entrance | carparking area
to the formal student entrance.

Investigate options for safer During the school drop-off and pick-up
pedestrian movements by parents periods, parents and students who were
and students in Wakefield Street crossing Wakefield Street often walked in
opposite the student entrance the midblock sections that did not
immediately. This could include such include the pedestrian refuge east of the
treatments as a formalised PAC. school.

Consider altering the priority for road | Pedestrians were likely to walk across
users and pedestrians in the western Ifould Street in the AM and PM periods to

section of Ifould Street (in front of access the school gates. This occurred
the northern school entrance). This often during the vehicle pick up in the PM
could include new line marking or period.

pavement material to increase the
awareness of drivers that they are
entering a shared use environment.

Operational Consider changing the posted speed Vehicles are travelling at speeds on
Efficiencies in Wakefield Street between Frome Wakefield Street not typically associated
Street and East Terrace from 50 km/h | with school zones.

to a slower speed limit eg. 40 km/h.
This would extend to East Terrace to
provide a continuous environment
across the Senior and Junior
campuses.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 20

Page 155



Type of Option

Safety
Promotions

Description

Prepare a consolidated travel access
guide for students and parents that
would be promoted on the school
website in location that is easy to
find, in additional to the school
newsletter.

Issue Addressed

Students and parents may not be aware
of their travel choices for bicycle routes,
facilities at the school or public transport
services.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 156

21



g

4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives are shown on Figure 4.1. They include:

e Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Wakefield Street
opposite the student entrance such as a PAC or pedestrian refuge at the midblock location where the
existing gap in the median is located at the main entrance for students to the college.

e Fill in the gap in the Wakefield Street central median to stop U-turn manoeuvres.

e Rearrange the car spaces in Wakefield Street with a parallel parking to provide a formal 2-minute Kiss
and Drop zone near the student entrance.

e New infrastructure on Ifould Street to change the priority of the street to a pedestrian friendly
arrangement.

e Reducing the speed limit on Wakefield Street from 50km/h to 40km/h between Frome Street and East
Terrace.

X
c
—
i~
v
—~
~
@
@
—

Legend
D Fillin gap in central median O Existing Pedestrian Refuge
D Rearrangement of parking alignment 0 Priority change to shared zone
1 New pedestrian crossing opportunities . Posted speed reduction
Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at the CBC Junior Campus
240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 22

Page 157



4.2.1 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Wakefield Street

In order to improve the pedestrian crossing safety to the school entrance in Wakefield Street, several

options are provided for further consideration. These options are provided with the advantages and
disadvantages in Table 4.2. They require further site observations, data collection for pedestrian
volumes crossings during the AM and PM school peak hours and a more detailed assessment.

Table 4.2 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Wakefield Street
Option Description Advantages Disadvantages
ID
A Install a PAC in Wakefield Significantly improves Costly up to $500,000 to
Street between the school safety for pedestrians move and reinstate on
entrance and Daly Street. crossing Wakefield Street street parking in front of
with one crossing located main entrance to the
where most pedestrians school.
want to cross with the Removal of car parking
main entrance for students | spaces on both sides of
into the college. Wakefield Street.
Does not conflict with the
Stop I1 west of Daly Street
B Install a second pedestrian Allows for safe storage for | Pedestrians are still
refuge in Wakefield Street pedestrians on the already | required to cross two
between Frome Street and popular crossing point with | traffic lanes on either side
Daly Street. the main entrance for of Wakefield Street. Issues
students into the college. with sight distance from
Less costly than the PAC parked cars may also
option. Under $50,000. obscure pedestrians.
Does not conflict with the
Stop I1 west of Daly Street
C Fill in the midblock median Lowest cost option under May divert traffic to use
gap in Wakefield Street $5,000 Frome Street to turn into
Does not conflict with the the northside parking
Stop I1 west of Daly Street | spaces in front of the
school.
4.2.2 Information to Promote Safer Student Travel to the School

The school provides limited information to promote safer student travel to school. Examples of the types

of information brochures, known as school Travel Access Guides in NSW, are provided for a primary
school in Appendix C. The Travel Access Guide is prepared with a consistent template for all

government schools in NSW in collaboration with the school principals and a school travel coordinator.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 158




4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.3. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

. T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

. P for Parking control with new signage or to pavement markings for the on-street parking or a
school zone.

. I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.

Table 4.3 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options for CBC Senior Campus
Option Description Indicative Comments
ID Cost Estimate
T1 Remove the gap within the central Up to $50,000 | Council to prepare evidence
median in front of the Wakefield to support the warrant for a
Street school entrance. koala crossing and liaise with

DIT for the approval

T2 Investigate options for safer Between Council to prepare evidence
pedestrian movements by parents and | $50,000 and to support the warrant for a
students in Wakefield Street opposite $500,000 koala crossing and liaise with
the student entrance immediately. DIT for the approval to install
This could include such treatments as a koala crossing.

a formalised PAC or a pedestrian Council responsible for the
refuge. design and installation if
approved.

Requires additional data
collection, site observations
and further analysis to
determine a preferred option

T3 Consider altering the priority for road Up to Council to review the traffic
users and pedestrians in the western $250,000 movements in Ifould Street.
section of Ifould Street in front of the
northern school entrance. This could
include new line marking or pavement
material to increase the awareness of
drivers that they are entering a shared
use road environment.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 159

24



Description

Indicative
Cost Estimate

Comments

T4 Consider changing the posted speed in | Less than The speed limits are under
Wakefield Street between Frome $1,000 the control of DIT. DIT to be
Street and East Terrace from 50 km/h consulted on any proposed
to a slower speed limit such as 40 changes to speed limits.
km/h. This would extend to East
Terrace to provide a continuous road
environment across the Senior and
Junior campuses.

P1 Rearrange the car spaces in Wakefield | Less than The parking controls in front
Street with a parallel parking to $20,000 of the former fire station are
provide a formal 2-minute Kiss and under the control of DIT.
Drop zone near the entrance to the
formal student entrance

I1 Prepare a consolidated travel access No cost to This would be prepared and
guide for students and parents that Council promoted by the school

would be promoted on the school
website in location that is easy to find,
in additional to the school newsletter.

administration.

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 160

25



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads, Sydney,
2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October 2023,
Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code of
Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3 Drop
off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 26

Page 161



\

9

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF
ADELAIDE
School Travel Survey for Students
School: Christian Brothers College

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a sunvey fo determine the main modes of travel for students o
understand the travel behawviour to the schoal. Please assist us by vndertaking a short stedent swnvey during the
first period class.
Questions for the Teacher

Date |day/month/year):

Weather |Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
students are absent today in your class?

How ma

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group

Please ask the students with & hands-up' sunvey in the classroom.
AM Period Travel

How did you travel to schood this morming? (If yow travelled by more than one mods, please answer with the longest
parnt of your journey - e.g. "car” for “car and scooter”.)
Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period
Car (as driver)
Car (as passenger with drop-off)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train

Mumber of Students

Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

PM Period Travel
How will you trave! from schood this afternoon ? (I yow will travel by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your fourney - e g, "car” for "car and scooter”. )
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Mumber of Students
Car (as driver)
Car [as passenger with pick-up)
Walk fior the entire trip
Bus
Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter
If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)
Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter
Public Transport (bus, tram or train)

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 162



g

Appendix B — CBC Senior Campus Parking Information

CHRISTIAN
BROTHERS

Senior Garmpus
Parking Map

Welcome to
Christian Brothers College

Most car parking around the college are

1-2 hour ticketed bays with extended
times for weekends. Please note parking

availability varies depending on certain
times of the day with some car parks P

unavailable during peak hour periods.

There are also a number of local parking

facilities nearby and a free Park Adelaide
App is available from Adelaide City Council.

A

Park Adelaide

Adelaide City Council

Park Adelaide App

Find Car Parks Easily
Free download in the App store

Frome Street

Hutt Street

240706 Christian Brothers College - Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 163



Appendix C — School Travel Access Guide in NSW

| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

" o

05 : 3 I.I{. . 3 u’

Marsden High School

Travel Access Guide Effective: January 2023
Introduction Kiss and drop expectations

Our school community of parents/carers, staff and = For parents/carers who drive their child/ren to
students live within a reasonable walk, cycle or bus school, the kiss and drop zone is located along
trip of the school. This Travel Access Guide provides Rhodes Street starting from Hermitage Road.

suggested safe and accessible options for travelling

= This space is a ‘No Parking' zone, meaning that
to and from school.

you may stop for up to a maximum of 2 minutes

& and move no more than 3 metres from the
Active ways to get to school n Ly

Walking to and from school —e
Message from our principals

* Walking is a fun way to keep active and s o
;e_.lﬁ SSATIIIEY ' = Marsden High School supports sustainable and
al 5 x 3
¥ environmentally friendly transport practices.
= Stay alert and watch out for any potential « We strongly encourage our school community
hazards, including cars reversing out of to walk or ride to school either independently or
driveways, bikes and other pedestrians. with parental supervision

s Remember to STOP, LOOK, LISTEN and

THINK every time you cross the road ”
School bell times

e Ride your bike Start Times End Times

= 278 bike racks are available for everyone 900 am 2:00 pm

= All bicycle riders are required by law
to wear a correctly fitted Australian
standards approved helmet and is highly
recommended when riding a scooter.

*  Children under the age of 16 are allowed
to cycle on the footpath, keeping them
safer and more protected from road
traffic

For more information contact:

School Infrastructure NSW
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det.nsw.edu.au
Phone: 1300 482 651
www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.gov.au GOVERNMENT
e 9%
®
s ™

240706 Christian Brothers College — Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 164



| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

KISS AND DROP ACCESS

Meadowbank Public
school entrance - main

Meadowbank Public
school entrance - cycling

MEADOWBANK
SCHOOLS

Marsden High school
entrance - main

Marsden High school
entrance - cycling

Bus zone

Q0 ° 06 <

e Train line
Safe crossing zone

Safety tips for drivers using the Kiss and Drop zone

= Always drop off or pick up your child from the designated zone and follow the school's
procedures.

= Drivers should remain in their vehicles at all times in the Kiss and Drop zone.

»  Make sure children use the Safety Door (the rear footpath side door) to get in and out of the car.

= Always park legally.

=  U-turns and three-point turns are banned at all times in Bhodes Street in front of the school.

Safety tips for students

= Always get in and out of the vehicle through the Safety Door, the rear footpath-side door.
»  Stay buckled up until the vehicle has stopped in the Kiss and Drop area.

» Make sure your school bag and other items are in a safe position, such as on the floor.

» Be ready to get out of the vehicle with your belongings when the car has stopped and you
have unbuckled your seatbelt

School
Drop-off
Plek-up
ZOME

®|

Kids and Traffic Safety
Door sticker
RTA45091021K

For more information contact:

School Infrastructure NSW

Email: schoolinfrastructure@det.nsw.edu.au
Phone: 1300 482 651
www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.gov.au

Page 165



| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Walking Route

WALK ROUTE TO MEADOWBANK TRAIN STATION AND BUS

Meadowbank
Schools

TAFE NSW -
Meadowbank

Legend
-€9 - Walking Route

& Train Station
( Bus Stop

B Traffic Signals
|| Safe Crossing Point

J

For more information contact:

School Infrastructure NSW v
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det.nsw.edu.au UL
Phone: 1300 482 651 Nsw
www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.gov.au GOVERNMENT
L ]
L ]
® a

240706 Christian Brothers College - Senior Campus | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 166




Attachment E

GILLES s
AR Y SO

Gilles Street Primary School
School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491

10 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkm?

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 167



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report Kaitlin Neave | John Devney | John Devney | 10 June 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 168




Contents

Project: Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] 5 YT o T 3 T ]
(] Lo X T oV o X = 0 ii
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 S oW Ta 1T oL ol I =171 B B T=T o =1 o T P 2
2.4 LI L85 50T oY 00T 2
3 Issues and OpPortUNitieS . iciiciieiiiiiiicririe i i s s s s s s s r s raara e srasr s rnaranrnnrannnnnnnn 8
3.1 1 o=1 (=] aTo] o L=t gl 1 = ol U =T~} o 1= PP 8
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T V2= o[ I PP 9
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrtUNITIES ......civiiieii e 10
4 Travel Safety Options and ASSeSSMENt .....cuveverimrrimrrnmrasier s s s s n s an s nn s nnmsnnnnss 11
4.1 (@0 o g FJ B TRV Z= o] ] 0.0 1T o | 11
4.2 Indicative Cost EStimates ... .o 12
L £ = =T 1= o o 13

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 169



Tables

Table 4.1 Travel Safety Options for Gilles Street Primary School.......cccciciiiiriirnirsn s s s s s snnnass 11
Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Gilles Street Primary School......... 12
Figures

Figure 1.1 Gilles Street Primary School LOcation ........cccveiiieieimieiemmmmamsns s s s s s s nas s sasn s snsnsnsnnn 2
Figure 1.2 Entrance and Pedestrian Crossing for Gilles Street Primary School .......c.ccccicimiiiiieinirneinnnna, 2
Figure 2.1 Gilles Street Primary School Student Residence Location Analysis ......cccuieimimmmnannanananansnnnnnnnnn 3
Figure 2.2 Gilles Street Primary School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024 ........c.cocvermnnnsnnnnns 2
Figure 2.3 Gilles Street at Gilles Street Primary SchoOl ......c.ciciereraimmmmmmarrarsrsrsmsmsnmssssssssssasasasasasasassssnsnsnsnnns 2
Figure 2.4 Crash History near Pulteney Grammar SChoOOl.....c.cucrarararansrararrsrsrsnsnsnsssssssssasasasasasasasassssnsnsnnnnns 3
Figure 2.5 On-street Parking for Gilles Street Primary SChool .......ccciererrrrrinimimissssemesasamasasasasassnsasansnnnns 4
Figure 2.6 Kiss and Drop Zone and Extended School Zone in Gilles Street..........cocvvmimrmrererarerararararasassnsnns 4
Figure 2.7 Public Transport Services to Pulteney Grammar School ........cicrerrmnrinininssiemssasasarasasassssssssnsnsnns 5
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to Gilles Street Primary SChooOl.....c.cicirrrrrrrsmsmsmsssnsssssssssasasasasasasasasssnsnsnnns 6
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to Gilles Street Primary School...........cccciiimiineiinnnsnsnsnsnssnnnnnnn. 7
Figure 3.1 Two Staff Carparks at Gilles Street Primary SChoOl.......ciciiririrmirnmiriiiiirrsir s 8
Figure 3.2 Passenger Vehicles in the Bus Zone in Gilles Street......c.ciciiririririiiiiiiiii s 9
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B — School Travel Access Guide in NSW

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 170



Executive Summary

Overview

Gilles Street Primary School is a public school that comprises Reception to Year 6. The Gilles Street
Primary School does not have an enrolment zone and therefore students can attend from anywhere in
metropolitan Adelaide. The school enrolment in 2024 is for 301 students with 157 students in Reception
to Year 3 and 143 students in Years 4 to 6.

Key Findings

Over 64 per cent of the students live in the City of Adelaide which is convenient for walking and cycling
modes. 93 students or 31 per cent of the students live in the inner suburbs of metropolitan Adelaide
with access to public transport. Only 14 students live in the outer suburbs.

The findings from the student travel mode share surveys are summarised as follows:

e About 33 per cent walk to school and over seven per cent cycle to school. Those that walk or cycle
in the morning are likely to travel the same way in the afternoon.

e About 17 per cent of the students travel via public transport.

e The remaining 43 per cent of students are driven to school by car with similar percentage between
the AM arrival and PM departure periods.

The traffic safety issues that mostly are for the City of Adelaide to address are:
e Reviewing the pedestrian wait time at the signalised crossing on Gilles Street.

e Enforcing 25 km/hr speed limit during school peak hours.

Install flashing signs to enhance the school zone awareness.

e Enforcing the parking behaviour over the bus bay in front of the school in Gilles Street.

Key Recommendations

The school travel safety options that are recommended for the City of Adelaide in consultation with the
school are:

e Install flashing lights with the existing school zone signs in Gilles Street.

e Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing in Gilles Street at Pulteney Street and improve the
pedestrian green light waiting time during school peak hours.

e Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted on the
school website in location that is easy to find, in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 171



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 172



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background
The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
e Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
e The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a “hands up” travel survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss
and Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:
- Existing pick up and drop off areas.
- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.
- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 173



1.3 School Location

Gilles Street Primary School is located on Gilles Street, to the west of Pulteney Street in the southern
part of Adelaide city centre. The school is positioned on Gilles Street and immediately east of Pulteney
Grammar School. The school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

§ = ..' '-Ei 7?‘;"\‘

1.
-t

Figure 1.1 Gilles Street Primary School Location

The entrance to Gillies Street Primary School and PAC at the school entrance in Gilles Street are shown
in Figure 1.2.

Main student entrance in Gilles Street PAC at the school entrance in Gilles Street

Figure 1.2 Entrance and Pedestrian Crossing for Gilles Street Primary School

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 174



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

Gilles Street Primary School is a public school that was first established in 1900. Students attend classes
from Reception to Year 6. The bell times are 8:55 am to 3:15 pm.

The school operating hours are:
o Before school: 7:00 am to 8:25 am
e After school care: 3:30 pm to 6:15 pm

e Vacation care: 8:00 am to 6 pm

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 was 301 students with a distribution by year as follows:
e 26 students in Reception e 53 students in Year 4

e 28 students in Year 1 e 46 students in Year 5

e 58 students in Year 2 e 45 students in Year 6

e 45 students in Year 3

The Gilles Street Primary School does not have an enrolment zone and therefore students can attend
from anywhere in metropolitan Adelaide. The number of students by sub areas of each suburb are
shown in Figure 2.1. Over 64 per cent of the students live in the City of Adelaide which is convenient for
walking and cycling modes. 93 students or 31 per cent of the students live in the inner suburbs of
metropolitan Adelaide with access to public transport. Only 14 students live in the outer suburbs.

200
180
160
140
120

100

Number of Students

80 93

60

40

20

1 14
0 (R
Adelaide North Adelaide Inner Suburbs Quter Suburbs
Residence Location
Figure 2.1 Gilles Street Primary School Student Residence Location Analysis

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report iii

Page 175



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the Gilles Street Primary School was reviewed through
site observations and a student travel mode survey on typical school days. The student travel mode
survey form is included in Appendix A.

The student travel mode survey was conducted during school days from 29t May to 4t June. The
findings from the surveys were used to confirm the existing transport mode shares for:

e Car (as driver) e Train

e Car (as passenger with drop-off) e Tram

e Walk for the entire trip e Bicycle or e-bike
e Bus e Scooter

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.2. The findings are summarised as follows:

e About 33 per cent walk to school and over seven per cent cycle to school. Those that walk or cycle in
the morning are likely to travel the same way in the afternoon.

e About 17 per cent of the students travel via public transport.

e The remaining 43 per cent of students are driven to school by car with similar percentage between
the AM arrival and PM departure periods.

Public

Public

Bike and

Transport Bike and . Transport
Scooter 9 Scooter 9
7 7% 16.6% 17.6%
2720 7.4%
AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share
Figure 2.2 Gilles Street Primary School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 176



2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network
The school could only be accessed via Gilles Street.

Gilles Street

Gilles Street is a two-way two-lane Collector, aligned in an east-west direction. It is under the
jurisdiction of the City of Adelaide.

Each lane is around 3.6 m to 3.7 m, with concrete central median islands intermittently placed in the
proximity of the school and Pulteney Grammar School.

Sealed footpaths are available on both sides of the road.
A 25 km/hr school zone is in place on Gilles Street for both the school and Pulteney Grammar School.

The road layout in both directions towards Pulteney Grammar School and to Pultney Street is shown in
Figure 2.3.

Gilles Street looking west from the start of the 25 Gilles Street looking east from the school
km/h school zone to Pulteney Grammar School entrance to Pulteney Street

Figure 2.3 Gilles Street at Gilles Street Primary School

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 177



2.4.2 Crash History

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 was sourced from DataSA. Over this five-year

period, the crashes by type are shown in Figure 2.4. The crashes in both Gilles Street and South Terrace
near the school were for one minor injury and one property damage only.

(O— A L 2 o o o E': Pope'!
H 2 - =% ®
2 < 2 g 3
[ - 2 2 %  Halifax St o
3 (9 P
2 B r . Halifax St B I
3 3] Halifax St ' 5 :
fy SoithE 9 3 g 5 E
City South 2] =< D = a ¢
o g = ] 2 H
5 o Florey Pl ¥ |
o
) =
B @
Todd Pl = ‘
Gilll st
- Gl GIHQSQ- 1 o
Gilles St — | = a
i ' Pulteney | Gilﬁtreet ‘ =
' r 7
d st Grammar s@..:o‘l’ A
Hollan g U:‘ Scho ol = B
¢ $ |
= a 9\ @
) o ath T
3 | | hTce T
wn -.2 — — "ul J
South Tce 3
Crashes 2018-2022 2
i % o
3% ?
A 1: PDO
(2] (“/_)
B‘c:z_ %, ©2:M
o £
South Terrace@ =& 2 ©3s
Figure 2.4

Crash History near Pulteney Grammar School

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 178



2.4.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.5.
The frontage of the school is reserved for bus operation during peak hours, while northern side of the
street has 1 hour parking.

S5 XY | AL ke \ ===
: Loﬁ)ING MONDAY TO FRIDAY, " 1'HR PARKING MONDAY TO l LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY
[ BAM-GPM/ | FRIDAY BAM:6PM SATURDAY x T 5AM-5PM =—=2

; , | 8AM-NOON 5= o MOTORC ) O
T AL /1 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO s n 221 OO. e |MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMESE§) @ @
VL FRIDAY BAM'6PM SATURDAYL (@ R GE J ) i
UF 8AMANOON 7S, Wil (G B
| e o , re ; NO STOPPING AT AL ST e
= ———— sy BUS MONDAY,TO FRIDAY/ "/ S50 TIMES s
¢+ = NOPARKING MONDAY.TO _ gaAmM-9AM MONDAY.TO FRIDAY, " LOADING MONDAY.TO F
- FRIDAY;3PM-4PM MONDAY,TO 3 0PMSE3 0PN i ) H o5
i FRIDAY 8AM-9AM ‘ = 2 wl |®
¢ 'NO STOPPIN(
r L | TIME
| b= g |
A | |
/e eyl i & _ %
== ~ NOSTOPPINGATALL | |

e ol | TIMES | ey

...... B T & R o 2 HR'PARKING MONI
e o — FRIDAY. 8AM-6PM SA1
- O p - 8AM-NOON

Figure 2.5 On-street Parking for Gilles Street Primary School

The Kiss and Drop zone for Gilles Street Primary School and the extended school zone in Gilles Street
for both the primary school and Pulteney Grammar School are shown in Figure 2.6.

) SAFETY ZONE
@l OROPOFFORPICK UP ONLY 1o

S ONLy |
B g g,
3pm . 4
B pm

Parking restrictions apply near the Child Safety Start of the 25 km/h school zone in Gilles Street
Zone in Gilles Street

Figure 2.6 Kiss and Drop Zone and Extended School Zone in Gilles Street

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report iv

Page 179



2.4.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the hub for the public transport in Adelaide with train, tram and bus services for
students to travel to the school. The available public transport facilities within the walkable access from
Pulteney Grammar School are bus stops on King Williams Street and Pulteney Street, and tramline on

King William Street. The closest bus and tram stops that are within a 400 m walk distance to Gilles
Street Primary School are shown in Figure 2.7.

Train services for all metropolitan train lines are at Adelaide Railway Station which is located 1.8 km
north of the school and can be accessed by the free tram services from the City South tram stop in King
William Street at Halifax Street that is 450 m from the south via Gilles Street and King William Street.

Gilles Street Primary School has a school bus service that operates at the school access on Gilles Street,
to serve those living in outer suburbs.

§ 1 ::, Carrington St
@ ) ~ ¥ :
= 3 Carrington St - I
=  carrington St @ L2 = 2
= L 3 ] . = =t
) = T Pl ®
3 2 %_: > 3 Mocatta 2 n:
@ S 2 : P : 00 ¢
2 o) 5 s
= r A > 11 Bllteney St
- = Pope St
S = 2] =
P 3 — O3 g
w « o = ®
— x: ~
2 3 o w Halifax St @
& @ C Halifax St @ -
- i t o,
= () Halifax S G b 1 HalifaXSt
-/ F1 %x St " - g: g F;; 0
cys@O 2 ¢ 2 3 1 3 2
O 7 - a 2 @ o
o 123 ~
5 i = Florey Pl F* |
City South 9 o ()
§s =
« n
Todd Pl =
Gilles St
. Gilles.St o
Gilles St g froct e
ghutency Glp ary 9 K1 Pul S
a2 ulteney St
{land St Grammar School B
and <
Holla J:l: SchOOl
P ¢
: . o
= @ 3
) a P1 Pulteney St h Tce
K1 King William St - south Tce sout
wn —
i South Tce =
South Tce =
~
nds Tl -g 1/':"»; g
8 %
8 %%
[s) %
- ol OO
Jo %
South Te"aB:sz‘_e_aco%R Rd %

Figure 2.7 Public Transport Services to Pulteney Grammar School

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 180



2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to the adjacent south Park Lands
and the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.8.

Both Franklin Street and Grote Street have on-road bicycle lanes on both sides of the road. Sealed
shared paths exist throughout Ellis Park. No cycle lanes are provided along Gilles Street.

= RANKIEINSIIL , - & W
& T it 7N P N,

—_GROTE 'S__T [

Gilles Street

Primary School

Gilles=y

\ s
X \ Street A
- . ~
/7 < Primary School 5
SZ -
/) =L ~
o]
- BS S
N
21T S |
S s\ L |
Legend
Bike Network Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body
weee Ml Road- Blke Lang Q Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing Land Use
Main Road @  Bike Shop (2024) ' RaillTram Stop - Educational Land
—mcm Secondary Road - Bike Lane *: Police Station Distance to GPO Retail / Commercial
Secondury.Foad o Public Hospital 50m Contour Groon Space 5

—=cm- Off Road Sealed Path < Built-Up Residential :

®  Traffic Light Major Creek m|
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to Gilles Street Primary School

2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff, and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops on King William Street, Pulteney Street, South
Terrace, and tram stops on King William Street. The footpath network along Gilles Street needs to be
well maintained and kept clear of fallen trees and debris by the City of Adelaide.

The school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD, as shown in Figure 2.9,
which has also shown a 5, 10, and 15-minute walkable catchment areas to Gilles Street Primary School.
Students who walk their entire trip with their parents to school are likely walking from Adelaide city
centre.

The signalised PAC in Gilles Street is located at the main crossing to the school entrance.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report vi

Page 181



Roay,
5]
_n -
v

v
. COLLEGE PARK
N A

oH
R

?,
HACKNEY A

3 \
32 =
EH E )\ =) KENT TOWN
STREET.
MINDLEY STREET 49 =) R""mi IRES \ “ pARADE
e 3 &
m g &
= o~ (=] GRENFEI TR SF b= 5
%unngkia [GuRRIE smzs{ﬁ L E =] ey, &
B ] Z s
) o &, &

:\ \
e - N
A EASTTERRACE R\*
Ga) TREE’ PIRIE STREET A
WAHOUTHETEEE EAST TERRACE

NS

£
]
3
S~ FRANKLIN STREET FLINDERS STREET FLINDERS EAST,
; STREET )
£
TR o i
- (WAKEFIELD STREETY AKEFIERDLS e
.S\r:?DONALD.BRADMAN-DRIVE : =, |
['Zr pONALD BRADMAN DRIVE =
b‘iﬁAs STREET z
S

5 113H4¥O!

My
1151

2

Rk,

=
CARRINGTON STREE ° CARRINGTON STREET

13341

&
=
I
el
]
z
i3
2
.

o,

% &

> o“"‘\

e ﬁ'
GILBERT STREET
L o |

/GREENHILLROAD

n 1
= 3 ;
] 2 2 z ¥ 3 N,
63 = 2 1 [ L 2 o
° WAV £ L 2} i YOUNG STREET
S LWE 3 $ 2 (\, YOUNG STREET £ N &
2 i a & 2 PARKSIDE N
5 i 2 1 A (o)
= || g :
TREE =] £l
= & HUGHES STREET i 3
PARSONS STREET rh ?____________ SRS z
- 1 < WMAUD ‘l 3
n T
Le en - B STREET 3
& 9 d L2 UNLEY 2 (=] : 3
_"2 Suburbs i g v FREDERICK STREET \
< &= 1km Walking 65 \ WILKINSON ROAD
Bus Stops Catchment st S G Roxroro |
] =) TERRACE STREET
© school Crossings 1.5km Walking H £ g |
oy —— Railways Catchment g O i
q -
% School Entrance 2km Walking 2 g !
i = ————— e re———— T R =
| [ Gilles Street Catchment | B e & — T" SO
Primary Pedestri
ian |
o Crossi PARK STREET WATTLE STREET \
iy Ssings ! | a0
&8, @ I 38
83 ILLSWO%D R HYDE PARK | MALVERN | Fud 2
-3 E LARTOI
| ?, s 60Meters &2 i \ N
L T s ' l
A 1 FISHER STREET | ER
Fi & ® i LR
igure 2.9 A (= 7
1

I""e"t to GI"eS Stleet Pr Imat y S h I
Catc Choo

240706 Gilles St i
reet
Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - D
- Draft Report

Page 182




3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with Gilles Street Primary School’s assistant principal on 29t May 2024 to discuss
existing issues. These can be summarised as below:

e Because of the proximity of Pulteney Grammar School to Gilles Street Primary School, the traffic
queues from Pulteney Grammar School are often extended to impact the traffic operation for Gilles
Street Primary School, especially during the PM peaks.

e The two staff car parks, as shown in Figure 3.1, are often occupied by the public. With no formal
signage installed, parking officers cannot enforce the illegal parking. The school has ordered the
signage to be manufactured, however the process is taking longer than expected.

iy s

o e p—

Staff
Carpark

| _. !\~ H ' o~ .- ! ' i ' : "3
A00S o w16 : & \
Figure 3.1 Two Staff Carparks at Gilles Street Primary School

e Some drivers were impatient to run across the signalised crossing, resulting in both abrupt braking
and stopping over the crossing and obstructed pedestrians.

e Gilles Street Primary School was assigned to many students in outer suburbs from the Intensive
English Language Program (IELP), which resulted in a high volume of school buses. In this current
year the enrolment of IELP has significantly decreased due to the change in immigration policies.
This has consequently reduced the school bus operation.

e Parents would occupy the frontage of the school for bus operation, and preventing buses from pulling
into the bus bay and block the through traffic.

e The pedestrian waiting time at the signalised crossing is too long, in particular after 8:40 am.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report viii

Page 183



3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the Gilles Street Primary School were
observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on a typical school day,
on Wednesday 29% May 2024, 8 am to 9 am, and 3 pm to 4 pm.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The key findings from the AM observations are summarised as below:

e The traffic on Gilles Street was in general in an orderly manner, as the central concrete median
island prevented vehicles from speeding or overtaking.

e Thereis a 25 km/hr school zone in place, and most people were observed to be compliant.

e Parents were observed to occupy the southern side of Gilles Street, which are for bus operation only.
This is shown in Figure 3.2.

by

|
W o

it

Figure 3.2 Passenger Vehicles in the Bus Zone in Gilles Street

e Many parents were observed to walk, cycling, or push scooters.

3.2.2 PM Departure Period
The key findings from the PM observations are summarised as below:
e Much busier traffic than in the morning, therefore vehicles were in general moving at a slower pace.

e The concrete central islands prohibited vehicles from driving around those entering or exiting a
roadside parking space.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report ix

Page 184



3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Issues for accessing the school were observed on Gilles Street. The traffic safety issues that mostly are
for the City of Adelaide to address are:

e Reviewing the pedestrian wait time at the signalised crossing on Gilles Street.
e Enforcing 25 km/hr speed limit during school peak hours.
e Install flashing signs to enhance the school zone awareness.

e Enforcing the parking behaviour over the bus bay in front of the school in Gilles Street.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 185



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

4.1 Options Development

Options to improve the travel safety for students were developed under two categories, namely:
e Operational efficiencies
e Increased awareness of the area

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 Travel Safety Options for Gilles Street Primary School
Type of Option Description Issue Addressed
Operational Review the signal timing at the signalised | Improve the travel time for students
Efficiencies crossing on Gilles Street and improve the | and parents

pedestrian green light waiting time during
school peak hours.

Increased Install flashing lights to accompany the Traffic speeding behaviour around
awareness of existing school zone signs in Gilles Street. | the school zone in Gilles Street.
the area

4.1.1 Information to Promote Safer Student Travel to the School

The school provides limited information to promote safer student travel to school. Examples of the types
of information brochures, known as school Travel Access Guides in NSW, are provided for a primary
school in Appendix B. The Travel Access Guide is prepared with a consistent template for all
government schools in NSW in collaboration with the school principals and a school travel coordinator.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report xi

Page 186



4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.2. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

e T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

e S for Signal timing changes at an intersection.

e I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Gilles Street Primary School
Option Priority Assessment Indicative Comments
Cost
Estimate
T1 Install flashing lights with the existing $50,000 Council to apply to DIT for
school zone signs in Gilles Street. installation of the cameras.
S1 Review the signal timing at the $3,000 Requires consultation with
signalised crossing in Gilles Street at DIT for approval

Pulteney Street and improve the
pedestrian green light waiting time
during school peak hours.

I1 Prepare a consolidated travel access No cost to This would be prepared and
guide for students and parents that Council promoted by the school
would be promoted on the school administration.

website in location that is easy to find, in
additional to the school newsletter.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report xii

Page 187



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads,
Sydney, 2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105.

e Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October
2023, Appendix C School Zones.

e Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024.

e Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code
of Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3
Drop off and pick up zones, page 34.

e School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024.

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report xiii

Page 188



Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF

ADELAIDE
School Travel Survey for Students
School: Gilles Street Primary School

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a survey to determine the main modes of travel for students
to understand the travel behaviour to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student survey during the
first period class.

Questions for the Teacher
Date (day/month/year):

Weather (Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.

How many students are absent today in your class?
Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group
Please ask the students with a 'hands-up'survey in the classroom.
AM Period Travel

How did you travel to school this morning? (If you travelled by more than one mode, please answer with the longest
part of your journey - e.g. "car" for "car and scooter".)

Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period

Car (as passenger with drop-off)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

Number of Students

PM Period Travel

How will you travel from school this afternoon? (If you will travel by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e.g. "car"” for "car and scooter".)

Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Number of Students
Car (as passenger with pick-up)
Walk for the entire trip

Bus

Train

Tram

Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)

Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter

Public Transport (bus, tram or train)

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 189



Appendix B — School Travel Access Guide in NSW

| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Meadowbank Public School

Travel Access Guide Effective: September 2023

Introduction Kiss and drop expectations

Our school community of parents/carers, staff and * For parents/carers who drive their child/ren to
students live within a reasonable walk or cycle trip school, the kiss and drop rone is located along
of the school. This Travel Access Guide provides Rbodes Street starting from Hermitage Road.

sugges safe and accessible options fo velling ' .
uggested safe and acc ble Sptions for travelling * This space i= a 'No Parking” 2zone, meaning that
10 and from schoo Fn

um of 2 minutes

you may stop for up to a maxi
and move no more than 3 metres from the

Active ways to get to school

vehicle

Walking to and from school S0
Message from our principal
. vialking 15 a fun way o keep actve and
= : ¢ Meadowbank Public School supports sustainable
and environmentally friendly transport practices
[= stct fest '
= - S yras ¢ Students up to B years of age should hold
. taf
: - 3 S the hand of an adult when walking or be
8 .ttt . ! accompanied by an adult when riding
o i DR LOOK. LISTEN and ¢ Students from 8 to 10 years of age shouid be
HINK J he rosd actively supervised by an adult
School bell times
racks are available for everyone Start Times End Times
Ler racks for K-€ ludents S.e0 arr 2:45 pr
The outside school hour times for the primary school
. b ride uir by la >

are: 700 am 45 am and 2245 pm - €00 pm

For more information contact:
School Infrastructure NSW
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det nsw.edu.au

Phone: 1300 482 651 Nsw

www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.govau GOVERNMINT

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 190




| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

LEGEND
=€3= Walking route -
@ Train station \ E‘ e
© Busstop ¥
' Traffic signals
= Safe crossing point
. Meadowbank Schools 7
== Bridge/underpass Y.

End of trip facilities

Playground level:
For students attending
Meadowbank Public School

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 191

.

Please use the Trip Planner at transportnsw.info/ for additional information about cycling routes to the school.




| MSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Where do you ride?

Footpath/shared pathfcycleway:

= Chikdren uredar 16 can ride on a
foatpath

= Aoulns suparvising children under 18 can alsa rds
o tha footpath

* Ba caraful of cars antaring and axiting driveways.

= Watch cut for pedestrians, athar riders ard
animals.

Look aut for I-
pecestrians on

chared paths.

3 steps to follow
when riding a bike:
Clip, check, chime.

R yeur helmet

,-J Locee clothing and Rems can ges
h caught in your wheals Seoure any
1 laoae itarms, ke backpack SIraps

n

Wi sl Ble S weldF & Rk

Things to remeambear

ﬂ Alwiys ask yOUr perenis
Pnmission to rida.

Crossing the road:
» Baaira caredul

« Walk your BicyCk whien you Cross at a pedestrian
crossing.

Give a metre:

Give padestrians 1 metre of space
wihan riding past.

et

Always remember to
watch out for hazards

ey riclineg eonr Dl
Crack yrur hraine
ke mre e brskey r 4 D wetimee
e weeking. 8 spposdls
Chime your bell O stomgates
R"I = ith o - u Grauval or rocks
7} Shoes with a good tread on t
3 soies will healp you grip the pedals O Lonesia
and profect your feat. Ma ke suns ﬂ Anirmale
wour laces are thed. & Cheroesin the s
I e s arckaer rickar a0 H" Took path oyt ey
e I, charyss pour Esall. aurfscm
For more infarmation contact
School Infrastructure MW
Ermall: schoalinfrastructunsficdat neseduau
Phana: 1500 433 E51
Wty SCNOolInfrastruCTune s g owais Nsw
L]
U ™
ol .

240706 Gilles Street Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 192




Attachment F

lﬂuﬁ

tl
[
i

North Adelaide Primary School
School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491

3 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkin

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 193



Document History and Status

Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date

A Draft Report John Devney | James Arnold | James Arnold | 3 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 194



Contents

Project: North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] o Y o T 5 ifi
(] Lo XT=T= T Vo1 = o 0 iii
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 LI L0 50T oY 00T 6
3 Issues and OppPOortUNities...cicciarirvrmrararirirarasra s s rr s s s s s s s s na s s s nn s nnmnnnnnns 14
3.1 1] = | ] o] o L= ol = ol U 3] o] o PPN 14
3.2 1] L@ o =T V= o 1= PP 14
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrTUNITIES ....uuiiriiii e 16
4 Travel Safety Options and AssesSSMmeNnt .....c.ccververerimrrrerarirs s s s s an s nn s nm s nnnss 17
4.1 Student Travel Safety OPLiONS ... e 17
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives ....oooiiiiiiiiiii e 19
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost EStIMates .......oooiviiiiiiiii e 23
L £ = =T 1= o o 25

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 195



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for North Adelaide Primary School..........ccciivimmiirisrcsnecsnaranna: 4
Table 2.2 Student Mode Shares by Year Group at North Adelaide Primary School in May 2024................ 5
Table 2.3 Local Streets at North Adelaide Primary SChool .....cccuiiiiimiimnmrrsmromssr s s s ssssasssssssnsassnsasnnsnnnns 6
Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at North Adelaide Primary School .......cccuiiimmicmnmrcrnecessersnasannas 6
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for North Adelaide Primary School ........ccccviiirmiersierssnassssassnnans 17
Table 4.2 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Tynte Street..........ccoivimimimierrrararsnsnannns 21

Table 4.3 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at North Adelaide Primary School .... 23

Figures

Figure 1.1 North Adelaide Primary School Location ......c.cvveieiemarasasasassserassrsrsssssnsnsssssssasssasasasasasasassssssnsnnnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Entrances to North Adelaide Primary SChOOl.....ciciarararararanmmasarsrsrsrsnsmsnsssssssasssasasasasasasassssnsssnnnnns 2
Figure 2.1 School Enrolment Area for North Adelaide Primary SChool .....c.cucriririmiminimiesesesssararasassssssssnsnsnns 3
Figure 2.2 North Adelaide Primary School Student Residence Location AnalysSis ......cucvevevmrarararararasaransnnnns 4
Figure 2.3 North Adelaide Primary School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024 ........c.crerererarnnannns 5
Figure 2.4 Crashes on School Days at North Adelaide Primary School .......c.cciiiiiimisnsneienmnrmanassss s 7
Figure 2.5 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for North Adelaide Primary School..........ccccereiauens 8
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking Controls at North Adelaide Primary School ..........ccccvieieimienennnansrsnnnnsnsnnnnns 8
Figure 2.7 Informal Kiss and Drop Areas at North Adelaide Primary School ...........cccvimimiminnnsnsnsnsnnsnnnn. 9
Figure 2.8 Public Transport Services to North Adelaide Primary SChool ..........ccccviieieieiieinnsnsnsnsssssnnnnns 10
Figure 2.9 Bicycle Storage Areas at North Adelaide Primary School ......c.ciciiiiiiminisisieieiesrnnrssasssnnnns 10
Figure 2.10 Cycling Network to North Adelaide Primary SChOOl.......cccrarrsmnrarsnssinsnsesasasasasssasassssansssnnnnns 11
Figure 2.11 Pedestrian Crossings to North Adelaide Primary SChool ........c.ccirrmimirreisnrnenennressssnannnna. 12
Figure 2.12 Pedestrian Crossings at North Adelaide Primary School ..........cccciciiiirnininnennnnnssnnaene. 12
Figure 2.13 Walkable Access Catchment to North Adelaide Primary School .......cccicvmimimvarererararrassnnanns 13
Figure 3.1 AM Peak Safety Issues in Gover Street at North Adelaide Primary School ..........cccvieirenaenans 14
Figure 3.2 AM Parking in Tynte Street at North Adelaide Primary School ..........cccciimimiiennnsransnsssnnnnnnns 15
Figure 3.3 PM Peak Conditions at North Adelaide Primary School..........cccciciiiiiiinisr e, 16
Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at North Adelaide Primary School .........cccciriiimimimienennnnanssssnnsnnnns 19
Figure 4.2 Examples of Koala Crossings at Primary SChooIS ......c.ccciiiiriririrnrniniiiisissssssss s s sasns 20
Figure 4.3 Alternative School Precinct Warning SigNage .....cccucverrrrrasasrssssssssssssssssssssssssssasasassasssnsnnnns 22
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B -=School Travel Access Guide in NSW

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 196



Executive Summary

Overview

North Adelaide Primary School is a public school that comprises Reception to Year 6 with an enrolment
of 286 students with a maximum 330 student capacity. The distribution of students by year group is:

e 30 students in Year R
e 137 students in Years 1 to 3
e 131 students in Years 4 to 6

The school enrolment area is zoned and includes all of the suburb of North Adelaide in the City of
Adelaide, parts of Ovingham, Fitzroy and Thorngate in the City of Prospect and Medindie in the Town of
Walkerville. Over 44 per cent of the students live in North Adelaide with 15 per cent in the adjacent
suburbs to the Ring Road or in Adelaide CBD.

Key Findings

The AM and PM periods are very similar with about 74 and 71 per cent arriving or departing by car
respectively. The walk mode share is about 20 per cent and travel by public transport is about 3.5 per
cent. The number of students who travelled by bicycle or scooter was very low with security issues with
the bicycle storage area.

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during AM arrival period
from 8:30 am to 9:30 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the hour before
the school start time, with the peak activity of arrivals between 8:30 am and 9:00 am.

The key issues for students and parents access the school are:

. Carparking was limited during the 15-minute peak periods around both AM and PM peak times. This
was largely attributed to staff and nearby worker demand in the area, especially on Tynte Street.

e Angled carparking in Tynte Street was also difficult to navigate for school drop off / pick up.
. Parents were observed making mid-block U-turn movements in Gover Street.

. Some issues with higher speeds and failure to give way at the Gover Street emu crossing.
Key Recommendations

Infrastructure Treatments

. Convert the emu school crossing to a koala crossing in Gover Street.

. Reconfigure the footpath and kerb in front of the former fire station entrance that is immediately
west of the student entrance in Tynte Street to allow for short term 15-minute parking during the
AM and PM school peak hours. The ‘No Stopping” yellow line would be removed to allow for angle
parking spaces to be implemented.

. Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Tynte Street
opposite the student entrance immediately east of the former fire station entrance.

Operational Efficiencies

e Implement changes to the timed angle parking on the north side of Tynte Street in front of the
school to be 15-minute limits from 8 am to 9 am and 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm on school days, instead
of the mixture of 15-minute and 1P parking spaces. This will provide additional parking capacity for
the Kiss and Drop activity in Tynte Street.

e Organise for more staff to be available in the AM peak during the busiest period for student arrivals
and in the PM departure period at the Tynte Street and Gover Street entrances.

e Staff parking measures with the provision of permits for areas on Gover Street. Changes to
accommodate staff parking issues was not in the scope of the student travel safety review.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report i

Page 197



Safety Promotions
Install additional signage and promotion of the school area for traffic approaching the school zones
at the O’Connell Street and Lefevre Terrace ends of Gover Street and Tynte Street.

A consolidated promotional travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted on
the school website in location that is easy to find, in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 198



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

. every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
. every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

. every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public
holidays.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report iii

Page 199



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

. Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision
of higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

. Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in
the City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the

2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of

primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning

and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

. Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
. Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

. Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

. With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

. Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss
and Drop areas.

Identify and map the location of the:

— Existing pick up and drop off areas.

— Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

— Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

— Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

. Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised
recommendations for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 1

Page 200



g

1.3 School Location

North Adelaide Primary School is located on Tynte Street with a rear access on Gover Street on the
block east of O’Connell Street and west of Margaret Street. The school site and the existing surrounding
environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

Figure 1.1 North Adelaide Primary School Location

North Adelaide Primary School has the main student entrance on Tynte Street and a rear access from
Gover Street as shown in Figure 1.2.

Main student entrance on Tynte Street Rear entrance to the school on Gover Street

Figure 1.2 Entrances to North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 2

Page 201



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

North Adelaide Primary School is a State Government public school that is located in a heritage building
built in 1877. A major redevelopment of the building was completed in 2003 to provide space for 13
classes and shared teaching spaces such as the resource centre, a computer suite, an art studio,
gymnasium, music practice rooms and a dedicated OSHC centre. All areas within the school are fully air-
conditioned, bright and very well maintained. Staff, parents and children have very comfortable
environment in which to work and play. The school site is heritage listed and is within one of Adelaide’s
heritage-listed precincts.

North Adelaide Primary School comprises years Reception to 6. The front office opens at 8:40 am and
closes at 3:30 pm. The bell times are:

e 8:50 am with the start of classes at 9:00 am
e The gate to the student entrance on Tynte Street is locked at 9:15 am and reopened at 2:55 pm
e 3:00 pm with the finish of classes.

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The North Adelaide Primary School enrolment area is shown in Figure 2.1. It includes all of the suburb of
North Adelaide in the City of Adelaide, parts of Ovingham, Fitzroy and Thorngate in the City of Prospect
and Medindie in the Town of Walkerville.

Q -
E 2 ©
RENOWN PARK S 3 MEEENDIE GARDENS WALKERVILLE
y = @ R
RIDLEYTON 2 b3 &
N ! - -
! f ) R
BROMPTON oVINGHAM i
J . FilZroy, \Le Ros GILBERTO!
/ Obg, 7. BERTON s, JOS
N S8 5
“Ce 0'7)
> BOWDENY %
B YOEN)
\ ’ $ @ %
%
¥ \ / 2 ST PETERS
{ S 9P
JIINDMARSH' -\ # < o
AN\ ! oo
% ! W
2 R |
ada™ S L \
\
\ =
\ @ COLLEGE PARK
A\ 4 s
THEBARTON = =
\ S =
) X = =)
P > S ~
; \ 1 = o®
= |\ =) § ‘\‘(\«
AN . p°
JO’,/ -~ \\\ o
’ "‘-),j S
& =5 -= KENT TOWN
Figure 2.1 School Enrolment Area for North Adelaide Primary School
240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 3

Page 202



The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 is for 298 students out of a maximum 330 student capacity. The
distribution of students by year is as follows:

e 30 students in Year R
e 137 students in Years 1 to 3
e 131 students in Years 4 to 6

The number of students by residence location and year is provided in Table 2.1 and is shown in the
histogram in Figure 2.2. Over 44 per cent of the students live in North Adelaide with 15 per cent in the
adjacent suburbs to the Ring Road or in Adelaide CBD.

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for North Adelaide Primary School
Location Reception Year3 Year4 Year5 Year6 Percent
North
. 13 16 23 17 26 20 17 132 44.3%
Adelaide
Fitzroy 4 3 2 3 4 4 0 20 6.7%
Thorngate 0 1 1 2 1 0 0 5 1.7%
Medindie 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 2.7%
Gilberton 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 4 1.3%
Adelaide 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0.3%
Other Inner
. 11 20 18 24 17 17 17 124 41.6%
Councils
Outer North | 0 0 1 0 0 1 2 4 1.3%
Total 30 41 49 47 49 44 38 298 100.0%
124
120
*2 100
Qﬁf 80
é 60
z
40
20
20
8
5 4 4
0 . . [ | —_— !
North Fitzroy Thorngate Medindie Gilberton Adelaide OtherInner  OQuter North
Adelaide Councils
Residence Location
Figure 2.2 North Adelaide Primary School Student Residence Location Analysis

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 203



2.2.1 Student Travel Demand

The student travel mode survey was conducted during the first morning class on Wednesday 29 May
2024. A copy of the student travel mode survey form is included in Appendix A. The findings from the
surveys were used to confirm the existing transport mode shares for:

e Car (as passenger for drop-off in the morning and pick-up in the afternoon)

e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.3. The AM and PM periods are very similar with about 74 and 71 per cent arriving or
departing by car respectively. The walk mode share is about 20 per cent and travel by public transport
is about 3.5 per cent.

Walk
20.4%
Bike and Bike and
Scooter Scooter
4.7% 4.9%
Public »— ‘
Transport Public V
3.5% Transport
3.3%
AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share
Figure 2.3 North Adelaide Primary School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024

A breakdown of the transport mode share results by year groups (Reception to Year 3 and Years 4 to 6)
is provided in Table 2.2. The transport mode share for students in reception to Year 3 who are driven to
school is about five per cent less than the students in Years 4 to 6 in the AM period versus two per cent
more in the PM period.

Table 2.2 Student Mode Shares by Year Group at North Adelaide Primary School in May 2024
AM Arrivals =\ Arrivals TN Departures o b e partures
Transport Mode Reception to Reception to
Years 4 to 6 Years 4 to 6
Year 3 Year 3

Car 72.2% 76.9% 72.2% 69.6%
Public Transport 3.9% 2.6% 2.8% 4.3%
Bike and Scooter 5.0% 3.8% 5.1% 4.3%
Walk 18.9% 16.7% 19.9% 21.7%

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 204



2.3 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.3.1 Road Network

The streets in the local road network at North Adelaide Primary School are provided in Table 2.3. The
front entrance and main office of the school is provided on Tynte Street. The rear entrances, and
location of the informal kiss and drop area, is located on Gover Street.

Table 2.3 Local Streets at North Adelaide Primary School
Road Classification Relevance to the School
Tynte Street Local street 2-way traffic in on the southern side of the school; PAC

located approximately at main entrance to the
administration office of the school

Gover Street Local street 2-way traffic on the northern side of the school; rear
entrance and informal kiss and drop area

O’Connell Street Arterial road North-south road corridor located 200m west from school
entrance
Margaret Street Local street 1-way traffic northbound between Tynte Street and Gover

Street on the eastern side of the school

Lefevre Terrace Collector road North-south road corridor located 250m east from school
entrance

The attributes of the local road network at North Adelaide Primary School are summarised in Table 2.4.
In areas where no data was provided, the field was labelled as not applicable (n/a). Generally, the
posted speed limit was obeyed by drivers in the area.

Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at North Adelaide Primary School
Number Daily Traffic Posted Average 85t percentile
of Lanes Volumes Speed Speed Speed (km/h)
(km/h) (km/h)
Tynte Street 2 2,209 50 36.2 45.0
Gover Street 2 N/A 50 N/A N/A
O’Connell Street 4 14,146 50 39.5 48.0
Margaret Street 1 N/A 50 N/A N/A
Lefevre Terrace 2 8,913 50 44.1 49.5
240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 6

Page 205



2.3.2 Crash Analysis

Tynte Street: 2 minor injury and 1 property damage crash

O’Connell Street

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 (five-year period) has been sourced from DataSA.
Gover Street: 1 property damage crash and 1 serious injury crash

During this time there has been the following crashes within direct vicinity of the school:

e Intersection with Tynte Street: 2 property damage crashes
e Intersection with Gover Street: 1 property damage crash
e Lefevre Terrace

e Intersection with Tyne Street: 1 property damage crash

e P
S

The crash statistics from 2018 to 2022 are shown by location in Figure 2.4.

=
[N
)
®
=% -
: 3,
3
Q
[
B o)
2 <
C '-_; :2
@
O Q)% 0 North Adelaide Priméty a
fﬁ 3
B ¢
D ‘ 8.8
<
= ?
S 2 (] o
3 Crashes 2018-2022 3
Tl" 2 [
yie 2
5] 1: PDO
e e
=]
[}
(2]
Figure 2.4

® 2 M

© 39l
Crashes on School Days at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 206



2.3.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.5.

- -
g : 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY
; 3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO

\ TOPP] T .TO FRIDAY 8AM-6PM
NO STOPPING AT AL FRIDAY 8AM-6pM N0 STOPPING AT LS

& 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO

\ \ 3 J \ RESIDENTIAL AT ALL
. | FRIDAY, 8AM-6PM 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY - TIMES
B 1 W= x [ A TO FRIDAY 8AM-6°M NO STOPPING AT ALL @
e TIMES

NO PARKING AT ALL TIMES . _NO PARKING AT ALL TIMES 258 v i;;s :\;\gmgpncmmy To s
® ® - NO PARKING AT ALL TIMES ® ;E;EDSEN"IM AT ALL

3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY. %‘

TO FRIDAY, BAM-6PM

@ X | UNRESTRICTED ¢/
LOADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY, (o] 8
BAM-SPM NO PARKING AT ALL TIMES :
® 3 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO

3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY
F;lou BAM-6PM ,

RESIDENTIAL AT ALL TO FRIDAY SAM-6PM
TIMES ® :

3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY.

3 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO. s \ 5
FRIDAY SAM-6PM 2 1 pARKING HONDAY TO Iy A SPH 3 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO
4 < FRIDAY,BAN-6PM SATURDAY FRIDAY BAM-GPM
LHR PARKING MONDAY TO @ f 14-NOON, \ 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY. ®
1 HR PARKING MONDAY TO F.RIDAV BAM-6PM — 25 ) 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO! .‘ro FRIDAY BAM-6PM
SATURDAY BAM-6PM g A
® . ° & 1R PARKING SATURD, MR el
SAM-NOON MONDAY,TO .
® |FRIDAY BAM-6PM | 4 A 4 g 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY. | NO STOPPING AT ALL
L4 ® 1 HR PARKING MONDAY-TO \ © 7O FRIDAY BAM:6PM TIMES
FRIDAY BAM-6PM «©

NO STOPPING AT ALL N o AT, ) S
TIMES. 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY
; TO FRIDAY SAM-6PH

3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY,

North Adelaide Prime 8 2 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO
\ ; .TO FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

NO STOPPING AT ALL
! Eius AT ALL OTHER TIMES TIMES
NO STOPPING AT ALL 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY: NO STOPPING AT ALL
® 15 MIN PARKING ANY DAY S i L HEPARKING MONDAYITO) C Pl ! S
HAM-OPM 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO T 2  FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY.  'NO STOPPING AT ALL
FRIDAY SAM-GPM e " ; N QTIMES L

15 MIN PARKING MONDAY.-TO. 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO

[ svoppmcﬂu.g
TIMES

1 HR PARKING MONDAY, TO

SATURDAY 8AM-5PM Pl FRIDAY,BAVLGP SATURDAY; AoavE = FRIDAY BAN-6PM
® | BAM-NOON ! -OADING MONDAY TO FRIDAY o 4 LR pARKING MONDAY,TO ® 2 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY.
LOADING ANY DAY 8AM-9PM - 2 . AT FRIDAY BAM-6PM TO FRIDAY,8AM-6PM
. 1+ 7{NO STOPPING AT/ALL" %
NO STOPPING AT ALL 'NO STOPPING AT ALL » x ! 15 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO
_ TIMES o ] : R { FRIDAY, BAM-GPM SATURDAY,
> e BAM-NOON 15 MIN PARKING ANY DAY
LOADING ANY DAY BAM-9PM 4 L ® ° M-6PM ®
® NO STOPPING AT ALL 5AM-9: 15, 30 MIN PARKING MONDAY.TO®30 M1 pARKING MONDAY TO. =
> TIMES . \ - FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY.
- AMNOON X
e 15 MIN PARKING ANY DAY z = - e & “’OO by
SATURDAY BAM-6PM SAM-9PM LOADING AT ALL TIMES MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES @ no

STOPPING AT ALL
ES

2 HR PARKING SATURDAY

e M
NO. srp:még AT AL - 8AM-NOON MONDAY TO \\. MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES FresioenTIAL AT AL NO STOPPING AT: ALL® 3
FRIDAY BAM-6PM & ° TIMES 1 TIMES @,
1 HR PARKING ANY DAY C ® '2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO 1 HR PARKING MONDAY TO,
BAM-6PM & FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY o FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY,
L MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES'8AM-NOON 2 HR AREA PARKING MONDAYNO STOPPING AT ALL 8AM-NOON
3 = 4 TO FRIDAY 8AM-6PM | TIMES - '\ NOSTOPPING AT ALL
S 3] 1 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO ~ SATURDAY BAM-NOON @IMES 3
BUS AT ALL TIMES T P 'NO STOPPING AT ALL - FRIDAY 8AM-GPM SATURDAY = 3
Iﬁl —_— MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES TIMES SAM-NOON X 1 1HR PARKING MONDAY. TO_
/ND STOPPING AT ALL , « HR PARKING Ay Day. N0 STOPPING AT ALL v ¢ PRI
T] s S
% e AR ToArT oM B R0, 4 5GP @1;1 e NO STOPPING AT Al 2 up DABYTE SN TR NO STOPPING AT ALL NO STOPPING AT/ALL:
@ | HREARKING Y oAY g @ o
BAM-6PM o 4 HR PARKING ANY DAY, % = . s 5
Sonon Parking Control Points [E] Bus & Motorcycle ® Permit @ Unrestricted
@ i : ; ® i ial @ Visi
W AR i LHR PARKING Mot Area Parking El Disabled ® No Parking Residential Visitor
FRIDAY BAM-6PM SATURDAY. g s < "
. BAM-NOON 1 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO 5 ©®  Area Ticket e Loadin & No Stoppin = Taxi A Work Zone
0 25 5 FRIDAY 8AM-GPM SATURDAY O STOPPING AT ALL g ppPing
ISTOPPING AT, D NN Y TS,
.TIMES® -

C— st Bicycle e Mail Van e Parking @ Ticket

Figure 2.5 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for North Adelaide Primary School

On-street parking on both sides of Tynte Street and Gover Street is used for Kiss and Drop activity as
shown in Figure 2.6.

A mix of timed parking controls in Tynte Street 2P timed parking in Gover Street

Figure 2.6 On-street Parking Controls at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 8

Page 207



No formal Kiss and Drop areas are provided at the school. However, informal Kiss and Drop activity in
the short-term parking zones occurs in Tynte Street and Gover Street as shown in Figure 2.7.

The timed angle parking in Tynte Street is used The 2-hour parking areas in Gover Street in the

for the Kiss and Drop activity on both sides of the school zone are used for the Kiss and Drop

street. activity mostly on the southern side of the street.
Figure 2.7 Informal Kiss and Drop Areas at North Adelaide Primary School

2.3.4 Public Transport
Public transport services to North Adelaide Public School are provided with:

. the north-south bus services in O’Connell Street with two bus stops located 230 m west of the
school. These bus stops have frequent bus routes that are in a Go Zone.

. Routes 98A/98C Connector Free bus with stops in Lefevre Terrace at Tynte Street and in Tynte
Street at O’Connell Street.

. The Adelaide Metro bus services to the bus stops in O’Connell Street that is as Go Zone with
frequent bus services between Adelaide CBD and the northern suburbs.

. The location of the bus stops that are within walking distance to the school are shown in Figure
3.14. Tram and train services are not used by students to travel to North Adelaide Primary School.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 208



\
oV

Tenw- OF
on (1)
£ L e %
6 O'Connell St (ace < 0 S
onter %- - =Y
0
cnilders 2 Y %
o L)
) ®_2
o St =™ o
° + CA GoASLEl © W5
E) o) pu s 7
Q. RO willia® )
) o
o = ~:—"{';':"d‘:‘:, %
! (@) ; @ §
g g St \ \ Z <)
5 0'Connell StGOY® \ A = %
O \2
‘-'. n L: o,
. “o\". 3 &
o % L pde\d®r ate S
2 ?“ ) (4 St \ a \ T\i
E £ 5 0'Connell St 9 pri™Y \ 4 5 .
Y cn sl NHigoRe® TS Tyme % Oz
(o) Lone™ S -
= o - g 6 LeREvre Tce
et N\ © O
e~ 22 2 )
A [ (53 ) ?0
2 = "Ryois 8 A
6 -~ o) - -
A 7 Tynte St o % ‘2} 2
@ imsee P B 6 ~
s K prche’ 2
Chape! o) 2
1)
4 O'Connell St [
Figure 2.8
2.3.5

Public Transport Services to North Adelaide Primary School
Cycling

2 \ '\a ;a‘\

The secure bicycle storage area has 30 spaces available for students. The bicycle storage racks inside
the secure locked area at the student entrance in Tynte Street and in the verge on the southside of

Gover Street are shown in Figure 2.9. With the security and theft issues at the Tynte Street facility, the
school is considering relocating the secure bicycle parking to a location internal to the school grounds.

Due to bike thefts
 tisgate will be locked at 9ai
‘ andunlocked at 2.55pm.

" ¥oU need to access o
N these hours please enter ‘

Sh the main door and see
the fr

Secure undercover bicycle parking with access
from Tynte Street
Figure 2.9

Uncovered public bicycle parking in Gover Street
Bicycle Storage Areas at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 209

10



The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.10. Lefevre Terrace has an on-road bicycle
lane on the western side and an off-road 1.5 m wide bike lane on the eastern side. Sealed shared paths
exist throughout the Adelaide Park Lands.

Bikedirect
Adelaide CBD

y

Brompto Jr mary School

) ‘
OVINGHAM|STATION

-ty |
North Adelaide
Primary School

-
1

TATION |

\

ORTH
ADELAIDE )
Legend
Bike Network wnnin - Off Road Track ®  Pedestrian Signal Water Body
st Maln Boad - Bk Lane Q Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use
s Main Road @ Bike Shop (2024) ®  RailTram Stop - Educational Land
R AR B mERe *  Police Station ————Distance to GPO Be i Conmemon
e Secondary Road o Public Hospital 50m Contour Green Space
—=—=— Off Road Sealed Path o Traffc Light Major Creek Built-Up Residential

Figure 2.10 Cycling Network to North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 11

Page 210



2.3.6 Pedestrian Access

Pedestrian crossings are located at North Adelaide Primary School in Tynte Street with a PAC and in
Gover Street with an emu crossing as shown in Figure 2.11. Traffic signals are operational at the
intersections of O’Connell Street/Tynte Street and Lefevre Terrace/Tynte Street. School zones for 25

km/h when children present are installed in Tynte Street between O’Connell Street and Lefevre Terrace
and in Gover Street west of Lefevre Terrace.

Pedestrian Actuated Crossing in Tynte Street Emu crossing in Gover Street

Figure 2.11 Pedestrian Crossings to North Adelaide Primary School

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students who walk for their entire
trip or as an access mode to the bus stops in O’Connell Street or Tynte Street on the Route 98
Connector bus. The footpath network in North Adelaide and through the Park Lands in Botanic Park
needs to be well maintained and kept clear of fallen trees and debris by the City of Adelaide.

Footpaths are generally provided on both sides of the road within the North Adelaide suburbs built up
suburbs. Multiple looping paths are typically seen within and surrounding the nearby the parklands.

Pedestrian access to the school includes a pedestrian actuated crossing on Tynte Street and an emu
crossing on Gover Street as shown in Figure 2.12.

Pedestrian crossing in Tynte Street that aligns

Pedestrian crossing in Gover Street that provides
with the main entrance to the school office

access to the rear entrance

Figure 2.12 Pedestrian Crossings at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 211

12



The walkable catchment areas to North Adelaide Primary School are shown in Figure 2.13 based on an
800m walking distance along the footpath network. Students who walk their entire trip to school are

likely walking from North Adelaide, Gilberton or the suburbs immediately to the north of Fitzroy Terrace
and Robe Terrace.

“ KINTORE AVENUE %;
ﬁ WVRTLE STREET a N
=
2 STREET
WL H Pmslf.;voaw 2
== i 5
BELFORD AVE 3 z COLLINSWOOD]
i n E Bl o
z A 5 2
S = H H
g
i T &O =z E
z = © & <
‘ Er o m ; 4 <y
m " = I
| | 3 PROSPECT z § ",
T H
| n & BALLVILLE STREET % =] s )’"e
J 2 2 HARRINGTON STREET d-; EigI[)NEDNIE E g‘:
=
z S
. | ey A WALKERVILLY
caut " £l =
RENOWN PARK 2
% z MOTTAGE TERRACE
5
) P
5 %,
= o )
A & Pk
25 o %,
L3 A &5 i,
& 2 o DUTTON TERRACE = = G
e, o 3 o
& 8 B3 23
& &
& e FITZROY
& i THORNGATE 1 HEpRE oy ®
BROMPTON H &R H
= = O : e
FITZROY. it &
& TERRACE 5 &7
OVINGHAM = L2 - g &
ACEY )
& mlzsﬂ“'“"“ z &
2

/
a

MELBOURNE -
bl
\ STREET
A
RS
Py
e y
Za
- M
&

% / \
~

o ]

\ e Sy C.E,UV_«IDEYS‘ROAD H|

.~ NORT| R0 s & DA /——*T” =l ;,;

oy A et o ® %, 2 |
4 0 & )
2 = %, 2 &
R

\

A

u“"a.l‘(
RCE
o
Elalat
(S
A
S
Lian
&
3
G
%,
%y
% %
£
&
TN
£y

N ¢
? / sl\c\*;::o
J

- =
== e A 2 S“\__m, )i =
U2 e\ oo, 14 ) :
N 2 al= [P / 2 \3
e £ E
\ eroRt 5 = 4
e e

VG wiLL AR
A ROAD

i

W
4

~— —
A
= -
QYO
e

awad saod

N

o g
Y E
| g
) . HORTHTERRACE.
X7 Suburbs 1km Walking Eg:jl;ﬁﬂj—ﬁ'
b . S 5
' Bus Stops Catchment éé '% E’d"z. REL % QUHDLE ROAD—
< . . X 3 o RUNDLE 5TR! P
2 School Crossings 1.5km Walking Bt i3 2 y
P Railways Catchment 2 : 2 :
H EZ Bk o z
i 2km Walking GRS JE o ;= B T =
% School Entrance L e 7
Catchment o B -
North Adelaide . o AL 2 EASTIERRACES
o Pedestrian S : b ager cner TERRACE
rimary Crossings %% - E e
‘ e emE B - Al
/ BE FLINDERS TR £l
0/4¥195 390 80Meters L = EP
11 | | } J — ERAMNKLIN STREET
-l

WAREFIELD epiELDs

— = WALEEFJELD STREET ﬁ_ggEr.‘ £ steer
Figure 2.13 Walkable Access Catchment to North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

13

Page 212



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with North Adelaide Primary School Principal and Deputy Principal on Thursday 23
of May to discuss existing issues and any suggestions for new infrastructure. These were as follows:

. Issues with speeding in Tynte Street and Gover Street.
. Bike rack theft resulting in a secure location being required at the front of the school site

. Bike storage at the rear entrance only included the on-street facilities in Figure 2.9. This was
utilised by 2 students for the day.

. Informal kiss and drop area on Tynte Street was hard to use due to the angled parking

. The construction of 88 O’Connell Street development resulted in carparking being utilised by nearby
workers.

. The construction of the development is scheduled to be completed by early 2025.

. Staff carparking is limited at the school. Many staff park on the nearby local streets with the time
limit restrictions and limited spaces result in staff leaving classrooms to shift vehicles.

No school expansion is currently planned for as the buildings were upgraded in 2003. Internal
renovations are underway for the heating and air conditioning and other repairs in the heritage building.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing student arrival and departure movements at the North Adelaide Primary School were
observed on Thursday 23 May 2024 from 8 am to 9 am and from 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during AM arrival period
from 8:30 am to 9:30 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the hour before
the school start time, with the peak activity of arrivals between 8:30 am and 9:00 am. The entrances
that were observed are shown in Figure 3.1.

Car making an unsafe U-turn in Gover Street Cars observed double parking in Gover Street

Figure 3.1 AM Peak Safety Issues in Gover Street at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 14

Page 213



Other findings from the AM observations are:

Carparking was generally available across the peak hour in Tynte Street, with vehicles not staying
for more than 5 minutes as shown in Figure 3.2. However, some of the construction workers and
non-school visitors to the area were parking for more than an hour or longer.

Some vehicles stayed longer as parents escorted their children within the school gates.
Some instances of speeds over 25km/h on Gover Street.

The signage does indicate that this only needs to occur when children are present.
Some instances of failure to give way at Emu crossing on Gover Street.

U-turn movements within the street on both Tynte and Gover Street.

Drivers were attempting to change direction at the Gover Street / Margaret Street intersection and
head back towards Lefevre Road.

Pedestrians were likely to use the PAC provided at the front entrance on Tynte Street.

Pedestrians on Gover Street where the traffic volume is low were more inclined to jaywalk on either
side of the emu crossing.

Likely due to the typically lower movements and road width.

A car entering the angle parking on Tynte Street Cars use all of the spaces in the angle parking on
that are delayed the through traffic the north side of Tynte Street in front of the

school entrance

Figure 3.2 AM Parking in Tynte Street at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 15

Page 214



3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during PM departure
period from 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm. The PM period departure profile included a significant movement of
vehicles within a 15-minute timeslot after the school bell. Vehicles occupied most of the carparking
spaces in front of the school in the 30-minute lead up to the school bell, with these vehicles typically
moving on quickly. Some parents in vehicles who stayed for over 30 minutes after the school bell,
gathering in the courtyard near Gover Street.

Parking in Gover Street near the school entrance  Parking in Tynte Street near the school entrance

Figure 3.3 PM Peak Conditions at North Adelaide Primary School

Other findings from the PM observations are:

. Carparking was generally occupied before the school bell and for 10 minutes after the school bell.

—  Workers on O’Connell Street were seen getting into their cars on Tynte Street during the PM peak
period

. Some instances of failure to give way at Emu crossing on Gover Street
. U-turn movements within the street on both Tynte and Gover Street

—  Drivers were attempting to change direction at the Gover Street / Margaret Street intersection and
head back towards Lefevre Road.

. Pedestrians were likely to use the PAC provided at the front entrance on Tynte Street

—  Some situations were observed were parents crossed over Tynte Street mid-block with their
children

. Pedestrians on Gover Street (where the road volume is anticipated to be low) were more inclined to
jaywalk on either side of the Emu Crossing.

Likely due to the typically lower movements and road width
3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

The key issues for students and parents access the school are:

. Carparking was limited during the 15-minute peak periods around both AM and PM peak times. This
was largely attributed to staff and nearby worker demand in the area, especially on Tynte Street.

e Angled carparking in Tynte Street was also difficult to navigate for school drop off / pick up.
. Parents were observed making mid-block U-turn movements in Gover Street.

. Some issues with higher speeds and failure to give way at the Gover Street emu crossing.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 16

Page 215



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment
4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students at the school were developed under three categories,

namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.

e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.

e Safety promotions to increase awareness of the school with warning signage or information.

The options for the assessment are provided in Error! Reference source not found. with a description o
f the initiative and the issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1

Type of Option

Description

School Travel Safety Options for North Adelaide Primary School

Issue Addressed

Drivers do not slow down in the school

Efficiencies

Tynte Street in front of the school to
15-minute parking for the AM and PM
school periods. This parking change
will need to be enforced on a regular
basis.

Infrastructure Convert the emu crossing in Gover

Treatments Street to a koala crossing with zone in Gover Street because the emu
flashing warning lights during the AM | crossing is not obvious with the on-street
arrival and PM departure periods. parking and treed street
Reconfigure the footpath and kerb in Illegal parking in front of the former fire
front of the former fire station station entrance that is currently a no
entrance that is immediately west of stopping zone. This would provide spaces
the student entrance in Tynte Street for short term 15-minute parking close to
to allow for short term 15-minute the student entrance for the Kiss and
parking during the AM and PM school Drop activity.
peak hours. The ‘No Stopping” yellow
line would be removed to allow for
angle parking spaces to be
implemented. This would require
minor changes to the footpath and
kerbing in front of the former fire
station entrance.
Investigate options for safer During the school drop-off and pick-up
pedestrian movements by parents periods, parents and students who are
and students in Tynte Street opposite = walking from the south side of Tynte
the student entrance immediately Street west of the school are crossing
east of the former fire station Tynte Street opposite the student
entrance. entrance.

Operational Change the 1P timed parking areas in | The workers and non-school visitors to

the area are parking in the spaces on the
north side of Tynte Street in front of the
school for extended periods. These angle
parking spaces are needed for the Kiss
and Drop activity at the school because
they are the safest and most convenient
to the school entrance.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 17

Page 216



Type of Option

Description

Organise for more staff to be
available in the AM peak during the
busiest period for student arrivals and
in the PM departure period at the
Tynte Street and Gover Street
entrances.

Issue Addressed

The pedestrian activity for the 15-minute
periods in the AM and PM school peaks is
very busy with safety risks to students.
Students in the AM period are not
organised into queues and in the PM
period they are blocking the footpaths.

Staff parking improvements with the
provision of permits for staff in the
local streets, including Gover Street.
This is not in the scope of this school
travel safety review.

With the limited on-site parking for staff
and the timed parking controls in the
local streets close to the school, many
teachers leave their class to move their
cars during the school day leaving
students unattended for short periods.
This is a safety issue for students
because they are left unaccompanied in
the classroom.

Safety
Promotions

Install additional signage to promote
the school area for traffic approaching
the school zones at the O’Connell
Street and Lefevre Terrace ends of
Gover Street and Tynte Street.

Reinforce the awareness for drivers
entering a “school precinct area”

Prepare a consolidated travel access
guide for students and parents that
would be promoted on the school
website in location that is easy to
find, in additional to the school
newsletter.

Students and parents may not be aware
of their travel choices for bicycle routes,
facilities at the school or public transport
services.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 217

18



4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives are shown on Figure 4.1. They include:

Convert the emu school crossing to a koala pedestrian crossing in Gover Street.

Reconfigure the footpath and kerb in front of the former fire station entrance that is immediately
west of the student entrance in Tynte Street to allow for short term 15-minute parking during the
AM and PM school peak hours. The *‘No Stopping” yellow line would be removed to allow for angle
parking spaces to be implemented.

Implement changes to the timed angle parking on the north side of Tynte Street in front of the
school to be 15-minute limits from 8 am to 9 am and 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm on school days, instead
of the mixture of 15-minute and 1P parking spaces. This will provide additional parking capacity for
the Kiss and Drop activity in Tynte Street.

Investigate options for safer pedestrian movements by parents and students in Tynte Street
opposite the student entrance immediately east of the former fire station entrance.

Installing new unique different school zone advance warning signage at the entry points in Gover
Street and O’Connell Street at the O’Connell Street and Lefevre Terrace ends.

3\ s SRy

)
e

Existing Pedestrian Crossing in Tynte Street O Existing Traffic Signal

25 km/h school zone

Proposed Koala Crossing (flashing lights on
school days from 8 to 9 am, 2:30 to 3:30 pm)

Install new
School Zone

] Add and Modify Timed Parking Spaces warning sign at

el street entry point

Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at North Adelaide Primary School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 19

Page 218



4.2.1 Koala Crossing in Gover Street

Examples of koala pedestrian crossing at primary schools is shown in Figure 4.2. In order to apply for a
koala crossing the DIT Pedestrian Guidelines require the following evidence to be provided to support
the warrant for a koala crossing.

Koala crossing with yellow flashing lights and Koala crossing at St Joseph’s Memorial School in
school crossing monitors at St Ignatius’ College William Street, Norwood
Junior School in Queen Street, Norwood
Figure 4.2 Examples of Koala Crossings at Primary Schools
The DIT warrant for a koala crossing requires pedestrian surveys for two separate one hour periods of a
typical school day with:

. 50 or more children actually cross the road and could reasonably be expected to use the crossing;
and

. 200 or more vehicles per hour pass the site where the children will cross during the same two
hours.

These surveys are usually conducted for the continuous period from 8:00 am to 6:00 pm on a typical
weekday, but may be extended if the time of peak pedestrian movement is outside that period. The
section of road under consideration is divided into zones of approximately 30 m in length.

The numbers of pedestrians categorised according to type (such as Adult / Adult with bike / Child / Child
with bike / Older person / Person with a disability etc) crossing the road in each zone are counted and
the totals recorded for each 15-minute period.

When the category includes ‘bike’, only those who cross the road are counted; not those riding along
the road or footpath. Young children, the elderly and people with a disability should be given greater
recognition in the pedestrian surveys by weighing their numbers. The observed numbers of:

. children under 10 year old who are not accompanied by an adult,

. older people who may exhibit a degree of frailty or difficulty in crossing the road in a timely
manner,

. people recognised as having a disability should be weighted by being multiplied by a factor of 1.5.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 20

Page 219



4.2.2

Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Tynte Street

In order to improve the pedestrian crossing safety to the school entrance in Tynte Street, several
options are provided for further consideration. These options are provided with the advantages and
disadvantages in Table 4.2. They require further site observations, data collection for pedestrian
volumes crossings during the AM and PM school peak hours and a more detailed assessment.

Table 4.2 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Tynte Street

Option Description Advantages Disadvantages

ID

A Relocate the PAC 40 m west | Significantly improves Costly up to $500,000 to
to align with student safety for pedestrians move and reinstate on
entrance and the pedestrian | crossing Tynte Street street parking in front of
desire line. with one crossing located | main entrance to the school.

where most pedestrians  The PAC would be located
want to cross. further west from the
Provides multiple safe bakery and café on the
crossing points in Tynte corner of Tynte Street and
Street for most students. | Margaret Street.

B Apply to install at koala Provides a safer Not accepted by DIT
crossing at the entrance and | pedestrian crossing pedestrian crossing warrants
retain the PAC location for most Costly up to $2000,000 to

students. install a new koala crossing

C Install physical measures to Provides a safer Cost up to $20,000
channel the pedestrians pedestrian crossing Affects access from the
along the footpath on the location for most parked cars and Kiss and
north side of Tynte Street students. Drop activity to the school
between existing PAC and entrance.
student entrance. Pedestrians and school

students would be forced to
use the footpath with
pedestrian congestion
during the school drop-off
and pick-up times.

D Install a median with a fence | A fence will discourage Cost up to $50,000
in middle of Tynte Street. walking across Tynte Not a good urban design

Street at midblock outcome
locations, Impact on bus and large
vehicles in Tynte Street

E Clear trees and plantings Provides an alternate Impact on heritage building
inside the school fence for safe walk route on the facade with removal of
students and parents to walk | school property between | greenery
between the school building | the PAC and main Cost up to $10,000
and the fence in Tynte Street | entrance to the student
between the PAC and the entrance.
student entrance.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 220

21



4.2.3 Signage to Increase the Awareness of the School for Motorists

An issue for school student travel safety is many motorists in Tynte Street and Gover Street are not
aware that North Adelaide Primary School is located here with the heritage buildings that are set-back
from the streets. It is proposed to install larger and more prominent information signage (not regulatory
signage) to increase the awareness of the school. The signs could be installed at either end of Tynte
Street and Gover Street for motorists to see when entering from O’Connell Street and Lefevre Terrace.

Examples of signage at the entry points to a school precinct are shown in Figure 4.3. These information
and advisory advance warning signs are not standard for the DIT guidelines. Council will need to discuss
with DIT about these types of signs that are intended to increase awareness to traffic in Tynte Street
and Gover Street that a primary school is in the

777

\G!

~
J

SCHOOL ZONE

AHEAD

7o

Large entry signage that is visible to traffic on Advanced warning sign for a school zone
the street
Figure 4.3 Alternative School Precinct Warning Signage

4.2.4 Information to Promote Safer Student Travel to the School

The school provides limited information to promote safer student travel to school. Examples of the types
of information brochures, known as school Travel Access Guides in NSW, are provided for a primary
school in Appendix B. The Travel Access Guide is prepared with a consistent template for all government
schools in NSW in collaboration with the school principals and a school travel coordinator.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 22

Page 221



4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost

estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.3. The options were given labels under

the following categories:

. T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

. P for Parking control with new signage or to pavement markings for the on-street parking or a
school zone.

. I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.

Table 4.3 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at North Adelaide Primary School

Option Description Indicative Comments

ID Cost

Estimate

T1 Convert the emu crossing in Gover Up to Council to prepare evidence
Street to a koala crossing with flashing $200,000 to support the warrant for a
warning lights during the AM arrival and koala crossing and liaise with
PM departure periods. DIT for the approval to install

a koala crossing.

Council responsible for the
design and installation if
approved.

T2 Reconfigure the footpath and kerb in Less than The footpath and parking
front of the former fire station entrance | $20,000 controls in front of the
that is immediately west of the student former fire station are under
entrance in Tynte Street to allow for the control of Council to
short term 15-minute parking during design and implement.
the AM and PM school peak hours. The
*‘No Stopping” yellow line would be
removed to allow for angle parking
spaces to be implemented. This would
require minor changes to the footpath
and kerbing in front of the former fire
station entrance.

T3 Investigate options for safer pedestrian | Undetermined | Requires additional data
movements by parents and students in collection, site observations
Tynte Street opposite the student and further analysis to
entrance immediately east of the former determine a preferred option
fire station entrance.

P1 Change the 1P timed parking areas in Less than parking controls in front of
Tynte Street in front of the school to $1,000 the former fire station are
15-minute parking for the AM and PM under the control of Council
school periods. This parking change will to design and implement.
need to be enforced on a regular basis.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 222

23



Description

Indicative
Cost
Estimate

Comments

I1 Install additional sighage and promotion | Less than The selection of information
of the school area for traffic $1,000 signage and installation in
approaching the school zones at the Tynte Street and Gover
O’Connell Street and Lefevre Terrace Street is under the control of
ends of Gover Street and Tynte Street. the Council.

12 Prepare a consolidated travel access No cost to This would be prepared and
guide for students and parents that Council promoted by the school

would be promoted on the school
website in location that is easy to find,
in additional to the school newsletter.

administration.

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 223

24



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads,
Sydney, 2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October
2023, Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control
and protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2:
Code of Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section
9.3 Drop off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 25

Page 224



\
\

.

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY QF
ADELAIDE

School Travel Survey for Students
School: North Adelaide Primary School
Tonkin an behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a survey to determine the main modes of travel for students
to understand the travel behaviour fo the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student sunvey during
the first penod class.
Questions for the Teacher
Date [day/monthfyear):

Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
How ma

Weather |Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
students are absent today in

pur class?

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group

AM Period Travel

Please ask the students with a ‘hands-up” sunsey in the classroom.

How did you travel to school this moming? (I you travelled by more than one mode, please answer with the

longest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scoofer”.]

Main Mode of Travelin the AM Period

Car [as passenger with drop-off in Tynte Strest)
Car [as passenger with drop-off in Gower Strest)

Car (as passenger with drop-off in other streets)

Walk for the entire trip

Number of Students

Bus
Train
Tram

Bicycle, e-bike or moped

Scooter
How will you travel from schoal this afternoon? {If you will travel by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e g. “car” for "car and scoofter”.)
Main Mode of Travelin the PM Period

Number of Students
Car (as passenger with pick-up in Tynte Sireet)
Car (as passenger with pick-up in Gover Street)
Car (as passenger with pick-up in other streats)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Traim
Tram

Bicycle, e-bike or moped

Scooter

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)
Walking for the entire trip

Bicycle, e-bike or scooter

Public Transport {bus, tram or traim)

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 225



Appendix B —School Travel Access Guide in NSW

| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Meadowbank Public School

Travel Access Guide Effective: September 2023

Introduction Kiss and drop expectations

Our school community of parents/carers, staff and * For parents/carers who drive their child/ren to
students live within a reasonable walk or cycle trip school, the kiss and drop rone is located along
of the school. This Travel Access Guide provides Rbodes Street starting from Hermitage Road.

sugges safe and accessible options fo velling ' .
uggested safe and acc ble Sptions for travelling * This space i= a 'No Parking” 2zone, meaning that
10 and from schoo Fn

um of 2 minutes

you may stop for up to a maxi
and move no more than 3 metres from the

Active ways to get to school

vehicle

Walking to and from school S0
Message from our principal
. vialking 15 a fun way o keep actve and
= : ¢ Meadowbank Public School supports sustainable
and environmentally friendly transport practices
[= stct fest '
= - S yras ¢ Students up to B years of age should hold
. taf
: - 3 S the hand of an adult when walking or be
8 .ttt . ! accompanied by an adult when riding
o i DR LOOK. LISTEN and ¢ Students from 8 to 10 years of age shouid be
HINK J he rosd actively supervised by an adult
School bell times
racks are available for everyone Start Times End Times
Ler racks for K-€ ludents S.e0 arr 2:45 pr
The outside school hour times for the primary school
. b ride uir by la >

are: 700 am 45 am and 2245 pm - €00 pm

For more information contact:
School Infrastructure NSW
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det nsw.edu.au

Phone: 1300 482 651 Nsw

www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.govau GOVERNMINT

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 226




| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

LEGEND
=€3= Walking route -
@ Train station \ E‘ e
© Busstop ¥
' Traffic signals
= Safe crossing point
. Meadowbank Schools 7
== Bridge/underpass Y.

End of trip facilities

Playground level:
For students attending
Meadowbank Public School

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 227

.

Please use the Trip Planner at transportnsw.info/ for additional information about cycling routes to the school.




| MSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Where do you ride?

Footpath/shared pathfcycleway:

= Chikdren uredar 16 can ride on a
foatpath

= Aoulns suparvising children under 18 can alsa rds
o tha footpath

* Ba caraful of cars antaring and axiting driveways.

= Watch cut for pedestrians, athar riders ard
animals.

Look aut for I-
pecestrians on

shared paths. Eﬁ}

3 steps to follow
when riding a bike:

Clip, check, chime.

,-J Locee clothing and Rems can ges
h caught in your wheals Seoure any
1 laoae itarms, ke backpack SIraps

n

Wi sl Ble S weldF & Rk

Things to remeambear

ﬂ Alwiys ask yOUr perenis
g your helmst Pnmission to rida.

Crossing the road:
» Baaira caredul

« Walk your BicyCk whien you Cross at a pedestrian
crossing.

Give a metre:

Give padestrians 1 metre of space
wihan riding past.

et

Always remember to
watch out for hazards

ey riclineg eonr Dl
Crack yrur hraine
ke mre e brskey r 4 D wetimee
e weeking. 8 spposdls
Chime your bell O stomgates
R"I = ith o - u Grauval or rocks
7} Shoes with a good tread on t
3 soies will healp you grip the pedals O Lonesia
and profect your feat. Ma ke suns ﬂ Anirmale
wour laces are thed. & Cheroesin the s
I e s arckaer rickar a0 H" Took path oyt ey
e I, charyss pour Esall. aurfscm
For more infarmation contact
School Infrastructure MW
Ermall: schoalinfrastructunsficdat neseduau
Phana: 1500 433 E51
Wty SCNOolInfrastruCTune s g owais Nsw
L]
U ™
ol .

240706 North Adelaide Primary School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 228



Attachment G

2

Pulteney Grammar School
School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491

10 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkm?

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 229



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report Kaitlin Neave | John Devney | John Devney | 10 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 230




Contents

Project: Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] 5 YT o T 3 T ]
(] Lo X T oV o X = 0 ii
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 S oW Ta 1T oL ol I =171 B B T=T o =1 o T P 5
2.4 LI L85 50T oY 00T 7
3 Issues and OpPortuNitiesS . iciiciciiiiiriiiiie i i s s s s i s e ra s s s rsr s r s rnananrnannnnnann 13
3.1 1 =1 =] pTe] Lo L=t gl T = ol U =1~} o 1= P 13
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T V2= o[ o I PN 13
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrtUNITIES ......civiiieii e 14
4 Travel Safety Options and ASSeSSMENt .....cuveverimrrimrrnmrasier s s s s n s an s nn s nnmsnnnnss 15
4.1 (@0 o g FJ B TRV Z= o] ] 0.0 1T o | 15
4.2 Indicative Cost EStimates ... .o 15
L £ = =T 1= o o 16
Appendix A — Student Travel Survey FOrm ...c.ccccivierisierimmssssessmssassesssssassassnsasassasansasassassnnass 17

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 231



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024 ........ccccermvannes 6
Table 2.2 Student Transport Mode Shares for the PM Departures by Year Group in May 2024 .........cccuuuee 6
Table 4.1 Travel Safety Options for Pulteney Grammar SChooOl.......cciciiimrmiersierssr s s s s sassnnass 15
Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Pulteney Grammar School............ 15
Figures

Figure 1.1 Pulteney Grammar School LOCation .......cciiiiiiisieieieiermsnranan s s s s s s s sasa s s snsnsnnn 2
Figure 1.2 Entrances to Pulteney Grammar SChool .........ciieieimimiirnminam s s s s snnn 2
Figure 2.1 Pulteney Grammar School Student Residence Location ANalySiS.......civrimseresarasararararasanssssansnnnnns 4
Figure 2.2 Pulteney Grammar School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024 .........cccvereraranananansnanans 5
Figure 2.3 Gilles Street at Pulteney Grammar SChoOOl.......cicimrararararararamasarsssrsrsnsnsnsssssssssssasasasasasassssssnsssnsnnns 7
Figure 2.4 South Terrace at Pulteney Grammar SChoOOl....ciciuvararararararararansnsnsrsrsnsssssssssssasasasasasasasassssssssnsnnns 8
Figure 2.5 Crash History near Pulteney Grammar SChOOl......c.cccverererararararsrsnssssussnsssssssssssasasasasasasassssnsnsnnnnns 8
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for Pulteney Grammar School ........cccrerererarnnnnnns 9
Figure 2.7 Public Transport Services to Pulteney Grammar School ........c.ciciiiiiiiiisisnsnerrmrmarssssssasnsnnnn. 10
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to Pulteney Grammar School .......ccciiirmirmrsrsrnssiiisis s ssss s s ssnsnns 11
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to Pulteney Grammar SChool ..........ccciiiiiiimieiennmmessnransnsssnsnnnns 12
Figure 3.1 Vehicles Double Parking in Symonds Place south of Gilles Street .........ccciciiiiiiircrinnneraiene. 14
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 232



Executive Summary

Overview

Pulteney Grammar School is a private school that accommodates students from Reception to Year 12.
The school also has an Early Learning Centre (ELC) for children aged 3 to 5 years old that is part of the
Junior School. In Term 2 2024, the school had 876 students enrolled with the number of students by
year groups given are:

e Reception to Year 3 with 158 students (18 per cent)

e Years 4 to 6 with 186 students (21 per cent)

e Years 7 to 9 with 269 students (31 per cent)

e Years 10 to 12 with 263(30 per cent)

Key Findings

The Pulteney Grammar School does not have an enrolment zone and therefore students can live
anywhere in metropolitan Adelaide and regional South Australia. Only 91 students or about 10 per cent
live in the City of Adelaide. With 83 per cent of the students living in the inner metropolitan suburbs,
most would have good access to public transport by train, tram or bus services. The frequent Go Zone
bus corridors have bus stops in King William Street and Pulteney Street at both ends of Gilles Street
within 300 m of the school.

In the AM period, 81 per cent of students travelled to school by car with 74 per cent in the PM period.
This result is likely because parents drop off their children on the way to work in the CBD for the
morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport when the parent is still working
in the PM school departure period. Conversely, public transport was 12 per cent in the AM period and 20
per cent in in PM period.

The walk and cycling modes in the AM and PM periods was only for about six to seven per cent of
students.

Traffic and parking issues near the school were observed on Gilles Street and South Terrace. The traffic
safety issues that are for the City of Adelaide to address are:

e Delays for pedestrians to wait to cross at the PAC signalised crossing in Gilles Street.
e Traffic speeding in South Terrace in the school zone area during AM peak period.

e Parked vehicles extended the time limits in South Terrace that did not provide opportunities for
parents for Kiss and Drop activity close to the school.

Key Recommendations

Options to improve the travel safety for students were developed and include the following
recommendations:

e Install red light cameras along South Terrace around the school zone area.

e Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing Grote Street and improve the pedestrian green
light waiting time during school peak hours.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 233



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public
holidays.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report i

Page 234



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
o Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
e The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss
and Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:
- Existing pick up and drop off areas.
- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.
- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 1

Page 235



1.3 School Location

Pulteney Grammar School is located on Gilles Street in Adelaide city centre on the block bounded by
Gilles Street, Symponds Place, and South Terrace. It is in the immediate west to Gilles Primary School.
The school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

"i"

o
o - I

= 13
, =

| S
i

3
Gilles Street
P,

Figure 1.1 Pulteney Grammar School Location

The entrances to Pulteney Grammar School in Gilles Street and South Terrace are shown in Figure 1.2.

Entrance to Pulteney Grammar School in Gilles Entrance to Pulteney Grammar School from the
Street at Dumphries Place pedestrian bridge over South Terrace

Figure 1.2 Entrances to Pulteney Grammar School

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 2

Page 236



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

Pulteney Grammar School is a private school that accommodates students from Reception to Year 12.
The school also provides an Early Learning Centre (ELC) is part of the Junior School building for children
aged 3 to 5 years old. The ELC closes for two weeks over the Christmas and New Year period. Individual
closure days also occur throughout the year for Pulteney Grammar School professional development.

The school office hours are 8 am to 4:30 pm, Monday to Friday. The bell times are:
e Early Learning Centre (ELC) operates from 7:30 am to 6:00 pm

e Junior School operates from 8.20 am to 3.25 pm

e Middle School operates from 8.15 am to 3.30 pm

e Senior School operates from 8.15 am to 3.30 pm

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in 2024 is for 876 students with a distribution by year as follows:
e 36 students in Reception

e 39 students in Year 1

e 45 students in Year 2

e 38 students in Year 3

e 53 students in Year 4

e 65 students in Year 5

e 68 studentsin Year 6

e 82 students in Year 7

e 98 students in Year 8

e 89 students in Year 9

e 78 students in Year 10

e 88 studentsin Year 11

e 97 students in Year 12

In summary, the number of students by year groups and percentage are:

e Reception to Year 3 with 158 students (18 per cent)
e Years 4 to 6 with 186 students (21 per cent)

e Years 7 to 9 with 269 students (31 per cent)

e Years 10 to 12 with 263(30 per cent)

Reception to Year 3 is the smallest year group with 18 per cent of the student enrolments.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 3

Page 237



The Pulteney Grammar School does not have an enrolment zone and therefore students can live
anywhere in metropolitan Adelaide and regional South Australia. The number of students by areas of
suburb is shown in Figure 2.1. Only 91 students or about 10 per cent live in the City of Adelaide.

300

251

250

200

150

100

Number of Students

50

Student Residence Locations

Figure 2.1 Pulteney Grammar School Student Residence Location Analysis

In Term 2 2024, 820 students or about 94 per cent live in the City of Adelaide or Inner suburbs. The
remaining 56 students are from the outer suburbs or regional areas that are living in metropolitan
Adelaide during the school terms. With over 10 per cent of the students living in the City of Adelaide,
they have options to walk, cycle or use public transport to school. With 83 per cent of the students
living in the inner metropolitan suburbs, most would have good access to public transport by train, tram
or bus services. The frequent Go Zone bus corridors have bus stops in King William Street and Pulteney
Street at both ends of Gilles Street within 300 m of the school.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 4

Page 238



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the Pulteney Grammar School was reviewed through site
observations, a Hands-up travel mode survey to determine the existing school transport modes and a
staff travel survey to confirm their travel to work modes on typical workdays. A copy of the survey form
is included in Appendix A.

The “Hands-up” student travel survey was conducted during the first morning class on Friday 24",
Monday 27%, and Tuesday 28t in May 2024. The findings from the surveys were used to confirm the
existing transport mode shares for:

e Car (as driver)

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)
e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus, Train or Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period for all years
are shown in Figure 2.2. In the AM period, 81 per cent of students travelled to school by car with 74 per
cent in the PM period. This result is likely because parents drop off their children on the way to work in
the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport when the
parent is still working in the PM school departure period. Conversely, public transport was 12 per cent in
the AM period and 20 per cent in in PM period.

The walk and cycling modes in the AM and PM periods was only for about six to seven per cent of
students.

Bike and Bike and Scooter, Walk, 3.5%
0
Scooter, 4.4% Walk, 2.5% 2.7%

Public
Transport,
12.0%

Public Transport,
20.2%

Car, 81.0%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share
Figure 2.2 Pulteney Grammar School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024
240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 5

Page 239



A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the AM arrivals from the survey conducted
in May 2024 is provided in Table 2.1. Key insights from the AM survey results are:

e The students in Reception to Year 6 were mostly driven to school.

e Only seven per cent of the students in Reception to Year 3 used the public transport, walking and
cycling.

e The highest usage of public transport was for students in Years 7 to 9 at 34 per cent. Students in
Years 10 to 12 had 12 per cent less use of public transport, but five per cent more use of cycling at
6.7 per cent than students in Years 7 to 9.

Table 2.1 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024

AM Arrivals

Transport Mode REC to 3 10 to 12 Total
Car 93.3% 89.7% 70.3% 79.1% 81.0%
Public Transport 3.8% 5.2% 24.2% 12.0% 12.0%
Bike and Scooter 1.0% 2.1% 1.6% 6.7% 4.4%
Walk 1.9% 3.1% 3.9% 2.2% 2.5%

A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the PM departures from the survey
conducted in May 2024 is provided in Table 2.2. Key insights from the PM survey results are:

e Three per cent of the students in Reception to Year 3 and 5.8 per cent in Years 7 to 9 walked home.
5.8 per cent of students in Years 7 to 9 walked home from school which is higher than the other year
groups. Over 93 per cent of the students in Reception to Year 3 travelled home by car which is the
same as the AM period.

e 84.5 per cent of the students in Years 4 to 6 were picked up by car which is five per cent less than
the AM period. In the PM period, two per cent more students in Years 4 to 6 waled or cycled home
from school.

e 69.2 per cent of students in Years 10 to 12 used the car mode to travel home.

e The highest usage of public transport was for students in Years 7 to 9 at 28.5 per cent. About 25 per
cent of students in Years 10 to 12 used public transport to travel home which is 12 per cent more
than the AM period.

Table 2.2 Student Transport Mode Shares for the PM Departures by Year Group in May 2024

PM Departures

Transport Mode REC to 3 4to 6 10to 12

Car 93.3% 84.5% 64.2% 69.2% 73.7%
Public Transport 2.9% 8.2% 28.5% 24.7% 20.2%
Bike and Scooter 1.0% 3.1% 1.5% 3.4% 2.7%
Walk 2.9% 4.1% 5.8% 2.7% 3.5%

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 240




2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling, and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network

Access to the school is provided on Gilles Street and South Terrace. The school office is located on
South Terrace.

Gilles Street

Gilles Street is a two-way two-lane Collector, aligned in an east-west direction. It is under the
jurisdiction of the City of Adelaide. Each lane is around 3.6 m to 3.7 m, with concrete central median
islands intermittently placed in the proximity of the school and Gilles Street Primary School.

Sealed footpaths are available on both sides of the street.

An extended 25 km/hr school zone and a PAC is located in Gilles Street for Pulteney Grammar School
and Gilles Street Primary School as shown in Figure 2.3.

-

Gilles Street looking west to the 25 km/h school PAC in Gilles Street for Pulteney Grammar
zone with rubbish bins on the street and footpath  School students to cross the street safely

Figure 2.3 Gilles Street at Pulteney Grammar School

South Terrace

South Terrace is classified as SubArterial, with daily volume estimated to be 16,900 vehicles per day. It
is a two-way road with two lanes for each direction. On-road parking with time restriction is available on
both sides of the road in proximity to the school.

Sealed footpath is along the northern side of the road, while there is a shared user path along the
southern side.

A pedestrian overpass connects the Park Lands sports grounds with the school so that pedestrians and
cyclists can cross over South Terrace safely.

The road layout and the pedestrian overpass of South Terrace are shown in Figure 2.4 with the 25
km/hr school zone.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 7

Page 241



Looking west in South Terrace towards King

William Street with the pedestrian overpass Street and Glen Osmond Road
connecting the Park Lands to the school

Figure 2.4

Looking east in South Terrace to Pulteney

South Terrace at Pulteney Grammar School

2.4.2 Crash History

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 was sourced from DataSA. Over this five-year

period, the crashes by type are shown in Figure 2.5. The crashes in both Gilles Street and South Terrace
near the school were for one minor injury and one property damage only.

s = b [ = ) p = Pope!
P a > o 3
. = 3 - 2 : =)
& = ? v @ Halifax St
= o
30 1 i Halifax St 8.
3@ 8 Halifax St ¥ 5 :
B ——- B s 5 3 g
City South@ (2] =< = = = ¢
5 2 = 2 2
17 5 gz * 59
5 o Florey Pl ) |
o
) =
B @
Todd Pl =
) Gilles St e 8 a
Tiae Pulteney 3’)
Grammar -
Holland St ;S< school =)
P 3
g | 2
E A “uth Tce
(,,2 " " i \ p
— \.outh Tce o’ =3
South Tce = = 3
Crashes 2018-2022 2
i % o
s % . s
» % & 1:PDO
gl
E 53 % 4 O 2M
ol (o4
South Terrace © 2 O3
Figure 2.5

Crash History near Pulteney Grammar School

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 242



2.4.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure 2.6.
The kiss and drop areas are shown in red line. They are next to the school access points on Gilles Street
and South Terrace. These areas have a 10-minute parking restriction from 8am to 9am, and 3pm to
4pm on Monday to Friday.

Parents who do not work in Adelaide CBD are unlikely to regularly drive into the CBD to drop off or pick
up their child. Many students, who 13 years of age or older, are capable of travelling on their own and
would use public transport.

L J 2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO NO STOPPING AT ALL_KIDAY ts:;::;gloilmuxww TIMES @ TIMES‘ FRIDAY 8AM-¢
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY TIMES ® ® & e
STOPPING AT ALL 8AM-NOON o e ]
£S ® ® 2 HR PARKING MONDAY . TO GILLES-S? =

FRIDAY,8AM-6PM SATURDAY
WING MONDAY

10 MIN NO PARKING MONDAY
+—TO FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY

10 MIN NO PARKING MONDAY. 10, MIN NO PARKI TO FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY TO FRIDAY 3PM-4PM
TO FRIDAY. 8AM-9AM MONDAY “TO FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY ¢ cpipay 3pM-4PM
TO FRIDAY 3PM-4PM TO FRIDAY,3PM-4PM w
LOADING MONDAY,TO FRIDAY | : g
8AM-5PM Gilles Street Prim:

\ e
RESIDENTIAL AT/ALL
TIMES \
@ |
| ‘s
1'HR PARKING MONDAY TO
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY \—"—- 1
8AM-NOON \
@
NO STOPPING AT ALL
TIMES
| Pulteney Grammar,

NO STOPPING AT ALL

@mes
NO_PARKING MONDAY;TO \
FRIDAY 8AM-9AM
PRl
'T‘,‘i,g"""‘”“’ = 10 MIN NO_PARKING M
TO FRIDAY, 8AM-9A
10 MIN NO_ PARKING MONDAY
©l 10 MIN NO PARKING MONDAY TO FRIDAY,8AM-9AM MONDAY, NO.STOPPING MONDAY.TO SPUSEN
1'HR PARKING MONDAY TO TO FRIDAY, BAM-9AM TO FRIDAY, 3PM-4PM FR’D 1 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO__| @
“RIDAY,8AM-6PM SATURDAY. CoapMapMIT L e s e g (S —— FRIDAY, 9AM-3PM
3AM:NOON ® 10 MIN PARKING MONDAY,TO UNRESTRICT
FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY.TO _TIMES
2 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO FRIDAY. 3PM-4PM
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY,  ppager 0 AT AL OUTH-TER ===
8AM-NOON o
®
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for Pulteney Grammar School

2.4.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the hub for the public transport in Adelaide with train, tram and bus services for
students to travel to the school. The available public transport facilities within the walkable access from
Pulteney Grammar School are bus stops on King Williams Street and Pulteney Street, and tramline on
King William Street. The closest bus and tram stops that are within a 400 m walk distance to Pulteney
Grammar School are shown in Figure 2.7.

Train services for all metropolitan train lines are at Adelaide Railway Station which is located 1.8 km
north of the school and can be accessed by the free tram services from the City South tram stop in King
William Street at Halifax Street that is 350 m from the south via Gilles Street and King William Street.

Pulteney Grammar School has a regular school bus service that operates from a bus zone in South
Terrace.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 9

Page 243



o = 3 ~ M
g' ¥ 0 o Carrington St
= X st Carrington St 5 z
=  Carrington 9 o 3 2
) = 4 T ® taPl ®
3 o 5 3 2  Mocatta s @
2 - : z ¢ PP -
- o o o
2 2 o ®
o 11 Ellteney St t
S = : = Pope S
Z 5 o 3
1 B : ¢ s ©
= 3 i) w Halifax St
= o
2 @ y i Halifax St @ -
3(,, ™ Hisdtfeo: St o S1 Halifaxst
£ F1 Helifx St I 2 = o)
g e - 0 z o ] =S =
City Sc@v 2] = g oY = 3 %]
= = < = o o
e @ Z a ) o o
o w ~
5 ‘_/’U = Florey Pl r~ |
City South 9 o S
< =
(7] ]
Todd Pl 5
Gilles St
Gilles St G|“FSSt, o
i = - i e
Pulteney Gilgnpstrest <
a - K1 Pulteney St
Grammar o L
Holland St x School 8
5 School =
< <
Y )
= =t
) a P1 Pulteney St h Tce
K1 King William St | south Tce sout
1%} = —
- - South Tce =
South Tce o
~
nds Tl _UV%/ g.
[T
R %
Q L)
2
o S
hT Iz %
5
Sout erragﬁacoc Rd %
Figure 2.7

Public Transport Services to Pulteney Grammar School

2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to the adjacent south park lands
and the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.8.

Both Franklin Street and Grote Street have on-road bicycle lanes on both sides of the road. Sealed
shared paths exist throughout Ellis Park.

No cycle lanes are provided in Gilles Street. A shared user path exists along the southern side of South
Terrace in the Park Lands that connects from Glen Osmond Road to Goodwood Road.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

10

Page 244



FRANKUEINIST

GR(

—

Pulteney

] HALlEA‘X‘IS.I T T

Grammar School

G| i ES]STrmm—

ll :
SOUTH Gilles SOUTEITCE"
o) w .

Xy TCE @B\ Steet

-

< anary School

zZ —

= S

Dl N

~
© >
O >
Ay
Legend
Bike Network Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body
e r Mo Rood’=Blke Lans: 0 Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use
Maio Road Bike Shop (2024) ®  RailTram Stop - Educational Lend
—mcmc Secondary Road - Bike Lane % Boidestion Distance to GPO Retail / Commercial
Jr='Secondaiy Roed o Public Hospital 50m Contour Grwen Space E
p

—=—m Off Road Sealed Path e Traffic Light Maijor Creek Built-Up Residential |'7f|
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to Pulteney Grammar School

2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff, and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops on King William Street, Pulteney Street, and
South Terrace, and tram stops on King William Street.

The footpath network along Gilles Street and South Terrace needs to be well maintained and kept clear
of fallen trees and debris by the City of Adelaide.

The school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD, as shown in Figure 2.9,
which has also shown a 5, 10, and 15-minute walkable catchment areas to Pulteney Grammar School.
Students who walk their entire trip to school are likely walking from Adelaide city centre.

The signalised crossing on Gilles Street and the overpass bridge on South Terrace are the main facilities
walking that connect the foot traffic from the school to the external wider network.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 11

Page 245



q
3§
:cq:'.:'f “?.w«j

GLo
AViny,

- DMAM DRIVE
{DOMALD BRA o
'.zmw‘l”w' s

-

%um: #"E‘J

WINDLEY STREFT

5
S
CoRRiE snn"ﬁ
@ g
5

FRANKLIN STREET.

~

A4

2 grore ""ﬁﬁ"‘f’%"a -
:

WRIGHT STRFET

G suers

2k

| WAYMOUTH 5TREET

8

=
— &
wEseR 3 S
g
g
)

)i

pasE STREET

RUNDAE STHEET

Y~

dnrri s TREet 7

yunpERS STRELT
- :

=

¥ -
Vi é‘;‘“mo‘ﬂua

W4 HTIRYS

FLINDERS EAST)
STREET a

>

ic)
WAKEFILAD),
B sTREEY

-
>

-

=
-
-
»
=
3
-

o Y °
\ ; f - A § 4TREET N
— g ‘é \ ,%. é OUNG STREET “3 s o J
¢ WAYVILLE H 3 q : & 2 o é
F b 3 1 PARKSIDE §
B 3 | E ) =
= \ MUGHES STREET \ —
2 5 " AT
b pansoNs STRECE ; 'a |"
Nu’ﬁ Besven staect B 3 AR, (‘g FREDERICK STREET | WILKINSON ROAD
Legend bt :
eg ; Qoxim
- i ARTHUR 5TREET c o () TERRACE “
_ " Suburbs 1km Walking 2 & |
Ca 4
I = Bus Stops tchment . % I D “
© School Crossings é'as"m Walking - = _E._—-f—""“—-
L Railways Zk:nmx e"r:t i ———————— g—’—_ﬂ—— ‘
alking - = g aest |
* School Entrance Catchment | o WATTLE ST | 5 a
T Pulteney . PARK STREET | Qg 1 LR
Pedestrian L = & 3 | FuLLaRTON
Grammer Crossings \ MALVERN % \
\ L~ ovs HYOE PARK \ 2 \
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to Pulteney Grammar School
240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 246

12



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with Pulteney Grammar School’s principal on 22" May 2024 to discuss existing
issues. The school principal explained that the school does not have significant concerns with traffic
safety or Kiss and Drop issues.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the Pulteney Grammar School were
observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on a typical school day,
on 29t May 2024, 8 am to 9 am, and 3 pm to 4 pm.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The key findings from the AM observations are summarised as follows:

Gilles Street

e The traffic on Gilles Street was in general in an orderly manner, as the central concrete median
island prevented vehicles from speeding or overtaking.

e There is a 25 km/hr school zone in place, and most people were observed to be compliant.

e The pedestrian green light timing at the signalised crossing on Gilles Street near the school gate
appears to be overly lengthy.

e Some drivers were impatient to run across the signalised crossing, resulting in both abrupt braking
and stopping over the crossing and obstructed pedestrians.
South Terrace

e Around 3 to 4 cars were observed to use the entrance area of Sage Hotel Adelaide to drop off
students.

e Several school buses were operating along South Terrace on the northern side with minibuses to
coaches.

e One person was observed crossing South terrace without using the pedestrian overpass.

e Most drivers complied with the 25 km/hr school zone speed limit in South Terrace during the
morning peak hour.

3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The key findings from the PM observations are summarised as below:

Gilles Street
e Much busier traffic than in the morning, therefore vehicles were in general moving at a slower pace.

e The concrete central islands prohibited vehicles from driving around those entering or exiting a
roadside parking space.

e No staff were seen to be operating on Gilles Street to monitor students and traffic during the pick-up
periods.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 13

Page 247



South Terrace
¢ Many students were observed to use the overpass.

¢ multiple school buses were seen operating along South Terrace on the northern side, of both small
and large sizes.

e Many parents arrived at around 3pm to park and wait along the south side of South Terrace. Majority
of them parked longer than the posted limit of 10 minutes, as the bell time is at 3:25 pm and 3:30
pm.

e no staff was seen to be operating on South Terrace.

Symonds Place

e Double parking in Symonds Place south of Gilles Street was observed for student pick-ups as shown
in Figure 3.1.

e No staff were observed to monitor student and vehicle movements in Symonds Place.

e Vehicles stopping in the middle of the road to pick up students and this blocked traffic in the street.

2 o &

Figure 3.1 Vehicles Double Parking in Symonds Place south of Gilles Street

3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Traffic and parking issues near the school were observed on Gilles Street and South Terrace. The traffic
safety issues that are for the City of Adelaide to address are:

e Delays for pedestrians to wait to cross at the PAC signalised crossing in Gilles Street.
e Traffic speeding in South Terrace in the school zone area during AM peak period.

e Parked vehicles extended the time limits in South Terrace that did not provide opportunities for
parents for Kiss and Drop activity close to the school.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 14

Page 248



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

4.1 Options Development

Options to improve the travel safety for students were developed under two categories, namely:
e Operational efficiencies

e Increased awareness of the area

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 Travel Safety Options for Pulteney Grammar School
Type of Option Description Issue Addressed

Operational Review the signal timing at the signalised | Improve the travel time for students
Efficiencies crossing on Gilles Street and improve the | and parents

pedestrian green light waiting time during
school peak hours.

Increased Install red light cameras along South The speeding behaviour around the
awareness of Terrace. school zone on South Terrace.
the area

4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates

e The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in S for Signal timing changes at an intersection.

Table 4.2. The options were given labels under the following categories:

e T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

e S for Signal timing changes at an intersection.

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Pulteney Grammar School
Option Priority Assessment Indicative Comments
Cost Estimate
T1 Install red light cameras along South $200,000 Council to apply to DIT for
Terrace around the school zone area. installation of the cameras.
S1 Review the signal timing at the $3,000 Requires consultation with
signalised crossing Grote Street and DIT for approval
improve the pedestrian green light
waiting time during school peak hours.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 15

Page 249



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads,
Sydney, 2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105.

e Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October
2023, Appendix C School Zones.

e Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024.

e Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code
of Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3
Drop off and pick up zones, page 34.

e School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024.

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 16

Page 250



Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF
ADELAIDE
School Travel Survey for Students
School: Pulteney Grammar School

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a survey to determine the main modes of travel for students to
understand the travel behaviour to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student survey during the
first period class.

Questions for the Teacher
Date (day/month/year):
Weather (Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
How many students are absent today in your class?

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group
Please ask the students with a 'hands-up'survey in the classroom.

AM Period Travel

How did you travel to school this morning? (If you travelled by more than one mode, please answer with the longest
part of your journey - e.g. "car" for "car and scooter".)
Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period
Car (as driver)
Car (as passenger with drop-off)
Walk for the entire trip

Bus

Train

Tram

Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

Number of Students

PM Period Travel

How will you travel from school this afternoon? (If you will travel by maore than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e.g. "car" for "car and scooter".)
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Number of Students
Car (as driver)
Car (as passenger with pick-up)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter
If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)
Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter
Public Transport (bus, tram or train)

240706 Pulteney Grammar School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 251



Attachment H

]

ST DOMIN

St Dominic’s Priory College
School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

City of Adelaide

CLC003491
8 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkin P

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 252



Document History and Status

Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved
A Draft Report John Devney | James Arnold | James Arnold 8 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 253



Contents

Project: St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(=Y 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o = o o T3 PP i
N 5] o Y o T 3 ifi
(] Lo XT=T= T Vo1 = o 0 e iii
I 13 1o e 1T ot o' Y 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P TP 1
1.2 S U o AV U T o Yo LI Lo BT oo o1 PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ o 1P 2
b N =513 1 Yo 000 Y 3 T [ o'oY 5 S 4
2.1 1T ol a0 B0 o= =1 o] o 1= PP 4
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANal Y SiS ..ot it e e i e 4
2.3 S oW Ta 1T oL o I =171 B =T o =1 5 T PP 5
2.4 LI L1050 oY 00T 6
3 Issues and OpPortUuNitieS . iciiciiiieiiiiiriiie i i s s s s s s s s s rr e rrasrasr s anaranrnannnnnnnn 14
3.1 1 =1 =] pTe] Lo L=t gl T = ol U =1~} o 1= P 14
3.2 1] 1= @0 T=]=T V2= o[ o I PN 14
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrtUNITIES ......civiiiieii e 16
4 Travel Safety Options and ASSeSSMENt .....cuvcverierrimrrrera i s s s s s n s an s nn s snnsnnnss 17
4.1 (@0l g F T B TRV Z= o] ] 0.0 1T o N 17
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety INitiatives ... 18
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost ESHIMAtes ..o 21
L 2= =T 4T o T o= 23

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 254



Tables

Table 2.1 Local Streets at St Dominic’s Priory College......cucvuimrararararararrasarsrsrsnsssssssssssssssasasasasasasssassssssnnns 6
Table 2.2 Local Road Network Attributes at St Dominic’s Priory College ......ccivririmimimimnanesasasassasanasassssnns 6
Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at St Dominic’s Priory College ......ccvriririmimnmnanasasasasasassnasanannnnss 6
Table 2.4 Parking Types at St Dominic’s Priory College ......cucvuimrmrararararrarararsrsrsnsnsssssssssssssasasasasasasassssssnnns 8
Table 2.5 Public Transport Services at Stop 5A in Hill Street at St Dominic’s Priory College........c.cxerurai 10
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for St Dominic’s Priory College........cieruririmmmnmnmsararararanasassssnsnnnss 17
Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at St Dominic’s Priory College........... 22
Figures

Figure 1.1 St Dominic’s Priory College LoCation......ciuvrisisieieiamssasasasasssassssrsssssnsssnsssssssssssasasasasasassssssnsssnsnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Entrances to St Dominic’s Prory College ......iciveiararasarararasasasassrsssssnsnsnsssssssssssasasasasassssssssnsssnsnnns 3
Figure 1.3 Entrances to St Dominic’s Priorty College in Barnard Street and Molesworth Street................. 3
Figure 2.1 St Dominic’s Priory College Student Residence Location AnalySiS.....ciuveiesesararasararararararassssnnnnns 4
Figure 2.2 St Dominic’s Priory College Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024........c.cccrerererarananannnans 5
Figure 2.3 Crashes on School Days at St Dominic’s Priory College.......ccrurirriririsismsnsnsmsmammaramasasssasasnsnnnnns 7
Figure 2.4 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for St Dominic’s Priory College.........cccveirurminnranannns 8
Figure 2.5 Public Transport Services to St Dominic’s Priory College ........ciciiriririmisisisiemsmasasasmsasssasasasnnnnns 9
Figure 2.6: Grant's Coachlines Bus at St Dominic's Priory College .......cciiririririmimimisisimmnmsmnasasssssnsnnnn 10
Figure 2.7: St Dominic's School Bus Service operated by Grant’'s Coachlines..........cccocvimirinirirararnnnnnnn. 11
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to St Dominic’s Priory College ........cccvarmmmmminerrnrsmnsmsismsmsmsmsmsmassasssasasnsnsnnnns 12
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to St Dominic’s Priory College ....cciuriririmimiminsasasasasasarassssssssssnnnns 13
Figure 3.1 AM Peak Conditions at St Dominic’s Priory College ........cccirmirirermimnrrisnmrmsssrsssssrsssssasannans 14
Figure 3.2 PM Peak Conditions at St Dominic’s Priory College ........ccccicrimirmmimirrmmnmrmsrs s ssasannans 15
Figure 3.3 PM Peak Safety Issues in Gover Street at St Dominic’s Priory College .........ccicveimirereiniranannnnans 16
Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at St Dominic’s Priory College.........ccicririrmrmimirremssssrasssnramsnssasanans 19
Figure 4.2 Pedestrian Refuge Example — Hill Street / Molesworth Street...........cccoiiiirirsrsrsrissnnn. 20
Figure 4.3 Alternative School Precinct Warning SigNage .......cccvrererrrsrrssssssssssmsssmssssssssasssasassasasssnsnsnns 21
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B -Term 1 Road Safety and Transport News
Appendix C - NSW School Travel Access Guide

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 255



Executive Summary

Overview

St Dominic’s Priory College is a private school that comprises Reception to Year 12 with an enrolment of
1,226 students in Term 2 2024 with the distribution of students by year as follows:

e 107 students in Year R to 3
e 233 students in Year 4 to 6
e 228 students in Year 7 to 9
e 658 students in Year 10 to 12

Key Findings

The St Dominic’s Priory College does not have an enrolment area so students can live and travel from
anywhere. However, most students reside in inner Adelaide suburbs with clusters of students in Port
Adelaide and Elizabeth that have special bus services to the school.

The student travel surveys that were conducted in May 2024 showed the following:

e The car mode share is 81 per cent in the AM period and 79 per cent in the PM period so that most
students are travelling by car.

e Public transport is used by 15 per cent of the students in the AM period and over 20 per cent the PM
period. The PM departure period has 6 per cent more students using public transport than in the AM
period, and 2 per cent fewer students using private vehicles. This result is likely because parents drop
of their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel
home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure period.

e The bicycle mode share is less than three per cent and walk mode share is less than two per cent that
indicates a very low interest in travelling by active transport modes.

From the discussions with the school and the site observations, the following student travel safety
issues were identified:

. Double parking was continuous over a 20-minute period on Barnard Street. This exceeded 125m in
length, reaching to the Mills Terrace intersection.

. Angled carparking in Molesworth Street was also difficult to navigate for school drop off / pick up.

. Large crossing distances across Molesworth Street at the Hill Street intersection resulted in issues
with pedestrian / vehicle conflicts.

. Some issues with jaywalking across Molesworth Street and Barnard Street

. Many staff park on the nearby local streets (mostly Molesworth Street) with the time limit
restrictions and limited spaces result in staff leaving classrooms to shift vehicles.

Key Recommendations

Infrastructure Treatments

e Ban the right turn movements from Molesworth Street into Hill Street during peak periods.

e Rearrange the car spaces in Molesworth Street with a parallel parking to provide a formal 2-minute
Kiss and Drop zone near the entrance to the student entrance (Years 7 to 11).

e Extend the existing Kiss and Dop area in Barnard Street for the junior school.

e Provide a central median within the Molesworth Street corridor between Hill Street and Barnard
Street. This could also be explored along Barnard Street.

e Investigate the inclusion of further pedestrian crossings mid-block of Molesworth Street and Barnard
Street. This could be integrated with a central median treatment.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 256



Operational Efficiencies

e Staff parking improvements with the provision of permits for staff in the local streets, mostly focused
on the 4P sections on Molesworth Street. This is not in the scope of this school travel safety review.

Safety Promotions

¢ Install additional signage to promote the school area for traffic approaching the school zones at the
Hill Street and Mills Terrace ends of Molesworth Street and Barnard Street.

e Prepare a consolidated travel access guide for students and parents that would be promoted on the
school website in location that is easy to find, in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 257



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report iii

Page 258



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
o Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss and
Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:

- Existing pick up and drop off areas.

- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 1

Page 259



g

1.3 School Location

St Dominic’s Priory College is located on both sides of Hill Street between Molesworth Street and
Barnard Street in North Adelaide. The school site and the existing surrounding environs are shown in
Figure 1.1.

Figure 1.1 St Dominic’s Priory College Location

The school provide a copy of the college floorplan as shown in Figure 1.2 that are located:
e Barnard Street for the junior school (Reception to Year 6)

e Molesworth Street for the college administration offices and Years 7 to 11.

e Hill Street on the eastern side for Year 12.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 2

Page 260



YEAR 12 CENTRE BARNARD ST e ’
o - 'I < ST DOMINIC’S
SR o1 2 |5 aumes DUORGOT | ppRiORY COLLEGE
152‘06 z F,_ : r}—a}fﬁ "r;‘l ' e M LOWER LEVEL
Lo e sio
i | § I TR e T
128 $2 - MEETING2 gy -y ROOM LOMER
B $3-1N =7 L : el
7 [} S5
['L* Tl
- TUCKSHOP

L ISL| 1w
A

EL“ T T ~ ' <
JUNORSCENCELAB T iy smo2
: . % ﬁ DRAMA

- - L_jj Ivi“.“f‘?_i b

[
FRHIS W2 H3 H4 T | HS H6
HILLST [ 15 | 11 1in B
2]

|
|
|
EMERGENCY
{ UART, [POTTERY .. > r | ASSEMBLYPOINT
:counmno FABLAB T L A,
m2 i T h |
PLAYING
CONVENT P SHBBAOIN ' / | OLD CONVENT | I FIELD
e . COURTYARD |
]1721@ || |
THE SPACE Iy F-I Jo I
) ADMINISTRATION
' T ey thatl | |
CHAPEL } | g 4
| bl _ X
MOLESWORTH ST ‘ — T CoEGEREETION
Figure 1.2 Entrances to St Dominic’s Prory College

The student entrances in Barnard Street and Molesworth Street are shown in Figure 1.3.

W

Entrance to the Junior School on Barnard Street Entrance for students to Years 7 to 11 in
Molesworth Street

Figure 1.3 Entrances to St Dominic’s Priorty College in Barnard Street and Molesworth Street

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 261



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

St Dominic’s Priory College comprises years Reception to 12. Students can enter the school building at
8:30 am. They are to be seated in their home class by 8:40 am. For the PM, the Junior School which is
Years R to 6 finishes at 3:10 pm. The Middle (Years 7 to 9) and the Senior School (Years 10 to 12)
finishes at 3:25 pm.

The school office hours are 8 am to 4 pm on school days.

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 was for 1,226 students with a distribution by year as follows:
e 107 students in Year R to 3

e 233 students in Year 4 to 6

e 228 students in Year 7 to 9

e 658 students in Year 10 to 12

The St Dominic’s Priory College does not have an enrolment area so students can live and travel from
anywhere. However, most students reside in inner Adelaide suburbs with clusters of students in Port
Adelaide and Elizabeth that have special bus services to the school. The humber of households by sub
areas for groups of suburbs in the inner and outer metropolitan areas is shown in Figure 2.1.

400
YearsRto 3 mYears4to 6 357
350
Years7t0 9 M Years10to 12

300
i}
c 250
L+]
e
2
wn
‘G 200
a 160
g 150
< 12512 133

100

55 56 58
0 51 46
28 20
o0 1 2 1.2 ¢ 6
0 — — ||
Adelaide North Adelaide Inner North Other Inner Outer Suburbs
Suburbs Suburbs
Residence Location
Figure 2.1 St Dominic’s Priory College Student Residence Location Analysis
240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 4

Page 262



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the St Dominic’s Priory College was reviewed through site
observations and a student travel mode survey on a typical school day. The student travel mode survey
form is included in Appendix A.

The “Hands-up” student travel survey was conducted during the first morning class on Thursday 30 May
2024. The findings from the surveys were used to confirm the existing transport mode shares for:

Car (as driver)

Car (as passenger with drop-off)

Walk for the entire trip
e Bus, Train or Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

A total of 650 students were surveyed.

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.2. The car mode share is 81 per cent in the AM period and 79 per cent in the PM period so
that most students are travelling by car.

Public transport is used by 15 per cent of the students in the AM period and over 20 per cent the PM
period. The PM departure period has 6 per cent more students using public transport than in the AM
period, and 2 per cent fewer students using private vehicles. This result is likely because parents drop of
their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel
home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure period. The bicycle
mode share is less than three per cent and walk mode share is less than two per cent that indicates a
very low interest in travelling by active transport modes.

Bike and Scooter, Walk, 1.7% Bike and Scooter Walk

2.8% 0.0% 1.2%

Public
Transport
20.2%

Public
Transport,
14.6%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.2 St Dominic’s Priory College Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 5

Page 263



2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network

The streets in the local road network at St Dominic’s Priory College are provided in Table 2.1. The front
entrance and main office of the school is provided on Molesworth Street. The rear entrance, and location
of the kiss and drop area, is located on Barnard Street.

Table 2.1 Local Streets at St Dominic’s Priory College
Road Classification Relevance to the School
Molesworth Street | Local street 2-way traffic in on the northern side of the school and the

location of the front entrance. Informal kiss and drop area

Hill Street Local street 30 m opposite school on both sides of street; PAC located
mid-block to facilitate smooth movements between east and
western sides

Barnard Street Local street Rear entrance of the school with a Kiss and Drop area

Mills Terrace Local street 100 m from school, unlimited parking used by P-platers

The attributes of the local road network at St Dominics are summarised in Table 2.2. In areas where no
data was provided, the field was labelled as not applicable (n/a). Generally, the posted speed limit was
obeyed by drivers in the area.

Table 2.2 Local Road Network Attributes at St Dominic’s Priory College

Number Daily Traffic Posted Speed Average 85th Percentile
of Lanes Volumes (km/h) Speed (km/h) Speed (km/h)

Molesworth 2 486 50 43.1 52.0

Street

Hill Street 2 2,212 50 40.0 48.5

Barnard 2 411 50 33.1 45.0

Street

Mills Terrace 2 326 50 36.5 45.0

The road network north, south and east of the main campus are included within a 25km/h school zone
during AM and PM peak times. As noted previously, a PAC is provided on Hill Street and is typically
manned by students and teachers.

Table 2.3 Local Road Network Attributes at St Dominic’s Priory College
Road 25 km/h School Zone in Street Type of Crossing in Street ‘
Molesworth Street Yes none
Hill Street Yes PAC
Barnard Street Yes none
Mills Terrace No none
240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 6

Page 264



2.4.2 Crash Analysis

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 (five-year period) has been sourced from DataSA.
During this time there has been the following crashes within direct vicinity of the school:
e Bernard Street: 2 property damage crashes

o Hill Street: 2 property damage crashes

- Intersection with Bernard Street: 1 property damage crash
- Intersection with Molesworth Street: 1 property damage crash

The crash statistics by location near the St Dominic’s Priory College are shown in Figure 2.3
-

S <"
S 3 % oW 5
& E NG 2
% & (k1] S gar'? 0
* o B 5
% y g 7y
©, A 3\
)( ® =
/o 3 @
%% S cnider
’  eret
?/)& @,0
v
North Adelaide()
[\
IS) g\ylx\o‘ %% “\)ﬂ\e St
£ 2
wn
? gé anort™ S '%
= "% Ao\e> >
o
> Ba‘“md
®
orin'® (]S
st D% oneg® b
prio
nard
Crashes 2018-2022 pal :
S ward S s,
1:PDO S 2
> e -
. - Terrac -
® 2:Ml = S“a“gwa\isT )
© 33l

Figure 2.3

Hue ns

Crashes on School Days at St Dominic’s Priory College

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

7
Page 265



2.4.3

Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The types of carparking provided in the streets surrounding the school are provided in Table 2.4. These
parking controls are also shown in Figure 2.4.

Table 2.4
Road

Molesworth Street

Type of Parking
Angled Timed

Parking Types at St Dominic’s Priory College

Time Restrictions

4-hour parking Monday to Friday 8 am to 6 pm

Hill Street

Angled Timed

3-hour parking Monday to Friday 8 am to 6 pm

Barnard Street

Parallel Timed

3-hour parking Monday to Friday 8 am to 6 pm

Mills Terrace

Unlimited on the west
side, Parallel Timed on
the east side

3-hour parking Monday to Friday 8 am to 6 pm

UNRESTRICTED AT ALL*
_TIMES

4 HR PARKING MONDAY. TO
PR BAM-6PM

4 HR PARKING MONDAY. TO
-G BAM-6PM

4 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
R IDAY A 6PM

4 HR PARKING MONDAY TO.
FRIDAY. EAM-GW

4 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY, aAM-szd

4 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO.
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

4 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO e

FRIDAY BAM-6PM

30 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO,
FRIDAY,6AM-8aM_
i @ 2 HR DISABLED AT ALL
S TIMES

504N PARKING HONDAY.TO

.5 MIN PARKING MONDAYTO

FRIDAY 6AM-8AM

®; 1R PARKING MONDAY TO

FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO®.
FRIDAY BAM-6PM
UNRESTRICTED AT ALL

 UNRESTRICTED AT ALL
TIMES

4 HR PARKING MONDAY - TO
FRIDAY BAM-GPM

30 MIN PARKING MONDAY. TQ,
FRIDAY, GAM-8AM

5 UNRESTRICTED
oRFHS ® @Mo STOPPING AT ALL @
woresoe e . TvEs
LOADING AT ALLTIVES |
P  UNRESTRICTED

NO STOPPING MONDAY TO

UNRESTRICTED AT ALL
TIMES
i & FRIDAY 7:30AM-6PM

\

&
NO STOPPING AT ALL

*
4 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO. (\U"REF”“UED | “FRIDAY 6AM-8AM 'NO STOPPING AT ALL
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM UNRESTRICTED - = \/ TIMES TIMES
® —— \
) St Dominics Priory] NO STOPPING MONDAY.TO
Ly FRIDAY, 7.30AM—6W’I®
" UNRESTRICTED AT ALL BUS AT ALL TIMES
TIMES Y g [
// 3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO! NO STOPPING AT, ALL"
{ | FRIDAY 8AM-6PMG,
'S/ TIMES
\ \ NO STOPPING AT ALL [
oAy Al P \ \ THMEST T h — 3 1R PARKING MONDAY.TO
@ = \ % FRIDAY BAM-6PM
=R\ _\ \ 3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO®. L4
" \ FRIDAY BAM-6PM A
3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY.
‘F? TO FRIDAY 9AM-5:30PM.
e, 3 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO
" FRIDAY BAM-6PM 3 HR AREA PARKING MONDAY
\ 3 HR PARKING MONDAY, TO [ ] TO FRIDAY 9AM-5:30PM
3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO \ FRIDAY 8AM-6PM
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM \ NO PARKING MONDAY.TO L
® 3 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO,

UNRESTRICTED

4 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY 8AM-GPM

4 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
INFRIDAY 8AM-6PM

3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
- G

3 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO,
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM s

3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
FRIDAY AM-6PM
3 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO ®
FRIDAY. 8AM~62~1

@5 1R PARKING HONDAY,TO
FRIDAY BAM-6PM
3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
4 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO FRIDAY 8AM-6PM
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM [

(5113 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO
NO STOPPING AT ALY ' ERIDAY SAM-6PM
mes &)

FRIDAY 8AM-9AM MONDAY.TO

3 HR PARKING MONDAY,TO
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

3HR lgRKING MONDAYTO. g
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO

FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

FRIDAY 3PM-4PM GO

3 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO®.

FRIDAY 8AM-6PM

BM‘NP&DS‘

& 3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
3 HR PARKING MONDAY TO _ FRIDAY 8AM-6PM
FRIDAY BAM-6PM L 2

2 HR PARKING AT ALL
TIMES

2 HRPARKING AT ALL'
TIMES

NO STOPPING AT AL
TMES
N0 sroppivG AT ALS/ e S
™ES, (g
2 HR PARKING AT ALL
TIMES

2 HR PARKING AT/ ALL

NO STOPPING AT, ALL [RSVSAT ALLTIMES

.3 HR PARKING MOND# ' = ¥ 1
7 .\ Fuoarsse T Parking Control Points [E] Bus & Motorcycle  ® Permit Unrestricted
o RS ORI o o park] ; g © Residential © Visit
o® rea Parking El Disabled ® No Parking esidentia isitor
NO STOPPING AT AL NOSTOPPING.  ®  Area Ticket 2 . w Taxi A Work Zone
M TIM ®
0 25 50m @1 s & SE:RPAW _ Loading & No Stopping U
| eSS ST Eleycle ¢ Mail Van e Pparking Ticket

Figure 2.4

On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for St Dominic’s Priory College

On-street parking on both sides of Barnard Street is used for Kiss and Drop activity on school days.
Double parking was observed from the kiss and drop spot at the southern entrance to the Mills Terrace

intersection.

A small area located near the front entrance on Molesworth Street is provided for informal Kiss and Drop
activity. However, most pick up and drop off activity occurs in the angled parking along both sides of

Molesworth Street.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 266



2.4.4 Public Transport

Public transport services to St Dominic’s Priory College are provided very conveniently at bus stop 5A in
Hill Street as shown in Figure 2.5. Routes 251, 252, 253 and 254 that are in a Go Zone to Hawker
Street and the Route 98 Connector bus operate from these stops. The school has two special services

operated by Torrens Transit under contract to Adelaide Metro from Elizabeth in the AM period and to
Adelaide CBD in the PM period.

Other bus routes that operate in a Go Zone corridor to Adelaide CBD are within a 400 m walk along
Molesworth Street to Stop 5 in Jeffcott Street (Routes 230, 232, 235, 238 and 239) and within 1 km to
O’Connell Street for the Routes G10 and 222

Yo @
wolesW® 5
2
E < worth St 2,
= ,/ \eS o-
J s :
o®©
) @ 5A Hill St
(4]
o
worth &t
\eS
WEL s i SR o) sarils
o |
2 St o\\eg Bama‘d St
- ;
C x\O
L £ T s
= gt
v 22
9
L.
® Y
gamar® P ) $3
24 =
Py =
) X
4 o) "@ 5 Hill St orrace Wward S
% %; Straﬂgwa\’ @ 5 Strangways Tce
-~
o© w9,
O, >
()
(3]
k s\ errac®
c S“a“gw }
Telfd
Strand%

Figure 2.5

Public Transport Services to St Dominic’s Priory College

The arrival or departure times of the bus services at Stop 5A in Hill Street are listed by route number

within one hour of the school AM and PM bell times in Table 2.5. The school promotes these bus services
in the newsletter at the start of each school year and are included with the road safety information in
Appendix B.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 267



Table 2.5 Public Transport Services at Stop 5A in Hill Street at St Dominic’s Priory College

Stop 5A Direction Route Timetable Schedule

98C to North Adelaide 8:14 am, 8:44 am, 3:14 pm, 3:44 pm
Northbound West | 251 to Port Adelaide 8:41 am, 8:56 am, 3:13 pm, 3:29 pm, 3:36 pm,
side from Adelaide CBD 3:45 pm

477 from Elizabeth 8:14 am

98A to Adelaide CBD 7:29 am, 8:29 am, 8:59 am, 3:29 pm, 3:59 pm

251 and 252 from Port 8:04 am, 8:11 am, 8:19 am, 8:34 am, 8:49 am,
Adelaide to Adelaide CBD | 8:57 am, 3:30 pm, 3:15 pm, 3:31 pm, 3:47 pm,
4:02 pm

Southbound East
side

958 to Adelaide CBD 3:35 pm

St Dominic’s Priory College has organised and chartered school bus services contracted to Grant’s
Coachlines with the buses shown in Figure 2.6. In May 2024, a special bus route was implemented with
Adelaide Metro fares and tickets from the school. The service operated with one trip in the AM period
from Port Adelaide and in the PM period to Port Adelaide with stops all the route. The route travels north
of the school and stops at Port Adelaide. The route and timetable with key stop times are provided in
Figure 2.7.

e

Grant’s Coachlines bus in Hill Street with the Shuttle bus in Barnard Street for the junior
timetable to Port Adelaide school students

Figure 2.6: Grant's Coachlines Bus at St Dominic's Priory College

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 10

Page 268



ST DOMINIC’S
PRIORY COLLEGE

EDUCATING CIRLS, INSPIRING CONFIDENCE

\ L=y Zone D Port Adelaide
! “ Winterchange - East side Ottoway

Stop 29C P.:lrk
Ave - North side

Stop 27 Trafford
St-

School Bus

North Service

East side

o “ Blair At
|
Il

| ‘,‘
land |
|
\
Zone D Arndale | B R
akes | Interchange o)
i
|
I 1 Woodville ‘.
I ) | 2
il Q L If
i Stop 18 Torrens I
s i Rd - North side a |
LOCATION AM M " | Prospect
|
Port Adelaide Interchange Commercial Rd East Side Zone D 7.45am | 16.20pm ‘\l
Wd Jur yte } 19an 5.15pm ’I
stk Aven a 10pm Stop 12'Hawker a
u St-North side L
Trafford n ark 27 ) r R R
- s cals i G Brompt
Arndale Shopping Centre Bus Interchang Zone D \Sar Opm
Road Croyd Par 8 " ‘ m
tawker S y ) ' m y
& inic’s Priory, North
Hill St North Adelaide — St Dominic's Priory College S5A 8.30am 15.35pm T CoHege,‘ Adelaide Adelaide
] i

Catching the bus

The dedicated bus will be branded with St Dominic's Priory College logos, making it easy for the girls to

identify.

St Dominic's/Grant's Coachlines school bus will stop at all Adelaide Metro yellow bus stops along the route.

Please ensure students clearly hail the bus as it approaches.

Fares

Tickets are available for purchase from the College Reception starting Monday 20 May, Week 4.

The prices of tickets are as follows:

® $2.40 for a Single Trip
e $20 for Ten Trips

e $180 for a Term Pass (available for purchase from Term 3).

ST.DOMINIC'S PRIORY COLLEGE
139 Molesworth Street.

North Adelaide SA 5006
(08) 8331 5100

Figure 2.7: St Dominic's School Bus Service operated by Grant’s Coachlines

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 269

11



2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.8. Hill Street has an on-road bicycle lane on

both sides of the road. Storage space for 12 bicycles is provided on the eastern side of the campus,
nearby to the Hill Street PAC.

,vjt“ 7 t %v:"\
7o sure® YW
s &ﬁfy ! cnee” S
“U 25 o ; :
5 K
4 x,’e e o ,@o}f - %
‘s yﬂjyl s (Y
vy 3 O'CONNEL
&(ej;;%f g:@ STREET
’ o Y
y & [\}
o et o ey,
pp’ North Adelaitie Bt g \
77 ‘ X
f @f : 1 \
:f&ip %?‘ V’g
Vil 4 b “& w;tvlglzon \
’0 [} & y
} V) 4 [}
N4 3 ; \
”’iﬁ . ’g@ ;
ﬁ&’f % %Qa oy =
"] - * ] = RV
F v@% ALui:ra
; uthe
’ Tetya Wodli ) ‘3@ Colle
Y i : 0
Priory College | 2R -y
4 sue %
L Q
* Calvary North %3@
Adelaid L g X3
H(ospm: ward P {‘@
S [\
(|
Y«%%
)
| '
18 %
I8 % 59%6
, 3 9
) K L)
b % Legend N
‘%! % o Pedestrian Crossings Off Road Track; Off
[ x < Road Sealed Path
4 Secondary Road - Bike
3 Lane E
A 'St Dominic's Priory
}; I @ e Main Road - Bke Lane/ p, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FoyliuSR\METI/
I ﬁ@ * St Dominic's Priory 0 60 120 ofdNeters
'} Entrances | S S O N S |
4R Golf Club
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to St Dominic’s Priory College
2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops in Hills Street.

Pedestrian access routes to the high school are via:

e Sealed footpaths exist along all road corridors to the school.
e Footpaths through the path network in the nearby parklands.

The walkable catchment areas for 1km, 1.5km and 2km to St Dominic’s Priory College are shown in

Figure 2.9. Students who walk their entire trip to school are likely walking from North Adelaide, the Mile
End Train Station, and suburbs such as Bowden and Ovingham.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 12

Page 270



<N
AREET et
st pDM:;DM TREE

P oS

<
STREE
=

REET

AL

-
prnIPSsy

=2

133418
1l

THEBARTON

3 LIGHT

TERRACE

;ﬁ(_w%g’ﬁnm ;:
@

%

| 13

"2 Suburbs

% BELFORD HARVEY STREET °i
|§, AVENUE ";I.
] a 2
8 DEVON PARK ] NAILSWORTH 3|
2 b
2 ) =
H —_— ] 2 z
& r,_,j\ s = A
[a] —— [
(o} 2 5 2
g
| = 2 PROSPECT BALLVILLE STREET |
T ju) z HARRINGTON MIBINDI
/ \"\o,?* RENOWN PARK 3 C — = GARDENS
&4, = o ENUE 3
S g et ] emen g % l
2 5 < 5 — e m——=
= % £ 3 T OTTAGE TERRACE
n /
— =} 2
' H H 4
| e e e rd
\ 1
> Lo, S S -—-—_'-‘ BUTTON TERRACE —
7 o= T
SRS <
=] ", ] \
g |
& y; Zx | FITZROY MEDINDIE
¥
/ z |
% g =]
BROMPTO "v;,,r 7 %
Lo o —
5, OVINGHAM L A ———
3 // i /L o TRRALEY ITZROY TERRACE
» FA
n /
&
& 2
4 v
& & 7 =]
& &
55 %o,
75 o
&
s,
€
o

’

AN Klitg 1

'S WiLLIAT
| ROAD

e

“lﬂ

RIS

____avo
— g

s

annaay 3A0LHIA

e =0
E,’;% =t 2% E
. 8| m 3
1km Walking it O = ‘l'i:?éf
23
&= Bus Stops Catchment L 4 5 ADELAIDE oz
km Walki HNp T G b L b=
i b L=t < Ty
© school Crossings L.5km Walking =3 = o e
i Catchment == (= ?gsm%ﬁ &= %lig = GREMFELL STREE -§
—— Railways CURRIESTREET <ur = ==) n =
2km Walkin s T b= a9 E 2
% School Ent ¢ & g iz S pesmeer U §
chool Entrance Catchment 5 2F = 22 = 2
? o = =
St Dominic's . % avmoutnsTREET  a-87 g =
Pedestrian 2 B 2 il
Priory College O Crossin A i3 © FLINDERS STREET +
5 Ssings FRANKLIN STREET r§ 2
‘e 2 s _
0 195 ¢ MTSO Meters = gil Y o S &
TREE. 2= g FIELD &
T R W~ Dt W | SOHAID STREET - cROTE STREET = QE g 8 Twnerie a
L [l amADMAN DRIVED EG“NE &= = 5
= sRADNMA! £

Figure 2.9

Walkable Access Catchment to St Dominic’s Priory College

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 271

13



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with St Dominic’s Priory College leadership on Wednesday 5 of June to discuss
existing issues and any suggestions for new infrastructure. These were as follows:

. The informal Kiss and Drop area on Molesworth Street was difficult to use due to the angled parking

. The 13 m long loading zone on Molesworth Street was utilised for kiss and drop activity, resulting in
double parking and reduced movement for vehicles travelling west.

. Kiss and drop area on Barnard Street resulting in significant double parking back to the west

. Drivers were observed regularly performing U-turns in the middle of the both Barnard Street and
Molesworth Street

. 3 significant crashes and near miss incidents were reported by the school in Hill Street between
students and other vehicles

. Staff carparking is limited at the school. Many staff park on the nearby local streets with the time
limit restrictions and limited spaces result in staff leaving classrooms to shift vehicles.

No school expansion is currently planned.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing student arrival and departure movements at the St Dominic’s Priory College were observed
on Thursday 30 May 2024 from 8 am to 9 am and on Wednesday 5 June from 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during the AM arrival
period from 8:00 am to 9:00 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the 30
minutes before the school start time, with the peak activity of arrivals between 8:15 am and 8:30 am.
This weather for this AM period was stormy, with rain continuing through the entire morning period.
This likely resulted in a higher number of private vehicle travel for school drop off than typical days.

SO

Parking in Molesworth Street Parking in Barnard Street

Figure 3.1 AM Peak Conditions at St Dominic’s Priory College
240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 14

Page 272



Other findings from the AM observations are:

. Carparking was generally available across the peak hour in both Molesworth Street and Barnard
Street. Kiss and drop activity also occurred on Hill Street, either side of the PAC. Vehicles typically
stayed for less than 2 minutes.

. Some vehicles stayed longer as parents escorted their children within the school gates at the junior
campus entrance on Barnard Street.

. Some instances of speeds over 25 km/h on Molesworth Street.

D Several students utilised the bus on Hill Street.

D U-turn movements within the street on Molesworth Street to turn back towards the east.
. Pedestrians were likely to use the PAC provided on Hill Street.

. Pedestrians on Barnard Street, where the traffic volume is low and the road width is shorter than
Molesworth Street, were more inclined to jaywalk to travel to the school entrance.

. Minimal drop off activity occurred on the northern side of Molesworth Street, however in situations
where it did occur, students jaywalked to the school entrance on the southern side.

3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during PM departure
period from 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm. The PM period departure profile included a significant movement of
vehicles within a 20-minute timeslot after the school bell. Vehicles occupied most of the carparking
spaces in front of the school in the 30-minute lead up to the school bell, with these vehicles typically
moving on quickly.

Parking near the Molesworth Street school Parking in Barnard Street near the junior school

entrance entrance
Figure 3.2 PM Peak Conditions at St Dominic’s Priory College

Other findings from the PM observations are:

. Carparking was quickly utilised on both sides of Barnard Street and the southern side of Molesworth
Street in the 30-minute lead up to the school bell.

. Kiss and drop activity on Barnard Street was conducted by releasing the junior students individually
to the waiting cars lined up

- This line up of cars resulted in double parking exceeding 125 m in length to the Mills Terrace
intersection. The delay of these vehicles picking up students ranged from 5-15 minutes.

e Vehicle parking limits on Barnard Street generally allows for 3-hour parking, with parents utilising
these car spots if they wanted to park for more than five minutes and pick up their children inside
the school.

. Some instances of speeds over 25km/h on Molesworth Street.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 15

Page 273



. Over 20 students utilised the bus on Hill Street.

. U-turn movements within the street on Molesworth Street to turn back towards the east. Instances
of u-turning was not prevalent on Barnard Street due to the shorter road width.

. Pedestrians were likely to use the PAC provided on Hill Street if travelling in that direction.

. Parents on Barnard Street did jaywalk across the road to meet with students at the junior school
entrance.

. Students walked at midblock locations across Molesworth Street to meet vehicles parked on the
northern side of the road.

Car making an unsafe U-turn in Hill Street Cars observed double parking in Barnard Street

Figure 3.3 PM Peak Safety Issues in Gover Street at St Dominic’s Priory College
3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

The key issues for students and parents access the school are:

. Double parking was continuous over a 20 minute period on Barnard Street. This exceeded 125m in
length, reaching to the Mills Terrace intersection.

e Angled carparking in Molesworth Street was also difficult to navigate for school drop off / pick up.

. Large crossing distances across Molesworth Street at the Hill Street intersection resulted in issues
with pedestrian / vehicle conflicts.

. Some issues with jaywalking across Molesworth Street and Barnard Street

. Many staff park on the nearby local streets (mostly Molesworth Street) with the time limit
restrictions and limited spaces result in staff leaving classrooms to shift vehicles.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 16

Page 274



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

4.1 Options Development

Options to improve the travel safety for students at the school were developed under three categories,

namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.

e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.

e Safety promotions to increase awareness of the school with warning signage or information.

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1

Type of Option

Description

School Travel Safety Options for St Dominic’s Priory College

‘ Issue Addressed

Infrastructure Ban the right turn movements from This reduces delays and safety issues

Treatments Molesworth Street into Hill Street during | for pedestrians and vehicles in the
peak periods area.
Rearrange the car spaces in Molesworth Unsafe conditions for parents to
Street with a parallel parking to provide reverse out of carparking during busy
a formal 2-minute Kiss and Drop zone periods. This will also help improve
near the entrance to the student double parking currently positioned at
entrance (Years 7 to 11). the loading bay area.
Extend the existing Kiss and Dop area in | This aims to reduce double parking
Barnard Street for the junior school. currently positioned in peak times.
Provide a central median within the Remove U-turn movements mid-block
Molesworth Street corridor between Hill and prevent unsafe vehicle
Street and Barnard Street. This could manoeuvres around school entrances.
also be explored along Barnard Street.
Investigate the inclusion of further Reduction of jaywalking by students
pedestrian crossings mid-block of and parents crossing the road to drop
Molesworth Street and Barnard Street. off or meet each other at parked
This could be integrated with a central vehicles.
median treatment.

Operational Staff parking improvements with the With the limited on-site parking for

Efficiencies

provision of permits for staff in the local
streets, mostly focused on the 4P
sections on Molesworth Street. This is
not in the scope of this school travel
safety review.

staff and the timed parking controls in
the local streets close to the schooal,
many teachers leave their class to
move their cars during the school day
leaving students unattended for short
periods. This is a safety issue for

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 275

17



Type of Option Description Issue Addressed

students because they are left
unaccompanied in the classroom.

This would potentially allow for staff
to park on the north side of
Molesworth Street and free up space
in the unrestricted carparking areas
on Molesworth Street in the PM period

pick up.
Safety Install additional signage to promote the | Reinforce the awareness for drivers
Promotions school area for traffic approaching the entering a “school precinct area”
school zones at the Hill Street and Mills
Terrace ends of Molesworth Street and
Barnard Street.
Prepare a consolidated travel access Students and parents may not be
guide for students and parents that aware of their travel choices for
would be promoted on the school different modes. The private school
website in location that is easy to find, in | bus service is promoted but other
additional to the school newsletter. modes could be consolidated.

4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives are shown on Figure 4.1. They include:

e Investigate the inclusion of a central median treatment. This could be integrated with pedestrian
crossings mid-block of Molesworth Street and Barnard Street.

e Rearrange the car spaces in Molesworth Street with a parallel parking to provide a formal 2-minute
Kiss and Drop zone near the entrance to the student entrance (Years 7 to 11).

e Extend the existing Kiss and Dop area in Barnard Street for the junior school.

e Investigate a ban of the right turn movements from Molesworth Street into Hill Street during peak
periods.

o Staff parking improvements with the provision of permits for staff in the local streets, mostly focused
on the 4P sections on Molesworth Street.

¢ Inclusion of additional signage to promote the school area for traffic approaching the school zones at
the Hill Street and Mills Terrace ends of Molesworth Street and Barnard Street.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 18

Page 276



ooQOoc

Legend

Central Median with New Pedestrian
refuges

Existing Traffic Signal
and PAC

25 km/h school zone

O

Rearrangement of parking alignment
Install new
School Zone
warning sign at
street entry point

Add and Modify Timed Parking Permits

Right turn movement bans

Figure 4.1 Recommended Initatives at St Dominic’s Priory College

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

19

Page 277



4.2.1 Options to Improve Pedestrian Crossing Safety in Tynte Street

In order to improve the pedestrian crossing safety to the school entrance and prevent jaywalking in
peak times, an option could be to include a central median and pedestrian refuges through Molesworth
Street and Barnard Street. A continuous solid median on both streets would prevent dangerous u-turn
movements by vehicles during peak pedestrian periods. This option requires further site observations,
data collection for pedestrian volumes crossings during the AM and PM school peak hours and a more
detailed assessment. Examples of pedestrian refuges at the Hill Street intersections of both Molesworth
Street and Barnard Street could be transferred further along the road corridor.

Figure 4.2 Pedestrian Refuge Example - Hill Street / Molesworth Street
4.2.2 Signage to Increase the Awareness of the School for Motorists

An issue for school student travel safety is many motorists in streets approaching the schools are not
aware that St Dominic’s Priory College is located here until they enter the 25km/h zones near the school
entrances. It is proposed to install larger and more prominent information signage (not regulatory
signage) to increase the awareness of the school. The signs could be installed at either end of
Molesworth Street and Barnard Street for motorists to see when entering the school area.

Examples of signage at the entry points to a school precinct are shown in Figure 4.3. These information
and advisory advance warning signs are not standard for the DIT guidelines. Council will need to discuss
with DIT about these types of signs that are intended to increase awareness to traffic in Hill Street.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 20

Page 278



Mosman pari Prima

WWwW.mosmanparkpswa eduau | Ph aias

SCHOOL ZONE

AHEAD

Large entry signage that is visible to traffic on Advanced warning sign for a school zone
the street
Figure 4.3 Alternative School Precinct Warning Signage

4.2.3 Information to Promote Safer Student Travel to the School

The school provides some information to promote different travel modes such as the Adelaide Metro and
private school buses. However, a specific brochure/pamphlet could be provided to school students,
separate to newsletter articles. An example of the types of the school information brochures, known as
school Travel Access Guides in NSW, are provided for a primary school in Appendix C. The Travel
Access Guide is prepared with a consistent template for all government schools in NSW in collaboration
with the school principals and a school travel coordinator.

4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.2. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

. P for Parking control with new signage or to pavement markings for the on-street parking or a
school zone.

e T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

. I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 21

Page 279



Table 4.2

Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at St Dominic’s Priory College

Description

Indicative
Cost Estimate

Comments

P1 Ban the right turn movements from Less than Council to liaise with DIT
Molesworth Street into Hill Street during | $1,000 for on this change since it
peak periods signage may affect traffic volumes

in Hill Street.

P2 Rearrange the car spaces in Molesworth | Less than This would require
Street with a parallel parking to provide | $20,000 consultation with the
a formal 2-minute Kiss and Drop zone residents in Molesworth
near the entrance to the student Street.
entrance (Years 7 to 11).

P3 Extend the existing Kiss and Dop area Less than Council would need to
in Barnard Street for the junior school. $1,000 for consult with residents in

sighage Barnard Street if the on-
street parking was
affected.

P4 Staff parking improvements with the To be This is not a priority action
provision of permits for staff in the local | determined within the scope of this
streets, mostly focused on the 4P school travel safety
sections on Molesworth Street. This is review. Parking in
not in the scope of this school travel Molesworth Street was
safety review. previously changed with

community input.

T1 Provide a linemarked central median Less than Council would need to
within the Molesworth Street corridor $1,000 for line consult with the school and
between Hill Street and Barnard Street. | marking. residents in Molesworth
This could also be explored along Street.

Barnard Street.

T2 Investigate the inclusion of further Up to $10,000 Council would need to
pedestrian crossings mid-block of consult with the school and
Molesworth Street and Barnard Street. residents in Molesworth
This could be integrated with a central Street.
median treatment.

I1 Install additional signage to promote Less than The selection of
the school area for traffic approaching $1,000 information signage and
the school zones at the Hill Street and installation is under the
Mills Terrace ends of Molesworth Street control of the Council.
and Barnard Street.

12 Prepare a consolidated travel access No cost to This would be prepared
guide for students and parents that Council and promoted by the
would be promoted on the school school administration.
website in location that is easy to find,
in additional to the school newsletter.

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 280

22



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads, Sydney,
2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October 2023,
Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code of
Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3 Drop
off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 23

Page 281



Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF
ADELAIDE
School Travel Survey for Students
School: St Dominic's Priory College

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a survey to determine the main modes of travel for students
to understand the travel behaviour to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student survey during
the first period class.

Questions for the Teacher

Date (day/month/year):
Weather (Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
How many students are absent today in your class?

Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group

Please ask the students with a 'hands-up’ survey in the classroom.

AM Period Travel

How did you travel to school this morning? (If you travelled by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scooter”.)
Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period
Car (as driver if applicable)
Car (as passenger with drop-off in Barnard Street)
Car (as passenger with drop-off in Molesworth Street)
Car (as passenger with drop-off in Hill Street)
Car (as passenger with drop-off in other streets)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train

Number of Students

Tram
Bicycle, e-bike or moped
Scooter

PM Period Travel

How will you travel from school this afternoon? (If you will travel by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scooter”.)
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Number of Students
Car (as driver if applicable)

Car (as passenger with pick-up in Barnard Street)
Car (as passenger with pick-up in Molesworth Street)
Car (as passenger with pick-up in Hill Street)

Car (as passenger with pick-up in other streets)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus
Train

Tram
Bicycle, e-bike or moped
Scooter

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)

Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter
Public Transport (bus, tram or train)

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 282



Appendix B -Term 1 Road Safety and Transport News

ROAD SAFETY INFORMATION

KEEPING KIDS SAFE AROUND SCHOOLS - A MESSAGE FROM THE CITY OF ADELAIDE

With of the resumption of learning for all students, we wish to remind families of the road safety measures that help keep all

members of our Community safe.

Parking Zones around the school are put in place to ensure pedestrian safety. Children

are in particular danger near schools because:

¢ Their small size makes it hard for drivers to see them between traffic, parked cars, stobie poles and other
obstacles.
« They are easily distracted and may not be aware of traffic.

» They may suddenly run onto the road - e.g. to meet a parent.
Some road rules you particularly need to be aware of are:

= You must not stop in a No Stopping Zone, even for a few seconds to pick up your child.

= You may stop in a No Parking Zone / Kiss & Drop Zone for a few seconds only to pick up a child who is already waiting nearby. You
must not linger in this zone in wait, park, or leave the vehicle.

* You must not Double Park, or stop in the line of traffic, to pick up or drop off a child.

= You must not stop in a Bicycle Lane.

» You must not stop within 20 metres before a crossing or 10 metres after a crossing.

* ‘You must not stop within 10 metres of an intersection or junction without traffic lights.

« |f you have an enquiries regarding this information, please contact City of Adelaide on 8203 7203.

City of Adelaide Parking and Information Officers and SAPOL are aware of these issues and will monitor the situation and deal

with breaches accordingly, to ensure children’s safety. Expiations will be issued to vehicles contravening these rules.

In addition to the information above, as provided by City of Adelaide, the College would further wish to request that

drivers please be mindful of our neighbours in:

« Not pulling into, or parking across driveways or no standing zones.
* Not making U Turns at busy pick up/drop off times. This obstructs the flow of traffic and may endanger children

crossing the road. Please drive around the block.

Please be mindful of your own behaviour around schools, whether in relation to where you park or the respect shown to those

trying to ensure pedestrian safety - you are our children’s greatest role model.

ADELAIDE METRO BUS SERVICES

‘ PLAN YOUR TRIP TO SCHOOL WITH ADELAIDE METRO

Adelaide Metro The nearest bus stop to St Dominic's is HILL STREET STOP 5A. It is serviced by two student-only School

\’ Bus services:

477 Elizabeth Station to St Dominic’s
985 St Dominic’s to City (afternoons only)

For current timetables for these routes, as well as other (general public) services that are within the vicinity of the College, visit:

www.adelaidemetro.com.au

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 283



Appendix C - NSW School Travel Access Guide

| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Meadowbank Public School

Travel Access Guide Effective: September 2023

Introduction Kiss and drop expectations

Our school community of parents/carers, staff and * For parents/carers who drive their child/ren to
students live within a reasonable walk or cycle trip school, the kiss and drop rone is located along
of the school. This Travel Access Guide provides Rbodes Street starting from Hermitage Road.

sugges safe and accessible options fo velling ' .
uggested safe and acc ble Sptions for travelling * This space i= a 'No Parking” 2zone, meaning that
10 and from schoo Fn

um of 2 minutes

you may stop for up to a maxi
and move no more than 3 metres from the

Active ways to get to school

vehicle

Walking to and from school S0
Message from our principal
. vialking 15 a fun way o keep actve and
= : ¢ Meadowbank Public School supports sustainable
and environmentally friendly transport practices
[= stct fest '
= - S yras ¢ Students up to B years of age should hold
. taf
: - 3 S the hand of an adult when walking or be
8 .ttt . ! accompanied by an adult when riding
o i DR LOOK. LISTEN and ¢ Students from 8 to 10 years of age shouid be
HINK J he rosd actively supervised by an adult
School bell times
racks are available for everyone Start Times End Times
Ler racks for K-€ ludents S.e0 arr 2:45 pr
The outside school hour times for the primary school
. b ride uir by la >

are: 700 am 45 am and 2245 pm - €00 pm

For more information contact:
School Infrastructure NSW
Email: schoolinfrastructure@det nsw.edu.au

Phone: 1300 482 651 Nsw

www.schoolinfrastructure.nsw.govau GOVERNMINT

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 284




| NSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

LEGEND
=€3= Walking route -
@ Train station \ E‘ e
© Busstop ¥
' Traffic signals
= Safe crossing point
. Meadowbank Schools 7
== Bridge/underpass Y.

End of trip facilities

Playground level:
For students attending
Meadowbank Public School

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 285

.

Please use the Trip Planner at transportnsw.info/ for additional information about cycling routes to the school.




| MSW Department of Education - School Infrastructure

Where do you ride?

Footpath/shared pathfcycleway:

= Chikdren uredar 16 can ride on a
foatpath

= Aoulns suparvising children under 18 can alsa rds
o tha footpath

* Ba caraful of cars antaring and axiting driveways.

= Watch cut for pedestrians, athar riders ard
animals.

Look aut for I-
pecestrians on

shared paths. Eﬁ}

3 steps to follow
when riding a bike:

Clip, check, chime.

,-J Locee clothing and Rems can ges
h caught in your wheals Seoure any
1 laoae itarms, ke backpack SIraps

n

Wi sl Ble S weldF & Rk

Things to remeambear

ﬂ Alwiys ask yOUr perenis
g your helmst Pnmission to rida.

Crossing the road:
» Baaira caredul

« Walk your BicyCk whien you Cross at a pedestrian
crossing.

Give a metre:

Give padestrians 1 metre of space
wihan riding past.

et

Always remember to
watch out for hazards

ey riclineg eonr Dl
Crack yrur hraine
ke mre e brskey r 4 D wetimee
e weeking. 8 spposdls
Chime your bell O stomgates
R"I = ith o - u Grauval or rocks
7} Shoes with a good tread on t
3 soies will healp you grip the pedals O Lonesia
and profect your feat. Ma ke suns ﬂ Anirmale
wour laces are thed. & Cheroesin the s
I e s arckaer rickar a0 H" Took path oyt ey
e I, charyss pour Esall. aurfscm
For more infarmation contact
School Infrastructure MW
Ermall: schoalinfrastructunsficdat neseduau
Phana: 1500 433 E51
Wty SCNOolInfrastruCTune s g owais Nsw
L]
U ™
ol .

240706 St Dominic’s Priory College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 286



Attachment |

Dlscover the

St Mary’sCollege p =
d|fference

St Mary’s College
School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491
28 June 2024
Ref: 240706

tonking

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 287



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report Kaitlin Neave John Devney | John Devney | 28 June 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 288




Contents

Project: St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] 5 YT o T 3 T ]
(] Lo X T oV o X = 0 ii
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 LI L0 50T oY 00T 7
3 Issues and OppPOortUNities...cicciarirvrmrararirirarasra s s rr s s s s s s s s na s s s nn s nnmnnnnnns 13
3.1 1] = | ] o] o L= ol = ol U 3] o] o PPN 13
3.2 1] L@ o =T V= o 1= PP 15
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrTUNITIES ....uuiiriiii e 19
4 Travel Safety Options and AssesSSMmeNnt .....c.ccververerimrrrerarirs s s s s an s nn s nm s nnnss 20
N 2= =T = o Lol 23
Appendix A — Student Travel SUrvey FOIrM ...ciciiciiiiiieiimiesssmssmasssasssssasssssasssnsasssnssnssassnnsnnnas 24
240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report iii

Page 289



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for St Mary’s College.....ccciarararirarararirmminmsissssasssasarsasssasasansnnnns 4
Table 2.2 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024 ........ccccervmvannee 6
Table 2.3 Student Transport Mode Shares for the PM Departures by Year Group in May 2024 .........cccuuuee 6
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety OpPtioNsS ....iciciiiiiriira i s s s s s s s s s s ssa s ssa s nsasnnsnssnsnsnnnnsn 20
Figures

Figure 1.1 St Mary’s College LOCation ....cicicicrriomimimimimisisisisiere s s s s s n s s s s s snsnsnsnnnnn 2
Figure 1.2 St Mary’s College in Franklin Street .........ccovimimiiiinsnsn s s naen 2
Figure 2.1 St Mary’s College Student Residence Location ANalySis .icicrerererraririrsmmnnssssasssasasarasasssssssnsssnnnnns 4
Figure 2.2 St Mary’s College Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024 .........cccvrvmimmmnasasasasasassssssssssnsnnns 5
Figure 2.3 Franklin Street, LOOKIiNG WesSt....c.cicieriririmimimininieiamasasasasasansnasassssssssnsssnsssssasasasasasasasasassnsssnsnsnsnnns 7
Figure 2.4 Grote Street, LOOKING WeSt ....c.cicrerrerrarimimimissnsasamamasasasasasasssansnsnsssnsssnsssssssasssasasasasasasasassssssnsnnns 8
Figure 2.5 Crash History in the Streets near St Mary’'s College ......ccciarrerarirmasnrsnininsasasasasasasasasassnsssssnsnnnnns 8
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for St Mary’s College .....ciururimimnmrmrarararararanassssnsnnnnns 9
Figure 2.7 Public Transport Stops at St Mary’s College ......cccicvrrririrarirarsrssnnr s s snnnn 10
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to St Mary’s College........ciciimimimmamererasammsssssrssssssssnsnsns s sssasasasasnsnsnsnns 11
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to St Mary’s College....cccuarrmrrarirrarnrnrimisisismsmermanasssassssssnnnns 12
Figure 3.1 Queuing in Franklin Street and Gray Street during PM Peak .........cccvriiimimimimienennnnsnnssnsnnns 13
Figure 3.2 Signalised Crossing in Grote Street........ciiiiririmiiinrrirarsm e s s snnnn 14
Figure 3.3 Vehicles Travelling on On-Road Cycle Lane and Road Shoulders............cocvevmmmmmnnrananansnssnnnns 14
Figure 3.4 Width of Shoulder and On-Road Cycle Lane ......cvvarasnserarararasanssssnssssssssssssasasasasasasasasasassssssnsnnns 15
Figure 3.5 AM Peak Safety Issues at St Mary’s College.....c.cciurmimrmreiirereinirrissrrrs s anans 16
Figure 3.6 U-Turning Movements in Franklin Street........c.cociciiiiriiinrinrnis s ss s nasans 16
Figure 3.7 PM Peak — Queues from Pick Up ActiVities ...iciieierararararrrrararsrsrsmsmsnsssssssssasasasasasasasasssnssssnnns 17
Figure 3.8 Cars Parked along Southern Side in Grote Street...........cociiiiiirirsisrs s 17
Figure 3.9 Parking Control East of Signalised Crossing in Grote Street............ccoivimimiirrrsrsrsrsnsssnnn. 18
Figure 3.10 Cars in Parking Spaces Over the Time Limit in Grote Street............ccociiiiiirsririnissnnn, 18
Figure 3.11 Cars Blocking a Driveway to a Private Carpark in Grote Street ..........cccocviiriniririrsrsnnnnnnn. 19
Figure 4.1 Install Overhead Mast Arm at the Signalised CroSSiNg....cccrererrrirsrssisismsmsmeresarsasarasssasasnsasnnnns 21
Figure 4.2 Width of Shoulder and On-Road Cycle Lane ......cccvverererrmmsrrrsmssssssssmsmssssssasasssasasasasasasnsnnnns 21
Figure 4.3 Kerb Built-Out or Extension at the Signalised CroSSing.....cccierereririririsismsismrmrrararasasarasssasnnns 22
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report iv

Page 290



Executive Summary

Overview

St Mary’s College is a Reception to Year 12 Catholic girls’ school located on the block between Franklin
Street, West Terrace, Grote Street and Gray Street in Adelaide CBD. The College had 686 students
enrolled in Term 2 2024 with 145 students in Reception to Year 3, 225 students in Years 7 to 9 and 313
students in Years 10 to 12.

Key Findings

Issues for accessing the school that were observed in Franklin Street and Grote Street. These traffic
safety issues that are for the City of Adelaide to address are:

e Extensive queues of cars were formed in Franklin Street creating local traffic congestion.
e Parents and children not watching the traffic as they enter the roadway in Franklin Street.

e Parents were observed parking or stopping where they should not be, or parking for longer than the
posted time limits.

e Signal timing at the crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street need to be modified to provide
priority for pedestrians, especially during school peak hours.

Key Recommendations

Infrastructure

e Install overhead mast arm at the signalised Crossing in Grote Street. This is an issue because drivers
are not seeing/aware of the signalised crossing in Grote Street.

e Install solid white line in Franklin Street to ban U-turn movements in Franklin Street.

e Install built-out islands or extension at the signalised crossing in Grote Street. This will prevent
vehicles from travelling on cycle lane and road shoulder as a jump lane to West Terrace.

Operational Efficiencies

e Convert the no stopping to a kiss and drop area at the indented bay west of the signalised crossing
in Grote Street.

e Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing in Grote Street and improve the pedestrian green
light waiting time.

Increased Awareness of the Area
e Implement school zones and corresponding the 25km/hr speed limit conditions in Franklin Street.

e Install red light cameras at the signalised crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 291



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term

Bicycle lane

Description

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 292



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
o Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
e The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss
and Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:
- Existing pick up and drop off areas.
- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.
- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 1

Page 293



g

1.3 School Location

St Mary’s College is located in Franklin Street in Adelaide city centre on the block bounded by West
Terrace, Franklin Street, Gray Street, and Grote Street. The school site and the existing surrounding
environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

2001491 1S9

Ae;g'

g
199418

‘Grote Street

]
COLLEGE
ToURs

Figure 1.2 St Mary’s College in Franklin Street

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 2

Page 294



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

St Mary’s College is a Reception to Year 12 Catholic girls’ school, established in 1869. It is the oldest
continuously running school for girls in South Australia.

The school office opens at 8am and closes at 4pm. The bell times are:
e Start of classes at 8:40 am Monday to Friday.
e End of classes at 2:30pm on Monday.

e End of classes at 3:15pm on Tuesday to Friday.

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 is for 686 students with a distribution by year as follows:
e 13 students in Reception

e 16 students in Year 1

e 19 students in Year 2

e 12 students in Year 3

e 24 students in Year 4

e 21 students in Year 5

e 41 students in Year 6

e 65 students in Year 7

e 81 students in Year 8

e 80 students in Year 9

e 108 students in Year 10

e 105 students in Year 11

e 101 students in Year 12

The number of students by year group is:
e 59 students in Reception to Year 3

e 86 students in Years 4 to 6

e 225 students in Years 7 to 9

e 313 students in Years 10 to 12

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 295



2.2.1 Existing School Travel Activity

The St Mary’s College catchment boundary area includes all suburbs in metropolitan Adelaide. The
number of households by sub areas of each suburb is shown in Figure 2.1.

300
W Adelaide m North Adelaide Inner Suburbs Quter Suburbs 265
250
203
200
n
€
(]
°
=
9 150
o
5 122
a
£
= 100
50 44
20 19
3 2 1 2 2
O — —eeeeeeee) —
Junior School - Years Rto 6 Middle School - Years 7to 9 Senior School - Years 10to 12
Year
Figure 2.1 St Mary’s College Student Residence Location Analysis

A breakdown of the number of students by year groups with the percentages by location are provided in
Table 2.1. Over 86 per cent of the students live in the inner suburbs of Adelaide that is beyond an easy
walk or bicycle trip to the school. Only 1.4 per cent of the students live in the City of Adelaide.

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for St Mary’s College

Location Junior School Middle School Senior School - Total Percentage

-YearsRto6 -YearsZ7to9 Years 10to 12

Adelaide 3 2 2 7 1.0%
North Adelaide 0 1 2 3 0.4%
Inner Suburbs 122 203 265 590 86.4%
Outer Suburbs 20 19 44 83 12.2%
Total 145 225 313 683 100.0%
240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 4

Page 296



2.2.2 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the St Mary’s College was reviewed through site
observations and a student travel mode survey to determine the existing school transport modes on a
typical school day. A copy of the student travel mode survey form is included in Appendix A.

The student travel mode survey was conducted on the week of 215t to 28t May 2024. The findings from
the surveys were used to confirm the existing transport mode shares for:

e Car (as driver)

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)
e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus

e Train

e Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

A total of 628 students were at school for the "morning Connect” class meeting when the survey was
conducted. 128 students were absent from school and 46 students were at an offsite activity.

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.2 and with a breakdown by year group in Table 2.2. The PM departure period has 20 per
cent more students using public transport than in the AM period, and 45 students fewer using private
vehicles. This result is likely because parents drop of their children on the way to work in the CBD for
the morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport when the parent is still
working in the PM school departure period.

Bike and Walk, 1.5% Bike and Walk
Scooter, 0.1% __ Scooter 1.8%

0.1% |

Public
Transport,
21.0%

Public
Transport

41.1%

AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.2 St Mary’s College Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 297



A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the AM arrivals from the survey conducted
in May 2024 is provided in Table 2.2. Key insights from the AM survey results are:

e The students in Reception to Year 3 were mostly driven to school.
e Over 82 per cent of students in Years 4 to 6 were drive to school.

e The highest usage of public transport was for students in Years 7 to 9 at 36 per cent.

e Cycling to the school for the girls was very low for all year groups.

Table 2.2 Student Transport Mode Shares for the AM Arrivals by Year Group in May 2024
TA:: :;;:’::';o de REC to 3 10to12  Total
Car 97.8% 82.1% 62.5% 77.3% 94.1%
Public Transport 2.2% 16.2% 35.6% 21.0% 3.2%
Bike and Scooter 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Walk 0.0% 1.6% 1.8% 1.5% 2.7%

A breakdown of the student mode shares by year group for the PM departures from the survey

conducted in May 2024 is provided in Table 2.3. Key insights from the PM survey results are:

e Five per cent of the students in Reception to Year 3 walked home.

e Over 91 per cent of students in Years 4 to 6 were picked up by car.

e About 40 per cent of students in Years 10 to 12 used the car mode to travel home.

e The highest usage of public transport was for students in Years 10 to 12 at 58 per cent.

e Cycling to the school for the girls was very low for all year groups.

Table 2.3

PM Departures

Student Transport Mode Shares for the PM Departures by Year Group in May 2024

Transport Mode REC to 3

Car 84.2% 91.3% 60.9% 40.5% 57.0%
Public Transport 10.9% 8.3% 37.5% 57.4% 41.1%
Bike and Scooter 0.0% 0.4% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Walk 5.0% 0.0% 1.6% 2.1% 1.8%

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 298




2.3 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling, and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.3.1 Road Network

Access to the to the school is provided in Franklin Street and Grote Street. The front entrance, kiss and
drop area, and main office of the school is located in Franklin Street. The rear entrance with a kiss and
drop area is provided in Grote Street.

Franklin Street

Franklin Street is a two-way two lane Collector, and is under the care and control of the City of
Adelaide. At the frontage of the school, each lane is around 3.5m wide, with on-road cycle lane and 45-
degree angle parking provided on both sides of the road. In front of the school there is a signalised
crossing.

Sealed bitumen footpaths are on both sides of Franklin Street. The traffic volume in Franklin Street is
about 11,000 vehicles per day. It has a posted speed limit of 50 km/h. The kerbside parking, bicycle
lanes, and traffic lanes in Franklin Street is shown in Figure 2.3.

Figure 2.3 Franklin Street, Looking West

Grote Street

Grote Street is classified as a SubArterial road, with two lanes in each direction. It is under the
jurisdiction of the City of Adelaide council. In the proximity to the school there is a signalised crossing.
Each lane is approximately 3.6m wide, with on-road cycle lane on each side. There is no provision for
on-street parking.

Sealed bitumen footpaths are on both sides of Grote Street. The traffic volume in Grote Street is about
22,800 vehicles per day. It has a posted speed limit of 50 km/h. The kerbside parking, bicycle lanes,
and traffic lanes in Grote Street is shown in Figure 2.4.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 7

Page 299



4 l 'l.'v Tgenaw
N s

Figure 2.4 Grote Street, Looking West

2.3.2 Crash History

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 (five-year period) has been sourced from DataSA.
During this time there has been 2 crashes in Franklin Street with 1 minor injury and 1 serious injury.

There was one serious injury at the intersection of Franklin Street and Gray Street. There were two
property damage only collisions in Grote Street.

The number and type of crashes is not considered high for this type of road treatment and intersection
design. An overview of the latest crash data is presented in Figure 2.5.

8 Waymouth St
Waymouth St o o
@ g o N
e c 5 = &
= - <] =
= 5 =3 o
3 2 B 2 7
7 e 2 1
=
o |
12}
~» Ny
O\
) Ve
3 anklit
3 3
o
Crashes 2018-2022 §
3
© 1:PDO 0 %
(&) x :
@M 2
o
©3sl 2 <
S
a )
0 \
H : COrorest -~ @
o (+] Grote St S
\— Z
m 2 g
=3 3 3
o = °
(2] @, 3
[ 3 c
@ s
Z
=
®
7]
e
—
) Gouger St
uger St o
Goug L] © &
Figure 2.5

Crash History in the Streets near St Mary’s College

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 300



2.3.3 Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school, and the kiss and drop
areas are shown in Figure 2.6.

The kiss and drop area in Franklin street is operative between 8am to 9am, and 2:30pm to 4pm,
Monday to Friday, when no parking is allowed. From 9am to 2:30pm up to 2 hours of parking is
permitted.

The kiss and drop area in Grote Street has spaces for two hours of parking any day from 8 am to 6 pm.
The students who may use a Kiss and Drop area are:

e Students with a disability

e Students whose parents work close to the school, such as in Adelaide CBD or North Adelaide.

e Students who are carrying heavy bulky equipment.

Parents who do not work in Adelaide CBD are unlikely to regularly drive into the CBD to drop off or pick
up their child. Many students, who 13 years of age or older, are capable of travelling on their own and
would use public transport.

= = -

2 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO.

NO STOPPIN|

<TIMES -
@

KISS AND DROP AREA

ING MONDAY. TO!
FRIDAY 9AM-5:30PM
SATURDAY 9AM-NOON
e

Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for St Mary’s College
240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 9

Page 301



2.3.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the focus of the bus, tram, and train network with the walkable access from St Mary’s
College, as there are bus stops on West Terrace and Grote Street.

The walkable access from these public transport services to the school is shown in Figure 3.14.

: %)
% ®
2 " :
— = :
e = ]
© ® i
? @ | ’
Franklin St
s -
@ 2
O
s
@
o
E o i
s )
m ~
) @
6 St Mary’s College
F1 West Tce ;
U1 Westdge ;
2 %
s ®
—
® o
g Grote Stg; wt st Grote St
E . — Grote St
) © @
o
o
Y1 Grote St >
=
@
Figure 2.7

Public Transport Stops at St Mary’s College

The Adelaide Metro bus services to the bus stops in Grote Street and West Terrace are considered
sufficient for the demand based on the site observations. Many students are likely using public transport
services from the CBD.

St Mary’s College does have any special school bus services, provided by Adelaide Metro or privately
operated.

Train services for all metropolitan train lines are at Adelaide Railway Station which is located 1.6 km
northeast of the school.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

10

Page 302



2.3.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.8.

Both Franklin Street and Grote Street have on-road bicycle lanes on both sides of the road. Sealed
shared paths exist throughout the Adelaide Park Lands.

HOSPITALL

NORT

mdes
o I wesg

AdelaideiEE CURRIES

i

High [N
fili\=chocl m i
= iz e
— = b5
b AL gl
Z ;

&

St Mary’s

College g

L.

. -
i SMRTIST .
Legend
Bike Network Off Road Track »  Pedestrian Signal Water Body
v ad - Bike La )
Main Road - Bike Lane @ Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use .l
. d ducational .
Main Roa © bice stop (2024) ©  RalTram Sop I ccucational Land | G i I |es
Bik Retai/ ; -
=cmc: Secondary Road - Bike Lane % Posca Station Distance to GPO etaill / Commercial \ -
— Secondary Road Green Space " Street
©  Public Hospital 50m Contour A
Up Resgental School
—== Off Road Sealed Path o Tk s cida BuiltUp Residential 1] & ry C-‘ 00

Source: BikeDirect map, January 2024

Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to St Mary’s College

2.3.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff, and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the bus stops, tram stops in North Terrace, and train
services at Adelaide Railway Station. The footpath network along Franklin Street, Gray Street, West
Terrace, and Grote Street needs to be well maintained and kept clear of fallen trees and debris by the
City of Adelaide.

The school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD, as shown in Figure 2.9.
There are one signalised pedestrian crossing adjacent to the school in Franklin Street and Grote Street.

A 5, 10 and 15-minute walkable catchment areas to St Mary’s College are also shown in Figure 2.9.
Students who walk their entire trip to school are likely walking from Adelaide city centre.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 11

Page 303



5
£ © o,
mk‘“ﬂiﬂ A
- Q= cl
f
i 3 .
Pl gy
> 33
z % 7 i
o
=
WESTTHEBARTO| ﬁé pHILTFPS oRE W
= Q0RD o @ STREET
ES
i)
THEBARTON
Q LIGHT
TERRACE
cg‘g‘ﬁssm@
b5
&
fulie )
w2
- o e
-~ = 2
g 2 \
| 5 \
-
| 2 \
\ b \
T3 =
HENLEY‘EEA(H ROAD'
& 5 HENLEY BEACH ROAD \
> 5
iz i e
&= MILET 7
END -
2 m ]
=]
: |
2 >
@:é, KING STREET 55 \ E
S kil
DAREBIN
_ﬂREET
/\l'
=
s | Be St—0 —
il
=
S
9
$
f— $ \
e/ !
3w
\ &s/gé \\,, REET
$ £8 \Zg KE 3
SWI
/\5" MILE END \’: TERMINA S —
s c SOUTH 3 [E———
/{ S LONDON ROAD & =} o
A \a 2
Foslz \ z
\_5*5’ ||5 MANCHESTER STREET \ Yé
&
/ i \ ’
‘}z
e \ 2
RIEHMOND \ €
| g oo mon BQ . — — = & E
i = { GREENHITTEROAD
A 23 N |
38 & 'L
R o 3 2
MARLESTO g &£ o %
KESWICK & \ 3 3 5
SN & :
Legend 5 wanme
” ]
|-_"_ Suburbs =§= 3
B Bk 1km Walking
0 ops Catchment &
i School Crossings 1.5km Walking fﬁ@"jjﬁﬁi‘_ 2 e —m———
—— Railways Catchment 8 R
Kt . s
* School Entrance (2:km Wa“(lng Q&g:& ALBERT STREET
— atc 2
St Mary's College hment =)
lo) Pedestrian O Cenileep
N i 3
“°€;"“ ] = Crossings H £
AL i 2 Tk
CHA U
) §285470" |
N \ bl o
e F———"
HF————"
MILLSWOOD

MITCHELL STREET

Figure 2.9

T
RECONCILIATIONY
A

SOUTH TERRACE

k|

avoy ¥202¥3d

)
oI N

3INNIAY 3!

-
NORTHTERRACE BOTANIC
ROAD™

o
E RUNDLE STREET 2]
=) i 2=
3 g
z ]
m £3
LS =
El
S
il
m
PIRIE STREET
FLINDERS STREET
-
c
3
- = -
[WAKEFIELDISTREET 2 \AKEFIELD STREELY
_;.u R
@
4
(]
]
ANGAS|STREET 3
~' =

CARRINGTON STREET
(!
|
HALIFAX srnscﬁ
0

FGILLES STREET
7/

(]

s o8

[0
o

—— — r—s
T w
%a
z
Iz
H
= 18
o
2 PARKSIDE
= YOUNG
o STREET
9
=
=
1 |
HUGHES STREET \
4 e (A
UNLEY
(\
FREDERICK STREET

ARTHUR STREET ~ ~
~

Vg,
Ol

HYDE PARK PARK STREET MALYERN

WATTLE STREET

Walkab
le Access Catchment to St Mary’s Coll
ege

240706 St Mary’
y’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft
- Draft Report

Page 304

12




3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A meeting was held with St Mary’s College Principal on 20" May 2024 to discuss existing issues. The
following concerns were raised by the school:

Franklin Street

e The queues formed during the PM peak period could form extensively in Franklin Street, and the
queue could also extend to Gray Street. The queuing cars would also block on-road cycle lane, the
signalised crossing, and the school gate. This is illustrated in Figure 3.1.

= . L ]
ropeaff/ i SR - = On-Road Cycle

Pick-Up
Zone

MO ON OO GRS

SR 0 0 R 0 @) (0 X

- o > 8
N J e = T T | Phn

Figure 3.1 Queuing in Franklin Street and Gray Street during PM Peak

e Red light running behaviour is reported at the signalised crossing in Franklin Street.

e The school reports that if green paint is applied to the on-road cycle lane, parking inspectors will be
able to enforce vehicles from stopping or parking over the on-road cycle lane. The parking inspector
has claimed that it’s currently not enforceable to do so.

Grote Street

e Red light running at the crossing in Grote Street, likely due to the inconspicuous positioning of the
traffic lights. Sun glare - as the street sits in an east-west orientation - has also contributed.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 13

Page 305



Figure 3.2 Signalised Crossing in Grote Street

e \Vehicles are observed to drive on on-road cycle lane and road shoulders to skip the queuing vehicles

in the through lanes, in order to get to the left turning lane at the intersection with West Terrace, as
illustrated in Figure 3.3.

S s
1oa1S A_1D

. o O .

~
=
20e113] 1SOM

()
L)

\.

Grote Street
t—l P .~

a | : 1/

Figure 3.3 Vehicles Travelling on On-Road Cycle Lane and Road Shoulders

This is mainly due to the wide width in the road shoulder, which was intended for the bus stop. It was to
allow buses to pull over without blocking the traffic flow.

Combining the on-road cycle lane, the available width is around 4m, as shown in Figure 3.4. This width
is wider than the typical lane width of 3.5m.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 14

Page 306



Figure 3.4 Width of Shoulder and On-Road Cycle Lane

e Pedestrians tend to wait for longer than usual after pressing the button to cross at the signalised
crossing in Grote Street.

3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the St Mary’s College were observed
during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on typical school days in May 2024.
The site visits were conducted on Tuesday 28 May 2024 for both the AM and PM peaks.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The Kiss and Drop activity was observed during AM arrival period from 8 am to 9 am. The AM period
arrival profile was relatively distributed over the hour before the school start time, with the peak activity
of arrivals between 8:30 am and 8:45 am. Some behaviours were observed to be of concerns, as shown
in Figure 3.5.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 15

Page 307



Car queuing at the kiss and drop zone cars blocking access school bus

Figure 3.5 AM Peak Safety Issues at St Mary’s College

Other findings from the AM observations are:

Most of the drop off activity for students occurred on the south side of Franklin Street with the
busiest period between 8:30 am and 9:45 am with no safety issues or traffic delays.

The kiss and drop area in Franklin Street was generally available across the peak hour, with vehicles
not staying for more than 5 minutes. However, the school bus was observed to be waiting for a few
minutes before the bay was clear (Figure 3.5).

Excessive U-turns are observed in Franklin Street by eastbound vehicles to get to the drop-off / pick-
up zone, as shown in Figure 3.6. Regardless, many parents did park on the north side of Franklin
Street and walked their children across at the signalised crossing.

e
.

Frar_\l'(ﬁrA\"Sgr—eét

Figure 3.6 U-Turning Movements in Franklin Street

Some vehicles were observed to drive at an inappropriate speed approaching the signalised crossing
in Franklin Street.

parents and students mostly arrived by private cars and public buses.
A low level of drop off activity was observed in Grote Street with less than 20 vehicles.

The signal timing at the signalised crossing in Grote Street was observed to take up to 2 minutes to
turn green for pedestrians.

Many students were observed to get off buses in Grote Street.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 16

Page 308



3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger and Kiss and Drop activity was observed during PM departure
period from 3:15 pm to 3:30 pm. The key findings from the observations are as follows:

e The peak period for departure activity was between 3:10pm to 3:30 pm.
e The pick-up activities occurred on both sides of Franklin Street.

e Extensive queues were formed from the pick-up area towards east, as indicatively shown in Figure
3.1. The queuing vehicles obstruct through movement near the intersection with West Terrace in
shown in Figure 3.7.

&

1“‘\.@7@— " ﬁ;éﬁ“

Figure 3.7 PM Peak - Queues from Pick Up Activities

¢ Some children were observed to walk unsafely between stopped or parked vehicles without giving
heed to moving traffic.

¢ No students or parents were observed to be riding bicycles or scooters.

¢ Many older students were observed to be travelling northbound and westbound in Franklin Street,
likely to be catching public transport on Currie Street and West Terrace.

e Many students were observed to use the public buses on the northern side of Grote Street.

e Many parents were observed to use the on-street parking spaces on the southern side of Grote
Street to wait for their children, sometimes over the 30-minute limit, as shown in Figure 3.8.

Figure 3.8 Cars Parked along Southern Side in Grote Street

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 17

Page 309



e Many parents are observed to use the bay area east of the signalised crossing in Grote Street as a
pickup zone, although there is a no stopping yellow line, as shown in Figure 3.9.

No stopping
yellow line

rote Street %

Figure 3.9 Parking Control East of Signalised Crossing in Grote Street

e Cars were observed to be parking at both no parking zone and 15-minute parking zone for over 30
minutes in Grote Street outside of the school, as shown in Figure 3.10.

Figure 3.10 Cars in Parking Spaces Over the Time Limit in Grote Street

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 18

Page 310



g

The signal timing at the signalised crossing in Grote Street was observed to take up to 2 minutes to
turn green for pedestrians.

Vehicles were observed to stop in front of the driveway to the private car park in Grote Street to pick
up students, as shown in Figure 3.11.

@ Ef @

D A

.~
a~

'r'!l - "
|
I‘

""lj: .
"\l' ! ; l 1} anatg Carpa rkeg
% Amaiiih ™

Figure 3.11 Cars Blocking a Driveway to a Private Carpark in Grote Street

3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Issues for accessing the school that were observed in Franklin Street and Grote Street. These traffic
safety issues that are for the City of Adelaide to address are:

Extensive queues of cars were formed in Franklin Street creating local traffic congestion.
Parents and children not watching the traffic as they enter the roadway in Franklin Street.

Parents were observed parking or stopping where they should not be, or parking for longer than the
posted time limits.

Signal timing at the crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street need to be modified to provide
priority for pedestrians, especially during school peak hours.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 19

Page 311



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

Recommendations to improve the travel safety for students at the school were developed under three
categories, namely:

e Infrastructure
e Operational efficiencies
e Increased awareness of the area

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options
Type of Option Description Issue Addressed
Infrastructure Install overhead mast arm at the signalised | Drives are not seeing/aware of the
Crossing in Grote Street signalised crossing in Grote Street.
Install solid white line in Franklin Street Traffic and pedestrian safety in
Franklin Street to prohibit U-turn
movements.

Install built-out islands or extension at the Prevent vehicles from travelling on
signalised crossing in Grote Street cycle lane and road shoulder as a
jump lane to West Terrace

Operational Convert the no stopping yellow line to a kiss | Allow parents more space to pick
Efficiencies and drop area at the indented bay west of up and drop off students in Grote
the signalised crossing in Grote Street, as Street

shown in Figure 3.9.

Review the signal timing at the signalised Improve the travel time for
crossing Grote Street and improve the students and parents
pedestrian green light waiting time during
school peak hours.

Increased Implement 25 km/hr school zone in Franklin | Speeding issue
awareness of Street.
the area Install red light cameras at the signalised To enforce red light running
crossings in Franklin Street and Grote behaviour
Street
240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 20

Page 312



The recommended actions are explained with more detail as follows:

Infrastructure

e Install overhead mast arm at the signalised crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street, as
indicatively shown in Figure 4.1.

Figure 4.1 Install Overhead Mast Arm at the Signalised Crossing

e Install solid white line in Franklin Street, to prohibit U-turn movements, as shown in Figure 4.2.

Install Solid White Line ||

kb \ —-“'!""— (W x_:

2oes19) ISAM

Figure 4.2 Width of Shoulder and On-Road Cycle Lane

e Install kerb built-outs or extension at the signalised crossing in Grote Street, as shown in Figure 4.3.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 21

Page 313



l ! T R { Shape and size subject
______——‘:‘-—_-ﬁ-—-——"‘ . T % >
—— t L 2 to bus swept path
== Stop ™ ,__.,,_.-q—-—v— el ’\

L

Figure 4.3 Kerb Built-Out or Extension at the Signalised Crossing

Operational Efficiencies

e Convert the no stopping to a kiss and drop area at the indented bay west of the signalised crossing,
as shown in Figure 3.9.

e Review the signal timing at the signalised crossing in Grote Street and improve the pedestrian green
light waiting time.

Increased Awareness of the Area
¢ Implement school zones and corresponding the 25km/hr speed limit conditions in Franklin Street.

e Install red light cameras at the signalised crossings in Franklin Street and Grote Street.

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 22

Page 314



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads,
Sydney, 2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

e Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October,
2023, Appendix C School Zones

e Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

e Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code
of Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3
Drop off and pick up zones, page 34

e School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 23

Page 315



\

9

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF

ADELAIDE
School Travel Survey for Students
School: St Mary's College

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a surnvey fo determine the main modes of travel for students to
understand the travel behaviour to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student sunvey dunng the
first period class.
Questions for the Teacher

Date (day/month/year):
Weather [Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the name or number of your class or year group.
Howw many students are absent today in your class?
Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group
Please ask the students with & ‘hands-up' suney in the classroom.
AM Period Travel
How did your travel fo schood this moming? (If you travelled by more than one made, please answer with the longest
part of pour journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scooter”.)
Main Mode of Travelin the AM Period Mumber of Students
Car (as driver)
Car [as passenger with drop-off)
Walk fior the entire trip
Bu=
Train

Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

PM Period Travel
How will yow trave! fromm school this afternoon ? [1F pow will travel by more than one mode, please answer with the
longest part of your journey - e g "car” for “car and scooter”. )

Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period Mumber of Students
Car (as driver)

Car [as passenger with pick-up)

‘Walk for the entire trip
Bus

Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)

Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-hike or scooter
Public Transpaort (bus, tram or traim)

240706 St Mary’s College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 316



Attachment J

Sturt Street Community School
School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report
City of Adelaide

CLC003491

2 July 2024
Ref: 240706

tonkin

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 317



\\
Document History and Status
Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date
A Draft Report Kaitlin Neave | John Devney | John Devney | 2 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 318




Contents

Project: Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L= YT i
(S V2 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 0 T 0 =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] 5 YT o T 3 T ]
(] Lo X T oV o X = 0 ii
I 15 1o e 1T T ot o' Y e 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 YU o AV U T o Yo LI o Lo B oo oL PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o T r= ] u [ . P 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cuiiiciiciiiiisrmsa s nrs s s s ss s nrssia s ra s sssassassassansannansanssassnsnansnnsans 3
2.1 1T ol a0 IO o= =1 o] o 1= P 3
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i s 3
2.3 LI L0 50T oY 00T 6
3 Issues and OppPOortUNities...cicciarirvrmrararirirarasra s s rr s s s s s s s s na s s s nn s nnmnnnnnns 11
3.1 1] = | ] o] o L= ol = ol U 3] o] o PPN 11
3.2 1] L@ o =T V= o 1= PP 12
3.3 Summary of the issues and OPPOrtUNITIES ....uiuiiii i e 12
4 Travel Safety Options and AssesSSMmeNnt .....c.ccververerimrrrerarirs s s s s an s nn s nm s nnnss 13
4.1 Student Travel Safety OPLiONS ... e 13
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives ....oooiiiiiiiiiii e 13
4.3 Indicative Cost EStimates ... .o 14
L £ = =T 1= o o 15
Appendix A — Student Travel Survey FOrm ...c.ccccivierisierimmssssessmssassesssssassassnsasassasansasassassnnass 16

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 319



Tables

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for St Mary’s College.....ccciarirarirarararirsminmnismesasasasasasasasasasssannns 4
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety OpPtioNS .....ciciiiiiiiiireriirer i s s a s s s n s s nanansannnnns 13
Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Sturt Community School .............. 14
Figures

Figure 1.1 Sturt Street Community School Location......ccuieieierarerererersarasarsrsssnsssnsssssssssssasssasasasssnsssssnsnnnnns 2
Figure 1.2 Sturt Street Entrance to the Sturt Street Community SChool.........cccirimimieimiererererarararararasassnnns 2
Figure 2.1 Sturt Street Community School Student Enrollment in May 2024 by Year......cicvarararararasasasnsnas 3
Figure 2.2 Sturt Street Community School Student Residence Location AnalysiS......cicvevermrararararararasarsnnnns 4
Figure 2.3 Sturt Street Community School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024........c.coeverememnnnnnn 5
Figure 2.4 Sturt Street at the Signalised Crossing, LOoking East .......c.cicuirmrinnririiiiiimnsnnsnssssssssn s 6
Figure 2.5 Crashes from 2018-2022 near the Sturt Street Community School ..........cccviiinriririrarnnnnnnn. 7
Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for Sturt Street Community School .........c.ccccveianeas 8
Figure 2.7 Public Transport Stops at Sturt Street Community School ........c.cioriiiiiiiinrsrsrsrsrsr 8
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to Sturt Street Community School ..........coiiiiiii 9
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to Sturt Street Community School ........ccocveimimimrererrrararararanannns 10
Figure 3.1 Limited Space at Signalised Crossing in West Terrace at Sturt Street........c.cocvvriririrarararnnnnn 11
Figure 4.1 Parking Time Limit at Drop Off Area in Sturt Street ......c.ciciiririririiii s 13
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 320



Executive Summary

Overview

Sturt Street Community School is located on Franklin Street in Adelaide city centre. The total humber of
students enrolled in Term 2 2024 is 191 students. The Sturt Street Community School does not have an
enrolment zone and includes all suburbs in metropolitan Adelaide. Over 55 per cent of the students live
in the City of Adelaide and they have an easy walk or bicycle trip to the school is possible.

Key Findings

The walk mode share is 22 and 26 per cent in the AM and PM periods respectively with 68 and 61 per
cent using the car mode in the AM and PM periods responds. Travel to school by bicycle and scooters is
six per cent. Four per cent of students travel to school by public transport in the AM period and seven
per cent from school in the PM departure period.

The PM period has 2 per cent more students using public transport and 4 per cent more walking than in
the AM period. This result is likely because parents drop of their children on the way to work in the CBD
for the morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport or walking when the
parent is still working in the PM school departure period.

Issues observed from the site visits and raised by the principal are summarised as follows.
e Implement 25 km/hr school zone on Sturt Street.

¢ Increase police patrolling around the school.

e Review the waiting area at the intersection of West Terrace and Sturt Street.

e Implement a formal Kiss and Drop zone in Sturt Street near the school entrance.

Key Recommendations
Infrastructure Treatments

o Install red light cameras at the signalised crossing on Sturt Street to enforce the red light running of
traffic at the PAC.

¢ Implement a formal Kiss and Drop area near the school entrance in Sturt Street.
e Implement a 25 km/hr school zone in Sturt Street with Council discussions and approval from DIT.
Operational Efficiencies

e Increase police enforcement for speeding in Sturt Street to prevent and address the anti-social and
homeless activity in the area.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 321



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and operate
only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed within
school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when children are
present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about
to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other times.
Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report i

Page 322



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
o Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
e The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss
and Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:
- Existing pick up and drop off areas.
- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.
- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 1

Page 323



g

1.3 School Location

Sturt Street Community School is located on Franklin Street in Adelaide city centre on the block

bounded by Sturt Street, O'Brien Street, Little Sturt Street, and Maxwell Street. The school site and the
existing surrounding environs are shown in Figure 1.1.

a|p

w
nd
c
a ~
=2
&
)
®
-~

e [ > R

Figure 1.1 Sturt Street Community School Location

The entrance to the school in Sturt Street at the PAC is shown in Figure 1.2.

B T

||“|!ﬂ|llmﬂllﬂllilWHIt!ullmm,%a

Figure 1.2 Sturt Street Entrance to the Sturt Street Community School

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 324



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

Sturt Street Community School is a public school that comprises years Reception to Year 6. It is located
in a heritage building that was established in 1883 and was refurbished in 2004.

The bell times are 8:45 am and 3:10 pm, Monday to Friday. The school office hours are 7:45 am to 6
pm, Monday to Friday.

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The total students enrolled at the school in Term 2 2024 is 191 with a breakdown shown by year is
Figure 2.1.

60
50 52
w
t 40
O
K 39 38
&h 36
S 30
5}
s!
£ 26
3
Zz 20
10
0
Preschool Reception Year 1/2 Year 3/4 Year 5/6
Year
Figure 2.1 Sturt Street Community School Student Enroliment in May 2024 by Year
240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 3

Page 325



2.2.1 Existing School Travel Activity

The existing school travel activity to and from the Sturt Street Community School was reviewed through
site observations and a student travel mode survey on typical school days. The student travel mode
survey form is included in Appendix A.

The Sturt Street Community School does not have an enrolment zone and includes all suburbs in
metropolitan Adelaide. The number of students by residential sub areas is shown in Figure 2.2.

30

28
m Adelaide  m North Adelaide Inner Suburbs Quter Suburbs
26
25
25
23
22
» 20
15
(5]
E 16
n 15 15
5 15
@
s}
g 10
Z 10
8
5
1 1 1
0
Preschool Reception Year 1/2 Year 3/4 Year 5/6
Year
Figure 2.2 Sturt Street Community School Student Residence Location Analysis

A breakdown of the number of students by year groups with the percentages by location are provided in
Table 2.1. Over 55 per cent of students live in the City of Adelaide where they have an easy walk or
bicycle trip to the school is possible.

Table 2.1 Student Residence per Location for St Mary’s College

Location Junior School Middle School Senior School - Total DereaEE

-YearsRto6 -YearsZ7to9 Years 10to 12

Adelaide 28 15 22 105 55%
North Adelaide 0 1 0 2 1%
Inner Suburbs 8 10 16 83 44°%
Outer Suburbs 0 0 1 1 0.5%
Total 36 26 39 191 100%
240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 4

Page 326



2.2.2 Student travel demand

The student travel mode survey was conducted during the first morning class from Wednesday 29 May
to Tuesday 4 June 2024. The findings from the surveys were used to confirm the existing transport
mode shares for:

e Car (as passenger with drop-off)
e Walk for the entire trip

e Bus

e Train

e Tram

e Bicycle or e-bike

e Scooter

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.3. The walk mode share is 22 and 26 per cent in the AM and PM periods respectively with 68
and 61 per cent using the car mode in the AM and PM periods responds. Travel to school by bicycle and
scooters is six per cent. Four per cent of students travel to school by public transport in the AM period
and seven per cent from school in the PM departure period.

The PM period has 2 per cent more students using public transport and 4 per cent more walking than in
the AM period. This result is likely because parents drop of their children on the way to work in the CBD
for the morning commute trip, but the students travel home by public transport or walking when the
parent is still working in the PM school departure period.

Bike and
Scooter
6.2% Bike and

) Scooter
Public 6.0%
Transport
4.2% Public
Transport
6.7%
AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share

Figure 2.3 Sturt Street Community School Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024
240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 5

Page 327



2.3 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling, and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.3.1 Road Network

Vehicular access to the to the underground level of the school is by majority by the main access on
Sturt Street. The school office, staff parking areas, the kiss and drop area, and the school gate are all
located on Sturt Street.

Sturt Street

Sturt Road is a two-way two-lane Collector aligned in an east to west direction and is under the care
and control of the City of Adelaide. At the frontage of the school, each lane is around 3m wide, with 30-
degree angle parking on the northern side, and 90 degree angle parking on the southern side, along the
road.

Sealed bitumen footpaths are on both sides of Sturt Street. On-road cycle lane has also been provided
on both directions. It has a posted speed limit of 50 km/h. The kerbside usage, bicycle lanes and traffic
lanes in Frome Road north of Victoria Drive next to Botanic Park is shown in Figure 2.4.

Figure 2.4 Sturt Street at the Signalised Crossing, Looking East

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 6

Page 328



2.3.2 Crash History

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 (five-year period) has been sourced from DataSA.
During this time there has not been any crashes in the direct proximity of the school, as presented in
Figure 2.5.

w
B Crashes 2018-2022
Alfred St =z
= )
2 c 1: PDO
= > " s
o & Wrightst Q2M
(ylde >t = ©3:sl
N’
5 8
® o o
o > g () S Whitmore
) : = 5 B ?
2 z 3 < o Square
» o %) e I (&)
= e D 3 Sturt St e -
Mo = - p—— S
z 3 5 fou€et] 2 o - &
3 3 Z | Community |, 2} ) w
= ~% — —
AT s : i D il TE 8
S 5 ———— % >
a o
3 =@ 3 B
23 w Maxwell St ) ‘:'3,
—
"PO, ) : %
o Gilbert St o %)
Q __ Gilbert St 3 B
m = —
< 7 z 0
3 [} 2
o
~ -
Figure 2.5

Crashes from 2018-2022 near the Sturt Street Community School

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 329



2.3.3 Parking Areas

The on-street car parking controls along Sturt Street in the vicinity of the school are shown in Figure
2.6.

The area that some parents use as kiss and drop off - shown in red rectangle - is operative 8:30am to
9:30am and 3pm to 4pm, Monday to Friday, when 15 minutes of parking duration is allowed.

Parents who do not work in the CBD are unlikely to regularly drive into the CBD to drop off or pick up

their child. Many students, who 13 years of age or older, are capable of travelling on their own and
would use public transport.

2 HR PARKING MONDAY.TO i , | NOSTOPPING

TIMES
®

|FRIDAY 8AM-6PM SATURDAY. -g_[ H'ESDISABLED

O PARKING
FRIDAY. GAM-6PM

oz
2 HR PARKING MONDAY TO
FRIDAY 8AM-6PM ¢

Figure 2.6 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for Sturt Street Community School

2.3.4 Public Transport

Adelaide CBD is the focus of the bus, tram and train network. Sturt Street Community School has a bus

stop that is immediately outside of the school gate, and more along Sturt Street and West Terrace.as
shown in Figure 3.14. The Go Zone route G10 stops in Sturt Street.

3
: 2
8
-
O
A3 1 West Tce Q
2 m > 3
o % g_ ®
] g 3
e i X
hy Sturt St
< Sturt St %
w8 g 9 Suhtstieet S
S
= 3 7 Co nity 2
2 4 % schiool 2
o - g 2
[+ =
o
Reeces Ln
@ J1 West Tce ~
Maxwell St %
o 23
d c
g.:‘ ] Gilbert St
2.8 Gilbert St W
©3 Gilbert St < z
=3 < 2 3
o = g g
3 8 2
Figure 2.7

Public Transport Stops at Sturt Street Community School

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 330



2.3.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to the adjacent G S Kingston Park
and the West Terrace cemetery, and the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.8.

Based on Figure 2.8, Sturt Street is a secondary road with on-road bike lane provided on both sides of
the road. Sealed shared paths exist throughout the Adelaide Park Lands.

VD :

(2]
o
o
o

GISTlE

g

Sturt Street
Community School

ciy

- END |KESWICK
ytH TERMINAL

Legend
Bike Network Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body

Mein Road - Bikel Lae @  Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use

Main Road © Bike Shop (2024) @  RailTram Stop - Educational Land
—mcm Secondary Road - Bike Lane % Police Station ———— Distance to GPO Retail / Commercial
—Secondary Road o Public Hospital 50m Contour Green Space
== Off Road Sealed Path ® Traffic Light Major Creek Built-Up Residential

Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to Sturt Street Community School

2.3.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff, and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to the school, as many students live within the Adelaide CBD
area. The footpath network along Sturt Street needs to be well maintained and kept clear of fallen trees
and debris by the City of Adelaide.

The high school has good pedestrian access from all directions from Adelaide CBD, as shown in Figure
2.9. There is a signalised pedestrian crossing adjacent to the school on Sturt Street.

A 5, 10 and 15-minute walkable catchment areas to Sturt Street Community School are shown in Figure
2.9. Students who walk their entire trip to school are likely walking from Adelaide city centre or G S
Kingston Park.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 9

Page 331



= 5 ]
PHILLIPS STREET
- 3
B
B z
o 3
niz) 3
\ z.
¢ N
THEBART —~ \
LIGHT ON M&-@ o
TERRACE 3 k"‘(’uﬁwe,
;Q GEORGE smss‘tﬁ
2!
M=
ER = L&
T3 "z 3
el z
& %
= \ -]
= > 3
3
E g &
3 <
2 m
)
B
E g:o = RACE nma«mi
b 33 Tz __ROAD
= [=] HE zE .
g HENLEY BEACH ROAD 214 mn g E
HENLEY BEACH
BOAD WINDLEY STREET ;5 = RUMDLE STREET RUNOLE
o mml ] ROAD T
@ A = >
AOVEMVENue 155 : :
P A —— e b z P
%""‘E;’T“g] fcuriE smgs% CRENFELLSTREET GRENFELLSI“EEP o @@ v;‘:“
= %
] n
m Ll
1

MILE END

133815 VIHOLIIA

MILE END
LONDOM SOUTH
ROAD

MANCHESTER STREET

b [ RICHMOND ROADIEY

EPRALE!

o
2
-]
E
3
Q
z
g &
: o &3
KESWICK ar =
< =]
r_‘}j . %
]
Py = ©
£y ERARD AVENUE E )
Ve =
s
S

ASHFORD &

WAPLE AVEHUE

—
LEADER STREET
="

Legend

o B

PpaRSONS STREET

[}
L
He Yﬁ:\ ‘
HE
- PIRIE,STREET

WAYHMOUTH STREET

Jovd HIIMYD

o~ FRANKLIN STREET. FLINDERS STREET 15
- 3
] =H 1
B b=} El
i - z - - m
- 520 amgrore sTREET[GraTe =t ﬁ& E 7 puakeRel® STREELY D
WO = = B IDE 2 ¥

-3
FEERTS

113H4d0

GOUGER STREET

o

133815

an
CARRINGTON STREET
|
VALIFAX STR E E
oo

GILLES STREET

WRIGHT STREET

=
GREEHHILLROAD

L PARKSIDE
(} ¢OUNG STREET
i)

133315 NIV

WAYVILLE

133415 NS0T
133u1s s1u3A0H

HUGHES STREET
o)

-

UNLEY

\.\zll‘* ALBERT STREET
‘:’Z\v’;v-‘:" (’wsugmcn STREET
Suburbs e g2
= Bus St 1km Wa”(lng = & 1= ARTHUR STREET 4% ~
s o ops Catchment (-’ QODWOOD U - \l%
. = = S
School Crossings 1.5km Walking 2 5 ° E]z
—— Railways Catchment % g Z é? 2
-] 1 ]
% School Entrance 2km Walking X (¢ g b &
Sturt Stre Catchment 3
et =
Com i i §
|T!Llnlty o PEdESfEI’Ian R TCHELL STREET PARK STREET WATTLE STREET
. o Crossings 2o =
iDe ;SONB E g v
g
ot 15 *430=" s;? 860Me § MiLLSWooD HYDE PARK WMALVERN
9,‘-‘: S 5o
i 83 L1 cadea | g8 H =) -
AVENUE E g 2 ﬁ FISHER STREET
- Sl a F
Figure 2.9 eley ]

Walkable Acce
SS CatClIIIIeIIt to Sturt Street COIIIIIIUIIIty SCI|00|
T

240706 Sturt S
treet Com i
munity School | School Travel Safety Revi
iew — Draft Report

Page 332



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff and
site observations conducted during the AM drop-off period and the PM pick-up period.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

The following issues were discussed with the school at a meeting held in May 2024:
e The general public are not aware of the school zone in Sturt Street.

e Speeding traffic in Sturt Street is significant concern, in particular at school drop-off and pick-up
times.

e Vehicles are observed to run red lights at the signalised crossing.

e There is no designated kiss and drop off area for the school. Consequently, some parents would use
the bus stop area in front of the school to drop off or pick up students.

o Due homeless camping out in Edwards Park, some homeless people have been spotted on using
school facilities.

e Anti-social behaviour and criminal activity occurring on Sturt Street in close proximity to the school.

e The school conducts a daily bicycle ride with around 20 students to ride from the school along the
bicycle trails in Edwards Park. When crossing at West Terrace and Sturt Street intersection, as shown
in Figure 3.1, the space at the signalised crossing is very limited, where the shared user path is in
direct conflict. This is problematic when a cyclist rides along the shared user path and is blocked by
the crowd of students on bicycles waiting for the light.

Figure 3.1 Limited Space at Signalised Crossing in West Terrace at Sturt Street

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 11

Page 333



3.2 Site Observations

The existing staff and student transport mode activity to and from the Sturt Street Community School
were observed during the AM peak arrival period and the PM peak departure period on typical school
days in May 2024. The site visits were conducted on Thursday 30 May for the AM and PM peak periods.

3.2.1 AM Arrival Period

The pedestrian, cyclist, bus passenger, and drop-off activity were observed during AM arrival period
from 8:30 am to 9:00 am. The AM period arrival profile was relatively distributed over the 15-minute
block before 8:30 am, then the activity peaked from 8:30 am to 8:45 am.

The findings from the AM observations are:

e Many parents and students were observed to have walked or cycled for the drop off, despite of the
raining weather.

e No private passenger cars were observed to occupy the bus stop area.

e Drivers were overall respectful to the pedestrians walking on the signalised crossing.

3.2.2 PM Departure Period

The pick-up activities were observed during PM departure period from 3:00 pm to 3:30 pm. The key
findings from the PM observations are:

e Many parents were observed to arrive on foot, some on bicycles.
e Some students were observed to take buses on Sturt Street and West Terrace.
e No private passenger cars were observed to occupy the bus stop area.

e Drivers were overall respectful to the pedestrians walking on the signalised crossing.

3.3 Summary of the issues and opportunities

Issues observed from the site visits and raised or suggested by the principal are summarised as follows.
e Implement a 25 km/hr school zone on Sturt Street.

e Increase police patrolling around the school.

e Review the waiting area at the intersection of West Terrace and Sturt Street.

e Implement a formal Kiss and Drop zone in Sturt Street near the school entrance.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 12

Page 334



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment
4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students at the school were developed under two categories,
namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.

e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.
The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options

Type of Option Description Issue Addressed

Infrastructure Implement a formal Kiss and Drop | Parents occupying bus stop areas for drop

Treatments area near the school entrance in off / pick up activity.
Sturt Street.

Implement a 25 km/hr school Traffic speeding issues in Sturt Street would
zone in Sturt Street. be help with a 25 km/h speed limit during
the school drop-off and pick-up times.

Install red light cameras at the To enforce red light running behaviour.
signalised crossing on Sturt Street

Operational Increase police enforcement To prevent and address the anti-social and
Efficiencies homeless activity in the area.
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives are explained with more detail as follows:

e Implement a Kiss and Drop area near the gate of the school in Sturt Street as shown in Figure 4.1.

Reduce 15min parking limit
to 2min or 5min for a more §
efficient kiss and drop area

=
15 MIN PARKING MONDAY TO
FRIDAY 8:30AM-9:30AM L

Figure 4.1 Parking Time Limit at Drop Off Area in Sturt Street

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 13

Page 335



4.3 Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.2. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

e T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

e P for Parking control changes with new signage and pavement markings for a Kiss and Drop or school
zone.

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at Sturt Community School
Priority Assessment Indicative Cost Comments
Estimate

T1 Install red light cameras at the $200,000 Council to apply to DIT for
PAC signalised crossing on Sturt installation of the cameras.
Street.

T2 Implement 25 km/hr school zone Less than $5,000 Council to design and install
in Franklin Street. this treatment. Consult with

DIT for approval.

P1 Implement Kiss and Drop area in Less than $2,000 Council to install line marking
Sturt Street in front of the school. and changes to the signage.
240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 14

Page 336



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114.

e Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads,
Sydney, 2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105.

e Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October
2023, Appendix C School Zones.

e Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024.

e Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code
of Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3
Drop off and pick up zones, page 34.

e School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024.

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 15

Page 337



\

9

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

School Travel Survey for Students
School: Sturt Street Community School

Tonkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a sunvey to determine the main modes of travel for sfudents
to undersiand the travel behaviowr to the school. Please assist us by undertaking a short student survey during the

first period class.

Questions for the Teacher
Date (day/monthiyear):
Weather [Daytime temperature and sky conditions):
Please enter the mame or number of your class or year group.

How many students are absent today in your class?
Questions for the Students in Your Class / Year Group
Please ask the students with a2 ‘hands-up’ survey in the classroom.

AM Period Travel

Howe did you travel to school this morring ? (If youw travelled by more than one mode, please answer with the longest
part of your jourmey - e g "car” for “car and scoofer”. )

Main Mode of Travel in the AM Period
Car (as passenger with drop-off)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus

Number of Students

Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

PM Period Travel

How will pou travel from school this aftermoon? {If you will travel by reore than one mode, pleasze answer with the

longest part of your journey - e.g. "car” for "car and scooter™.)
Main Mode of Travel in the PM Period
Car (as passenger with pick-up)
Walk for the entire trip
Bus

Mumber of Students

Train
Tram
Bicycle or e-bike
Soooter
If you travelled by car, would you prefer any of these modes? (multiple answers)
Walking for the entire trip
Bicycle, e-bike or scooter
Public Transport (bus, tram or train)

240706 Sturt Street Community School | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 338



Attachment K

L
N
/::/,/—
W
A

.r-.-un. .‘ ,. \\ \\ JW
TR \
T
R
A DN
i

<l

\
AL

P
T
e

75

77

o

7
7
=z

=
o

el
o
/:Z/;‘?
Sy

7
2

Z
o
22

\\

7z
s

2

Aﬁ__,

College

Ior

iversity Seni

Un

— Draft Report

ew

School Travel Safety Rev

City of Adelaide
CLC003491

9 July 2024

Ref: 240706

tonking

Building exceptional
outcomes together

Page 339



Document History and Status

Rev Description Author Reviewed Approved Date

A Draft Report John Devney | James Arnold | James Arnold | 9 July 2024

© Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

This document is, and shall remain, the property of Tonkin Consulting. The document may only be used for the purposes for which it
was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any

form whatsoever is prohibited.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 340



Contents

Project: University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report
Client: City of Adelaide
Ref: 240706

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY tutueusumresmrmsumme s me s s s s s s s s ss s s s s s s n s w g n s w A w A s MmN R R n R A nnm R nnmAnnE i
L L7 YT i
(=Y 1 o 1 e 1= PP i
[ (T eo T 1 T g =] g o F= o o 13 PP i
N 5] 5 YT o T 3 ]
(] Lo X T oV o1 = 0 e ii
3 I 3 1o T 1T ot o' Y 1
1.1 2 1= Lol (e | o 18 [ Lo [P PP 1
1.2 S U Lo AV U T o Yo LI ] o T BT oo o1 PP 1
1.3 15T ol T Yo I 1o Y= u [ . PP 2
2 EXisting ConditioNs cciiiiiiciiimramsaniessanrs s s s s nrassa s s sssassassasssnsasnansanssassnsnansnnsans 6
2.1 1T ol a T B0 o= 5=\ o] o 1= PP 6
2.2 Student ENrolmeEnt ANaly SIS ..o i e i e 6
2.3 Student Travel DemMaNd .. ..ot aa 7
2.4 LI L0 50T oY 00T 9
3 Issues and OpPortUNitiesS . iciiciiiiii i i i s s rr s s s s s s s rrsra s r s rnaranrnnrnnnnnnn 18
3.1 1 o=1 =] pTe] Lo L=t gl T = ol U =1~} o 1= P 18
3.2 1] 1= @ 01T =T V2= o[ o I PN 18
3.3 Summary of the Issues and OpPPOrtUNITIES ......ciuiiieii e 18
4 Travel Safety Options and ASSeSSMENt .....cuveverierrimmrnmra i s s s s s s s s s an s nnn s nnnsnnnss 19
4.1 Student Travel Safety OpPliONS ...ouiiiii i e 19
4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety INitiatives ......ccouiiiiiiii e 19
4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost ESHIMAtes ..o s 20
L 2= =T 4T o T o= 21

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 341



Tables

Table 2.1 AM Travel Mode Survey Results for University Senior College by Year.......cocveverararararararasanannnnss 8
Table 2.2 PM Travel Mode Survey Results for University Senior College by Year .......cvcvevmvarararararnaranasnnss 8
Table 2.3 Local Streets at University Senior College.......cvivrimimimrmrararararrssrsrsrsrsssssssssssssasasasasasasssasassssnsnnns 9
Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at University Senior College .......cieruririmimmmnmnmmmrasasararassanassnsnnnss 9
Table 2.5 Local Road Network Attributes at University Senior College .......ciururirimimimiminsmsmsararasssanssansnnnns 9
Table 2.6 Parking Types at University Senior College — Kintore Avenue.......cicivririmimnmnssesasasasassssssssannns 11
Table 2.7 Parking Types at University Senior College — Gawler Place.......c.cicririmimimisisisinnnsnansnnssnsnnns 12
Table 2.8 Public Transport Services for Students at University Senior College........ccicimimirerminirereinnananns 14
Table 4.1 School Travel Safety Options for University Senior College........cccimirirerminirarminnrarniesnaramnnanaen 19
Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at University Senior College ............. 20
Figures

Figure 1.1 University Senior College Locality Plan .....cccuieseieieiamasararerersssssanssssnssssssssssssssasasasasassssssssssssnnnnns 2
Figure 1.2 University Senior College Campus Site Plan ......cccvverararararararsrsrsrsrsnsssssnsssssssssasasasasasasassssssssnsnnns 3
Figure 1.3 University Senior College — Kintore Avenue Location ....c.cicrererrrsrirsrisismsssnssssassmasssasssssssssnnnnns 4
Figure 1.4 Entrances to the University Senior College Kintore Avenue Campus ......cccusmsimsesarasassssasasssnnnns 4
Figure 1.5 University Senior College — Gawler Place Location...cicicicrerarrrrirsriririsnsmsmesemsmsmasassasasssasasnsnnnnns 5
Figure 1.6 Entrance to the USC Gawler Place CampPusS.....c.cueuevmiamaranerasmasasssssssssssssssmsssssssmssssasasasasssssnsnsssnsnns 5
Figure 2.1 University Senior College Residence Locations by Sub-Area .........c.ccoirimimieieinnnaranarsnannsnsnnnnns 6
Figure 2.2 University Senior College Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024.........cccvcverrrrrnnnnns 7
Figure 2.3 Crashes on School Days at University Senior College......cciararrmnririninmnmnsamarasasasasasasssassnsssnsnnns 10

Figure 2.4 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for University Senior College - Kintore Avenue ... 11

Figure 2.5 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for University Senior College — Gawler Place ...... 12
Figure 2.6 Public Transport Services to University Senior College .......c.curirmmirirreinirremssmrmsssarasssssasaa. 13
Figure 2.7 Public Transport Network to University Senior College.........cccorimimirrinirrmsnmnmsnrsssnsaaa. 15
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to University Senior College .....cccvrrmrrrrrarararsrssmsssmsmssssssasasasasssasasssssnsnnnns 16
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to University Senior College .......c.civririririmimisimmmmamrrrasasanasnssnnns 17
Appendices

Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form
Appendix B — Travel Access Guide for TAFE NSW

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 342



Executive Summary

Overview

University Senior College (USC) comprises years 10 to 12. The school does not have an enrolment area
and students are accepted from anywhere. The school operates like a university with no set bell times.
Students arrive and depart at irregular times each day to suit the courses that they are enrolled in.
Students also do not have uniforms as with other high schools.

Key Findings

The students University Senior College can have a home location anywhere in the metropolitan Adelaide
area and in regional South Australia. Students beyond a commuting distance typically live with short-
term accommodation elsewhere. Very few students live in the City of Adelaide and therefore walking to
school is not a convenient travel option.

From the student travel survey conducted in May 2024, most students are using public transport to and
from the school with 75 per cent in the AM arrival period and 90 per cent in the PM departure period.
This excellent result is because the students are older and confident to use the train, bus and tram
network services that converge in Adelaide CBD.

The PM departure period has 15 per cent more students using public transport than in the AM period,
and a similar percentage fewer using private vehicles. This result is likely because some parents drop off
their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel
home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure period.

Transport safety issues that affect the USC students that were identified through a discussion with the
school administrator are:

o Safety for walking along footpaths in the city streets with trip hazards, in particular along Kintore
Avenue.

e Risks for incidents between pedestrians and vehicles entering and exiting the U-Park in Gawler Place
that at the entrance of the Gawler Place campus.

e Traffic entering the University of Adelaide at Gates 11, 12 and 13 often do not give way to pedestrians
and are travelling too fast.

e The U-Park parking facility in Gawler Place attracts anti-social behaviour in the stairwells and on the
street. This is a security issue for students entering and exiting the building.

Key Recommendations

The recommended school travel safety initiatives include:
e Maintain footpaths along Kintore Avenue.
e Install warning signs at the entrance and exit of the U-Park in Gawler Place.

e Council to follow up on security issues with the monitoring of the video surveillance cameras at the
Gawler Place U-Park entrance and stairwells.

e Prepare a promotional brochure about public transport and safe cycling routes to Adelaide CBD.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report i

Page 343



Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Description

DfE Department for Education, South Australia
DIT Department for Infrastructure and Transport, South Australia
PAC Pedestrian Actuated Crossing with traffic signals

Glossary of Terms

Term Description

Bicycle lane

On-road kerbside lane allocated for bicycles with pavement markings

Emu crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and
operate only when the children’s crossing flags are displayed. They are placed
within school zones and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers when
children are present. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or about to use
the crossing.

Kiss and Drop
zone

A location designated on the street or on the school grounds for parents and
carers in vehicles to drop-off or pick-up students typically with a 2-minute
waiting limit. Parents are to stay in the vehicle.

Koala crossing

A pedestrian crossing with white road markings, red and white posts and two
yellow alternating flashing lights. They are only operational when the yellow
lights are flashing and a speed limit of 25 km/h applies to drivers between signs
on the approach to the crossing. Drivers must stop for pedestrians using or
about to use the crossing.

Shared path

Off-road pathway for pedestrians and cyclists

Go Zone

A high frequency bus corridor with one or more bus routes with a service
headway of every 15 minutes on weekdays and every 30 minutes at other
times. Stops and stations within a 'Go Zone' provide a bus, train or tram
operating:

e every 15 minutes between 7.30 am and 6.30 pm, Monday-Friday
e every 30 minutes between 6.30 pm and 10 pm, Monday-Friday

e every 30 minutes on Saturday, Sunday and South Australian public holidays.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report i

Page 344



1 Introduction

This section provides the background for the school travel safety reviews and the study purpose and
scope with an overview of the school location.

1.1 Background

The City of Adelaide is conducting School Travel Safety Reviews with the key objectives to:

e Investigate the current speed limits to assess the requirement of reducing the speed to 40km/h or
less to help support more vibrant businesses and for a safer urban environment with the provision of
higher quality amenity in the residential streets in the City of Adelaide.

e Consider always extending the time periods for the 25 km/h speed limit at and near all schools in the
City of Adelaide when children are present and to work with DIT to further understand what
responsible safety measures may be added to assist with drop off/pick up of children.

In January 2023, the Council requested the administration to investigate and report by the end of the
2023 school year on the need for and the nature of any additional measures to enhance the safety of
primary and secondary, public and private school students entering and leaving schools at the beginning
and end of the school day, including the introduction of supervised or unsupervised so called “kiss and
drop zones” at all schools in the City of Adelaide.

A School Safety Report was completed for St Aloysius College and presented to the Infrastructure and
Public Works Committee held on 19 March 2024. At the Council Meeting on 26 March 2024, Council
decided to complete school travel safety reviews for 11 other schools in the City of Adelaide.

1.2 Study Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the work is to develop and document an evidence-based approach using the Safe
System approach to address road safety concerns for children, parents and carers, with recommended
changes such as safer crossing outcomes and measures to reduce the danger from motorised vehicle
movements. The key objectives of the school transport safety reviews are to:

e Review the extents of the existing school speed zones to achieve Safe System speed outcomes, and
e Identify and prioritise opportunities to improve safety outcomes around schools.
The following tasks were completed for this school travel safety review:

e Engage with each school Principal or relevant representative to discuss issues with student travel to
and from the school and opportunities to improve school travel safety.

e With the support from the teachers, undertake a student travel mode survey.

e Conduct AM and PM site investigations to observe any unsafe movements, in particular at the Kiss and
Drop areas.

e Identify and map the location of the:

- Existing pick up and drop off areas.

- Existing school zones and other speed limits, including signs.

- Existing crossings by type and informal crossing points and pedestrian desire lines.

- Proposed locations of any measures, such as indicative locations of new crossings, new/changed
school zones and of pick-up and drop off areas.

e Document the research and site investigation findings with options and prioritised recommendations
for infrastructure projects to improve school travel safety.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 1

Page 345



1.3 School Location

University Senor College (USC) is a Government-supported high school that has two buildings in
Adelaide CBD in Kintore Avenue at Victoria Drive and in Gawler Place as shown in Figure 1.1.

' ‘ ':\"‘_ - .;‘i',“' '\."

8

o
| Adelaid:’i- 2
 Railway | ¥

'~ Station

Figure 1.1 University Senior College Locality Plan

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 2

Page 346



/

The USC campus site plan provided in Figure 1.2 shows the location of the Kintore Avenue and Gawler
Place campuses.

11 30D

o0
i
i
|

i [ e W
3’}*
'i‘
\z“s
5

] ]

NORTH TERRACE
[I— =
o David Jones 9 2 I i
2 5 o - 8
m
2 Ml L—— — 2
x a Rensissance Arcade Q =| T‘
S A 3 z
0 m ﬁ ——
RUNDLE MALL
Figure 1.2 University Senior College Campus Site Plan

The two campuses at University Senior College are located:

e on Kintore Avenue at Victoria Drive as shown in Figure 1.3.
e in Gawler Place in the Parc Arcade building as shown in Figure 1.5.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 347



Figure 1.3 University Senior College - Kintore Avenue Location

The entrances to the USC Kintore Avenue campus are shown in Figure 1.4.

abajjo9 Jojues Aysiaajun

USC Campus in Kintore Avenue with the car park  USC Campus in Kintore Avenue the short-term
with access from Victoria Drive parking in Kintore Avenue

Figure 1.4 Entrances to the University Senior College Kintore Avenue Campus

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 4

Page 348



Figure 1.5 University Senior College — Gawler Place Location

The entrance to the USC campus in Gawler Place is shown in Figure 1.6

>

The USC Gawler Place campus entrance with a Footpath on the west side of Gawler Place to the
car exiting from the Parc Arcade in Gawler Place. USC Gawler Place campus entrance.

Figure 1.6 Entrance to the USC Gawler Place Campus

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 5

Page 349



2 Existing Conditions

The section provides the analysis of the existing school operations, the student population and travel
patterns and an overview of transport access to the school by all transport modes.

2.1 School Operations

University Senior College (USC) comprises years 10 to 12. The hours of operations by year are:

e Year 10 classes typically start at 9 am and finish at 4 pm whilst on Fridays finish at 3 pm. Year 10
students will engage in 1- and 2-hour classes which provide them with time to go deeply into their
learning, and while experiencing a range of subjects.

e For Year 11 and 12 students, the USC school day begins at 8.10 am and on most days ends at
5.00pm. This extended day has the benefit of a flexible timetable structure, based upon two-hour
blocks. At Year 11, students have two 2-hour lessons in each subject, providing greater opportunity to
engage with the subject in considerable depth. At Year 12, many subjects have two one-hour lectures
delivered in the USC and University of Adelaide lecture theatres and one 2-hour tutorial.

The school office hours generally follow the timetables of students within both campuses.

2.2 Student Enrolment Analysis

The school enrolment in Term 2 2024 is for 471 students with a distribution by year as follows:
e 100 students in Year 10
e 189 students in Year 11
e 182 students in Year 12

Students attending USC can have a home location anywhere in the metropolitan Adelaide area and in
regional South Australia. Students beyond a commuting distance typically live with short-term
accommodation elsewhere. The number of students by sub area are shown in Figure 2.1. Very few
students live in the City of Adelaide and therefore walking to school is not a convenient travel option.

140
128
124

120

100
a8
=
S 80
2 70
o
t 59
o 60
Ke)
g 45
z

40

27
20
7
3, 4 2 2
Year10 Year11 Year 12
Year
m Adelaide m North Adelaide Inner Suburbs Outer Suburbs
Figure 2.1 University Senior College Residence Locations by Sub-Area
240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 6

Page 350



2.3 Student Travel Demand

The existing school travel activity to and from the University Senior College was reviewed through site
observations and a student travel mode survey on typical school days. The student travel mode survey
questions using the Survey Monkey online tool is included in Appendix A.

The student travel survey was conducted across 5 days between Friday May 24 and Thursday May 30
2024. With 132 surveys completed, the response rate 28 per cent with an enrolment of 471 students.
This is considered a valid sample of the student population for statistical purposes.

The findings from the surveys were used to confirm the existing transport mode shares for:

Car (as driver)

Car (as passenger with drop-off)

Walk for the entire trip

Bus, Train or Tram

Bicycle or e-bike
Scooter

The student travel mode shares to school in the AM period and from school in the PM period are shown
in Figure 2.2. Most students are using public transport to and from the school with 75 per cent in the AM
arrival period and 90 per cent in the PM departure period. This excellent result is because the students
are older and confident to use the train, bus and tram network services that converge in Adelaide CBD.

The PM departure period has 15 per cent more students using public transport than in the AM period,
and a similar percentage fewer using private vehicles. This result is likely because some parents drop off
their children on the way to work in the CBD for the morning commute trip, but the students travel
home by public transport when the parent is still working in the PM school departure period.

Bike and Bike and
Scooter, 1.5% Scooter, 1.5%_

B

Public

Public

Transport, T t
ranspo
75.0% POTL,
90.2%
AM Period Arrival Transport Mode Share PM Period Departure Transport Mode Share
Figure 2.2 University Senior College Student Transport Mode Shares in May 2024
240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 7

Page 351



A more detailed breakdown of the transport mode survey for the AM travel to University Senior College
is provided in Table 2.1. The bus services at the stops in Grenfell Street/Currie Street were used by 17

per cent of the students and 25 per cent of the students arrived by train.

Table 2.1

Transport Mode

Year 10

Year 11

Year 12

AM Travel Mode Survey Results for University Senior College by Year

Total

Car 6 (19.4%) 11 (21.2%) 14 (28.6%) @ 31 (23.5%)
Bus in Grenfell Street/ 3 10 10 23 (17.4%)
Currie Street

Bus in King William Street 3 8 6 17 (12.9%)
Bus in North Terrace 1 6 1 8 (6.1%)
Train 6 14 13 33 (25.0%)
Tram 3 1 2 6 (4.5%)

Public Transport

24 (77.4%)

40 (76.9%)

35 (71.4%)

99 (75.0%)

Bike and Scooter

1 (3.2%)

1 (1.9%)

0 (0.0%)

2 (1.5%)

Total

31

52

49

132

A more detailed breakdown of the transport mode survey for the PM travel from University Senior

College is provided in Table 2.2. The bus services at the stops in Grenfell Street/Currie Street were used

by 24 per cent of the students and 29 per cent of the students travelled home by train.

Table 2.2 PM Travel Mode Survey Results for University Senior College by Year
Transport Mode Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Total
Car 1 (3.2%) 4 (7.7%) 6 (12.2%) 11 (8.3%)
Bus in Grenfell Street/ 9 11 12 32 (24.2%)
Currie Street
Bus in King William Street 3 9 8 20 (15.2%)
Bus in North Terrace 3 9 3 15 (11.4%)
Train 8 17 13 38 (28.8%)
Tram 2 0 2 4 (3.0%)

Public Transport

29 (93.5%)

47 (90.4%)

43 (87.8%)

119 (90.2%)

Bike and Scooter

1 (3.2%)

1 (1.9%)

0 (0.0%)

2 (1.5%)

Total

31

52

49

132

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 352




2.4 Transport Access

Transport access to the school via road, public transport, cycling and walking and the availability of on-
street, on-site and off-site parking is provided in this section.

2.4.1 Road Network

The streets in the local road network at University Senior College are provided in Table 2.3. The front
entrance and schools are from Kintore Avenue and Gawler Place for the Kintore and Gawler campuses
respectively.

Table 2.3 Local Streets at University Senior College
Road Campus Classification Relevance to School ‘
Kintore Avenue | Kintore Local street Front entrance - Kintore Campus
Victoria Drive Kintore Local street 20 m from Kintore Avenue school entrance
North Terrace Gawler Sub-Arterial :\:) (:::t?s;not:(:]l;g‘:s;ybtzC;:gggra:ljifai;npus’
Gawler Place Gawler Local street Front Entrance of Gawler Place campus

The attributes of the local road network at University Senior College are provided in Table 2.4. In areas
where no data was provided, the field was labelled as not applicable (n/a). North Terrace has a high
traffic volume and is a busy east-west that students walking between the two campuses must cross.

Table 2.4 Local Road Network Attributes at University Senior College
Road Number of Lanes Daily Traffic Volumes Posted Speed
(veh/day) (km/h)
Kintore Avenue 2 = 50
Victoria Drive 2 - 50
North Terrace 4 22,700 50
Gawler Place 2 - 50

The road network does not include any 25 km/h school zone during AM and PM peak times. Signalised
pedestrian crossing is provided at the North Terrace / Gawler Place / Kintore Avenue intersection.

Table 2.5 Local Road Network Attributes at University Senior College
Road 25 km/h School Zone in Street Type of Crossing in Street
Kintore Avenue No Signalised Crossing
Victoria Drive No N/A
North Terrace No Signalised Crossing
Gawler Place No Signalised Crossing

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 353



2.4.2 Crash Analysis

A review of the latest crash data from 2018 to 2022 (five-year period) has been sourced from DataSA.
During this time there has been the following crashes within direct vicinity of the school:

e Kintore Avenue: 3 property damage crashes
e Victoria Drive: 3 property crashes

- Intersection with Kintore Avenue: 1 property damage crash
e Gawler Place: 1 property damage crash

- Intersection with North Terrace: 2 property damage crashes

The crash statistics in the vicinity of Kintore Avenue and Victoria Drive and near Gawler Place are
presented in Figure 2.3.

= M/af@ 0)/o
t:Q’ emofl'a/ )
= &
— » <
| River 7.OI‘/-ens War Memoria\®
o
.
@/ict @ ) RS
' N\ g 2
Kintore N
=1 ®

Crashes 2018-2022

1: PDO
A ® 2Mm
@ © 3:3l
>
P
(A | North Terrace &)
\ )
- O |
> Austin St =
ace a- g
)
cgﬂpus 525 ‘(}’, &

Figure 2.3 Crashes on School Days at University Senior College

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 354

10



2.4.3

Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas

The types of carparking provided in the streets surrounding the both school locations are separated in
Table 2.6 and Table 2.7. The on-street car parking controls along the streets in the vicinity of the school
are also shown in Figure 2.4 and Figure 2.5 for the Kintore Avenue and Gawler Place campuses

respectively.

On-street parking on both sides of Kintore Avenue and Victoria Drive is available. This is provided for
motorcycles and vehicles. Kiss and Drop activity can occur on these streets, however it is does not an
issue with the distributed times for the start and finish of classes and the high public transport usage for

students.
Table 2.6 Parking Types at University Senior College - Kintore Avenue
Road Type of Parking

Kintore Avenue

Motorcycle all times, Angled timed (3-hour ticket parking 9 am to 3 pm any day}

Victoria Drive

Motorcycle all times, Angled timed (3-hour ticket parking 9 am to 3 pm any day}

3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY
SAM-6PM
2 o 3 HR AREA TICKET ANY, DAY,
3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY ", oy _BAM-6PM
BAM-6PM @ MOTORCYCLE AT AL TIMES
& 3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY
MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES BAM-EPM

MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES

5 3 MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY, )
Ll 3 4R AREA TICKET ANY DA
2
3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY
GArk Gem _BAM-6PM

o
& MOTORCYCLE AT/ALLTIMES
Ry

3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY
BAM-6PM

MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
£

3 HR AREA TICKET ANY, DAY,
SAM-6PM

O

MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
£

1Q-o
Ry
“‘SR o

MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES,

MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
)

el MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES Ry p QRS

@
‘ MOTORCYCLE AT/ALL TIMES & ‘g‘OTORCVCLE AT ALL TIMES

@
3 HR AREA TICKET ANY. DAY, ¢l MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES
8AM-6PM &

i | MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES iy

® MOTORCYCLE AT ALLTIMES 2y
MOTORCYCLE AT ALL TIMES | MOTORCYCLE AT ALLITIMES Dy 3 HR AREA TICKET ANY DAY,
o | T BAM-6PM

‘ 3 HR AREA TICKET ANY,DAY gy

3 HR'AREA TICKET ANY DAY | 3 HR AREA T.i;l;KEf ANY DAY
BAM-6PM k SAMGPM
3 \ %
g {
§ University Senior College: Y
ZAVIOTORCYCLE AT ALLTINES \
L,/—/
3 HR'AREA TICKET ANY DAY
M-6PM
N
A HOICOSE AT Parking Control Points [E] Bus @ Motorcycle  © Permit Unrestricted
& e Area Parking El Disabled ® NoParking © Residential © Visitor
BICYCLE LANE AT ALL = %
5 A S - ® Area Ticket e Loading ® No Stopping = Taxi & Work Zone
m i ; A
# Bicycle e Mail Van e Parking ' Ticket
Figure 2.4 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for University Senior College - Kintore Avenue

On-street parking on North Terrace and Gawler Place is limited to taxi parking, with no designated drop-
off or pick-up zone for the school. Kiss and Drop activity occurs informally in the Gawler Place in the
turnaround area before the entrance to the Council car park or in other CBD streets where the students
walk through Rundle Mall and Gawler Place.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 11

Page 355



P

Table 2.7 Parking Types at University Senior College - Gawler Place

Road Type of Parking

North Terrace | No Stopping at all times with the tram line

Gawler Place Taxi access at all times, no stopping at all times with access to the City of Adelaide
U-Park facility

@I'IOASTOPPIHQATMLL
TIMES

INO STOPPING AT ALL" i
(6=
L e

LOADING ANY DAY - ING AT ALL TIMES
6AM-10AM e LOADINE 2T AL IRE

T . NOSTOPPINGATAL | =
=* ‘ i TIMES ——
S 2 = @ PERMIT AT ALL TIMES |
o Sicrmic g Looms e €
O e ALY G ADING ANY,DAY,BAM-6PM @ OADING ATIALLTIMES @uo,s‘ropmua ATALL
e AW

TIMES

|

i
Parking Control Points Bus & Motorcycle © Permit ©  Unrestricted
® Area Parking El Disabled ® No Parking @ Residential ¢ Visitor

©  Area Ticket ® Loading & No Stopping i Taxi ‘ Work Zone

# Bicycle @ Mail Van e Parking @ Ticket
Figure 2.5 On-street Parking and Kiss and Drop Areas for University Senior College - Gawler Place
240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report 12

Page 356



2.4.4 Public Transport

Students have convenient walk access to all train lines at Adelaide railway station, to the tram network
with stops in King William Street at Rundle Mall and North Terrace at the Art Gallery and to all CBD bus

routes in Grenfell Street/Currie Street, King William Street, King William Road and North Terrace as
shown in Figure 2.6.

War Memorial Dt

M BUDA s e Budh

5 uﬂ!\\

AON V

ia Dr G
o)

Q =) A01 King William Rd

SAY 200U

@ 202 King William Rd.

Feestival a2 EZIEEY 403 King wiliam Rd
AD18 King William Rd @

- Darling West
g
@ AD4 King Willlam Rd ®
>
= H Oliphant
3
@ AOS King William Rd
Festival Dr Festiva/O  AO19King Willam St é
A021 and AD22 King Will é
22 King William Rd @ (-) x
3
m =
Adelaid Adelaide Station '~ = K 8
- g = >
8 Z1 King William Rd s
North Terrace
D North T i o TO;T@ égm emcmnnace
e P North Terra
North Terra: Ia:de lian v...lﬁ‘"“ North Tefracee g
E@ W2 Notth Tee 92 Q g g z
- Toe ®
: 2 W1Nonh £ z Qemmwmms 73
B ‘-’-’ 9-’ 3 Fisher P
2 2
'3 Stop Tram Rundie Mall
Rundle Malls®
[~ Rundle Mall
Hindley St =

=

=

ey

Figure 2.6 Public Transport Services to University Senior College

Public transport services for students to travel to University Senior College are provided by train, tram
and bus with the locations, routes and walk distances to the Kintore Avenue and Gawler Place campuses
provided in Table 2.8.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

13

Page 357



Table 2.8

Public Transport

Location

Public Transport
Routes

Walk Distance to USC
in Kintore Avenue (m)

Public Transport Services for Students at University Senior College

Walk Distance to USC
in Gawler Place (m)

Adelaide Railway
Station

All train lines (Gawler,
Seaford, Flinders,
Outer Harbor, Grange
and Belair)

750 m via Victoria Drive
to King William Road

450 m via North
Terrace

Art Galley tram stop
in North Terrace

Botanic Gardens to
Entertainment Centre
tram line

350 m along Kintore
Avenue to North Terrace

20 m via North Terrace

Rundle Mall tram
stop in King William
Street

Glenelg tram line

750 m via Kintore
Avenue, Gawler Place
and Rundle Mall to King
William Street

300 m via Gawler Place
and Rundle Mall to King
William Street

Buses in Grenfell
Street/Currie Street

Multiple Go Zone bus
corridors for the East-
West, Hills and O-
Bahn routes

750 m via Kintore
Avenue and Gawler Place
to Grenfell Street

950 m via Kintore
Avenue, Gawler Place
and Grenfell Street to
Currie Street

300 m via Gawler Place
to Grenfell Street

500 m via Gawler Place
and Grenfell Street to
Currie Street

Buses in King
William Street

Multiple Go Zone bus
corridors for the
North-South and East-
West bus routes

600 m via Kintore
Avenue and North
Terrace to King William
Street

400 m via Gawler Place
and Rundle Mall to King
William Street

Buses in North
Terrace

Go Zone for the East-
West bus routes

500 m via Kintore
Avenue to North Terrace

130 m via North
Terrace

The public transport network in Adelaide CBD is the hub of the train, tram and bus services where all
train lines terminate at Adelaide railway station, the two tram lines operating in King William Street or
North Terrace and all Go Zone high frequency bus corridors and Free Connector bus (98/99) route meet

as shown in Figure 2.7.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 358




200 248 G21 N21
241 G10 G22x

= B 245 G20 G30rF
(P 202 208 252 N202@E overnment House State
Adebside 203 209F 253 N254BE(HN98C) 196 265 Library
Radway Station = 190 197xN262 of SA
, 195 263 UENELEIIEY 281
Parliament = “® North Tce /'.’im'o” TP
98A) 224 228 G10 T228§ i & R
286 222 225 229 N224 = 172 288 5306 30pm

99A 720 722 N721
719 721 723
G10 G22xN262
G20 G30rN721

540 11

170 172 195 197x

South Australian
Museum

Art

H30 W90
H32 W91

171 190 196
820 840x 863 T840

Mon-Fri

2.30-6.30pm

140 H22 || 373

144 H23 f\y9o

821 841F 864 T842

503 557
507

147 H24
Y NT W91

W

B G

98C 206 252
99c 208 253 =
202 209F 254 _H(P
203 251 N202 :
N254

99A 265 G30F
241 G10 N21
245 G20 N262
248 G21

()35 wey!

174 178 232 i
Franklin St 176 230 N178 bAncless:t
Source: Adelaide Metro city network map, January 2024
Figure 2.7 Public Transport Network to University Senior College

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 359

Pirie St

H20 H33
H22 N30
H30 X30

University
Gallery of Adelaide

of South
Australia O

98¢
99¢
174
176
178

Hindmar:

W) square

8
Dy 82
82
83(

@) 35 fouaynd

(1%)

15



2.4.5 Cycling

The bicycle network in vicinity of the school with the connecting link to surrounding Park Land trails and
the inner metropolitan cycling network is shown in Figure 2.8. The schools are located within walking
distance to several on and off-road cycling paths within the CBD and surround parklands. Students
using bikes are provided several options to travel to and from school grounds.

B | ke d’ re Ct January 2024 o

- Pl!F\'Né\. r

ol
HA CKQ

oo
AL'Qelgge,gqxanic =)
High"School =

.b o

Campus
Locations

RYa sUNIVERSITY %
7 .\Qk
S 5

Adelaide S E
Highi('

School Ll
':“ )

t1

Thrres
-

EGE WfEST ).E

”

e
Legend
Bike Network wmnn Off Road Track Pedestrian Signal Water Body
== Main Road - Bike Lane Q Public Transport Bicycle Locker (2019) School Crossing  Land Use

Main Road Bike Shop (2024) @  RailTram Stop - Educational Land
~=-=- Secondary Road - Bike Lane *  Police Station ———— Distance to GPO Retail [ Commercial
e Secondary Road u Public Hospital 50m Contour Green Space
—==— Off Road Sealed Path e  Traffic Light Major Creek Built-Up Residential
Figure 2.8 Cycling Network to University Senior College

Bicycle end-of-trip facilities, such as secure off-road bicycle storage or racks are not provided for
students.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 16

Page 360



2.4.6 Pedestrian Access

Walking to and from the school is an important transport mode for students, staff and visitors who walk
for their entire trip or as an access mode to nearby public transport stops.

Pedestrian access routes to the high school are via:

e Sealed footpaths exist along all road corridors to the school.
e Footpaths through the path network in the nearby parklands.
The 1 km, 1.5 km and 2 km walkable access catchment areas to University Senior College that were

calculated using the footpath network are shown in Figure 2.9. Students who walk their entire trip to
school are likely walking from Adelaide city centre and North Adelaide.

——— o —
o

7/, "“ii“ TERRACE

N
#0ap
—2e_|

& g
OVINGHAM € £ (
7 3
48 £
A //"Q % (
e 68 /4 4 )
/%

HACKNEY

«
% o o
2 N %
2 o o %
RTMIERRACE BD!AN(" P o ,,40
- == (53 KENT TOWN "%
B i nono-
R cEr A S
© = G :
3 3 oo,
£ 3 N7 «
B fleg < o
O ol r; £ 4 % .
2! lmomrmnm o Bg 2 ;.
T aoReNFELL STREET L 3 ‘ 3
5 = = .
B q CrrreiAcey  mARTeLs roagE] (et
| | L.
H PIRIE STREET Coa =
K e A e
vwou : § |
& FuorRs [easy
; & FLINDERS STREE 3l Lo 2
| o\ T &z SR 1EL0_ROAD.
~ L STREET o 2 E e
ot %}’:’ El FAKENELD STRERTY WAKERIELD S
- . H; et
N el s
cuiTions I ‘
E = 5 Sl[&on na 2 |
T — : |
5 TREET 7 : : |
Gy gerore st gror ety = 63 - : = E
- MAN DRIVE: & 3 g 1 T 1
3 puaomanonve 3 )
o PONE § pRADMAN OF H H srReeT ~ + & L’\I
}S‘Kno' : ; 11 =z CARRINGTON STREET
1 ARRINGTON STREET
¥ a WRIGHT STREET
et A ‘
ar £7R J L@ wamesmeer 8.
—1 —= 3 = =
| — r - r re f‘“‘wﬂlkﬁ H
s 8 s o $

GILLES STREET

Legend o
= suburbs 1km Walking oy
&= Bus Stops Catchment O
| © school Crossings 1.5km Walking =

Catchment

Bl — Railways

: a
| % School Entrance él:t'r;hvr:a;l:tng -
University Senior Pedestrian s
College Crossings ‘V/] o ‘ -
/ 55 ; =1
10 420 5= ]
T T NP1y gy Jwawue
Figure 2.9 Walkable Access Catchment to University Senior College
240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 17

Page 361



3 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities were identified with discussions with the school administration staff. Site
observations were not conducted because the high school does have set times for the start and end of
the school day.

3.1 Stakeholder Discussions

A telephone meeting was held with Mr Matthew Noble on 4 June 2024 to discuss the survey results and
issues for student safety when travelling to and from school.

¢ All students live in metropolitan Adelaide. They do not have remote learning, however teachers record
all lectures. Students must attend on campus.

e Students with a parent living in regional areas typically board with relatives or privately with families
in Adelaide.

e Students do not wear school uniforms as required by other high schools. Therefore, they are not
identifiable on the street and mix in with the other university students, young workers and visitors.

Safety issues that affect the USC students and staff:

e Uneven footpaths creating hazards. They have had several students and staff trip the footpaths along
Kintore Avenue.

e The traffic in Gawler Place from North Terrace. Despite signage many cars use Gawler Place for
making a U-turn at the entrance to the car parkade. Cars accelerate quickly to beat the traffic lights.
That part of Gawler Place could be restricted to only vehicles entering the U-park carpark.

e Traffic entering the University of Adelaide at Gates 11, 12 and 13 often do not give way to pedestrians
and are travelling too fast.

e The U-Park parking facility in Gawler Place attracts anti-social behaviour in the stairwells and on the
street. This is a security issue for students entering and exiting the building.

3.2 Site Observations

A site visit was conducted during April 2024 on a non-school day to confirm the parking and access to
the two campuses in Kintore Avenue and Gawler Place.

Formal site observations at the two campuses of University Senior College were not conducted because:

e The students do not start and finish classes at the same times and it varies by day of the week.
e University Senior College operates like a university with variable lesson times.

e Students do not wear uniforms and therefore students arriving and departing are not easy to
distinguish from the general public or university students.

3.3 Summary of the Issues and Opportunities

Issues for safety for students accessing the high school are:

e Safety for walking along footpaths in the city streets with trip hazards, in particular along Kintore
Avenue.

¢ Risks of incidents between pedestrians and vehicles entering and exiting the U-Park in Gawler Place
that at the entrance of the Gawler Place campus.

o Traffic entering the University of Adelaide at Gates 11, 12 and 13 often do not give way to pedestrians
and are travelling too fast.

e The U-Park parking facility in Gawler Place attracts anti-social behaviour in the stairwells and on the
street. This is a security issue for students entering and exiting the building.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 18

Page 362



4 Travel Safety Options and Assessment

4.1 Student Travel Safety Options

Options to improve the travel safety for students were developed under three categories, namely:

e Infrastructure treatments requiring civil works with changes to signals or pedestrian crossings.

e Operational efficiencies, with changes to parking controls, Kiss and Drop aeras or school zones.

e Safety promotions to increase awareness of the school with warning signage or information.

The options for the assessment are provided in Table 4.1 with a description of the initiative and the
issue to be addressed.

Table 4.1

Type of Option

Description

School Travel Safety Options for University Senior College

Issue Addressed

Efficiencies

and exit of the U-Park in Gawler Place

Infrastructure Maintain footpaths along Kintore Reduce the risk of pedestrian trip
Treatments Avenue hazards
Operational Install warning signs at the entrance Improve the safety for students and

pedestrians in Gawler Place

Council to follow up on security issues
with the monitoring of the video
surveillance cameras at the Gawler
Place U-Park entrance and stairwells

Reduce the risk of harassment of
students at the U-Park facility in
Gawler Place

Safety
Promotions

Prepare a promotional brochure about
public transport and safe cycling
routes to Adelaide CBD

Encourage more students to use
walking, cycling or public transport
than using private vehicles

4.2 Recommended School Travel Safety Initiatives

The recommended school travel safety initiatives include:

e Maintain footpaths along Kintore Avenue.

¢ Install warning signs at the entrance and exit of the U-Park in Gawler Place.

e Council to follow up on security issues with the monitoring of the video surveillance cameras at the
Gawler Place U-Park entrance and stairwells.

e Prepare a promotional brochure about public transport and safe cycling routes to Adelaide CBD. Since

USC is not a typical high school with set start and finish times on school days, a travel access guide
that is designed for class times that are variable by day and student is proposed. An example of a
Travel Access Guide that was prepared for a TAFE campus in NSW is provide in Appendix B.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 363




4.3 Assessment and Indicative Cost Estimates

The school travel safety options were assessed under the safe systems approach and indicative cost
estimates are provided for each travel safety option in Table 4.2. The options were given labels under
the following categories:

. T for Traffic control device or treatment that requires civil works and construction with cost
estimates.

. I for information to the school community with signage or online promotional brochure.

Table 4.2 Indicative Cost Estimates for the Travel Safety Options at University Senior College
Option Description Indicative Cost Comments
ID Estimate
T1 Maintain footpaths along Kintore | Less than $5,000 | Council has a responsibility for
Avenue regular maintenance of

footpaths in the CBD.

T2 Install warning signs at the Less than $500 A larger more conspicuous
entrance and exit of the U-Park warning sign would help alert
in Gawler Place motorists and pedestrians that

Gawler Place is a shared zone.

T3 Council to follow up on security Operational cost The video cameras need to be
issues with the monitoring video | for the City of monitored by Council staff to
surveillance cameras at the Adelaide observe for any security issues
Gawler Place U-Park entrance at the car park.

and stairwells

P1 Prepare a promotional brochure Not a cost for the | USC administration has a role
about public transport and safe City of Adelaide to promote non-car transport
cycling routes to Adelaide CBD to the school. This information

could have the format of a
webpage or brochure that is
similar to the example provided
in Appendix B.

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report

Page 364

20



5 References

The following references were used in the preparation of the school travel safety review.

Guide to Traffic Management Part 8, Local Area Traffic Management, Austroads, Sydney, 2016,
Section 7.5.7 School Zones, page 114

Guide to Traffic Management Part 10, Traffic Control and Communication Devices, Austroads, Sydney,
2019, Section 6.5.8 Zig Zag Markings, page 105,

Speed Limit Guideline for South Australia, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, October 2023,
Appendix C School Zones

Supplement to AS 1742.10, Manual of uniform traffic control devices, Part 10, Pedestrian control and
protection, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, April 2024

Manual of Legal Responsibilities and Technical Requirements for Traffic Control Devices Part 2: Code of
Technical Requirements, Department for Infrastructure and Transport, March 2024, Section 9.3 Drop
off and pick up zones, page 34

School Transport Policy, Department for Education, South Australia, January 2024

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review — Draft Report 21

Page 365



Appendix A - Student Travel Survey Form

UNIVERSITY
SENIOR
COLLEGE

ADELAIDE

University Senior College

Student Transport Survey

onkin on behalf of the City of Adelaide is conducting a survey to determing the main modes of travel for

yunderstand the travel behaviour to the school, Please assist us by completing the following

queastions, Thank you far your participation to suppaort safer and more sustainable transport to University Ser

fiaar 10 Yaar 11 ) Year12
2. Please anter your gender.
) Male 'y Femals Prefar not to
- - I-\. ._I
- answer
* 3. Please enter your suburb of residence

* 4. 0On a typical school day, how do you travel to school?

() Car (as passenger with drop-off in Morth Terrace) . Bus (frem bus stop in King William Street/King William
- Road

() Car (as passenger with drop-off in Gawler Place)
() Tra

() Car (as paszenger with drop-off in Kintore Avenue) -

(_) Car (as passenger with drop-off in Victoria Drive]

Walk fior the entire trip

Car (a5 passenger with drop-off elsewhere in Adelaide
| — ) .
~' CBO) () Bicycle for the entire trip

() Bus {from bus stop in North Tarracs) () Seoater for the entire trip

L;} Cther {pleaze specify)

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 366



240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 367



Appendix B — Travel Access Guide for TAFE NSW

P car Parking

On-campus parking areas are available at P1 (staff only), P2
(students and staffs) and P3 (staff only) carparks accessible
via See St. The carparks are labelled on the area map
opposite.

e Liftango Carpooling Service

Carpooling is available for trips to and from the campus,
and can be organised using the Liftango app. Drivers and
riders wishing to rideshare can download the app from
the App Store or the Google Play Store.

TRAVEL ACCESS GUIDE

Meadowbank Campus
See Street, Meadowbank NSW 2114

Effective from August 2022

wéw | TAFE: | @

O@E@E

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 368



Getting to TAFE Meadowbank Campus

% Walking

Campus
n and u

Pedestrian Access
Rhoades St

L

Sew St Laneway

e "Epdlrdlﬂdrtd
cans rer Fe ute (C ar Q " pic Park).

Cyclmg Access and Blcycle End-of-Trip Famlmes
vailable at

ns and platform
Trip Planner
https://transportnsw.info/trip#/ .

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 369



; ) -’ 2 3
L G 4 ‘ WestRyde N o
[6) Victoriy fig A v /7 wu Penistone N 3 Vs
G &3 u| Osnistone Ease. © ¥ 7
Carfingford ! .o" \/
Eastwood ] o %\
Parramatta ! p ’:(%\
Denlstone West
u Denistone 8
kS

Pranay Constitution Rd

N

e,
Lo,

N
N

240706 University Senior College | School Travel Safety Review - Draft Report

Page 370

-0- Ferry Wharf & Route

EXN
3 -G- Bus Stop & Route

EEEEE Walking Route

to

Giadesville

LERR] =

Ryde

Inner City DU
Inner West

Southern Suburbs

Sydney Olympic Park

2 |




Agenda Item 7.2

Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Capital Works Monthly Project Update - e bic
May 2025 Works Committee

Program Contact:

Strategic Alignment - Our Corporation Mark Goudge, Associate Director
Infrastructure
Public Approving Officer:

Mike Philippou, Acting Director
City Infrastructure

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides a summary view of the Capital Works Program delivery and financial performance as of
31 May 2025 including a snapshot of headline projects either complete or in progress, future procurement activities
and upcoming community consultation and engagement activities.

The Infrastructure Program will present a monthly report to the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee
reflecting the previous monthly performance.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL
THAT COUNCIL:

1. Notes the Capital Works Program Update for May 2025 as contained within this report and Attachment A
to Item 7.2 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee held on
17 June 2025.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 371



IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS

City of Adelaide
2024-2028

Strategic Plan

Strategic Alignment — Our Corporation
Strategy, Value and Efficiency - Strategic and Capital Projects are delivered on

time and on budget (target 75%)

Policy

Not as a result of this report

Consultation

Consultation and / or engagement to various levels as required for the delivery of each
project has or will be undertaken.

Projects delivered through a combination of Council resources, contract staff and external

Resource .
contractors and suppliers.

RISIS/ ngal / Not as a result of this report

Legislative

Opportunities Not as a result of this report

24/25 Budget
Allocation

This report tracks capital works performance against the revised 2024/25 Capital Works
budget of $112.909m.

Proposed 25/26
Budget Allocation

Not as a result of this report

Life of Project,
Service, Initiative
or (Expectancy of)
Asset

Life expectancy of assets varies by asset class.

24/25 Budget
Reconsideration
(if applicable)

Not as a result of this report

Ongoing Costs
(eg maintenance
cost)

Ongoing costs for the maintenance of new and/or renewed assets are factored into future
Asset Management and Maintenance Plans, Business Plans and Budgets.

Other Funding
Sources

Projects reported on are primarily funded from Council’s Capital Budget, however various
State and Federal grant funding opportunities have been leveraged against a number of
projects.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 372



DISCUSSION

1. The total revised Capital Expenditure Budget for 2024/25 approved by Council is $112.909m.

2. The Capital Works Program is itemised as follows:

2.1. New and Upgrade Projects are identified through Council’s Strategies and Plans and defined as
complex in nature, installation of new infrastructure and upgrades to existing infrastructure. The
funding allocated within 2024/25 financial period totals $56.613m.

2.2. Renewal Projects are grouped against multiple asset categories and are directly aligned to
maintenance service levels contained within Council’'s Asset Management Plans. The funding
allocated within 2024/25 financial period totals $56.296m.

3. The monthly Capital Works Update provides the status of these two capital programs as at the end of each

calendar month.

New and Upgrade

4. New and Upgrade Projects as of 31 May 2025 reflects $40.339m in spend and a further $5.946m in
contracted works.

NEW & UPGRADE

Remaining Budget
$10.328 (18%)

Contracted
$56.613M $5.946 (11%)

Spent $40.339
(71%)

5. New and Upgrade Summary:

5.1. Infinancial year 2024/25 we are delivering approximately 202 new and upgrade projects across the
city. The Main Streets program continues to occupy much of the resource effort in our New and
Upgrade program with other significant city initiatives also underway including planning for the new
Visitor Centre. Solid progress with Central Market Arcade Development is also reported this month.

5.2. Two New and Upgrade projects have reached practical completion in May being:
5.2.1. Mistletoe Park/ Tainmuntilla (Park 11) Shared Use Path Renewal and Public Lighting Upgrade
5.2.2. Old Police Station Horticulture Shed - New Air Conditioning Installation.

6. Examples of New and Upgrade Projects within this category are:
6.1. Main Streets progress:

6.1.1. Hindley Street — next steps are largely dependent on higher level decisions within state
government which are critical to moving forward with a preferred design. Meanwhile, the project
team have commenced discussions with third party utilities and are seeking to undertake early
contractor engagement. Associated risks relate to stakeholder engagement, budget and
expectations around delivery timeframes.

6.1.2. Hutt Street — A paper and workshop will be referred to the Infrastructure and Public Works
Committee in July with line of sight to a market approach in early October for detailed design.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 373



Recent progress has included the commissioning of an economic impact assessment report
and draft engagement report through external providers. Works in progress include finalisation
of a stormwater assessment that will support the broader street design.

6.1.3. Gouger Street — Key stakeholder design workshops were undertaken in March / April. Public
consultation has been completed on the concept layout, while a detailed design consultancy
has now been engaged. Decisions on materiality and service levels are being addressed by the
project team with current risks on this project including designing within the budget constraints
and managing community expectations.

6.1.4. O’Connell Street — Upgrades to the eastern footpath outside 88 O’'Connell Street between
Archer and Tynte Street will start in June 2025. Stakeholder engagement on concept design
has been undertaken and the project team will return to the community at 70% design. Design
and Construction of the western footpath between Archer and Tynte Streets has been bought
forward to the 2025/26 financial year. Safety outcomes at the O’Connell Street / Archer Street
intersection will be included in this package of works utilising Blackspot funding.

6.1.5. Melbourne Street — Work continues on the broader design plan following several minor upgrade
elements in the street being delivered, including new furniture, planters and banners. Future
scope will include installation of information signage for the Dunn Street car park which has now
received planning approval; and hanging baskets. Wombat crossings will also be installed east
and west of Jerningham Street, grant funded by the Department for Infrastructure and Transport
(DIT).

6.2. Experience Adelaide Visitor Centre — Delivery of the smart Experience Adelaide Visitor Centre has
commenced with this essential information resource to be located within the State Library on North
Terrace, funded by the Commonwealth as part of the Adelaide City Deal.

Scope of the project includes:

6.2.1. Design and fit-out of the centre including interactive / immersive spaces, service areas, retail,
and ways to provide visitor information that excites and engages.

6.2.2. Experiential technologies including hardware and software.

6.2.3. Mobile / digital experience platform to connect with visitors pre and post visit and connect
visitors with the city.

6.2.4. Procurement - Tender for design and construct services underway. Discussions held between
AEDA and State Library regarding the licence agreement and delivery model. State Library
discussion regarding shared foyer space works is being undertaken.

6.3. Central Market Arcade Development - Since March the site has progressed from having 220 workers
on-site to 270. The site workers are all now housed within the site using the builder's temporary
amenity areas.

6.3.1. Structural construction of the podium floor levels across the site is complete including basement
to the level 4 podium deck. This has included the suspended slab construction, precast wall
panel installations and progressive construction of the tower core jump form (both North and
South towers) to level 14. The residential / hotel northern tower has reach level 8 while the
commercial office southern tower is at level 6. Stripping of formwork has reached level 2 and fit
out works include services trunk installation to ground and level 1, while blockwork walls are
being put in across the basements to level 1 areas.

6.3.2. Other important activities occurring concurrently are a wayfinding masterplan across the whole
Market Square site including existing Central Market and UPark areas. The Adelaide Central
Market Authority continues to manage the retail leasing component for the Market Expansion on
ground floor

6.3.3. Total budget expenditure is currently 98% of the $31.9m approved budget. The financial year
2024/25 budget of $21.841m is on track to be reached by year end having spent 96% year to
date with the final claim currently under assessment.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 374



Renewal Projects

7. Renewal Projects as of 31 May 2025 reflects $40.757m in spend and a further $8.630m in contracted works.

RENEWAL

Remaining Budget
$6.909(12%)

Contracted $8.630

(15%)
$56.296M

Spent $40.757
(73%)

8. Renewal Project Summary:

8.1. In the 2024/25 financial year we are delivering 286 Renewal projects across the city. Our renewals
program is on target to achieve its Asset Sustainability Ratio (>90%). This years’ program has seen a
heavy focus on our stormwater assets both with investigation and building an up-to-date stormwater
management plan (SMP) for the city. This program has also delivered replacement stormwater assets
(culverts, pipes and pits) in high-risk locations.

8.2. Five projects have reached practical completion in May 2025, including:
8.2.1. Bud Lighting Renewal - North Terrace - between King William Street and East Terrace
8.2.2. Colonel Light Centre - Lift System Renewal
8.2.3. Electrical switchboards above ground - Switchboard - Albert Bridge
8.2.4. Mistletoe Park/ Tainmuntilla (Park 11) Shared Use Path Renewal and Public Lighting Upgrade
8.2.5. Rundle Mall Fountain - Light Renewal
9. Examples of Renewal Projects within this category:

9.1. Roads Renewals - The purpose of this delivery program is to deliver road resurfacing works in line
with the objectives of the Transport Asset Management Plan.

9.2. On site works have progressed, with resurfacing undertaken on multiple streets during April and May.
9.2.1. Grenfell Street (works ongoing)
9.2.2. Playhouse Lane
9.2.3. Gilles Arcade
9.2.4. Sultram Place
9.2.5. Blyth Street
9.2.6. Patching works on Wakefield Street was also commenced.

9.3. During June, we expect to complete Wakefield Street, as well as undertake patching works in
Morphett Street and Gouger Street, as well as complete the Grenfell Street works.

9.4. The Roads program is well on schedule and will deliver all expected outcomes for 2024/25.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 375



9.5. Royal Avene project - Streetscape improvements on Royal Avenue are progressing well. The scope of
this work includes renewal of road, kerb and water table and footpath assets. The project commenced
on 22 April 2025 with an expected completion end of June 2025. The street community has been
provided with regular updates of work progress and level of disruption has been kept minimal. Works
have included renewal of a heritage spoon drain.

9.6. Vincent Street and Vincent Place Improvements - Streetscape Improvements on Vincent Street and
Vincent Place (Gilles Street to South Terrace) are moving ahead with construction well commenced.
The scope being delivered by contractor Gridlock Civil includes road rehabilitation, kerb and water
table renewal, footpath and stormwater renewal and pedestrian and cycling improvements. Works
commenced in April and are expected to take approximately 5 months to complete.

9.7. Fire Door Renewal program -The fire door renewal program is an extensive compliance project to
address identified defects and ensure compliance with applicable fire safety regulations and standards
across multiple City of Adelaide buildings. The program is well underway with most doors ordered and
installation commencing. The project team are working closely with the Facilities team and
stakeholders at designated renewal locations including the Bus Station, U-Park, Archives and
Adelaide Town Hall.

Greening Adelaide Streets

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Construction drawings have been issued for 28 streets, one less than April as one street has been deferred.
Street designs are ongoing to ensure that tree planting will continue into the 2025/26 financial year as part of
the 2025 planting season, which ends in Spring. Designs that have not been implemented in 2025 will form
part of the 2026 planting season.

Tree planting is now increasing as pits are being completed in addition to trees planted in Halifax Street,
adjoining Hurtle Square.

During May tree pits have been completed in Devonshire Place, Gawler Place, Eliza Street and James Street
with trees being installed in Barton Terrace, King William Street, Strangways Terrace, Halifax Street and James
Place.

Tree pit works are ongoing at Gawler Place, King William Street, Ifould Street, Eliza Street, Myers Street,
Queen Street and Royal Place.

The table below shows the expected number of plantings to occur. Some trees are already in stock and
ordering is not required.

Program Delivery Reporting Tool
Stream 3 Stream 4 Totals

MNo. Trees @ IFT 35 16 53 190 294
No. Trees Ordered 33 16 53 235 337

Trees Planted Pre-April "25 0 16 0 1

Trees Planted April ‘25 0 0 0 16

248

Trees Planted May '25 10 0 0 48

Proposed Planting June "25 14 0 26 117
No. Trees Planted 10 16 0 51 77
14.1. —2023/24 and 2024/25 Road and Footpath Renewals
14.2. — Streetscape Projects

14.3. Stream 3 — Heat Map Greening for small streets and laneways

14.4. Stream 4 - Priority Boulevards and Squares

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 376




Forward Tree Planting Schedule

15.

16.

As designs are complete and Issue for Tender (IFT) is achieved, tree orders have increased from 255 in
April to 337 in May.

The planting schedule outlined above shows current anticipated tree numbers for the end of the 2025
planting season with around 200 trees still expected to be planted by June 2025, with any trees not planted
in June to follow as part of overall 2025 planting season.

Capital Works Program

17.
18.

19.
20.

21.

22.

There are 479 projects within the approved program in the 2024/25 financial year.

Within the 2024/25 Capital Works Program there are currently 187 projects within the Initiate, Concept and
Design phase.

The total value of projects within the Initiate, Concept and Design Phase is $10.402m.

There are 292 projects in the Delivery Phase with a total value of $102.506m. Of these projects, Practical
Completion has been achieved on 24 New and Upgrade, 74 Renewals and nine combined New and
Upgrade and Renewals projects — 107 projects in total.

The total expenditure against the Capital Works Program to the end of May 2025 is $81.096m spent with a
further $14.576m contracted, totalling $95.672m in the first 11 months.

CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM

Remaining Budget
$17.237 (15%)

Contracted

$112.909M $14.576 (13%)

Summary of commitments and expenditure by asset class for Month of May:

Spent$81.096
(72%)

Capital Works

No. of Projects*

Approved Budget

Commitments

Expenditure

Remaining Budget

Asset Renewals 303 $56.296 $8.630 $40.757 $6.909
Corporate Overhead 35.665 30.000 35.068 50.598
Bridges 3 $0.266 $0.057 50.204 $0.005
Buildings 50 $11.751 $1.718 $8.388 $1.645
ICT Renewals 18 $3.102 $0.613 $2.061 $0.428
Light'g & Electrical 31 $3.462 $0.403 $2.530 50.530
Park Lands Assets 19 $1.984 $0.247 $1.051 $0.686
Plant and Fleet 11 $2.235 $0.233 $1.713 $0.289
Streets 1
Traffic Signal 11 $3.663 -50.021 $3.433 $0.251
Transport 96 514.644 $2.997 511.464 50.183
Urban Elements 53 $2.488 $0.625 $1.425 $0.438
Water Infrastructure 10 57.036 51.758 53.421 51.856

New/Upgrade Projects 205 $56.613 $5.946 $40.339 $10.328

Total 479 $112.909 $14.576 $81.096 $17.237

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 377




23. Examples of those works completed or in progress are reflected in Attachment A - Capital Works.

24. Works in Progress (WIP) is the capitalisation of projects within ten weeks following Practical Completion.
WIP currently sits at 78%. WIP KPI - 70%.

Works in Progress KPI

70.00%

18%

0% 100%

Capital Works Year on Year Spend Profile

25.  The spend profile for May 2025 reflects a capital spend of $81.096m year to date, compared to $79.110m in
May 2024. This represents a 3% increase on the same period last year.

100M
90.815M
30M
60M
——2324
——24.25
40M
20M
01 (Jul) 02 (Aug) 03 (Sep) 04 (Oct) 05 (Nov) 06 (Dec) 07 (Jan) 08 (Feb) 09 (Mar) 10 (Apr) 11 (May) 12 (Jun)

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 378



Capital Works Five Year Spend Profile

26. The table below reflects the past five year spend performance.

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 19 2020 21+ 21 22+ 22 23 - 23 24 ——24 25
100M
91M
80M
60M
40M
34N, cvuee
..?:.O-M-“na-ll%m. .
‘ 20M
5M
3 0M
01 (Jul) 02 (Aug) 03 (Sep) 04 (Oct) 05 (Nov) 06 (Dec)y 07 (Jan) 08 (Feb) 09 (Mar) 10 (Apr) 11 (May) 12 (Jun)

Future Procurement Activities

27.  The following procurement table represents early 2025/26 financial year procurement opportunities being
progressed to the value of $19m.

Project name Project no. Value (000's) Procurement status

ACMA Market Floor Compliance — Western Wall 20593 200 Seeking RFQ to complete works

ACMA Installation of Automatic Exhaust Fan 27006 800 Ready to issue to market

ACMA Basement structural Rehabilitation 27014 500 Out to tender (4/June close)

CLC Level 9 fit out 20645 820 Sole select award - pending

Road & footpath asphalt renewal program various 5850 Standing agreement extension: June +2 years

Glen Osmond [ Park 17 improvements X550 5504 Design progressing — aiming June to market

Strangway Terrace Street Lighting Renewal 20417 605 Procurement commenced — awaiting long lead
time materials

Traffic Signal Cables and Conduit Renewal program various 2421 PM evaluating requirements — expects early
commencemeant of works,

Rymill Park Irrigation 22513 400 Procurement completed: BTM engaged

Integrated Climate Strategy 20121 2000 Multiple contractors engaged

28.

Early engagement will provide a head-start to the 2025/26 Capital program and see design and construction
commencing early. This opportunity is made possible through detailed procurement review of the capital plan
and early preparation of tender packages ready for market.

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025

Page 379



Future Community Consultation and Engagement Activities

29. The following are some community consultation activities and engagements that are ongoing or planned:
29.1. Stage 2 Frome Road Bikeways — information sharing with local stakeholders
29.2. Greening program — ongoing consultation across the CBD
29.3. Council infrastructure website — 19 projects showcased.

30. The information provided reflects 11 months of the 2024/25 financial year. For further details on the 2024/25
Capital Program, the Council Member Corporate Dashboard has a dedicated Capital Works section.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A — Capital Works Projects in Focus — May 2025

- END OF REPORT —

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee — Agenda — Tuesday, 17 June 2025
Page 380



Capital Works

May Update
Infrastructure & Public Works Committee

This report provides an overview of Capital Projects either complete or progressing for

the month of May 2025.

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

SR AT Y
SHERLOCK /-7 22 T

-



Central Market Arcade
Redevelopment

New/Upgrade

Further progress has been made on the two
towers, where the Northern ‘residential/
hotel’ tower is up to level 8 and the southern
‘commercial’ tower is commencing level 6.

Externally on the fagade steel arch lintels are
being installed. Fit-out works have reached
the ground floor and level 1 with services
trunk runs installation.

2 — Capital Works — May 2025 Update

South Terrace & Hutt Street

New/Upgrade

Construction on the stormwater
improvements and traffic signal upgrades is
progressing steadily, with kerbing, drainage,
garden beds, and signal upgrades well
underway.

In June, major work will take place at the
intersection, including road lowering and
extensive asphalt resurfacing.

These improvements are designed to enhance
drainage by directing stormwater away from
the intersection.

Once the roadworks are complete, new signal
masts will be installed to improve right-turn
movements.

Page 382



Greening Wakefield Street Mills Terrace

New/Upgrade Renewal and New/Upgrade

Road resurfacing of Mills Terrace from Childers
Street to Barton Terrace West including tree
surround renewals and new street trees.

Bike lane marking to be completed along with
the planting of 5 new street trees.

Greening of the Wakefield Street median strip
with 46 proposed new trees.

Trees will be planted once the median strip is
ready with majority to be planted by end of
June 2025.

3 — Capital Works — May 2025 Update

Page 383



Adelaide Town Hall Facade
Conservation Works

Renewal

The Albert Tower scaffolding it starting to be
removed unveiling the beautiful restoration.

The finial has been restored, and the gold
gilding has been redone.

The lantern stone has been replaced. The
stone was sourced locally and was hand
carved to match the original stonework.

Lead flashing has been replaced around the
tower and patching and grouting of the tower
was also undertaken.

The original stonework has also been cleaned.

Works to be completed late August.

4 — Capital Works — May 2025 Update

Royal Avenue

Renewal

Works have involved:

o New paving

e New kerb

e  Works to the heritage spoon drain

e New road pavement

e WSUD kerbing to allow passive
irrigation to tree pits

e New stormwater pits

e landscaping

Works are progressing well, with Practical
Completion expected end of June 2025

Page 384



Botanic Creek Rehabilitation Pennington Gardens Footpath

Renewal Renewal

Renewal works in Rymill Park /
Murlawirrapurka (Park 14) have achieved
Practical completion.

Works involved:

e Removal of silt

e Bank stabilisation Timber edging and resurfacing of the footpath
e Channel reshaping has been completed in Pennington Gardens
e Landscaping East, Red Gum Park / Karrawirra (Park 12).

e Community planting

5 — Capital Works — May 2025 Update

Page 385



Public Lighting LED Program

Renewal

The final public lighting project for 2024/25 is
underway on Rundle Street with over 50% per
cent of the street complete.

The warm colour complements many of the
old heritage structures on the street.

Completion is expected in mid-June.

6 — Capital Works — May 2025 Update

Brookman Fountain

Renewal

Works involved the replacement of the control
system and pump.

The previous control system was 20 years old,
resulting in a failure or two.

Funds were brought forward into 2024/25 to
ensure that the renewal took place prior to
the winter rain period, this work has been
completed.

The replacement of the pump has recently
been funded, and this will be completed by
the end of June 2025.

Page 386



	Agenda
	7.1 School Travel Safety Review
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS
	Attachment A for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment B for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment C for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment D for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment E for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment F for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment G for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment H for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment I for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment J for School Travel Safety Review
	Attachment K for School Travel Safety Review

	7.2 Capital Works Monthly Project Update - May 2025
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENTS
	Attachment A for Capital Works Monthly Project Update - May 2025




